
 

Oldham Borough Council 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Council Meeting 
Wednesday 24 March 2021 

 
 
 
 



 



 
OLDHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
To:  ALL MEMBERS OF OLDHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL,  

CIVIC CENTRE, OLDHAM 
 

Tuesday, 16 March 2021 
 

You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of the Council which will be held on 
Wednesday 24 March 2021 at 6.10 pm in the Council Chamber, Civic Centre, for the 
following purposes: 
 

1   Civic Appreciation Award  

2   To receive apologies for absence and attendance  

3   To order that the Minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 16th December 2020 
and 4th March 2021 be signed as a correct record (Pages 1 - 80) 

4   To receive declarations of interest in any matter to be determined at the meeting  

5   To deal with matters which the Mayor considers to be urgent business  

6   To receive communications relating to the business of the Council  

7   To receive and note petitions received relating to the business of the Council (Pages 
81 - 82) 

 (time limit 20 minutes) 
 

8   Youth Council  

 (time limit 20 minutes) 
 
During 2020 we were able to consult over 8,600 young people for the UK Youth 
Parliament’s consultation ‘Make Your Mark’, although lower than previous years due to 
the pandemic restrictions it represents a 34% turnout (the highest in the UK).   
The top issue that came out from this ballot, with more than a quarter of all votes, was 
Free University: Investing in young people by providing free university; This will help 
more young people reach their full potential without suffering financial hardship.  
With young people now reported leaving university with upwards of £45,000 worth of 
debt, it is no surprise that young people must seriously consider this cost before even 
applying to university. For some young people in Oldham, fees plus the cost of living 
and other financial requirements will implicate their decision to apply and continue into 
higher education regardless of their passion or ability. This in turn may restrict or 
hinder their prospects to gain a full-time job in equal measure of pay and opportunity 
compared to that of their peers who attend university.  
At the time of running Make Your Mark over 3,000 young people aged 18-24 were 
unemployed, a youth unemployment rate of 15.2%, the highest rate across Greater 



Manchester and higher than the national rate of 9.2%.  With unemployment rising due 
to the pandemic it is likely that youth unemployment will rise further and stay high for 
longer than for adult unemployment.  We know that the reality is that not all young 
people may want to attend university even if it is free.  However, if we can give every 
opportunity to those who wish to be socially mobile then it will free up space within the 
labour market. 
Oldham Council is committed to providing quality educational opportunities for all it’s 
young people.   
We ask that the Chief Executive writes to the Prime Minister, Boris Johnson and the 
Minister of State for Universities, Michelle Donelan to show the Council’s support of it’s 
young people and support of scrapping University Fees.  
 

9   Question Time  

a   Public Questions  

 (time limit 15 Minutes) 

b   Questions to Leader and Cabinet  

 (time limit 30 minutes) 

c   Questions on Cabinet Minutes (Pages 83 - 110) 

 (time limit 15 minutes) 
 
14th December 2020 
25th January 2021 
22nd February 2021 

d   Questions on Joint Arrangements (Pages 111 - 202) 

 (time limit 15 minutes) 
 

Greater Manchester Combined 
Authority  

27th November 2020 
18th December 2020 
29th January 2021  

Greater Manchester Transport 
Committee  

11th December 2020 

Commissioning Partnership Board  22nd October 2020 
28th January 2021 

GM Police, Fire and Crime Panel  16th November 2020 

Health and Wellbeing Board  10th November 2020  

AGMA  11th December 2020 

Greater Manchester Waste and 
Recycling Committee  

14th October 2020 

Miocare  22nd October 2020 

National Park Authority   13th November 2020  
 

10   Notice of Administration Business  



 (time limit 30 minutes) 
 
Motion 1  
Councillor Shah to MOVE and Councillor Chadderton to SECOND: 
Islamophobia  
Oldham has a rich history of people from different backgrounds and cultures living and 
working together. However, we know that there are groups of people that are 
marginalised, who are more likely to face inequality and discrimination than others. We 
believe the people of Oldham want to live in a place that is committed to fairness and 
equality of opportunity, a borough that tackles discrimination and prejudice, helping 
communities come together and celebrating our differences.  
As champions of inclusivity, we take a no-tolerance approach to hate crimes. Hate 
crime victims are more likely to suffer repeat victimisation, more likely to suffer serious 
psychological impacts, and are less likely to report these crimes to the police. Hate 
crime can limit people’s opportunities and can lead to isolation and segregation. It is 
also damaging to the community, undermining integration and cohesion, and eroding 
shared values of acceptance and respect for others.  
The Council adopted the working definition of Anti-Semitism as set out by the 
International Holocaust remembrance Alliance in 2017, and recognises the need 
additionally to recognise the working definition of Islamaphobia set out below. 
 A study by the Muslim Council of Britain found that 59 percent of headlines in the 
British Press portray Muslims in a negative light, with Islam being misinterpreted and 
utilised by racists to create fear and promote hatred. Following an extensive 
consultation, the All-Party Parliamentary Group (APPG) for British Muslims has 
formulated a working definition of Islamophobia as: 
"ISLAMOPHOBIA IS ROOTED IN RACISM AND IS A TYPE OF RACISM THAT 
TARGETS EXPRESSIONS OF MUSLIMNESS OR PERCEIVED MUSLIMNESS." 
Contemporary examples of Islamophobia in public life, the media, schools, the 
workplace, and in encounters between religions and non-religions in the public sphere 
could, considering the overall context, include, but are not limited to: 

• Calling for, aiding, instigating or justifying the killing or harming of Muslims in the 
name of a racist/fascist ideology, or an extremist view of religion. 

• Making mendacious, dehumanizing, demonizing, or stereotypical allegations 
about Muslims as such, or of Muslims as a collective group, such as, especially 
but not exclusively, conspiracies about Muslim entryism in politics, government 
or other societal institutions; the myth of Muslim identity having a unique 
propensity for terrorism and claims of a demographic ‘threat’ posed by Muslims 
or of a ‘Muslim takeover’. 

• Accusing Muslims as a group of being responsible for real or imagined 
wrongdoing committed by a single Muslim person or group of Muslim 
individuals, or even for acts committed by non-Muslims. 

• Accusing Muslims as a group, or Muslim majority states, of inventing or 
exaggerating Islamophobia, ethnic cleansing or genocide perpetrated against 
Muslims. 

• Accusing Muslim citizens of being more loyal to the ‘Ummah’ (transnational 
Muslim community) or to their countries of origin, or to the alleged priorities of 
Muslims worldwide, than to the interests of their own nations. 

• Denying Muslim populations, the right to self-determination e.g., by claiming that 
the existence of an independent Palestine or Kashmir is a terrorist endeavor. 



• Applying double standards by requiring of Muslims behavior’s that are not 
expected or demanded of any other groups in society, e.g. loyalty tests. 

• Using the symbols and images associated with classic Islamophobia. 
• Holding Muslims collectively responsible for the actions of any Muslim majority 

state, whether secular or constitutionally Islamic. 
This list is not exhaustive but forms guidelines to recognise markers of Islamophobia in 
today’s context. 
Oldham Council resolves: 

1. To formally adopt the working definition of Islamophobia as formulated by the 
APPG for British Muslims. 

2. To ask the Leader and Chief Executive of the Council to write to government 
ministers asking them to listen to Muslim communities and the cross-party 
group of MPs and peers and to adopt this definition of Islamophobia which 
classifies discrimination against Muslims as a form of racism. 

 
Motion 2  
Councillor Stretton to MOVE and Councillor Goodwin to SECOND: 
Fully funded and proper pay rise for council and school workers 
This council notes:  
Local government has endured central government funding cuts of more than 50% 
since 2010. Between 2010 and 2020, councils lost 60p out of every £1 they have 
received from central government. Over the last year, councils have led the way in 
efforts against the Covid-19 pandemic, providing a huge range of services and support 
for our communities. Local government has shown more than ever how indispensable 
it is. But the pandemic has led to a massive increase in expenditure and loss of 
income, and the Government has failed to provide the full amount of promised support. 
Local government workers have kept our communities safe through the pandemic, 
often putting themselves at considerable risk as they work to protect public health, 
provide quality housing, ensure our children continue to be educated, and look after 
older and vulnerable people. Since 2010, the local government workforce has endured 
years of pay restraint with the majority of pay points losing at least 23 per cent of their 
value since 2009/10. At the same time, workers have experienced ever-increasing 
workloads and persistent job insecurity. Across the UK, 900,000 jobs have been lost in 
local government since June 2010 – a reduction of more than 30 per cent. Local 
government has arguably been hit by more severe job losses than any other part of the 
public sector. The funding gap caused by Covid-19 will make local government 
employment even more precarious. There has been a disproportionate impact on 
women, with women making up more than three-quarters of the local government 
workforce. Recent research shows that if the Government were to fully fund the unions’ 
2021 payclaim, around half of the money would be recouped thanks to increased tax 
revenue, reduced expenditure on benefits, and increased consumer spending in the 
local economy.  
This council believes:  
Our workers keep our communities clean and safe, look after those in need and keep 
our towns and cities running, without the professionalism and dedication of our staff, 
the council services our residents rely on would not be deliverable. Local government 
workers deserve a proper real-terms pay increase. The Government needs to take 
responsibility and fully fund this increase; it should not put the burden on local 
authorities whose funding been cut to the bone and who have not been offered 



adequate support through the Covid-19 pandemic.  
This council resolves to:  

1. Support the pay claim submitted by GMB, Unison and Unite on behalf of council 
and school workers, for a substantial increase with a minimum of 10 per cent 
uplift in April 2021.  

2. Call on the Local Government Association to make urgent representations to 
central government to fund the NJC pay claim.  

3. Ask the Chief Executive to write to the Chancellor and Secretary of State to call 
for a pay increase for local government workers to be funded with new money 
from central government.  

4. Meet with local NJC union representatives to convey support for the pay claim 
and consider practical ways in which the council can support the campaign. 

5.  Encourage all local government workers to join a union 
 

11   Notice of Opposition Business  

 (time limit 30 minutes) 
 
Motion 1  
Councillor Sykes to MOVE and Councillor Williamson to SECOND: 
A Tax on Excess Online Profits  
Council notes that whilst smaller High Street non-food retail outlets have been forcibly 
closed, and are facing business failure, because of the COVID-19 Lockdown, larger 
national businesses and multi-national businesses offering on-line products have 
thrived, reporting bumper profits. 
Council notes that recent proposals from the UN and the EU are working to establish 
an international consensus on business taxation, to minimise profit-shifting for the 
purpose of avoiding corporation tax, but that these proposals are not likely to be 
introduced in time to have any impact on the excess online profits that some 
companies have made off the back of the coronavirus epidemic. 
Raising a bespoke tax on excess online profits has precedent in the UK, and Council 
expresses its disappointment that the Chancellor has not yet introduced such a tax and 
believes that if we are, as the Prime Minister claims, ‘all in this together’, then the 
excessive profits of such on-line businesses should be subjected to a greater level of 
tax, and that the revenue raised employed to support our hollowed out public services 
(local government, schools and health) and the financial recovery of our High Street 
retailers. 
Council resolves to ask the Chief Executive to write to: 

 The Chancellor of the Exchequer, The Rt Hon Rishi Sunak MP, urging him to 
introduce such a tax as soon as possible as one means to ensure that we are 
‘all in this together’. 

 Our three local MPs, the Greater Manchester Mayor and the Leaders of the 
other nine AGMA authorities to seek their support for such a tax. 

 
Motion 2  
Councillor Al-Hamdani to MOVE and Councillor C Gloster to SECOND: 
Consultation on the UK Shared Prosperity Fund 
Council notes that: 



 The Conservative Party Manifesto for the 2017 General Election contained the 
following commitment: 

‘We will use the structural fund money that comes back to the UK following Brexit to 
create a United Kingdom Shared Prosperity Fund, specifically designed to reduce 
inequalities between communities across our four nations. The money that is spent will 
help deliver sustainable, inclusive growth based on our modern industrial strategy. We 
will consult widely on the design of the fund, including with the devolved 
administrations, local authorities, businesses and public bodies.’  

 The Conservative Government promised to publish a UK Shared Prosperity 
Fund Consultation Paper in 2018. 

 Successive Secretaries of State in the Department of Housing, Communities 
and Local Government when responding to several questions in Parliament in 
both 2018 and 2019 confirmed that a consultation would take place. 

 The promised consultation is now three years late. 

 In the last round of European funding (2014-2020), Greater Manchester 
received £322.75m, split across European Regional Development Funding 
(ERDF) (£176.78m) and European Social Funding (ESF) (£145.97m), 
equivalent to an annual allocation of £53.8m.  

 The Conservative Party website claims that ‘We will introduce the UK Shared 
Prosperity Fund when EU Structural Funds start to taper off from 2020-21…from 
April 2021’. 

Council resolves to ask the Chief Executive to: 

 Write to the Secretary of State for Housing, Communities and Local 
Government requesting the promised public consultation commence as soon as 
possible. 

 Copy in our local Members of Parliament and the Mayor of Greater Manchester 
on this correspondence and ask for their assistance by making similar 
representations to the Government. 

 
Motion 3  
Councillor Harkness to MOVE and Councillor H Gloster to SECOND: 
Thanking our Schools and Education Staff 
Council shares the delight of children, parents and guardians that pupils and students 
have finally been able to return to their schools and colleges during the week 
commencing 8 March. Children and young people will be glad to be back with their 
teachers and their friends after a year of home schooling and distance learning that 
has been very difficult for everyone involved. 
Council recognises that teachers and other school and college staff across the whole 
of the United Kingdom, whether employed at primary, secondary or tertiary level, have 
demonstrated extraordinary professional commitment and dedication in continuing to 
deliver an excellent education, whether at the chalk-face or online, to our children and 
young people in the face of great uncertainty and despite the most adverse conditions 
faced by such professionals since 1945. 
Council further recognises that in schooling the children of other ‘key workers’ teachers 
and other school staff have enabled their parents to carry on doing their essential 
duties that have saved our lives, supplied us with our daily bread and kept our nation 
functioning, all the while knowing that their children are safe and being nurtured and 
cared for.  
Council recognises that Oldham has sadly been very hard hit by the COVID-19 



pandemic and operational difficulties in education have been especially challenging. 
Consequently, Council wishes particularly to praise those school and college staff who 
have been working at schools, academies and colleges across the Borough of 
Oldham.  Such staff include teachers, teaching assistants, catering, cleaning, and 
caretaking staff, midday supervisors, office support staff, head teachers, child care club 
staff, volunteers, and anybody else who has helped to keep our educational 
establishments open for key workers or who has supported distance learning.  
Council believes that parents, guardians and siblings involved in supporting their 
children and young people in their distance learning will have developed a deeper 
appreciation of the work that our professional educators do on a day-to-day basis, 
particularly in these challenging times.  
Council therefore resolves to ask the Chief Executive to write to the local 
representatives of the professional bodies and trades unions for the teaching and 
ancillary professions to pass on these sentiments and our thanks for a job well done 
after one year of Lockdown. 

12   Oldham's COVID-19 Response - Update (Pages 203 - 216) 

13   Update on Actions from Council (Pages 217 - 248) 

14   Warding Arrangements (Pages 249 - 318) 

15   Constitutional Amendments (Pages 319 - 332) 

16   Consequential Amendments (Pages 333 - 336) 

17   Member Annual Reports 2020 (Pages 337 - 420) 

18   Adoption of Revised Licensing Act 2003 Policy (Pages 421 - 474) 

19   Arrangements for the preparation of 'Places for Everyone': A proposed Joint 
Development Plan Document on behalf of nine Greater Manchester districts (Pages 
475 - 492) 

 
NOTE: The meeting of the Council will conclude 3 hours and 30 minutes after the 
commencement of the meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
             

        
        Carolyn Wilkins  
        Chief Executive 
 



 
PROCEDURE FOR NOTICE OF MOTIONS 

NO AMENDMENT 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PROCEDURE FOR NOTICE OF MOTIONS 
 

WITH AMENDMENT 
PROCEDURE FOR NOTICE OF MOTIONS 

 
                                                WITH AMENDMENT 
 

                                    

MOTION – Mover of the Motion to MOVE 

MOTION – Seconder of the Motion to SECOND – May reserve right to 
speak 

DEBATE ON THE MOTION: Include Timings 

MOVER of Motion – Right of Reply 

VOTE – For/Against/Abstain 

Declare outcome of the VOTE 

RULE ON TIMINGS 
 
(a) No Member shall speak longer than four minutes on any Motion 
or Amendment, or by way of question, observation or reply, unless 
by consent of the Members of the Council present, he/she is allowed 
an extension, in which case only one extension of 30 seconds shall 
be allowed. 
 
(b) A Member replying to more than one question will have up to six 
minutes to reply to each question with an extension of 30 seconds 



WITH AMENDMENT 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MOTION – Mover of the Motion to MOVE 

MOTION – Seconder of the Motion to SECOND – May reserve right to speak 

AMENDMENT – Mover of the Amendment to MOVE 

AMENDMENT – Seconder of the Amendment to SECOND 

DEBATE on the Amendment 
For Timings - (See Overleaf) 

AMENDMENT – Mover of Original 
Motion – Right of Reply 

AMENDMENT – Mover of Amendment – 
Right of Reply 

VOTE ON AMENDMENT ONLY – 
For/Against/Abstain – CARRIED/LOST 

Call for any debate on Substantive Motion as 
Amended and then Call upon Mover of 
Original Motion – Right of Reply 

Call for any debate 
on Original Motion 
and then Call upon 
Mover of Original 
Motion – Right of 
Reply 

VOTE – On Original 
Motion – 
For/Against/Abstain VOTE – ON SUBSTANTIVE MOTION as 

amended - For/Against/Abstain 

Declare Substantive Motion as amended 
Carried/Lost 

IF LOST –Declare 
Lost 

IF CARRIED – Declare Carried 

Declare outcome of 
the Vote 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

COUNCIL 
16/12/2020 at 6.00 pm 

 
 

Present: The Deputy Mayor in the Chair – Councillor Harrison  
 
Councillors Akhtar, Al-Hamdani, Ali, Alyas, Ball, M Bashforth, 
S Bashforth, Briggs, Brownridge, Byrne, Chadderton, Chauhan, 
Cosgrove, Curley, Davis, Dean, Fielding, Garry, C. Gloster, 
H. Gloster, Goodwin, Hamblett, Haque, Harkness, Harrison 
(Vice-Chair, in the Chair), Hewitt, Hobin, Hulme, A Hussain, 
F Hussain, Ibrahim, Iqbal, Jabbar, Jacques, Leach, Malik, 
McLaren, Moores, Murphy, Mushtaq, Phythian, Price, Roberts, 
Salamat, Shah, Sheldon, Shuttleworth, Stretton, Surjan, Sykes, 
Taylor, Toor, Williamson and Williams 
 

 

 

1   CIVIC APPRECIATION AWARD - MYRA WYERS   

Council were informed that a presentation had taken place for 
Mrs. Myra Wyers in recognition of her significant voluntary 
contribution and dedication to the local community and borough 
of Oldham. 
 
Councillors Fielding, Sykes and Byrne gave congratulatory 
speeches about Mrs. Wyers. 

2   TO RECEIVE APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

Consultation had been undertaken with Group Leaders to vary 
the order of the agenda due to the changes to the regulations. 
Councillor Fielding MOVED and Councillor Sykes SECONDED 
an amendment to Council Procedure 15.5 and proposed that 
timings would include the extensions, therefore any members 
wishing to speak would be granted 4 minutes and 30 seconds 
and those members with a right of reply 6 minutes and 30 
seconds. On being put to the vote, this was AGREED. 
 
Apologies were received from Councillor Ahmad, Councillor 
Alexander, Councillor Hudson and Councillor Ur-Rehman. 

3   ATTENDANCE AND DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

Due to the current pandemic and the virtual meeting, a roll call 
of elected members was taken, and at the same time, in 
accordance with the Code of Conduct, elected members 
declared the following interests: 
 
Councillor Garry declared a pecuniary interest at Item 9d by 
virtue of her husband’s employment with Greater Manchester 
Police. 
Councillor Chris Gloster declared a personal interest at Item 9d 
by virtue of his receipt of an occupational pension from Greater 
Manchester Police. 
Councillor Hazel Gloster declared a personal interest at Item 9d 
by virtue of her husband’s receipt of an occupational pension 
from Greater Manchester Pension Fund. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



 

Councillor Jabbar declared a personal interest at Item 10 in the 
motion Fair Grade for All 2021. 
 
 
 

4   TO ORDER THAT THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF 
THE COUNCIL HELD ON 4TH NOVEMBER 2020 AND 25TH 
NOVEMBER 2020  BE SIGNED AS A CORRECT RECORD  

 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Council meetings held on 4th 
November 2020 and 25th November 2020 be approved as a 
correct record. 

5   TO DEAL WITH MATTERS WHICH THE MAYOR 
CONSIDERS TO BE URGENT BUSINESS  

 

There were no items of urgent business. 

6   TO RECEIVE COMMUNICATIONS RELATING TO THE 
BUSINESS OF THE COUNCIL  

 

The Council was informed of the death of the former Mayoress 
of Oldham, Di Heffernan, the wife of the late Councillor Derek 
Heffernan. 
 
Councillor Sykes spoke in tribute to Mrs Heffernan. 
 
The Council received a letter from the Right Honourable 
Baroness Beverley Hughes, Deputy Mayor of Greater 
Manchester, in response to the resolution of Full Council on 4th 
November 2020 in relation to the independent CSE Assurance 
Review. 
 
The Council noted the inspirational achievements of Kevin 
Sinfield MBE, who was born in Oldham. Along with his 
outstanding career in rugby, he had run seven marathons in 
seven days aiming to raise £77,777 in funds for ex-Leeds 
teammate Rob Burrow, who was diagnosed with Motor Neurone 
Disease and the MND Association. By the time he finished his 
seventh marathon on 7 December, more than £1.2 million had 
been raised and the total raised surpassed £2.5 million.   

7   TO RECEIVE AND NOTE PETITIONS RECEIVED 
RELATING TO THE BUSINESS OF THE COUNCIL  

 

There were no petitions received to be noted. 

8   YOUTH COUNCIL   

There were no items submitted by the Youth Council. 

9   QUESTIONS TIME   

 a   Public Questions  

  The Mayor advised that the next item on the agenda was Public 
Question Time.  Questions had been received from members of the 
public and would be taken in the order in which they had been 
received. Council agreed to suspend Council Procedure Rule 10.4 
so that the questions would be shared on the screen rather than be 
read out. 

Page 2



 

 
The following questions were submitted: 
 

1. Question received from Robert Barnes via email: 
Would the Council Leader please advise how much Oldham 
Council received in grant funding from Central Government 
for the financial year to date? 
Would he please break down where this grant funding has 
been spent? 

 
Councillor Jabbar, Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for 
Finance and Corporate Green, responded that the Council 
had received £551m in revenue grants for the financial year 
to date. The net revenue budget of the Council was 
supported by £74.9m of Central Government Unringfenced 
Grant.  Although unringfenced, it was made up of several 
different grants. Where the Government allocated funding 
with an intention that it was spent, rather than a direction, 
the Council allocated resources to service accordingly. This 
applied to funding such as the Improved Better Care Fund 
(£10.585m). The budget of the Council was also 
underpinned by £343.4m of ringfenced grant which must be 
used for the purpose it was given.  The largest of these was 
£262.1m for the Dedicated Schools Grant. Since the start of 
the financial year, the Council had received a range of other 
revenue grants. There had been £2.759m of unringfenced 
grant of which the largest was £1.580m for the Opportunity 
Area. These grants had been allocated in line with the 
Government’s intention. A range of grants had been 
received to support the response to COVID : 

 £22.696m in unringfenced grant to support its general 
COVID spending 

 £1.282m to support lost sales fees and charges 
income  

 £25.463m to compensate the Council for the business 
rate reliefs given to retail, hospitality, leisure and 
nursery businesses 

 £54.7m to support mandatory and discretionary 
business grants introduced at the first national 
lockdown  

 £10.611m for business grants introduced for the 
tiered restrictions and second national lockdown – all 
such grants were being paid to eligible businesses  

 A total of £0.211m had been received in new burdens 
funding to manage the grant regimes  

 A total of £15m had been received for COVID-specific 
grants and all were being used in line with 
Government grant terms and conditions.  These 
included £4.592m for the Infection Control grant. 

The Council had also received £14.4m of additional capital 
grants. All were being used for the purpose intended.   
 

2. Question received from Beth Sharp via email: 
There are currently 11 vacant and derelict plots in Derker. 

Page 3



 

These plots are overgrown with weeds, they are used for fly 
tipping, and the knee rails are rotting and have been 
vandalised. The appearance of these sites sends the 
message that this is a forgotten area in the town and this is 
all Derker is worth.  
Will the relevant Cabinet member meet with me in Derker 
and see first-hand the blight caused by the Council's neglect 
and will they, without delay, arrange for these weeds to be 
removed and a maintenance plan put in place to ensure 
residents do not have to live with this neglect for the next 10 
years as they have done the previous 10? 
 
Councillor Brownridge, Cabinet Member for Neighbourhoods 
and Culture responded that, since the termination of the 
Housing Market Renewal Project the Council had worked 
with partners and delivered 226 new homes in Derker at 
Churchill Gardens and on two developments on Acre Lane.  
Afghan Park had also been modernised and extended onto 
London Road.   
Officers were working on proposals to deliver wheelchair 
accessible houses and bungalows that would be owned by 
the Council on one of the remaining sites. 
A bid had also been submitted to the Brownfield Housing 
Fund, which, if successful, would provide grant funding to 
help deliver high quality, energy efficient homes in the area. 
The outcome of this bid to GMCA was expected early in the 
new year. 
The area had benefited from some improvement work during 
the lockdown periods this year, as Acre Lane and London 
Road were both re-surfaced. Reports of littering and 
dumping would be investigated and the sites cleared as part 
of the scheduled work undertaken in the area 

 
3. Question from Michael Newell via email: 

With the Spatial Framework development plan developed by 
Andy Burnham being delayed. What are Oldham councils 
plans for the future of much needed new houses in the town. 
 
Councillor Roberts, Cabinet Member for Housing, responded 
that the Council remained committed to building homes in 
the Town Centre and was actively looking for funding 
opportunities and investors to take forward the Town Centre 
Masterplan to achieve this. The Council’s Flexible Housing 
Fund, set up as part of Creating a Better Place, was being 
used to implement the Council’s Housing Strategy. One 
project under development was a small sites programme to 
build new adapted and wheelchair accessible homes 
including a site in Derker referred to by Cllr Brownridge in 
the previous answer. The Council was also looking forward 
to the completion of new Council owned homes on Primrose 
Bank which ware on schedule to be handed over early in 
2021. At the same time, the Council was currently 
considering the options and potential implications for 
progressing the Local Plan and how best to take this forward 
given the GMSF had failed. 

Page 4



 

 
4. Question from Connor Green via email: 

Another consultation on bus franchising has launched this 
month. What is the reason for a further consultation? The 
results of the first one was fairly conclusive. 
 
Councillor Brownridge, Cabinet Member for Neighbourhoods 
and Culture responded that, following the introduction of the 
Bus Services Act (2017), a proposed bus franchising 
scheme was prepared for Greater Manchester and the 
public were consulted on this scheme by GMCA. The 
consultation closed in January this year. The vast majority of 
respondents to the consultation supported GMCA’s 
proposals for a franchising scheme (83% of the 5,978 
participants). However, the Covid-19 pandemic has had a 
significant impact on Greater Manchester’s bus market, 
including timetables, revenues, passenger numbers and the 
public’s attitudes to public transport. Due to this, further work 
was needed to assess the impact of coronavirus on the bus 
reform process before any decisions on bus franchising 
could be made. 

 
5. Q

uestion from Dave Arnott via email: 
Following the Council Leader's disclosure of the £9.5m cost 
of purchasing the Spindles, would he please answer the 
following questions - in addition to the £9.5m, how much 
was paid in fees and stamp duty? 
 
Councillor Fielding, Leader of the Council and Cabinet 
Member for Economy and Skills, responded that final costs 
for fees and Stamp Duty Land Tax were still being finalised 
due to transition arrangements still taking place following the 
formal contract exchange for the acquisition. It was 
estimated to be in the region of £700k.  

 
6. Question from Laura Rogers via email: 

I am asking this question as a resident of Oldham and a 
member of Rainy City Roller Derby, Oldham's women's 
roller derby league - in fact, I moved to Oldham (and now 
live and work here) to join Rainy. As a result of the 
upcoming regeneration of Oldham town centre, the building 
which had been Rainy's training and game venue is being 
demolished. While the news of investment in Oldham is 
exciting and deserving, we have had to vacate our premises 
with very little notice (as we were expecting to sign a new 
lease).  
Rainy City has been located in Oldham (at the 
Thunderdome, 51 - 53 King Street) for nearly ten years. 
Prior to Covid, we had four competing teams, a junior 
division, new skater training and hired our space to the 
Oldham men's roller derby team. Our A team is the top 
ranked team in Europe and #10 in the world. People moved 
to the area from across Europe and commuted long 
distances to train with Rainy. We attracted audiences to 

Page 5



 

Oldham from across the UK and welcomed teams here from 
around the world.  
The Council has publicly pledged support for Rainy in 
looking for a new venue. In terms of finding that new venue, 
can you clarify what support we can expect now and in the 
near future? Can we count on this support going forwards? 
 
Councillor Fielding, Leader of the Council and Cabinet 
Member for Economy and Skills, responded that the 
questions was in relation to the support the Council could 
offer to help them find a new home. 
The Council recognised the importance of the Rainy City 
Roller Derby team, locally, nationally and internationally and 
was keen to support them to find an alternative venue. 
With regards to the purchase of the building, council officers 
had been in discussion with the owners of the Riley’s 
building regarding a potential purchase for number of 
months and on 25th November an in-principle agreement 
was reached for a purchase of the building. 
Without agreement from the Council and with no prior 
warning, the owners then contacted the Roller Derby tenants 
to inform them the Council was purchasing the building and 
that their lease was being terminated.  
This did not give officers sufficient time to enter into a 
dialogue with the Roller Derby and work up a support 
package /relocation.  
As soon as he personally was made aware of the situation, 
he had instructed the Business Growth and Investment team 
to make contact and help find alternative premises. The 
Investment team had now spoken to the Rainy City Roller 
team and were offering support, this had included an 
extensive search of properties via the Council database, 
discussions with agents and furthermore a request had been 
sent out to businesses in the area to try and find a suitable 
venue. The Council was keen to resolve this issue as soon 
as possible and would continue to support the team for as 
long as required. 

 
7. Question from Michael Newell via email; 

The latest version of the Greater Manchester Spatial 
Framework was set to protect the green belt in Woodhouses 
by keeping its protected designation. Now the plan has been 
withdrawn what is the status of the Woodhouses greenbelt. 
 
Councillor Roberts, Cabinet Member for Housing, responded 
that the status of Woodhouses Green Belt remained 
designated in line with the national planning policy 
framework and Oldham’s Local Plan (Policy 22 on 
Protecting Open Land). It remained protected. The GMCA 
and Leaders were currently considering how best to proceed 
in light of the recent decision by Stockport which led to the 
fall of the GMSF. 

 
8. Question from Dave Arnott via email: 

How much is the total budget for refurbishment of the 

Page 6



 

Spindles? Where is this money coming from? 
 
Councillor Fielding, Leader of the Council and Cabinet 
Member for Economy and Skills, responded that the Council 
was considering a range of different options for the Spindles 
and the cost would depend on what the Council wanted to 
move into there and how ambitious it wished to be. It would 
also depend on whether any tenants wished to vacate the 
building. Plans had already been announced to develop 
office space, including space for Council staff, and 
Tommyfield Market. The refurbishment works would be 
taken from the Council’s Creating a Better Place 
Programme. As the Spindles had been acquired at a lower 
price than anticipated, there was more than sufficient 
provision within the capital funds allocated. 

 
9. Question from Dave Arnott via email: 

Will the Council give financial assistance to market traders in 
order to facilitate any potential future move? For example, 
cutting business rates? 
 
Councillor Fielding, Leader of the Council and Cabinet 
Member for Economy and Skills, responded that the 
Council’s ambition was to move Tommyfield Market into the 
Spindles. The Council was in talks with the Market Trader 
Association. Councillor Fielding had met with them 
personally and many of the traders had indicated that a 
move into the Spindles would make the market more 
sustainable. The Council was talking directly to the traders 
affected to ascertain what support they will need for the 
move. 

 
10. Question from Dave Arnott via email: 

Will the Council consider cutting the current rents the market 
traders pay to assist them at this difficult time? 
 
Councillor Fielding, Leader of the Council and Cabinet 
Member for Economy and Skills, responded that market 
traders have been eligible for Small Business Rates Relief 
since April 2005, which means that they don’t pay business 
rates. There had not been a rent increase since 2010. 
There were a number of rent discount schemes for traders, 
which were based on individual business set-ups. All traders 
were currently eligible for between a 10% and an 80% 
discount on their rent. 
The Council also assisted traders with free Wi-Fi, discounted 
storage space, subsidised utility costs, and subsidised 
parking.  
The Council was currently running a marketing campaign, 
encouraging people to shop local and support the traders.  
During the current difficult times, the Council is also helping 
traders with payment plans for their rent.   

 
11. Question from Dave Arnott via email: 

Would the Council Leader please provide the footfall figures 

Page 7



 

for the past 12 months for the town centre? 
 
Councillor Fielding, Leader of the Council and Cabinet 
Member for Economy and Skills, responded that the Council 
did not hold footfall figures for the town centre as a whole, 
as gathering this information would require very expensive 
equipment. Footfall in Spindles for the 12 months up to 
December was 5.7 million people.  
At this point in the meeting the Mayor advised that all of the 
submitted questions had received a response. 

 
RESOLVED that the questions and responses provided be noted. 
 

 b   Questions to Leader and Cabinet  

  The Leader of the Main Opposition, Councillor Sykes, raised the 
following two questions: 
 
Question 1: Beer but in fact the chips are down 
 
“My first question concerns the immediate future of the hospitality 
industry in this Borough.   
The hospitality sector has come in for some particularly harsh 
treatment from this Government since the start of the Covid-19 
pandemic, despite the fact that it is estimated that only 3 – 5% of 
new infections originate from contacts in the hospitality industry in 
its broadest sense. 
It has so far endured two national complete lockdowns.  Invested 
countless millions of pounds in retraining and providing PPE to 
staff, adapting physical structures and changing working practices 
to be Covid-safe.  
Faced counter-productive government requirements, such as 
closing at 10pm, or only serve alcohol with a ‘substantial meal’, 
meaning that small, wet-led pubs cannot operate profitably or 
indeed operate at all.  They are now closed in our Tier-3 Borough 
for an indefinite period with no clear end in sight. 
In theory this closure could be for ‘wet’ led pubs until at least March 
2021, as we must be in Tier-1 before they can legally reopen. 
The reality is brewery, pub and restaurant operators are now at the 
end of their tether.  
They have invested so much emotionally and financially, but the 
current ongoing uncertainty is taking its toll and frankly current 
Government financial support packages do not cut the mustard. 
The one glimmer of immediate hope in this latest lockdown was a 
concession granted at the last-minute by the Government after 
intense pressure from industry bosses and CAMRA. 
This was to permit alcohol, as well as food, to be sold by breweries, 
pubs and restaurants, if pre-ordered.  This has been described as a 
lifeline, saving at least 70 million pints of beer being immediately 
poured down the drain! 
My question relates to how we as a Council might promote this 
offer to enable our local hospitality industry to survive? 
I welcome the recent launch of the Council’s Virtual Market Place 
where our small independent traders can advertise in these difficult 

Page 8



 

times, but at least these businesses can physically open.  
CAMRA has a national website Brew2You on which breweries and 
pubs can advertise their wares for discerning customers enabling 
them to make online purchases for collection or delivery.   
Would the Leader be willing to work with CAMRA and our local 
hospitality industry to create a similar website for Oldham which 
can be promoted alongside, or as part of the, the Virtual Market 
Place by Oldham Council, and help more of our local breweries, 
pubs and restaurants survive through these troubled times?” 
 
Councillor Fielding, Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for 
Economy and Skills responded that Councillor Sykes had his 
support in lobbying over this issue. The restrictions had been in 
place for Greater Manchester for arguably far longer than other 
parts of the country and that was part of the reason why the Mayor 
of Greater Manchester had lobbied in October for a generous bail-
out package when the area was placed into Tier 3, as the area had 
been affected for much longer than others. The Council would 
always work to support small businesses, including all those in the 
hospitality sector, and the suggestion of a local adaptation of 
Brew2You would be considered to enable local businesses to trade 
and provide salaries for their staff. 
 
Question 2: Replacing Shaw and Crompton Health Centre 
“For my second question, I would like to turn to another institution 
that is in dire straits. 
I am referring to the Shaw and Crompton Health Centre which has 
been in desperate need of replacement for many years. 
The latest housing development proposals for Shaw and Crompton 
will put yet more pressure on this outdated facility. 
At present, we have a planning approval for 250 new homes at 
Cowlishaw, a new proposal for over 50 new homes on open land 
near Denbigh Drive, and a public consultation has just been 
concluded prior to an application for 400 new homes at the former 
Very and Yodel warehouse site. 
If in the future a new ‘GMSF for the nine’ is to be brought back to 
Council, we would also see a further 482 homes in the Beal Valley 
and the number in the Cowlishaw area would double. 
To summarise, this amounts to around 1,500 new properties – all 
of which are family homes and the residents and children of these 
new properties would all be looking to Shaw and Crompton Health 
Centre to provide for their immediate health needs. 
Even before COVID-19, it often took days, sometimes weeks, for 
Shaw and Crompton residents to get a routine appointment – 
imagine how much harder it will be too do so with many thousands 
of more people making demands of an over-burdened service. 
Therefore, in the recent public consultation for building on the Very 
and Yodel site the largest number of responses concerned the 
additional demands that would be placed on our local health 
service. 
In early 2016, £500,000 was made available for a feasibility study 
into the options to build a new health centre, but almost five years 
on nothing has changed for the better; there is only now the 
prospect of greater and greater demands on the service. 
My second question to the Leader tonight is then when will we 

Page 9



 

finally see a new purpose-built, modern health centre provided for 
the people of Shaw and Crompton?   
 
Councillor Fielding, Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for 
Economy and Skills responded that the question highlighted an 
important issue of new homes in the Borough. The Council needed 
to have a comprehensive conversation about the kind of place 
Oldham wanted to be, about how to provide homes people wanted 
to live in and the infrastructure those homes. It was sad that the 
GMSF had become a conversation solely about site selection, 
although the GMSF was no more. Discussion about infrastructure 
such as doctor’s surgeries would have been welcomed and would 
need to take place in future as plans for more homes were drawn 
up. Creating a Better Place included investment in a new health 
centre in Shaw but, due to the current financial situation, the 
Council had needed to reassess each project in particular with 
regard to ongoing revenue consequences to the Council. In the 
light of this, the Council was unable to imminently build a new 
health centre in Shaw. The concerns of Ward Councillors across 
the Borough were understood and, if bids for funding were 
successful, projects further down the list in the Capital Programme 
could be considered. There was still a commitment to the new 
health centre in Shaw. 
 
Councillor Sheldon, Acting Leader of the Conservative Group 
asked a question about coronavirus and the effects on businesses 
prior to a vaccine being available. How much had the Council 
received from the government for the second lockdown to support 
business grants, how much was still left to be allocated and was 
there an assurance that the Council would do all it could to ensure 
businesses that needed the grant would get that support? Also, 
how many fraudulent claims had been potentially made?  
 
Councillor Fielding, Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for 
Economy and Skills responded that the news of a vaccine being 
rolled out was very welcomed. The Council had received money 
from the government to support local businesses, however there 
were currently seven different grant schemes running at the same 
time and it was very complicated for staff to administer, although 
they were doing so incredibly well. The actual amount would be 
confirmed to Councillor Sheldon later, but the uptake of grant had 
been fairly low compared to the amount paid in the first lockdown. 
Councillors were encouraged to ensure businesses were aware of 
the range of support on offer and ensure they claimed it.  
 
The Mayor reminded the meeting that the Council had agreed that, 
following the Leaders’ allocate questions, questions would be taken 
in an order which reflected the political balance of the Council. 
 

1. Councillor Jacques asked the following question: 
Daisy Nook Country Park is loved by residents of 
Failsworth and beyond. Sadly the area around the park is 
often blighted by fly tipping. Members of a local 
Facebook group have suggested that they would be 
willing to crowd fund the purchase of CCTV cameras to 

Page 10



 

help combat the fly tipping. Could the appropriate cabinet 
member advise if this would help in the Council’s fight 
against dumping in the area? 
 

Councillor Brownridge, Cabinet Member for 
Neighbourhoods and Culture, responded that she shared 
the concerns regarding flytipping in the park and 
welcomed any positive suggestions such as this . 
Unfortunately, after raising your suggestion with officers 
the Council was unable to install CCTV cameras in the 
Country park as they needed to be installed with power 
and to comply with the GDPR regulations that controlled 
the data that was collected. The Council looked at 
installing deployable CCTV cameras where it could 
across the Borough in response to issues but these could 
only be installed where there was a power connection and 
a pole to take the weight of the camera.    
Members of the public were asked to continue to report 
any incidents via the online reporting system and officers 
would investigate and arrange the necessary removal. 
They were also asked not to fly-tip. 

 
2. Councillor Phythian asked the following question: 

It was good news to hear that Thornham Old Road had 
been removed from the site allocations in the GMSF. Now 
that the GMSF is dead, following Stockport’s withdrawal, 
can the Leader confirm that Thornham Old Road will 
continue to be protected in the new arrangements being 
developed? 
 
Councillor Fielding, Leader of the Council and Cabinet 
Member for Economy and Skills, responded that had the 
GMSF gone out to consultation, Thornham Old Road 
would not have been included as a greenbelt site to be 
released for housing. Thornham Old Road was protected 
greenbelt under current planning policy. It had always 
been our intention to protect as much greenbelt as 
possible, and prioritise brownfield sites for housing and 
employment development.  The Council was currently 
exploring the options available to Oldham following recent 
decisions about the future of GMSF and following 
announcements from the government this morning about 
the new Local Housing Need formulas, it was seeking 
further clarity on the options available to reduce greenbelt 
requirements. It was the intention not to put back in any 
greenbelt sites that had been taken out of the GMSF and, 
if possible, to reduce the number of sites further. 

 
3. Councillor Ali asked the following question: 

The Greater Manchester Transport Strategy 2040 
predicts that there will be a 13% increase in winter rainfall 
by 2040 due to global warming. It has become clear in 
recent days that many gullies and drains in the Borough 
struggle to cope with current levels of rainfall. What can 
the Council do to ensure that our drains in the Borough 

Page 11



 

have the capacity to cope with the demand placed on 
them by increased rainfall so that we can reduce the risk 
of flooding in Oldham in future? 
 
Councillor Brownridge, Cabinet Member for 
Neighbourhoods and Culture, responded that there was 
nothing to suggest that any recent rainfall has caused any 
widespread problems with gullies struggling to cope. 
Ahead of severe weather warnings regarding rain we 
have a targeted approach to mechanically sweep 
channels and clean gullies in known hotspots which 
proved effective once again over last weekend. An 
analysis of previous flood events since 2016 showed that 
the root cause of known flooding attributed specifically to 
gullies was 5% or less in all cases, with river flooding and 
main sewer capacity being the two main causes. 

 
4. Councillor Harkness asked the following question: 

I have been petitioning for a new health for Saddleworth 
for many years to both this council and the clinical 
commissioning group and on a number of occasions both 
have said they will look at this.  
I raised it in 2018 with the rearrangement proposals of 
primary health care where clusters would be formed. Our 
budget amendment found some finances to make a new 
health centre in Saddleworth a possibility. Whilst the 
administration rejected the proposal, they did say they 
would look at this. A new site was problematic, and I have 
always advocated the existing Saddleworth School site as 
a suitable location. and this should never have been 
considered for any land swap. Now that there has been a 
fortunate failure to reach agreement on a land swap this 
provides a real opportunity to build a new health centre 
for Saddleworth. Will the Cabinet Member commit to 
making this a reality? 
 
Councillor Chauhan, Cabinet Member for Health and 
Social Care, responded that he wanted to thank the 
elected member for raising this matter tonight. Councillor 
Harkness would be more than aware that the NHS had 
recently unveiled a document talking about the future of 
integrated working. That would have implications locally 
and the Council needed to work within the parameters of 
that national framework. It was not a Council duty at the 
moment to provide health centres but was an NHS one. 
However, given the joint working locally with the NHS I 
have asked senior officers to provide me with a 
framework for undertaking a needs assessment in the 
area during 2021. I will keep the Member informed of 
progress. 
Thanks was expressed to all the health and social care 
workers who had worked very hard to achieve the roll-out 
of the vaccine, and to the residents who had responded 
well and attended for vaccination. 
 

Page 12



 

5. Councillor Goodwin asked the following question: 
In an effort to discourage the use of vehicles that 
contribute to the type of air pollution which is damaging to 
health, it has been proposed to introduce a clean air zone 
in Greater Manchester. It was recently reported that a 
shift to cleaner vehicles in Leeds more quickly than was 
anticipated means that a similar proposal there is now no 
longer considered necessary. Is there any hope that a 
transition to cleaner vehicles in Greater Manchester might 
also take place at such a pace as to make our clean air 
zone unnecessary too? 
 
Councillor Brownridge, Cabinet Member for 
Neighbourhoods and Culture, responded that the Council 
was determined to tackle the health threats and 
inequalities experienced by communities across Greater 
Manchester caused by high levels of air pollution on local 
roads, as soon as possible. To achieve this goal, there 
had been instructed by government to introduce a 
Category C Clean Air Zone across the city-region, that 
was why we were consulting with businesses and 
residents across Greater Manchester for their thoughts on 
the key elements of the Clean Air Zone, and the 
proposals for the supporting funds that have been 
developed, while further considering the ongoing impact 
of the pandemic.    
The feedback from the consultation would be used to 
inform the final plans and to understand how best to 
ensure that residents were not exposed to illegal levels of 
air pollution. This approach had also been agreed with the 
Government. 

 
6. Councillor Garry asked the following question: 

We are lucky in Failsworth to have a fabulous team of 
volunteers who turn up every month to clean the canal 
that runs through our district .However, the coronavirus 
has stopped this, and now we are receiving complaints 
from residents that the canal is becoming full of rubbish. I 
understand that Oldham Council pays a considerable 
amount of money to the Waterway and Canal Trust to 
maintain the canal. Please can you advise how much is 
paid and how often it is maintained on an annual basis? 
 
Councillor Brownridge, Cabinet Member for 
Neighbourhoods and Culture, responded that in 2000 the 
Council entered into an agreement with the Canals and 
Rivers Trust to take on the responsibility for the 
maintenance of the canals, inclusive of the waterway and 
associated landscape immediately surrounding it. Each 
year Oldham Council contributed around £127K to the 
Trust and it had obviously been a difficult year with many 
more people accessing these walks and unfortunately 
littering. The Trust had a responsibility to clean the area 
and the Council would continue to work with them to 
improve the level of cleanliness, picking up on the 

Page 13



 

complaints reported. 
 

7. Councillor Taylor asked the following question: 
Over the last few weeks, Cllrs in Chadderton Central 
Ward have been contacted by residents regarding 
vehicles driving along the pavement to access properties 
and driving over or parking on the grass verge. Behaviour 
such as this is dangerous and inconsiderate, this is not 
just a problem in one area in Chadderton Central 
examples can be seen on Denton Lane, Foxdenton Lane, 
Broadway and I know it happens in other parts of the 
borough. Could the relevant Cabinet Member, please 
advise us what if anything can be done to prevent drivers 
from carrying out these dangerous manoeuvres that place 
pedestrians, cyclists and other car drivers at risk and 
causes damage to the little bits of green space we have in 
many areas? 
 
Councillor Brownridge, Cabinet Member for 
Neighbourhoods and Culture, responded that the 
Highways Act alloweds the Council to construct footway 
vehicle crossings and charge the costs of constructing 
them to the particular resident. However as Denton Lane 
is a classified road, any such footway crossing would first 
require planning permission. Therefore it would be 
inappropriate for the Council to exercise this Highways 
Act power until it was satisfied that all planning 
requirements had been met.  
Illegally driving over the footway was a Moving Traffic 
Issue and a matter for the Police to enforce. Measures 
could be taken by the Council to help mitigate this activity 
with the installation of strategically-placed street furniture 
including bollards, guardrails and planters; however, 
these interventions would have to be funded from an 
appropriate but very limited highway budget and would 
also require ongoing maintenance. 

 
8. Councillor Williamson asked the following question: 

I have a suggestion that I would like to ask the Cabinet 
Member to consider. I cannot understand why the WEEE 
- Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment - and 
recycling sections are not at the front entrance of the tip 
where ‘all including businesses’ can take their old 
electrical items back without entering the main tip. As a 
surcharge for WEEE waste has already been included in 
the sales price this should be possible at no cost to the 
Council / waste authority as these recycling schemes are 
all funded. Can I ask the Cabinet Member if they could 
raise this suggestion with waste authority colleagues to 
see if they can be implemented? 
 
Councillor Brownridge, Cabinet Member for 
Neighbourhoods and Culture, responded that the site 
layout was the responsibility of the contractor Suez who 
must maintain safety at the site. Whilst the issue could be 

Page 14



 

raised with the WDA who managed the contract, the 
concern was that the HWRC was contracted for domestic 
waste only and therefore care must be taken to ensure 
that any businesses producing  commercial waste 
dispose of their waste through permitted channels.  
As WEEE is classified as a hazardous waste this required 
care to be taken on its correct management through to 
disposal and therefore siting in a position which enables 
clear supervision is key. 

 
9. Councillor McLaren asked the following question: 

In 2015 the Kingfisher Learning Trust applied to the 
Department for Education to open a new Free School 
called Halcyon Way for children with Severe and Medium 
Learning Difficulties. The Trust who are committed to 
working in partnership with the council, were successful in 
their bid and the new school will be sited close to the 
Kingfisher Special School that already provides 
outstanding educational provision for children with a wide 
variety of special needs from across the borough. I am 
also very pleased to see that work is underway to replace 
the hydrotherapy pool situated on the Kingfisher site, this 
is a facility that will be of great benefit to the school and 
the borough. Could the Cabinet Member for Education, 
please update us on progress with both these projects 
including dates for completion? 
 
Councillor Mushtaq, Cabinet Member for Education, 
responded that the DfE and Kingfisher Learning Trust had 
both confirmed that the Halcyon Way Free School was 
expected to open in January 2022, providing up to 80 
additional places in the first year of operation and growing 
up to the full 140 place capacity over time. The confirmed 
opening date was much later than originally expected, 
however, work had now started on site. Council officers 
would continue to monitor the progress on site and work 
with the Kingfisher Learning Trust to support the delivery 
of the project in line with the January 2022 timeline. 
Council Officers from the SEND service continued to work 
with The Kingfisher Learning Trust to ensure that they 
identified and planned for a successful transition for the 
children who would be attending the school. This formed 
part of the wider strategy to ensure a strong Oldham 
based provision for children and young people with SEND 
within mainstream and special school settings. 
The new hydrotherapy pool at Kingfisher school was also 
almost complete. Despite the challenges of the various 
lockdowns the Kingfisher Learning Trust had managed 
the successful completion of the project. The 
hydrotherapy pool was an outstanding facility for the 
children at Kingfisher school to enjoy using and would 
also be available to other children, young people and 
adults to commission. It was expected that the facility 
would be available to Kingfisher school children in 
January 2021, with access for other children, young 

Page 15



 

people and adults in the following weeks. 
 
At this point in the meeting, the Mayor advised that the time limit for 
this item had expired. 
 
RESOLVED that the questions and responses provided be noted. 
 

 c   Questions on Cabinet Minutes  

  Council were requested to note the minutes of the Cabinet 
meetings held on the undermentioned dates and to receive any 
questions on any items within the minutes from members of the 
Council who were not members of the Cabinet, and receive 
responses form Cabinet members. The minutes of the Cabinet 
meetings held on 19 October 2020, 9 November 2020 and 16 
November 2020 were submitted. 
 
Members raised the following questions: 
 
Councillor Williamson asked the following question related to 
Cabinet 9th November 2020 Item 5 - GMSF Publication Draft 2020 
Page 1 
“Given that the latest draft proposals of the Greater Manchester 
Spatial Framework for consultation have now been pulled following 
the vote by Stockport Council, will the Leader now consider 
developing instead a Local Plan for Oldham that is focused upon 
meeting the current and future housing needs of the people of this 
Borough rather than continuing with the folly of working up a new 
joint plan that is more focused on the ambitions of the Greater 
Manchester Mayor?” 
 
Councillor Fielding, Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for 
Economy and Skills responded that the Council would consider the 
options and choose which was best for Oldham. The opportunity 
was now available to offset more homes off the greenbelt and 
allocate them to places in Greater Manchester that wanted them. 
Whatever Plan was chosen, it would be aligned to the ambitions of 
Oldham and not anyone outside the Borough. 
 
Councillor Harkness asked the following question related to 
Cabinet 9th November 2020 Item 5 - GMSF Publication Draft 2020 
Page 1 
“Given that the Greater Manchester Spatial Framework proposals 
for Oldham will now have to be redrawn or an alternate Local Plan 
adopted, I would like to draw the Leader’s attention to the merits of 
the Chew Valley Green Belt Action Group’s Alternative Plan for 
GMSF Site 15 – the Fletchers Mill site.  This would deliver the 
required housing on the derelict Fletchers Mill site, and save the 
remaining undeveloped Green Belt in the Chew Valley.   
Given this Council’s stated policy is to develop on Brownfield first, 
this plan appears to be worth exploring. Can I therefore ask the 
Leader if he will agree to Council officers working with the Action 
Group to bring these proposals forward as part of the new plan?” 
 

Page 16



 

Councillor Roberts, Cabinet Member for Housing, responded that 
the Director of Economy and I have already met the Chew Valley 
Action Group on the 3rd December to discuss their proposal and 
are meeting them again on the 18th December. A representative of 
the landowner was also present. The Action Group was working to 
provide additional detail in support of their proposal and officers 
had responded to their requests for information – the viability 
assessments carried out for the GMSF were still available on the 
GMCA website. I made it clear at the meeting that we welcome any 
proposal which would enable us to deliver the Government’s 
imposed Local Housing Need requirement on brownfield rather 
than Greenbelt land. 
It remained the case that any proposal must meet the NPPF 
requirements – land must be available, developable and 
deliverable within the plan period. It must also be a financially 
viable proposition. 
We would welcome any planning application for the Fletcher’s Mill 
site (the brownfield land) at any time. 
 
Councillor Sykes asked the following question related to Cabinet 
9th November 2020 Item 5 - GMSF Publication Draft 2020 Page 1 
“I understand that on 11 December the AGMA Executive Board 
accepted that the refusal by Stockport Council at its meeting on 3 
December to adopt the Greater Manchester Spatial Framework (I 
quote) ‘signals the end of the GMSF as a joint plan of the 10’ and 
that instead ‘a Joint Development Plan of the 9’ should be 
developed. I recognise that this meeting is being held only days 
after that decision was made, but given the significant public 
interest in this issue, could the Leader please give me some 
indication of what the timescale will be for the development of this 
plan, how and when elected members and the public will be 
consulted, and when it might be brought back in the future to a full 
meeting of this Council for adoption or rejection?” 
 
Councillor Fielding, Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for 
Economy and Skills responded that this was correct - at AGMA 
Executive Board on 11 December 2020 members agreed in 
principle to the preparation of a Joint Plan of the nine authorities 
and instructed officers to begin work to  
a) Review the evidence base; and  
b) Review the spatial strategy and thematic policies.  
In order to progress this work it was proposed that a joint 
committee of the nine authorities needed to be established to co-
ordinate and develop this new plan. A further report was to be 
brought back to AGMA Executive Board setting out the issues and 
timescales involved.  
At present an indication of timescales could not be provided for its 
preparation, consultation or approval, however members would be 
informed as soon as this information was confirmed.  
In parallel, officers were instructed to review the timescales, issues 
and opportunities for Oldham’s Local Plan to ensure brownfield 
development sites were prioritised and that policies were updated 
and approved in a timely manner to meet the 2023 deadlines. 
 
Councillor Taylor asked the following question related to Cabinet 

Page 17



 

16th November 2020 Item 8 – Green Homes Local Authority 
Delivery Scheme 
“I am pleased to see that Oldham will receive a share of the 
government’s Green Homes Grant Scheme, which will save 
households money and boost efficiency of home energy across the 
Borough. The funding was originally part of a scheme designed to 
refurbish properties on the Crossley Estate in Chadderton Central 
Ward, to modernise older properties to a decent standard. Due to 
spending cuts, the scheme did not proceed. Homes on the estate 
were built post-war and were cold and expensive to heat without 
additional insulation, and the Ward councillors and MP had 
continually lobbied for additional insulation for these homes. 
Residents had experienced damp and cold conditions for too long. 
Improving the homes would not just reduce bills but would improve 
the health and wellbeing of the residents who had suffered the 
worst effects of fuel poverty. Could the Cabinet Member for 
Housing say when the planned improvements will start?” 
 
Councillor Roberts, Cabinet Member for Housing, responded that 
the scheme was in two parts: 
Private Sector Housing: 

• 4,816 letters have been posted to targeted postcodes in 
Oldham (EPC rating E, F or G and household income 
below £30k); 

• So far, E.ON had received 46 enquires from Oldham 
residents of which 28 had qualified (out of the 301 target 
for GM); 

• Homes surveys were being booked-in but works will only 
start in the new year. 

Social Housing: 
• A letter from the Ward Councillors had been delivered to the 

65 Council homes and 4 RTB homes on the Crossley 
Estate; 

• Works were scheduled to begin in February 2021 and would 
be completed by the end of March 2021 (subject to 
weather and COVID-19 restrictions). 

• In addition, we have been able to bid for additional funding 
via the GMCA and Oldham’s bid included 60 solar PV 
systems for our PFI 2 older persons bungalows plus 31 
External Wall Insulation and 10 Cavity Wall Insulation on 
our PFI 4 Primrose Bank estate. This was subject to 
ratification by the GMCA later this week and would then 
be forwarded to BEIS 

 
RESOLVED that: 
1. The minutes of the Cabinet meetings held on 19 October 

2020, 9 November 2020 and 16 November 2020 be noted. 
2. The questions and responses provided be noted. 

 d   Questions on Joint Arrangements  

  Council was asked to note the minutes of the following Joint 
Authority and Partnership meetings and the relevant 
spokespersons to respond to questions from Members. 
 

Page 18



 

The minutes of the Joint Authorities and Partnerships were 
submitted as follows: 
 
Greater Manchester Combined Authority   30 October 
2020 
AGMA Executive Board     30 October 
2020 
Police, Fire and Crime Panel    29 
September 2020 
Peak Park District Authority    4 September 
2020 
        2 October 
2020 
Health and Wellbeing Board    21 July 2020 
Greater Manchester Transport Committee  9 October 
2020 
 
Councillor Williamson asked the following question on Police, Fire 
and Crime Panel 29th September 2020 Minute PCFP/08/20 – 2020 
Officer Uplift: 
Please can I ask how many of the new 246 police officers allocated 
to local policing roles will be allocated to police the Borough of 
Oldham? 
And can we have a breakdown please, as I have asked for 
previously, of the officers who have been recruited, specifically how 
many of these new officers are from BME communities and how 
many are women? 
 
Councillor Steve Williams, Deputy Cabinet Member for Covid-19 
Response and Oldham Council representative on the Police and 
Crime Panel responded that a report had been produced on the 
allocation of police in Greater Manchester, which he would send 
out to all Councillors. Increasing the numbers of officers had been 
made difficult as the training facilities were no longer there. 
Currently Greater Manchester was 1,300 short of its quota before 
austerity. 
 
Councillor Al-Hamdani asked the following question on Police, Fire 
and Crime Panel 29th September 2020 Minute PCFP/09/20 – GMP 
Crime Data – 2020: 
As this reported reduction came before the acknowledgement of 
80,000 crimes which were not included in the crime figures, what 
would be the impact on this if those 80,000 crimes were to be 
included?  
Also, given that reports suggest that many cases are being closed 
too quickly – in particular with 70% of domestic violence cases 
concluded out of court, and 80% of victims not consulted on that – 
what would be the impact of this on the crime figures if they were 
not closed too quickly? 
And finally, given the regular complaints in addition to this from 
residents that it often takes hours to get through on 101 to report 
crimes, with the resulting impact in reducing reporting rates, does 
this mean that crime figures are being artificially reduced even 
further? 
 

Page 19



 

Councillor Steve Williams, Deputy Cabinet Member for Covid-19 
Response and Oldham Council representative on the Police and 
Crime Panel responded that the 80,000 crimes had now been 
collated into the system. GMP had been criticised on inspection for 
their crime recording and, at the meeting of the Police and Crime 
Panel that afternoon, the Assistant Chief Constable had 
acknowledged there had been failings and apologised for them. 
Councillor Williams would find out what difference timely recording 
would have made and provide Councillor Al-Hamdani with this 
information.  
In relation to the 101 number, in the month of December 2018, 
3,500 calls were recorded as having been made to that number on 
matters that were nothing to do with the police. Add to these all the 
legitimate calls and it could not be surprising, of the fault of the 
police, that the demand could not be met. 
 
Councillor Davis asked the following question on Greater 
Manchester Transport Committee 9th October 2020 GMTC 75/20 - 
Forthcoming Changes To Bus Services: 
Councillor Fielding was offered a conversation on how to mitigate 
the effects of the loss of the 396 bus service between Park Cakes 
and Newton Heath, which served Failsworth. Could councillor 
Fielding provide an update on the outcome? 
 
Councillor Fielding, Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for 
Economy and Skills responded that in addition to the conversation, 
a local campaign had been run in Failsworth and he thanked 
Councillor Davis for his assistance with this. Many local residents 
had signed a petition to see the bus service reinstated. 
Unfortunately, the cuts to the 396 service had gone ahead and the 
re had been no connection from Newton Heath to Ashton for a 
couple of weeks. Through the efforts of the local Councillors in 
galvanising opposition to the cut, the bus service had been 
reinstated as the 397, which connected Newton Heath to Ashton 
via a more-direct route through Failsworth. Councillor Fielding 
thanked the local Councillors and stated he had personally had 
more thank-you letters from Failsworth residents on this issue than 
any other. 
 
Councillor Hulme asked the following question in relation to Greater 
Manchester Combined Authority 30th October 2020 GMCA 178/20 
GM Brownfield Housing Fund ("BHF") Tranche 1 Spend Allocation 
(Key Decision): 
The complexity of some of the Oldham brownfield sites meant the 
benefit from this fund was limited due to tight timescales. Had 
revenue or officer support been forthcoming from GMCA to assist 
with bids for Tranche 2? 
 
Councillor Fielding, Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for 
Economy and Skills responded that significant funds were required 
to remediate brownfield sites in Oldham to enable them to be 
developed for housing and avoid development of greenbelt sites. 
An offer had been made of financial support to assist with capacity 
to bid for funds in Tranche 2 to remediate brownfield sites, which 
had not yet been forthcoming. There was some good news as, 

Page 20



 

even without this additional capacity, an ambitious bid for various 
sites had been submitted in December. 
 
Councillor Byrne asked the following question in relation to Greater 
Manchester Transport Committee 9th October 2020 GMTC 72/20 - 
Impact Of Road Safety Schemes and GMTC 73/20 - Cycling And 
Walking Update And Forward Look Report: 
Is there a way of circumventing national speed limits on rural lanes 
such as those in the Saddleworth wards, which are narrow and 
have no footpaths? There are several very busy roads in the area 
with speed limits of 40 and 50 miles per hour, with no footpaths and 
limited visibility, that are regularly used by walkers and recreational 
users. Can Councillor Fielding ask the Greater Manchester 
Transport Committee to look at the particular problems with rural 
roads and walking routes which are being developed. 
 
Councillor Fielding, Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for 
Economy and Skills responded that this was a matter to be directed 
to the relevant cabinet Member outside of the meeting. Concerns 
about speed limits on rural roads were understood, especially as 
modern vehicles could reach speeds more quickly than those 
around when national speed limits were set. He would find a way 
for Councillor Byrne to take her concerns to where action could be 
considered and could offer personal support for her comments.   
 
RESOLVED that: 
1. The minutes of the Joint Authorities and Partnership 

meetings as detailed in the report be noted. 
2. The questions and responses provided be noted. 
 

10   NOTICE OF ADMINISTRATION BUSINESS   

Council were asked to note that the motions would be debated 
in the order received by the Chief Executive and not as printed 
in the summons. 
 
Motion 1 – Fair Grade for All 2021 
 
Councillor Mushtaq MOVED and Councillor Goodwin 
SECONDED the following MOTION: 
 
“After the fiasco of this’s A-level and GCSE results, this Council 
is keen to ensure fairness for students next year.  On 19 August, 
trade union leaders wrote to Gavin Williamson MP outlining what 
steps the Government must take to ensure no student is 
disadvantaged, as did Kate Green MP, Shadow Secretary of 
State for Education on 10 November.  Students and teachers 
urgently need clarity on A-levels and GCSEs, in particular what 
contingency is in place if exams have to be cancelled again next 
year.  It is imperative that the distressing experiences of 2020 A-
level students are never repeated.  The chaos of 2020 justifies a 
wider review of how qualifications are awarded.   
This Council calls on government to: 

- Create a level playing field across the country for all 
students sitting exams next year.  The pandemic has hit 

Page 21



 

and will continue to hit the regions to varying degrees.  
The government has hinted at flexibility to boundary 
grades but must go further and commit to a regional 
approach to norm-referencing performance to reflect the 
varying degrees of school attendance levels across the 
regions rather than setting up an expert group to monitor 
the situation. 

- Put in place arrangements to make sure that no student 
misses out on the opportunity to receive their 
qualifications as a result of having to self-isolate during 
next year’s exam period.  This government must work 
with exam boards to make reserve papers available in all 
subjects.  This would give students who miss an exam 
the opportunity to sit it later. 

- Publish its plans now for a worst-case scenario whereby 
exams cannot go ahead next year due to the impact of 
the pandemic.  A credible Plan B is required that must 
have the confidence of parents, teachers, school leaders 
and unions. 

This Council calls on the Leader and Chief Executive of Oldham 
Council to: 

 Write to the Secretary of State for Education asking him 
to respond as a matter of urgency to all the above points. 

 To write to Oldham’s three MPs, highlighting the motion 
and asking that they raise the issues in Parliament as a 
matter of urgency.” 

 
Councillor Jacques spoke in support of the Motion. 
Councillor Ibrahim spoke in support of the Motion. 
Councillor Moores spoke in support of the Motion. 
Councillor Harkness spoke in support of the Motion. 
Councillor H Gloster spoke in support of the Motion. 
 
Councillor Mushtaq exercised his right of reply. 
 
On being put to the vote, Members voted unanimously in 
FAVOUR of the MOTION. The MOTION was therefore 
CARRIED. 
 
RESOLVED that the Leader and Chief Executive of Oldham 
Council be asked to: 

1. Write to the Secretary of State for Education asking him 
to respond as a matter of urgency to all the above points. 

2. To write to Oldham’s three MPs, highlighting the motion 
and asking that they raise the issues in Parliament as a 
matter of urgency. 

 
Motion 2 – Spending review November 2020 
 
Councillor Jabbar MOVED and Councillor Ali SECONDED the 
following MOTION: 
 
“This Council regrets that 

 The Chancellor failed to address the systemic 
underfunding of local Councils, opting instead for a series 

Page 22



 

of one-off measures and further transferring the burden of 
paying for essential services to local Council Tax payers 
who have in many cases already been hard hit by the 
consequences of the coronavirus pandemic and years of 
Tory austerity.  The Spending Review announced a 
£2.2bn increase in Councils’ Core Spending Power.  Of 
this sum, £1.5bn is assumed to come from Councils 
increasing Council Tax by 5% - the maximum the 
Government will allow without a referendum.  Only 
£600m of this was badged as new money and £300m of 
this is recycled so is not new. 

 The Government has not brought forward a plan to 
reform funding and provision of adult social care as 
promised and instead has given councils the power to 
raise a further adult social care precept – indeed it 
assumes that this will be raised within the Core Spending 
Power increase.  The precept can increase by 3% for 
2021/22, but by using the ability to raise Council Tax as a 
means to generate income for adult social care, it’s not 
linking to need.  Those areas that can generate more 
Council Tax can raise more funding. 

 While the Government has provided significant additional 
funding for 2020/21, including over £23m of general 
Grant funding for Oldham Council this year, this still 
leaves a shortfall and the Government continues to break 
its promise to ‘do whatever it takes’ to support public 
services tackling the pandemic including fully reimbursing 
councils and schools for additional costs and reduced 
income  

 While receiving over £14m of grants for specific purposes 
in Oldham this year is welcome, these grants have come 
with substantial restrictions from Government on how 
they can be used.  Such funding could be used more 
effectively if there was greater flexibility. 

 The Spending Review did not include additional funding 
for public health.  This runs contrary to addressing the 
stark health inequalities exposed by COVID-19 and 
levelling up our communities.  Keeping people healthy 
and well throughout their lives reduces pressure on the 
NHS and social care. 

 The Government has not temporarily removed the No 
Recourse to Public Funds condition.  This would reduce 
public health risks and ease the pressure on 
homelessness services by enabling vulnerable people to 
access welfare benefits, who are currently unable to do 
so because of their immigration status.  The Chancellor 
also failed to commit to making permanent the £20 a 
week supplement to Universal Credit that has been 
crucial to protecting people from poverty. 

This Council condemns the wage freeze imposed on 2m public 
sector workers including firefighters, the police, teachers and 
local authority staff.  Many of these workers have kept the 
country going during the pandemic and deserve more than a 
real term pay cut. 

Page 23



 

This Council believes that only with the right funding and 
freedoms, can councils lead local efforts to level up the stark 
inequalities the pandemic has exposed and level up the 
economy so that it benefits everyone. 
This Council resolves to ask the Chief Executive to write to: 

 The Local Government Association to urge a vigorous 
campaign for a long term local government funding 
settlement, for reform of adult social care and adequate 
funding of children’s social care, education and social 
housing in the context of a new settlement reversing the 
centralisation of powers and decision-making that has 
been evident even before the pandemic. 

 The borough’s three MPs urging that they oppose the 
public sector pay freeze and support efforts to secure the 
necessary funding and freedoms for local authorities. 

 Therese Coffey MP, the Secretary of State for Work and 
Pensions, calling on her to make the £20 a week 
Universal Credit supplement permanent.” 

 
AMENDMENT 
 
Councillor C. Gloster MOVED and Councillor Hamblett 
SECONDED the following AMENDMENT: 
 
“Insert after the end of bullet point 6 which ends ‘crucial to 
protecting people from poverty’ a new bullet point 7 which reads: 
 

 The Spending Review included no additional uplift to the 
Carers’ Allowance.  900,000 full-time unpaid carers rely 
on Carer’s Allowance – but at just £67.25 a week, it’s not 
nearly enough.  More than a third of those on Carer’s 
Allowance are struggling to make ends meet.  Many have 
been struggling for months, often relying on foodbanks to 
feed themselves and the people they care for. 

 
Insert at the very end of point 3 of the resolution after 
‘permanent’ the following ‘and to immediately increase the 
Carers Allowance by £20 per week.’ 

 
The amended motion to read: 
 
“This Council regrets that 

 The Chancellor failed to address the systemic 
underfunding of local Councils, opting instead for a series 
of one-off measures and further transferring the burden of 
paying for essential services to local Council Tax payers 
who have in many cases already been hard hit by the 
consequences of the coronavirus pandemic and years of 
Tory austerity.  The Spending Review announced a 
£2.2bn increase in Councils’ Core Spending Power.  Of 
this sum, £1.5bn is assumed to come from Councils 
increasing Council Tax by 5% - the maximum the 
Government will allow without a referendum.  Only 
£600m of this was badged as new money and £300m of 
this is recycled so is not new. 

Page 24



 

 The Government has not brought forward a plan to 
reform funding and provision of adult social care as 
promised and instead has given councils the power to 
raise a further adult social care precept – indeed it 
assumes that this will be raised within the Core Spending 
Power increase.  The precept can increase by 3% for 
2021/22, but by using the ability to raise Council Tax as a 
means to generate income for adult social care, it’s not 
linking to need.  Those areas that can generate more 
Council Tax can raise more funding. 

 While the Government has provided significant additional 
funding for 2020/21, including over £23m of general 
Grant funding for Oldham Council this year, this still 
leaves a shortfall and the Government continues to break 
its promise to ‘do whatever it takes’ to support public 
services tackling the pandemic including fully reimbursing 
councils and schools for additional costs and reduced 
income  

 While receiving over £14m of grants for specific purposes 
in Oldham this year is welcome, these grants have come 
with substantial restrictions from Government on how 
they can be used.  Such funding could be used more 
effectively if there was greater flexibility. 

 The Spending Review did not include additional funding 
for public health.  This runs contrary to addressing the 
stark health inequalities exposed by COVID-19 and 
levelling up our communities.  Keeping people healthy 
and well throughout their lives reduces pressure on the 
NHS and social care. 

 The Government has not temporarily removed the No 
Recourse to Public Funds condition.  This would reduce 
public health risks and ease the pressure on 
homelessness services by enabling vulnerable people to 
access welfare benefits, who are currently unable to do 
so because of their immigration status.  The Chancellor 
also failed to commit to making permanent the £20 a 
week supplement to Universal Credit that has been 
crucial to protecting people from poverty. 

 The Spending Review included no additional uplift to the 
Carers’ Allowance.  900,000 full-time unpaid carers rely 
on Carer’s Allowance – but at just £67.25 a week, it’s not 
nearly enough.  More than a third of those on Carer’s 
Allowance are struggling to make ends meet.  Many have 
been struggling for months, often relying on foodbanks to 
feed themselves and the people they care for. 

This Council condemns the wage freeze imposed on 2m public 
sector workers including firefighters, the police, teachers and 
local authority staff.  Many of these workers have kept the 
country going during the pandemic and deserve more than a 
real term pay cut. 
This Council believes that only with the right funding and 
freedoms, can councils lead local efforts to level up the stark 
inequalities the pandemic has exposed and level up the 
economy so that it benefits everyone. 
This Council resolves to ask the Chief Executive to write to: 

Page 25



 

 The Local Government Association to urge a vigorous 
campaign for a long term local government funding 
settlement, for reform of adult social care and adequate 
funding of children’s social care, education and social 
housing in the context of a new settlement reversing the 
centralisation of powers and decision-making that has 
been evident even before the pandemic. 

 The borough’s three MPs urging that they oppose the 
public sector pay freeze and support efforts to secure the 
necessary funding and freedoms for local authorities. 

 Therese Coffey MP, the Secretary of State for Work and 
Pensions, calling on her to make the £20 a week 
Universal Credit supplement permanent and to 
immediately increase the Carers Allowance by £20 per 
week.” 

 
Councillor Jabbar exercised his right of reply and indicated he 
accepted the amendment. 
 
A vote was then taken on the AMENDMENT, which was 
CARRIED and became the SUBSTANTIVE MOTION. 
 
On being put to the vote, 53 votes were cast in FAVOUR of the 
SUBSTANTIVE MOTION and 0 votes were cast AGAINST with 
3 ABSTENTIONS.  The SUBSTANTIVE MOTION was therefore 
CARRIED. 
 
RESOLVED that the Chief Executive be asked to write to: 
• The Local Government Association to urge a vigorous 
campaign for a long term local government funding settlement, 
for reform of adult social care and adequate funding of children’s 
social care, education and social housing in the context of a new 
settlement reversing the centralisation of powers and decision-
making tThis Council resolves to ask the Chief Executive to 
write to: 
• The Local Government Association to urge a vigorous 
campaign for a long term local government funding settlement, 
for reform of adult social care and adequate funding of children’s 
social care, education and social housing in the context of a new 
settlement reversing the centralisation of powers and decision-
making that has been evident even before the pandemic. 
• The borough’s three MPs urging that they oppose the 
public sector pay freeze and support efforts to secure the 
necessary funding and freedoms for local authorities. 
• Therese Coffey MP, the Secretary of State for Work and 
Pensions, calling on her to make the £20 a week Universal 
Credit supplement permanent and to immediately increase the 
Carers Allowance by £20 per weekhat has been evident even 
before the pandemic. 
• The borough’s three MPs urging that they oppose the 
public sector pay freeze and support efforts to secure the 
necessary funding and freedoms for local authorities. 
• Therese Coffey MP, the Secretary of State for Work and 
Pensions, calling on her to make the £20 a week Universal 

Page 26



 

Credit supplement permanent and to immediately increase the 
Carers Allowance by £20 per week 
 

11   NOTICE OF OPPOSITION BUSINESS   

Motion 1 – Tracking Stalkers and Domestic Abusers 
 
Councillor C. Gloster MOVED and Councillor Williamson 
SECONDED the following MOTION: 
 
“Council notes that: 

 Stalking and domestic abuse are crimes which are 
insidious and terrifying, the majority committed by men 
against women.  Offenders go from victim to victim, yet 
many remain undetected and unconvicted. 

 The evidence shows that domestic abuse has become 
more prevalent during the COVID-19 pandemic and 
subsequent lockdowns.  Some stalkers and domestic 
abusers go on to commit murder, and tragically the 
domestic homicide rate, mostly of women, continues to 
increase. 

 Despite clear warning signs that such crimes are often 
repeated and follow a pattern, much offending behaviour 
remains undetected by the Police, probation and other 
agencies, and offenders are left at large. 

 Although the provisions of the Domestic Abuse Bill now 
before Parliament are welcome, the Bill is manifestly 
deficient in not addressing the importance of robustly 
tracking and apprehending these offenders. 

Council further notes that: 

 Whilst the Domestic Abuse Bill would place Clare’s Law 
(the Domestic Violence Disclosure Scheme) on a 
statutory footing, this will place the onus upon victims to 
come forward to seek information about their partner or a 
family member and this can sometimes place the victim in 
danger. 

 There is no duty on police services to identify, track and 
manage stalkers and domestic abusers. 

Council believes that: 

 It is imperative that serial stalkers and domestic abusers 
are prioritised and proactively identified, assessed and 
managed by Police, probation and other relevant 
agencies, so that intelligence can be shared about their 
offending behaviour to hold them to account and close 
down their behaviour. 

 The details of stalkers and domestic abusers should be 
included on the Violent and Sexual Offender’s Register 
and managed via the Multi-Agency Public Protection 
Arrangements. 

Council resolves to ask the Chief Executive to write to the Home 
Secretary asking her to make these changes to more effectively 
track and apprehend stalkers and domestic abusers, and to 
copy in our three Members of Parliament and the Mayor and 
Deputy Mayor of Greater Manchester asking them to make 

Page 27



 

representations to the Home Secretary in support of the 
Council’s position.” 
 
Councillor Chadderton spoke in support of the Motion. 
Councillor Shah spoke in support of the Motion. 
Councillor Al-Hamdani spoke in support of the Motion. 
Councillor Ball spoke in support of the Motion. 
Councillor S Bashforth spoke in support of the Motion. 
Councillor Shuttleworth spoke in support of the Motion. 
Councillor Surjan spoke in support of the Motion. 
 
Councillor C Gloster exercised his right of reply. 
 
On being put to the vote, Members voted unanimously in 
FAVOUR of the MOTION. The MOTION was therefore 
CARRIED. 
 
RESOLVED that the Chief Executive be asked to write to the 
Home Secretary asking her to make these changes to more 
effectively track and apprehend stalkers and domestic abusers, 
and to copy in our three Members of Parliament and the Mayor 
and Deputy Mayor of Greater Manchester asking them to make 
representations to the Home Secretary in support of the 
Council’s position. 
 
Motion 2 – Young Carers Action Day 
 
Councillor H. Gloster MOVED and Councillor Hamblett 
SECONDED the following MOTION: 
 
“Council commends the young people in this borough who 
selflessly provide care for others.   
Council notes that: 

 Recent research shows that one in five secondary school 
children may be a young carer.  For many, their caring 
journey begins at a much younger age. 

 Caring for someone can be very isolating, worrying and 
stressful.  For young carers, this can negatively impact on 
their experiences and outcomes in education, having a 
lasting effect on their life chances. 

 Each year, The Carers Trust has organised a Young 
Carers’ Action Awareness Day.  In 2021, this will be 
renamed Young Carers’ Action Day and marked on 
March 16. 

 The purpose of this day is to raise public awareness of 
the challenges faced by young people and young adults 
because of their caring role, and to campaign for greater 
support for young carers to meet their needs. 

Council resolves to: 

 Promote Young Carers Action Day as widely as possible 
on an annual basis, particularly to young carers and their 
families. 

 Ask the Health and Wellbeing Board to work with the 
Carers’ Trust, the Connexions Young Carers’ Project and 
the Youth Council to establish an annual event in Oldham 

Page 28



 

to mark this date to which young carers and their families 
can be invited in person or online, and at which 
appropriate information and services can be accessed.” 

 
Councillor Stretton spoke in support of the Motion. 
 
Councillor H Gloster did not exercise her right of reply. 
 
On being put to the vote, Members voted unanimously in 
FAVOUR of the MOTION. The MOTION was therefore 
CARRIED. 
RESOLVED that: 

1. The Council would promote Young Carers Action Day as 
widely as possible on an annual basis, particularly to 
young carers and their families. 

2. The Health and Wellbeing Board be asked to work with 
the Carers’ Trust, the Connexions Young Carers’ Project 
and the Youth Council to establish an annual event in 
Oldham to mark this date to which young carers and their 
families can be invited in person or online, and at which 
appropriate information and services can be accessed 

 
 
Motion 3 – Turning over an old leaf 
 
Councillor Al-Hamdani MOVED and Councillor Harkness 
SECONDED the following ALTERED MOTON: 
 
“Council notes: 

- That the revised NPPF (2018) put protection for ancient 
woodland and ancient and veteran trees on a par with the 
best of our built heritage. 

- The NPPF states that: ‘When determining planning 
applications, local planning authorities should apply the 
following principles:…. c) development resulting in the 
loss or deterioration of irreplaceable habitats (such as 
ancient woodland and an ancient or veteran trees) should 
be refused, unless there are wholly exceptional reasons.’ 

- That over 1200 Ancient Woodland sites across the UK 
are under threat from development. 

- That other local plans have included protections on 
Ancient Woodlands in their local plans, with 
recommended wording provided in the Woodland Trust’s 
document ‘Planning for Ancient Woodland’. 

Council recognises: 
- That the forthcoming Local Plan provides an opportunity 

for us to ensure that Ancient Woodland is protected 
across our Borough; 

- That protection is required before the Local Plan is 
delivered to ensure that Ancient Woodland remains 
protected in the interim period; 

- That not all Ancient Woodland has been properly 
identified, and it is important that a clear route is available 
to identify and protect Ancient Woodland across the 
borough. 

Council resolves: 

Page 29



 

- To consider inclusion of the protection of Ancient 
Woodland into its forthcoming Local Plan, and include 
that as a theme within the forthcoming Issues and 
Options consultations on the emerging Local Plan. 

- To write to the Secretary of State to ensure that any 
changes to the planning system do not remove the rights 
of Local Councils to protect Ancient Woodland as part of 
their planning policies 

- Subject to any adoption of a policy on Ancient Woodland 
as part of the Local Plan, to include in later consultation 
an opportunity for residents to identify Ancient Woodland 
sites throughout the borough which should be covered by 
protection.” 

 
On being put to the vote, Members voted unanimously in 
FAVOUR of the MOTION. The MOTION was therefore 
CARRIED. 
 
RESOLVED that: 

1. The Council would consider inclusion of the protection of 
Ancient Woodland into its forthcoming Local Plan, and 
include that as a theme within the forthcoming Issues and 
Options consultations on the emerging Local Plan. 

2. The Secretary of State be written to, to ensure that any 
changes to the planning system do not remove the rights 
of Local Councils to protect Ancient Woodland as part of 
their planning policies 

3. Subject to any adoption of a policy on Ancient Woodland 
as part of the Local Plan, an opportunity for residents to 
identify Ancient Woodland sites throughout the borough 
which should be covered by protection, be included in 
later consultation. 

 
Motion 4 – GMSF 
 
Councillor Sheldon MOVED and Councillor Curley SECONDED 
the following MOTION: 
 
“Following the withdrawal of the vote on the Greater Manchester 
Spatial Framework (GMSF) report on the 25th November 2020 
Oldham Metropolitan Borough Council (OMBC) meeting, and 
following the vote to reject the GMSF at Stockport Metropolitan 
Borough Council, that OMBC believes that the GMSF is 
ultimately no longer fit for purpose. 
Oldham Borough Council Conservatives reject the need to build 
on our Greenbelt.  We believe that the GMSF has damaged the 
public trust due to the top down nature of the plans.  That is why 
we are asking that OMBC listen to local communities and that 
OMBC explore the use of neighbourhood plans for each ward/s, 
area or parish enabling communities to play a much stronger 
role in shaping the areas in which they live and work.  We note 
that a neighbourhood plan attains the same legal status as a 
local plan (and other documents that form part of the statutory 
development plan) once it has been approved at a referendum 
as stated under the neighbourhood planning act 2017. 

Page 30



 

We believe that the people must have the final say on any future 
plan/s or proposal/s for their area. 
We also note that should the Mayor of Greater Manchester and 
the Greater Manchester Combined Authority continue in 
pursuing plans for a Greater Manchester wide plan whether 
GMSF or something else, that OMBC look at mechanisms to 
first ratify the matter with the people of the OMBC area impacted 
by any plan first.  We suggest that this is held through a 
referendum. 
Given these factors, and until a satisfactory resolution is found, 
that this Council resolves: 

 That the OMBC Leader write to the Mayor of Greater 
Manchester: 

 Asking him to clarify if the Mayor of Greater 
Manchester and Greater Manchester Combined 
Authority intend to pursue the GMSF or a new 
Greater Manchester wide plan that excludes 
Stockport Metropolitan Borough Council 

 That OMBC commits to do the following: 

 Take full advantage of HM Government and the 
Chancellor of the Exchequer, Rishi Sunak’s £400 
million fund aimed at creating more homes on 
brownfield land, as part of a package of Budget 
measures intended to boost housing delivery. 

 Complete a full and accurate online register 
detailing and listing all the Brownfield sites 
available in the OMBC area and any estimated 
costs associated with repurposing the land. 

 Always look to build on brownfield or derelict sites 
first or on sites with existing planning permission. 

 That OMBC look to build beautifully, by building 
homes that have garden space and take 
consideration of local aesthetics and existing 
building styles. 

 By converting long-term empty mills, shops, and 
offices into homes; and that existing long-term 
empty homes should also be brought back into 
use. 

 Look at adopting a neighbourhood plan for each 
ward/s, area or parish as it attains the same legal 
status as a local plan (and other documents that 
form part of the statutory development plan) once 
it has been approved at a referendum as stated in 
the neighbourhood planning act 2017. 

 That should a new, modified or existing Greater 
Manchester wide plan emerge that OMBC look at 
mechanisms to first ratify the matter with the wards 
or areas in the OMBC area through a referendum. 

 Adopt and where appropriate strengthen the 
declaration of interests procedure and register of 
interests and or all other policies where there could 
be a perceived or actual conflict of interest/s either 
for Councillors or Council employees so as to 
make sure that members do not leave themselves 
open to (or perceived to be open to) improper 

Page 31



 

influence through the acceptance of gifts and 
hospitality, or otherwise.” 

 

AMENDMENT 
 
Councillor Harkness MOVED and Councillor Al-Hamdani 
SECONDED the following AMENDMENT: 
 
“Paragraph 1 
After ‘report’, insert ‘at the Full Meeting of Oldham Council’, 
delete after 25th November 2020, ‘Oldham Metropolitan Borough 
Council (OMBC) meeting’ 
Delete ‘OMBC’, insert ‘this Council’.  Delete ‘ultimately’. 
 
Paragraph 2 
Delete first sentence: ‘Oldham Borough Council Conservatives 
reject the need to build on our Greenbelt.’ 
Delete in the original second sentence: ‘We believe that t’, start 
sentence ‘The GMSF’. 
Delete in original third sentence: ‘That is why we are asking that 
OMBC’, start sentence ‘Oldham Council should’.  Delete ‘OMBC 
that’ between ‘and’ and ‘explore’. 
Delete in the original fourth sentence: ‘We note’, start sentence 
with ‘Council notes’.  Capitalise Neighbourhood Planning Act. 
Paragraph 3 
Reword paragraph as follows incorporating some of the original 
wording: 
‘Despite the vote approved by the AGMA Executive Board on 11 
December 2020 to proceed with a ‘Joint Development Plan 
Document of the nine authorities’, Council believes that the 
people must have the final say on any future plan/s or 
proposal/s for their area through a referendum.’ 
Paragraph 4 
Delete in its entirety. 
In the resolution, delete the original bullet point in its entirety. 
Insert as a new first bullet point: 

 That the Chief Executive write to the Secretary of State 
for Housing, Communities and Local Government, asking 
him to reconsider the following issues: 

o Reform of the current system of deciding 
requirements for new housing.  This is imposed 
upon local government by central government, and 
requires much greater development in Northern 
towns such as Oldham than in many Southern 
towns and cities; 

o Current housing needs figures across Greater 
Manchester are based on outdated data, and 
should arguably be much lower; 

o The Government’s analysis of how well local 
authorities are meeting housing targets ignores the 
fact that developers control how many applications 
are brought forward and delivered, and local 
authorities are not assessed on their delivery of 
approved applications. 

Page 32



 

o There needs to be a significant increase in the 
amount of funding made available to local 
government to support the remediation of 
Brownfield sites for housing development. 

The original third bullet point becomes the second bullet point 
etc. 
In this second bullet point 
Delete ‘That OMBC commits to do the following’, replace with 
‘To commit to’. 
In the first second-level bullet point, replace ‘Take’ with ‘Taking’ 
In the second second-level bullet point, replace ‘Complete’ with 
‘Completing’ 
Delete the third second-level bullet point in its entirety. 
Replace the fourth second-level bullet point with ‘Encouraging 
the building of beautiful, environmentally-sound, and spacious 
homes, that meet the highest green standards, that are 
accessible and suitably equipped to meet the needs of people 
with disabilities, and have sufficient space and light for residents 
and – where possible – have garden space; and that 
complement local aesthetics and existing building styles. 
Delete the fifth second-level bullet point in its entirety. 
Insert a new fifth second-level bullet point which reads: 
‘Reaffirming the policy first outlined in the motion approved by 
Council at the meeting held on 22 March 2017 that: ‘Council 
firmly believes that new housing development should first take 
place on brownfield or derelict sites, on sites with existing 
planning permission; and by converting long-term empty mills, 
shops and offices into homes; and that existing long-term empty 
homes should also be brought back into use, before any 
consideration is given to allocating green-belt or other protected 
open land for housing’. 
In the sixth second-level bullet point, replace ‘adopting’ with 
‘Promoting the adoption of’. 
In the eighth second-level bullet point, replace ‘adopt’ with 
‘adopting’ and ‘strengthen’ with ‘strengthening’.” 
 
Amended motion to read: 
 
“Following the withdrawal of the vote on the Greater Manchester 
Spatial Framework (GMSF) report at the Full Meeting of Oldham 
Council on 25th November 2020 and following the vote to reject 
the GMSF at Stockport Metropolitan Borough Council, this 
Council believes that the GMSF is no longer fit for purpose. 
The GMSF has damaged public trust due to the top-down nature 
of the plans.  Oldham Council should listen to local communities 
and explore the use of neighbourhood plans for each ward/s, 
area or parish enabling communities to play a much stronger 
role in shaping the areas in which they live and work.  Council 
notes that a neighbourhood plan attains the same legal status 
as a local plan (and other documents that form part of the 
statutory development plan) once it has been approved at a 
referendum as stated under the Neighbourhood Planning Act 
2017. 
Despite the vote approved by the AGMA Executive Board on 11 
December 2020 to proceed with a ‘Joint Development Plan 
Document of the nine authorities’, Council believes that the 

Page 33



 

people must have the final say on any future plan/s or 
proposal/s for their area through a referendum. 
Given these factors, and until a satisfactory resolution is found, 
that this Council resolves: 

 That the Chief Executive write to the Secretary of State 
for Housing, Communities and Local Government, asking 
him to reconsider the following issues: 

o Reform of the current system of deciding 
requirements for new housing.  This is imposed 
upon local government by central government, and 
requires much greater development in Northern 
towns such as Oldham than in many Southern 
towns and cities; 

o Current housing needs figures across Greater 
Manchester are based on outdated data, and 
should arguably be much lower; 

o The Government’s analysis of how well local 
authorities are meeting housing targets ignores the 
fact that developers control how many applications 
are brought forward and delivered, and local 
authorities are not assessed on their delivery of 
approved applications. 

o There needs to be a significant increase in the 
amount of funding made available to local 
government to support the remediation of 
Brownfield sites for housing development. 

To commit to: 

 Taking full advantage of HM Government and the 
Chancellor of the Exchequer, Rishi Sunak’s £400 million 
fund aimed at creating more homes on brownfield land, 
as part of a package of Budget measures intended to 
boost housing delivery. 

 Completing a full and accurate online register detailing 
and listing all the Brownfield sites available in the OMBC 
area and any estimated costs associated with 
repurposing the land. 

 Encouraging the building of beautiful, environmentally-
sound, and spacious homes that meet the highest green 
standards, that are accessible and suitably equipped to 
meet the needs of people with disabilities, and have 
sufficient space and light fore residents and – and where 
possible – have garden space; and that complement local 
aesthetics and existing building styles. 

 Reaffirming the policy first outlined in the motion 
approved by Council at the meeting held on 22 March 
2017 that: ‘Council firmly believes that new housing 
development should first take place on brownfield or 
derelict sites, on sites with existing planning permission; 
and by converting long-term empty mills, shops and 
offices into homes; and that existing long-term empty 
homes should also be brought back into use, before any 
consideration is given to allocating green-belt or other 
protected open land for housing’. 

 Promoting the adoption of neighbourhood plan for each 
ward/s, area or parish. 

Page 34



 

 That should a new, modified or existing Greater 
Manchester wide plan emerge that OMBC look at 
mechanisms to first ratify the matter with the wards or 
areas in the OMBC area through a referendum. 

 Adopting, and where appropriate, strengthening the 
declaration of interests procedure and register of interests 
and all other policies where there could be a perceived or 
actual conflict of interest/s either for Councillors or 
Council employees so as to make sure that members do 
not leave themselves open to (or perceived to be open to) 
improper influence through the acceptance of gifts and 
hospitality, or otherwise.” 

 
Councillor Fielding spoke against the amendment. 
Councillor Sheldon did not exercise his right of reply. 
Councillor Harkness did not exercise his right of reply. 
 
A vote was then taken on the AMENDMENT. 
 
On being put to the vote, 8 votes were cast in FAVOUR of the 
AMENDMENT and 45 votes were cast AGAINST with 0 
ABSTENTIONS.  The AMENDMENT was therefore LOST. 
 
Councillor Roberts spoke against the Motion. 
 
Councillor Sheldon exercised his right of reply. 
 
On being put to the vote, 5 votes were cast in FAVOUR of the 
MOTION and 48 votes were cast AGAINST with 0 
ABSTENTIONS.  The MOTION was therefore LOST. 

12   OLDHAM'S COVID-19 RESPONSE - UPDATE   

Councillor Shah MOVED and Councillor Fielding SECONDED a 
report which provided an update on how the Council and its 
partners continued to monitor and manage the impact of 
COVID-19 in Oldham. 
 
COVID-19 was still circulating across the UK and new cases 
continued in Oldham every day. The report provided a summary 
of activity and demonstrated how the Council collectively 
managed and prevented the spread of COVID-19 across 
Oldham’s communities. 
 
The report detailed the four key themes which were: Test and 
Trace; Vaccination; Enforcement and Compliance; and 
Community Engagement and Communications. Test and Trace 
included local testing door-to-door testing, mobile testing units, 
care home testing, contact tracing and tracing in schools.  With 
regard to vaccinations, the United Kingdom had become the first 
country to approve a COVID-19 vaccine and the NHS was 
currently offering the vaccine to those people most at risk from 
coronavirus. Oldham was preparing to deliver the programme 
starting with the most vulnerable segments of the population. 
Pop-up mass/community vaccination sites would be established 
in each of the five Primary Care Network areas of the locality 

Page 35



 

supported by mobile arrangements to ensure equitable access 
to vaccination.   
 
Enforcement and compliance included support to businesses, 
support grants and the Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme. The 
Enforcement Team (Environmental Health, Licensing, 
Community Safety and Greater Manchester Police colleagues) 
were working seven days a week visiting premises, responding 
to complaints, attending gatherings and serving fixed penalty 
notices.   
 
Community engagement and communications included public 
health messaging, self-isolation payments, winter grant 
payments and work was ongoing to ensure mechanisms were in 
place to support the distribution of vouchers. 
 
Question received from Councillor Sykes: 
“I welcomed the recent news that Oldham will soon be one of 67 
areas to be the location of mass testing.  Mass testing enabled 
Liverpool to detect asymptomatic carriers of Covid-19 and to 
move from Tier 3 to 2. I hope that it will start soon and be placed 
in the hands of our armed forces who have done such a sterling 
job in Merseyside, rather than incompetent private sector 
companies. 
My question is in two parts, relating to the priority that will be 
given to certain groups of individuals and the testing timetable.  
Front line health, care and key workers leading the fight to save 
lives, alleviate suffering and deliver core services should be an 
absolute priority group in a mass testing programme, both for 
moral and practical reasons, but I would like to make a plea for a 
third category of our residents not be overlooked.   
In this pandemic, one of the greatest tragedies has been seeing 
the forced separation of the residents of our care homes from 
their loved ones.  For the residents of the care homes in our 
borough who have waited many months to finally meet up with 
family a visit cannot come soon enough. 
According to a recent survey carried out by Age UK, seven out 
of ten people with a close relative in a care home have not seen 
them since the start of the pandemic in March; so can I make a 
plea tonight to the Cabinet Member and ask her to ensure that 
the relatives of the residents of care homes are also given 
priority so they can arrange to visit, hopefully by Xmas? And can 
I also ask her to she can confirm tonight when the mass testing 
programme will start in Oldham?” 
 
Councillor Shah, Deputy Leader of the Council and Cabinet 
Member for Covid-19 Response responded that the mass 
testing in Liverpool may have helped reduce the transmission 
rates but this was not the only factor driving down their infection 
rates. In Oldham we had been planning our approach to using 
the same type of tests as used in the Liverpool pilot in a targeted 
way for those most at risk of getting and transmitting the virus, 
and those most at risk of experiencing harm from the virus. This 
included care home staff, residents and visitors.  

Page 36



 

We were working with the military to plan the set up of testing 
site and had already started providing training to some of the 
groups we wished to prioritise, for example schools.  
We were working hard to ensure that loved ones could visit their 
relatives in Care Homes prior to Christmas. By 18th December 
all care homes should have received testing kits to enable them 
to offer visitor testing. We wanted to make sure that visiting was 
carried out as safely as possible and had worked with other 
Councils across Greater Manchester to agree guidance for care 
homes. This guidance was being shared with care homes this 
week and training was being offered to support them to 
undertake testing.  We were also offering testing via a central 
testing site to support care home visiting in homes that were not 
yet able to offer testing themselves. 
 
Question received from Councillor C Gloster: 
“Anecdotal evidence, particularly from the Liverpool mass 
testing programme, suggests that people, particularly those from 
deprived backgrounds, are deliberately avoiding taking a Covid 
test as they cannot afford to not work due to lack of government 
support. 
I would like to ask the Cabinet Member how are we encouraging 
our vulnerable residents to take a test without the fear of 
deprivation? And additionally, what are we doing as a local 
authority doing to support those that have a positive test result 
and then cannot work?” 
 
Councillor Shah, Deputy Leader of the Council and Cabinet 
Member for Covid-19 Response responded that in Oldham, we 
had tried to make sure that access to COVID tests was as easy 
as possible. In addition to our 3 static testing sites we had 2 
mobile testing units that moved around the borough every few 
days to reduce journey times to local testing sites, we also 
ensured that most of the sites had a walk through access in 
recognition that many of our residents do not have access to, or 
drive, a vehicle. 
We regularly examined our local data to identify areas with the 
highest rates of infection, the number of tests being undertaken 
and the proportion of people testing positive in each ward. 
Where testing rates were low or rates of infection were 
particularly high, we were able to deploy our door step 
engagement team to help explain COVID restrictions and to 
offer COVID-19 tests to residents.  
To promote the availability of tests and testing sites we 
published details of schedules for testing at the permanent, as 
well as mobile sites every week. This was done through a range 
of channels, including our social media, local ward councillors 
and district teams. We also promoted the financial support 
available to people who needed to self-isolate.  
In the new year we would be increasing access to testing for 
people who did not have symptoms. We were keen to learn from 
Liverpool to ensure that fears about losing income did not act as 
a disincentive to testing, and would continue to work with local 
organisations and communities to understand the barriers to 
testing and try to design the local testing offer in a way that was 
easy for people to access and reduced these disincentives. 

Page 37



 

 
Question received from Councillor Hamblett: 
“A recent disturbing report from Public Health England found 
that people with learning disabilities were up to six times more 
likely to die from Covid-19 during the first wave of the pandemic, 
and the death rate for those aged 18 to 34 was THIRTY times 
higher than the average.   
The study found that there were 451 deaths per 100,000 people 
registered with a learning disability between 21 March and 5 
June, but that this was thought to be an underestimate due to 
gaps in the data. Researchers estimated that the real figure 
could have been up to 692 per 100,000 – over 6 times the 
national average. 
Can the Cabinet Member please tell us what is being done to 
support, test and treat Covid-19 patients with learning 
disabilities, and will Oldham residents with learning disabilities 
be prioritised in the proposed mass testing programme?” 
 
Councillor Shah, Deputy Leader of the Council and Cabinet 
Member for Covid-19 Response responded that  

Shielding 
• Early in lockdown it was identified that there was some 

confusion about shielding for people with LD. A protocol 
for Oldham GPs was developed that outlined 
requirements for: 

  o Highest risk people with LD and/or autism who 
need to shield 

o At risk/Vulnerable people with LD and/or autism 
who need additional support  

• All practices within Oldham CCG received guidance from 
the Primary Care Team on 27/3/20 on how to identify, 
from their registered patient list, those patients who had 
the clinical conditions as set out in the NHS England 
guidance dated 22/03/2020 defined as at the highest risk 
of severe morbidity and mortality from coronavirus.  

 
Annual Health Checks 
• Pre Covid-19 57% of the people on Oldham LD registers 

were receiving an annual health check, however as 
anticipated this had been greatly impacted by Covid-19 
as patients were unable to go into practices. To address 
this issue, we had piloted remote health checks.  

• We had secured regional funding to develop the role of 
an Outreach LD RGN who would work with practices to 
ensure processes were established to book health 
checks while adhering to any reasonable adjustments as 
well as performing health checks in the community. The 
role was in the recruitment process and we anticipated 
this would greatly increase the uptake of annual health 
checks by people with a learning disability.  

• GM guidance had been shared with preferred model 
including both virtual and face to face options. Oldham 
was looking to progress with the model shared by GM 
due to the following benefits: 
o This would save GP time and enable more AHCs 

to be completed 

Page 38



 

o Face to face required only if necessary 
o Reduced stress of going into a surgery 
o Reduced the need for people to use public 

transport 
o Enable people with complex needs and their 

carers to receive an AHC who previously may not 
have been able to go into the surgery 

o Increased likelihood of greater uptake if people 
receive AHCs from their own home in a 
comfortable environment 

 
Testing  
The LD Covid-19 testing plan had been worked up reviewing 
the following cohorts of people: 
• Testing for people living alone with low needs not 

accessing services but registered as a patient with an LD 
with their GP 

• Testing for people living with family with low needs not 
accessing services but registered as a patient with an LD 
with their GP 

• Testing for people who are registered with the LA who 
are not receiving services 

• Testing for people who receive services from the LA but 
live at home with family 

• Testing for people in supporting accommodation or who 
have a PA 
• Testing for people with complex needs either at home or 

in supported living 
Covid testing, including daily monitoring checks and Covid 
swabbing approaches, had focussed on supported living 
settings in the first instance. We were working with 
colleagues in Public Health and with specific providers to 
develop a person centred approach to the most appropriate 
way of testing and consent to testing, which included our 
response to Track and Trace for those settings. The focus 
was on supported living for adults with LD and/or autism and 
how we supported tenants and those supporting them at 
home with oversight and monitoring of oxygen levels. 
From recent LeDeR rapid reviews and themes from LeDeR in 
general relates to pneumonia as a leading cause of death in 
adults with LD, but the rapid reviews had also shown 
significant concerns relating to silent hypoxia (no obvious 
concerns of the usual indicators, e.g. breathlessness, cough, 
blue skin tone, increased confusion etc). In these instances 
people had gone to bed appearing well, and died in the night. 
More work was required to understand the impact of Covid19 
on deaths in our LD and autism population which would be 
picked up through LeDeR and the ADASS work on rapid 
reviews 
 
LD Mortality Reviews (LeDeR) 
There was a currently a backlog of LD mortality reviews and 
this was likely to increase as a result of Covid19. This was 
due to a number of Covid-related deaths of people with LD, 
but also because of the practical issues that impeded the 
reviews. 

Page 39



 

• The KPIs for LeDeR reviews were as follows: 
• For the CCG to have an identified lead  
• For the CCG to provide an annual report (complete and 

presented to LDPB in November) 
• For reviews to be completed within 6 months of being 
reported  
• For the learning from the reviews to be distributed and 

embedded into practice.  
• The CCG is exploring options to recruit to a dedicated 

clinical post that will support with undertaking the reviews 
as well as embedding the learning from the reviews 

 
Question received from Councillor Al-Hamdani: 
“Mental health services in the UK are “overflowing” with patients, 
with growing numbers struggling to cope with anxiety, psychosis 
and depression, according to the Royal College of Psychiatrists.  
New data shows that the number of people needing support and 
advice because of suicidal thoughts has tripled, with similar 
trends being seen among those with anxiety disorders.  
Please can the Cabinet Member tell us what is being done in 
Oldham to support local people reporting mental illness since 
the start of the during the current crisis?” 
 
Councillor Shah, Deputy Leader of the Council and Cabinet 
Member for Covid-19 Response responded that the following 
actions were put in place in response to the Covid19 crisis 
across the mental health system: 

• Established a 24/7 helpline with the Trust initially to 
support people known to services, which was later 
expanded to support the people who may be coming 
through 111 requiring mental health support 

• Community hubs had a direct pathway to a Tameside 
Oldham & Glossop Mind practitioner where there were 
identified mental health or wellbeing needs 

• Crisis Safe Haven at Royal Oldham Hospital was 
repurposed as a ‘MH A&E’ to reduce numbers of people 
attending ED with updated urgent and crisis pathway at 
the start of the pandemic. Last month the Safe Haven 
had been reinstated as originally intended as support for 
people following A&E assessment and/or for people 
under care coordination with Community Mental Health 
Teams. 

• Risk stratification process undertaken for patients across 
teams to identify where face to face contacts still 
required. Face to face contact with patients had 
continued throughout where necessary. 

• Coordinated work to overcome barriers to discharge and 
reduce Delayed Transfers of Care on adult and older 
adult acute wards – the number of MH DTOCs had 
stayed at a minimum 

• Developed dedicated inpatient Covid pods to ensure 
compliance with IPC guidance 

• Developed and implemented updated Covid pathways 
for Memory Assessment, IAPT, Safe Haven/Home 
Treatment and Liaison MH in hospital teams 

Page 40



 

• Provided a bespoke care home staff support offer 
through the helpline and Care Home Liaison Team (now 
working with the STICH team) 

• Rolled out Silver Cloud online therapy universal support 
offer for Oldham population, with targeted modules 
available for health and social care front line workers 

• Established a weekly Mental Health System Support call 
including all partners across CCG, Council, Public 
Health, primary care, providers and third/voluntary 
sector 

• Outlined the Oldham bereavement support offer from 
immediate support to longer-term counselling offer 
provided by Healthy Minds 

• Progressing with development of the ‘Dementia Hub’ 
which had been planned in response to changing carer 
support needs since Covid, providing much needed 
respite to carers and therapeutic/social opportunities for 
people with dementia. The service would run initially 
from a community centre and follow council approved 
guidance for day services to ensure safe delivery 

• Collaboration across Clinical Psychologist, Senior 
Educational Psychologist, Specialist MH School Advisor 
and Emotional Wellbeing Team had worked together to 
support schools during lockdown and recovery, and 
acted on the concerns and anxieties young people 
shared about the safe return to school/college. 

• Healthy Young Minds staff were approved to support the 
acute paediatric ward to assess children admitted with 
emotional wellbeing symptoms and to support early 
discharge planning, as well as offer additional 7 day 
follow up support to 16-17 year olds who had either 
been admitted or referred through the MH Liaison team 
in A&E 

• Over the next few months we would be implementing 
winter pressure MH schemes – for Oldham we had 
submitted a proposal for additional mental health 
nursing support in Butler Green and Medlock Court 

 
Question received from Councillor Murphy: 
“In the Middle of November, it was reported that payments made 
against fixed penalty notices issued under coronavirus laws 
have yet to reach local authorities. Apparently, an organisation 
called Acro, the criminal records office, has been processing the 
fines given by English and Welsh police forces and the money 
remains in an Acro bank account, rather than being disbursed.  
Acro told the national press that the money had not yet gone 
anywhere as it was still trying to locate payment details of local 
authorities.  I am assuming that in the month that has passed 
this authority has been in touch with Acro to ensure they have 
the correct details to ensure this unsatisfactory situation can be 
resolved. 
If this is so could the Cabinet member please tell me whether 
this Council has now received the money it is owed from Acro, 
and how much this is? Alternately if this is not so can the 
Cabinet Member tell me how much is owing and what action we 
are taking to get paid?” 

Page 41



 

 
Councillor Shah, Deputy Leader of the Council and Cabinet 
Member for Covid-19 Response responded that the Council had 
contacted Acro and supplied the correct details to enable 
payment against fixed penalty notices issued by the police under 
coronavirus laws. An initial remittance had been received from 
Acro and a payment of £610 had been received by the Council.  
This payment covered fixed penalty notices issued in May and 
June for 15 offences recorded in April and May. Information for 
later penalty notices had been requested. 
The payments only related to fixed penalty notices issued by the 
police. Fixed penalty notices issued by Council officers were 
processed direct by the Council and were not affected by the 
arrangements with Acro.   
 
Question received from Councillor H Gloster: 
“The NHS is establishing specialist units to treat “long Covid” 
patients with persistent symptoms such as breathlessness, 
chronic fatigue, brain fog, anxiety and stress. Apparently up to 
500,000 people in Britain are living with the long-term effects. I 
understand that three of these units or mini- hospitals will be in 
the North West of England. Does the Cabinet Member know 
where these will be located?” 

 
Councillor Shah, Deputy Leader of the Council and Cabinet 
Member for Covid-19 Response responded that the precise 
location(s) of these specialist facilities for ‘long Covid’ was yet to 
be determined. Work was currently taking place to develop and 
agree a specification. It was the intention of the Greater 
Manchester Health & Social Care Partnership that, following 
agreement on the specifications and the associated scoping 
exercise, a decision would be made with regard to the location 
prior to Christmas by the appropriate Greater Manchester 
Board. 
 
Question received from Councillor Harkness: 
“In early November, economist Douglas McWilliams, founder of 
the Centre for Economics and Business Research, warned that 
the four-week lockdown in England would wipe £1.8bn off the 
value of the economy for every day it lasts. 
Can the Cabinet Member please tell me if there is an estimate of 
the loss to the Oldham economy every day during Lockdown, 
and if so, what this is?” 
 
Councillor Shah, Deputy Leader of the Council and Cabinet 
Member for Covid-19 Response responded that unfortunately, 
the Government did not measure economic gains or losses at a 
local authority level. It as not possible to provide a direct 
response to the question.  
However, it was clear that the economic impact has been 
significant in Oldham. Unemployment and Youth Unemployment 
levels increased by 101% and 132% respectively. 
Between 55 - 62% of businesses had reported reduced sales 
over the last two months across all sectors, however this was 
significantly higher for the Hospitality, Leisure and Tourism 
sector and Creative and Cultural industries which had seen 76% 

Page 42



 

of businesses declaring decreased sales persistently for the last 
2 months. 
Businesses on average reported that they had less than 6 
months sustainability dropped from 23.5% in early September to 
9% at the end of November, however for Hospitality, Leisure 
and Tourism were reporting around 40% declaring less than 6 
months of sustainability (with cash flow being a key problem for 
49%). 
The Council had focussed effort on prioritising grant support 
providing £51.974 million of grant support alongside 
engagement with businesses to ensure that they were aware of 
business support programmes delivered by the Growth 
Company.  
 
Question received from Councillor Williamson: 
“In early November, around 12 Covid-19 deaths per day were 
reported to be happening at the Pennine Acute hospitals, which 
includes the Royal Oldham Hospital. This is the highest number 
of daily deaths of any hospital trust and over the preceding 
month the number was 197 of the 600 Covid-19 deaths in 
Greater Manchester. The data could indicate the trust has 
struggled to cope with ‘probable healthcare-associated 
infections’, which means an outbreak or outbreaks of Covid-19 
within the trust’s hospitals. 
Can the Cabinet Member please tell us what steps are being 
taken to control and prevent further outbreaks at our hospital in 
the future?” 
 
Councillor Shah, Deputy Leader of the Council and Cabinet 
Member for Covid-19 Response responded that the Pennine 
Acute Hospitals NHS Trust did have the highest mortality for 
COVID-19 across Greater Manchester. The mortality figures 
detailed in the question represented the total number of deaths 
in the 5 Hospitals which constituted the Trust. These deaths 
were generally evenly distributed between NMGH, FGH/RI and 
TROH. However, there was no evidence to indicate this was 
being driven by in-hospital nosocomial transmission of COVID-
19. It should be referenced though that at the peak of activity 
PAT had 424 patients with COVID-19 in hospital indicating there 
were approximately 40% more patients at this time in hospital 
with COVID-19 compared with comparable size organisations in 
GM. Considering the  Pennine Acute Hospitals NHS Trust had 
the highest levels of COVID-19 admissions during the second 
wave of the pandemic (40% more COVID admissions than the 
second highest Trust with Covid admission activity in Greater 
Manchester) there was a likely correlation with this activity and 
the reported increased mortality rate. 
SitRep data used by NHS England and NHS Improvement on 
their daily infection dashboard to identify any possible in-hospital 
transmissions of COVID-19  in the in-patient setting did not 
evidence special cause variation at the Royal Oldham Hospital 
nor at the Pennine Acute Hospitals NHS Trust. 
It was acknowledged there was a spike in nosocomial 
transmission at the beginning of the second wave (end of 
October- mid November) but this was observed across all Trusts 
within Greater Manchester at similar levels.  

Page 43



 

 
Work has been ongoing across the NCA to prevent nosocomial 
infections. There had been an Infection Prevention Control 
Collaborative running across the NCA which had now become 
an IPC cell.  
The cell had used The Healthcare Safety Investigation Branch 
(HSIB)report “COVID-19 transmission in hospitals: management 
of the risk – a prospective safety investigation” to form a 
hierarchy of priorities for the care organisation to work through. 
This group met three times a week and had enjoyed 
participation of NHSI/E who attended to observe and provide 
input and guidance when necessary.  
Nosocomial infections for Oldham for w/c 26th October totalled 
27 the height of the COVID19 admissions peak compared to 6 
for w/c 30th November a reduction of some 78%. 
 
Question received from Councillor Phythian: 
“I have recently received enquiries from a ward constituent who 
works for the DWP benefits office on Union Street in the Town 
Centre. 
The enquiry was to do with free parking for key workers in the 
Town Centre during the continuing pandemic. In light of the 
Government’s pay freeze for public service workers does the 
council have any plans to introduce such a scheme?” 
 
Councillor Shah, Deputy Leader of the Council and Cabinet 
Member for Covid-19 Response responded that in order to help 
support Oldham’s key workers - free parking was introduced on 
all Council car parks in the town centre at the start of the March 
lockdown period. While this had been reviewed periodically with 
the various changes to tiered restrictions further lockdown 
periods, the Council decided to retain the free parking 
arrangement for keyworkers – and this remained in place to this 
day.   
Anyone designated as a keyworker, supporting communities in 
Oldham had the privilege to park for free on Tommyfield market 
car park, subject to displaying the correct Government issue key 
worker permit on their dashboard.   
In the event that a Penalty Charge Notices was issued by 
mistake to a key worker, it would be cancelled once evidence of 
keyworker status had been confirmed and verified.   
 
RESOLVED that: 
1. The update on Oldham’s response to the COVID-19 

pandemic be noted. 
2. The questions and responses provided be noted. 

13   UPDATE ON ACTIONS FROM COUNCIL   

Councillor Fielding MOVED and Councillor Sykes SECONDED 
a report of the Director of Legal Services which informed 
members of actions taken following previous Council meetings 
and provided feedback on issues raised at those meetings. 
 
RESOLVED that the actions regarding motions and issues from 
previous Council meetings be noted. 

Page 44



 

14   CHILDREN'S SERVICES UPDATE   

Councillor Moores MOVED and Councillor Mushtaq 
SECONDED an update on the recent Ofsted Focused Visit and 
progress related to Children’s Social Care improvement plans. 
 
The report summarised the following: 

 The Children and Young People Services response to 
Covid-19 was found to be good because the Team 
Oldham response had been good.  It was a whole system 
judgement. 

 Good progress had been made on the improvement 
journey and the response to Covid-19 had accelerated 
progress and not delayed it. 

 The 2020 Self-Assessment of the service submitted to 
Ofsted was well founded – the priorities were the right 
ones and there were no surprises in the findings. 

 The Ofsted Inspection Framework for the visit was an 
exhausting and intensive 3-week programme and had put 
the service under extreme pressure. 

 The Council should not be complacent and there was still 
much to do, but the Council should assert the strong 
performance in Greater Manchester and the North West 
and be proud of the achievements. 

 
Council were reminded that in November 2018, an investment of 
£12m had been approved across three years to strengthen the 
management across Children’s Social Care and provide the 
required number of social work practitioners needed to provide a 
good service as part of a new operating model.   
 
Council were informed of the Ofsted Focused Visit which had 
been conducted in October 2020.  The visit focused on three 
key areas: Help and Protection; Children in Care and Care 
Leavers; and Impact of Leaders.  The majority of findings were 
overwhelmingly positive and no immediate priority actions were 
identified.   
 
RESOLVED that the update on Children’s Services and 
progress to date be noted. 

15   TREASURY MANAGEMENT MID-YEAR REVIEW REPORT 
2020/21  

 

Councillor Jabbar MOVED and Councillor Fielding SECONDED 
a report of the Director of Finance which advised on the 
performance of the Treasury Management Function of the 
Council for the first half of 2020/21 and provided a comparison 
of performance against the 2020/21 Treasury Management 
Strategy and Prudential Indicators. 
 
The Council was required to consider the performance of the 
Treasury Management function in order to comply with the 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s 
(CIPFA) Code of Practice on Treasury Management (revised 
2017).  The report set out the key Treasury Management issues 
for members information and review and outlined the following: 

Page 45



 

 An economic update for the first six months of 2020/21; 

 A review of the Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement and Annual Investment Strategy; 

 The Council’s capital expenditure, as set out in the 
Capital Strategy, and prudential indicators; 

 A review of the Council’s investment portfolio for 2020/21; 

 A review of the Council’s borrowing strategy for 2020/21; 

 Why there had been no debt rescheduling undertaken 
during 2020/21; and 

 A review of compliance with Treasury and Prudential 
Limits for 2020/21. 

 
The mid-year 2020/21 treasury management position was 
scrutinised by the Audit Committee at its meeting on 3rd 
November 2020 and was considered by Cabinet at its meeting 
on 16th November 2020.  Both the Audit Committee and Cabinet 
were content to commend mid-year review to Council for 
approval. 
 
On being put to the vote, Members voted unanimously in 
FAVOUR of the recommendations. 
 
RESOLVED that: 
1. The Treasury Management activity for the first half of the 

financial year 2020/21 and the projected outturn position 
be approved. 

2. The Amendments to both Authorised Limit and 
Operational Boundary for external debt as set out in the 
table at Section 2.4.5 of the report be approved. 

3. The Amendments to the Capital Financing Requirement 
(CFR) as set out in the table at Section 2.4.5 be 
approved. 

16   2019/20 ANNUAL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS   

Councillor Jabbar MOVED and Councillor Fielding SECONDED 
a report of the Director of Finance which advised Council of the 
recently approved 2019/20 audited Statement of Accounts and 
the External Auditor (Mazars LLP) Audit Completion Report 
(ACR) and Annual Audit Letter. 
 
The report presented the Council’s audited Statement of 
Accounts for the financial year 2019/20 as considered by the 
Audit Committee on 21st July 2020.  Delegated authority was 
given to the Vice Chair of the Audit Committee afters 
consultation with the Director of Finance to approve the 
accounts pending the resolution of two outstanding queries.  
The first was assurance with regard to the audit of the Greater 
Manchester Pension Fund (GMPF) and the second, the 
resolution of an outstanding item related to the Council’s 
investment in the Manchester Airport Holdings Limited.  The 
accounts were subsequently approved on 10th November 2020, 
with only one change to the Statement of Accounts presented 
and accepted at the Audit Committee on 21st July 2020, being 
additional wording required on the assurances of asset 

Page 46



 

valuations highlighted as a result of the conclusion of the GMPF 
audit. 
 
The report highlighted: 

 The overall revenue outturn position for 2019/20 was a 
surplus of £0.270m.  This was in increase on the 
favourable variance of £0.065m projected at month 9 that 
was reported to Cabinet on 23rd March 2020. 

 The year-end variances that were attributable to each 
Portfolio. 

 Schools balances at 31st March 2020 at £5.487m but 
offset by the deficit on the Dedicated Schools Grant 
(DSG) of £4.916m leaving a net balance of £0.571m held 
within Other Earmarked Reserves. 

 The final Housing Revenue Account (HRA) balance was 
£21.796m. 

 The balance on the Collection Fund was a surplus of 
£3.295m. 

 The small reduction in revenue account earmarked 
reserves of £1.263m to a level of £79.360m, a decrease 
in other earmarked reserves of £4.431m to a level of 
£8.504m and an increase in the General Fund balance of 
£0.270m to £15.110m, reflective of the revenue outturn 
position. 

 Expenditure on the Council’s capital programme for 
2019/20 was £54.383m which was an increase on the 
month 9 forecast expenditure of £52.497m.  The increase 
in expenditure required funding allocated to future years 
to be re-profiled to fully finance the Capital Programme in 
2019/20. 

 Capital Receipts in year totalled £9.914m, all of which 
were used to finance the Capital Programme in year. 

 The significant items in each of the primary financial 
statements. 

 The preparation of the Group Accounts incorporating the 
Councils two wholly owned companies – the Unity 
Partnership Ltd. And MioCare Community Interest 
Company. 

 The performance of the Finance Team in closing the 
accounts. 

 
The presentation of the audited Statement of Accounts provided 
Council with the opportunity to review the Council’s year-end 
financial position (following completion of the audit by the 
Council’s External Auditors, Mazars LLP). The Statement of 
Accounts was also presented to Cabinet at its meeting on 14th 
December 2020. 
 
RESOLVED that Authority’s final accounts position for 2019/20, 
the Statement of Accounts and the Audit Completion Report be 
noted. 
 

17   CIVIC APPRECIATION NOMINATION 2021   

Page 47



 

Councillor Fielding MOVED and Councillor Sykes SECONDED 
a report of the Director of Legal Services which sought approval 
for the nomination of Steve Hill MBE to receive the Council’s 
Civic Appreciation Award. 
 
The nomination was in recognition of Mr. Hill’s significant 
voluntary contribution and dedication to the local community and 
borough of Oldham. 
 
On being put to the vote, Members voted unanimously in 
FAVOUR of the recommendations. 
 
RESOLVED that: 
 
1. The nomination of Steve Hill to receive the Civic 

Appreciation Award be agreed. 
2. The ceremony for the award to take place prior to the 

Council meeting to be held on 24th March 2021. 
 

18   MUNICIPAL DIARY 2021/22   

Councillor Fielding MOVED and Councillor Sykes SECONDED 
a report of the Director of Legal Services which sought approval 
of the draft Calendar of Meetings for the 2021/2022 Municipal 
Year. 
 
On being put to the vote, Members voted unanimously in 
FAVOUR of the recommendations. 
 
RESOLVED that: 
1. The Council’s Calendar of Meetings for the Municipal Year 

2021/22 as set out in Appendix 1 of the report be approved. 
2. Approval of any outstanding dates be delegated to the Chief 

Executive in consultation with Group Leaders. 
 
 

The meeting started at 6.00 pm and ended at 10.35 pm 
 

Page 48



 

COUNCIL 
04/03/2021 at 6.00 pm 

 
 

Present: Deputy Mayor in the Chair – Councillor Harrison  
   
Councillors Ahmad, Akhtar, Al-Hamdani, Ali, Alyas, Ball, 
M Bashforth, S Bashforth, Briggs, Brownridge, Byrne, 
Chadderton, Chauhan, Cosgrove, Curley, Davis, Dean, Fielding, 
Garry, C. Gloster, H. Gloster, Goodwin, Hamblett, Harkness, 
Harrison, Hewitt, Hobin, Hulme, A Hussain, Ibrahim, Iqbal, 
Jabbar, Jacques, Leach, Malik, McLaren, Moores, Murphy, 
Mushtaq, Phythian, Price, Roberts, Shah, Sheldon, 
Shuttleworth, Stretton, Surjan, Sykes, Taylor, Toor, Ur-Rehman, 
Williamson and Williams 
 

 

 

1   TO RECEIVE APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors 
Alexander, Haque, Hudson and Salamat. 

2   TO RECEIVE COMMUNICATIONS RELATING TO THE 
BUSINESS OF THE COUNCIL  

 

The Deputy Mayor made reference to the recent deaths of a 
former Member of the Council, Brian Lund, two former 
Mayoresses Kathleen Hudson and Pauline Crowther and a 
former Chief Executive Colin Smith. 
 
Councillors Sykes and Dean paid tribute to former Mayoress 
Pauline Crowther. 
 
Councillors Dean, Garry and Sykes paid tribute to former 
Councillor Lund. 
 
Councillors Ahmad and Sykes paid tribute to former Chief 
Executive Colin Smith. 
 
Councillors Sheldon, Sykes, Roberts and Byrne paid tribute to 
former Mayoress Kathleen Hudson. 
 
The Council held a minute’s silence in memory of those lost. 

3   TO RECEIVE DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN ANY 
MATTER TO BE DETERMINED AT THE MEETING  

 

The Mayor informed the meeting that the Standards Committee 
had granted a dispensation to allow members who had an 
interest arising from ownership or occupation of property in 
Oldham, to participate and vote on the setting of the Council Tax 
and matters directly related to such decision including the 
budget calculations.  All members declared a pecuniary interest 
in Item 4 – Budget Proposals, but the dispensation was 
applicable allowing members to participate and vote on Item 4. 
 
Councillor Ahmad declared a personal interest at Item 4g by 
virtue of his membership in the GMB Trade Union. 

Page 49



 

Councillor Akhtar declared a personal interest at Item 4g by 
virtue of his membership in the UNITE Trade Union. 
Councillor Ali declared a personal interest at Item 4g by virtue of 
his membership in the GMB Trade Union. 
Councillor Alyas declared a personal interest at Item 4g by virtue 
of his membership in the CWU Trade Union. 
Councillor Ball declared a personal interest at Item 4g by virtue 
of her membership in the UNITE Trade Union. 
Councillor M. Bashforth declared a personal interest at Item 4g 
by virtue of her membership in the GMB Trade Union. 
Councillor S. Bashforth declared a personal interest at Item 4g 
by virtue of his membership in the GMB Trade Union. 
Councillor Briggs declared a personal interest at Item 4g by 
virtue of his membership in the UNITE Trade Union. 
Councillor Brownridge declared a personal interest at Item 4g by 
virtue of her membership in the GMB Trade Union. 
Councillor Chadderton declared a personal interest at Item 4g 
by virtue of her membership in the UNISON Trade Union. 
Councillor Chauhan declared a personal interest at Item 4g by 
virtue of his membership in a Trade Union. 
Councillor Cosgrove declared a personal interest at Item 4g by 
virtue of her membership in the UNITE Trade Union. 
Councillor Curley declared a personal interest at Item 4g by 
virtue of his membership in a Trade Union. 
Councillor Davis declared a personal interest at Item 4g by 
virtue of his membership in the UNITE Trade Union. 
Councillor Dean declared a personal interest at Item 4g by virtue 
of his membership in the GMB Trade Union. 
Councillor Fielding declared a personal interest at Item 4g by 
virtue of his membership in the GMB and UNISON Trade 
Unions. 
Councillor E. Garry declared a pecuniary interest by virtue of her 
husband’s employment with Greater Manchester Police and a 
personal interest at Item 4g by virtue of her membership in the 
USDAW and ANGU Trade Union. 
Councillor C. Gloster declared a pecuniary interest by virtue of 
his receipt of an occupational pension from Greater Manchester 
Police. 
Councillor H. Gloster declared a pecuniary interest by virtue of 
her husband’s receipt of an occupational pension from Greater 
Manchester Police. 
Councillor Goodwin declared a personal interest by virtue of his 
membership in the UNITE Trade Union. 
Councillor Harkness declared a personal interest by virtue of his 
membership of an Employers Community Trade Union. 
Councillor Hewitt declared a personal interest by virtue of his 
membership in the UNITE and GMB Trade Unions. 
Councillor Hulme declared a personal interest at Item 4g by 
virtue of his membership in the GMB Trade Union. 
Councillor Ibrahim declared a personal interest at Item 4g by 
virtue of her membership in a Trade Union. 
Councillor Iqbal declared a personal interest at Item 4g by virtue 
of his membership in the CWU Trade Union. 
Councillor Jabbar declared a personal interest at Item 4g by 
virtue of his membership in the UNISON and UNITE Trade 
Unions. 

Page 50



 

Councillor Leach declared a personal interest at Item 4g by 
virtue of her membership in the UNITE Trade Union. 
Councillor Malik declared a personal interest at Item 4g by virtue 
of his membership in the UNITE Trade Union. 
Councillor McLaren declared a personal interest at Item 4g by 
virtue of his membership in the NEU Trade Union. 
Councillor Moores declared a personal interest at Item 4g by 
virtue of his membership in the UNITE Trade Union. 
Councillor Mushtaq declared a personal interest at Item 4g by 
virtue of his membership in the UNITE Trade Union. 
Councillor Phythian declared a personal interest at Item 4g by 
virtue of his membership in the GMB Trade Union. 
Councillor Price declared a personal interest at Item 4g by virtue 
of her membership in the GMB Trade Union. 
Councillor Roberts declared a personal interest at Item 4g by 
virtue of her membership in the GMB Trade Union. 
Councillor Shah declared a personal interest at Item 4g by virtue 
of her membership in the GMB and Communications Trade 
Union. 
Councillor Shuttleworth declared a personal interest at Item 4g 
by virtue of his membership in the GMB Trade Union. 
Councillor Stretton declared a personal interest in Item 4g by 
virtue of her membership in the GMB Trade Union. 
Councillor Surjan declared a personal interest at Item 4g by 
virtue of her membership in the UNITE Trade Union. 
Councillor Taylor declared a personal interest at Item 4g by 
virtue of her membership in the GMB and CWU Trade Unions. 
Councillor Toor declared a personal interest at Item 4g by virtue 
of her membership in the UNISON Trade Union. 
Councillor Ur-Rehman declared a personal interest at Item 4g by 
virtue of his membership in the UNITE Trade Union. 
Councillor Williams declared a personal interest at Item 4g by 
virtue of his membership in the USDAW Trade Union. 
Councillor Harrison declared a personal interest at Item 4g by 
virtue of her membership in the NEU Union. 
 
Councillor F Hussain joined the meeting before Items 4b) and 
4f) and declared a personal interest at Item 4g by virtue of his 
membership in the USDAW Trade Union. 

4   TO NOTE THE MINUTES OF THE BUDGET CABINET 
MEETING HELD ON 23RD FEBRUARY 2021 AND TO 
CONSIDER THE RECOMMENDATIONS OF CABINET IN 
RELATION TO THE BUDGET FOR 2021/22 AND FURTHER 
TO THE FOLLOWING ATTACHED REPORTS;  

 

The Mayor requested and it was RESOLVED that Council 
Procedure Rule 14 (Rules of Debate) be suspended to enable 
the Leader of the Council to exceed the time limit for his 
contribution in moving the Administration Budget to 15 minutes 
with a 30 second extension and the Deputy Leader of the Main 
Opposition Group in moving the Main Opposition Budget, a time 
limit of 10 minutes with a 30 second extension.  All other 
speakers would be limited to 4 minutes with a 30 second 
extension. 
 

Page 51



 

The Mayor requested and it was RESOLVED to amend the 
order of business in the summons to enable the debate on the 
Capital Programme and the Revenue Budget to take place at 
the same time in accordance with Council Procedure 12.4(c).  
The order of business would be Item 4(a), Item 4(d), Item 4(e), 
Items 4(b) and (f) at the same time, Item 4(g) and then Item 4(c). 
 
The Mayor informed members that regulations had been 
implemented which required recorded votes on specific decision 
at the Budget Council meeting.  Members would be advised 
when a recorded vote was required. 
 
Prior to the consideration of the Budget Proposals, the Mayor 
asked the Council to note the draft minutes of the Cabinet 
meeting held on 23rd February 2021. 
 
On a vote being taken, the recommendation was CARRIED 
UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 
23rd February 2021 be noted. 
 
a) Housing Revenue Account Estimates for 2021/22 to 

2025/26 and Proposed Outturn for 2020/21 
 

Councillor Roberts MOVED and Councillor Jabbar 
SECONDED a joint report which set out the latest 
Housing Revenue Account (HRA), the detailed budget 
estimates for 2021/22, the strategic estimates for the four 
years 2022/23 through to 2025/26 and outturn estimate 
for 2020/21. The report also set out the recommended 
dwelling, nondwelling rents and service and concierge 
charges to be applied from April 2021. 
It was noted that HRA activities were a key element of the 
Council’s Housing Strategy (approved by Council on 10 
July 2019) which aimed to provide a diverse Oldham 
housing offer that was attractive and met the needs of 
different sections of the population at different stages of 
their lives. 
After taking all relevant issues into account, the projected 
financial position for 2020/21 was estimated to be a 
£1.384m positive variance when compared to the original 
budget forecast for 2020/21 approved at the Budget 
Council meeting, 26 February 2020. Most of the variance 
was attributable to the re-profiling of HRA funded capital 
schemes into later years due to revisions to planned 
spending profiles. The balance at the end of 2020/21 was 
projected at £19.614m. 
The financial position for 2021/22 showed an estimated 
HRA closing balance of £17.463m which was sufficient to 
meet future operational commitments and the potential 
financial pressures identified in the risk assessment. 
The 2021/22 position had been presented after allowing 
for an increase in dwelling rents of 1.5%, an increase in 
non-dwelling rents in line with individual contracts, the 

Page 52



 

freezing of all service charges and the setting of Extra 
Care Housing concierge charges to fully recover costs. 
Members were reminded that the Government had 
previously advised that PFI properties were exempt from 
Central Government’s 1% Social Rent Reduction policy. 
This policy had ended on 31 March 2020. Since then, 
Central Government had reverted to its pre-2015 
guidance for the period 2020-2025 for all properties, 
confirming all rents were calculated 
based on the Consumer Price Index (CPI) rate at 
September of the preceding year plus 1%. All Oldham’s 
budget projections for the 2021/22 budget would follow 
the rent setting guidance of CPI plus 1%, resulting in an 
increase of 1.5% (CPI was taken as at September 
2020). 
The financial projections for the HRA over the period 
2020/21 to 2025/26 showed an overall reduction in the 
level of balances from £19.614m at the end of 2020/21 to 
£3.906m at the end of 2025/26. HRA resources were to 
be used to support several major approved housing 
capital projects including development within the town 
centre and on numerous smaller sites around the 
borough. There was also a commitment to purchase 
currently empty properties owned by private sector 
landlords to increase the number of Council owned 
housing stock. 
The HRA detailed budget for 2021/22 and strategic 
estimates for the four years 2022/23 to 2025/26 and the 
outturn estimate for 2020/21 had been presented to the 
Overview and Scrutiny Performance and Value for Money 
Select Committee on 28 January 2021. The Select 
Committee was content to commend the report to Cabinet 
without amendment. Cabinet had duly considered and 
approved the report at its meeting on 23 February 2021 
and commended the report to Council. 
 

No members spoke on this item. 
 

RESOLVED that: 
 
1. The Forecast HRA outturn for 2020/21, as outlined at 

Appendix A of the report, be approved. 
2. The Proposed HRA budget for 2021/22, as outlined at 

Appendix B of the report, be approved. 
3. The strategic estimates for 2021/22 to 2025/26, as 

outlined at Appendix D of the report, be approved. 
4. The proposed increase to dwelling rents for all properties 

of 1.5% be approved. 
5. The proposed increase to non-dwelling rents as per 

individual contracts be approved. 
6. The proposal that service charges were unchanged be 

approved. 
7. The proposal to set Extra Care Housing concierge 

charges to fully recover actual costs be approved. 
 

Page 53



 

d) Statement of the Chief Financial Officer on Reserves, 
Robustness of Estimates and Affordability and Prudence 
of Capital Investments 

  
 Councillor Jabbar MOVED and Councillor Fielding 

SECONDED a report of the Director of Finance which 
sought agreement to the level of balances necessary to 
support the 2021/22 budget underpinned by the agreed 
policy on Earmarked Reserves, setting a properly 
balanced revenue budget which included the financing of 
capital investments within the present investment 
proposals.  

 
 Members were informed that, in order to comply with 

Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003; the 
Authority’s Chief Financial Officer (the Director of 
Finance) was required to report on the robustness of the 
estimates made for the purposes of the revenue budget 
calculations and the adequacy of the proposed reserves. 
This information enabled a longer-term view of the overall 
financial resilience of the Council to be taken. It also 
reported on the Director of Finance’s consideration of the 
affordability and prudence of capital investment 
proposals. The level of general balances to support the 
budget and an appropriate level of Earmarked Reserves 
maintained by the Council in accordance with the agreed 
Council Policy on Earmarked Reserves, were an integral 
part of its continued financial resilience supporting the 
stability of the Council. 
 Members noted that there had been several reports 
issued on the subject of the financial resilience of Local 
Authorities alongside the publication by the Chartered 
Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy (CIPFA) of a 
Local Authority Financial Resilience Index and the 
implementation of a Financial Management Code. These 
issues were highlighted in Section 5 of the report but 
were largely prompted by the financial challenges at 
Northamptonshire County Council during 2018 followed 
by both Nottingham City Council (NCC) and the London 
Borough of Croydon Council (LBC) in 2020 and the 
raising of  significant concerns about the financial stability 
of other Local Authorities. On 10 February it was 
announced that four other Councils were to be provided 
with financial support by the Ministry of Housing, 
Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) in the 
form of a capitalisation direction. This was to provide 
support in 2020/21 and to ensure that they were able to 
set a balanced budget for 2021/22. 
Whilst the Council had prepared a detailed revenue 
budget within a three year Medium Term Financial 
Strategy (MTFS), a five year Capital Programme and 
continued the closure of accounts within an appropriate 
timeframe allowing early focus on the upcoming 
challenges 

Page 54



 

and a robust financial transformation programme, there 
continued to be a reliance on the use of reserves to 
balance the revenue budget. 
Since 2016/17, reserves of £32.945m had been used to 
underpin the Council’s revenue budget alongside a 
number of one-off measures. In 2020/21, £10.008m of 
reserves and £5.150m of one-off measures were used to 
support the revenue budget. Included within the Medium 
Term Financial Strategy was the required use of reserves 
of £29.000m over the next two financial years. For 
2021/22, it was proposed to use corporate reserves of 
£16.703m and specific reserves of £0.127m together with 
£25.456m to offset the Collection Fund deficit arising from 
the awarding of business rates reliefs in 2020/21 (this 
was a technical accounting adjustment) combined with 
one-off measures totalling £2.000m. The remaining 
corporate Balancing Budget reserve of £12.297m would 
be used to support 2022/23. 
There was, therefore, a considerable reliance on the use 
of reserves to balance the budget in 2021/22 and also 
2022/23. The continued use of reserves and one-off 
measures had the impact of deferring the changes that 
were required to balance the revenue budget by on-going 
sustainable means. The implementation of the next phase 
of the transformation programme in 2021/22 was 
expected to begin to address this challenge although this 
had been impacted by the global pandemic. The 
expected benefits of the transformation programme would 
be phased over several financial years and would be 
supported by the use of reserves over the short term. 
As detailed within the Council’s Audit Completion Report, 
presented alongside the Statement of Accounts, the 
External Auditors concluded that for 2019/20 the Council 
had made proper arrangements to deliver financial 
sustainability in the medium term. However, it was also 
pointed out that “The Council has significant levels of 
Earmarked Reserves as at 31 March 2020, but these are 
not sufficient to sustain the Council’s financial position 
over the medium term”. It was important to note that the 
public findings into both NCC and LBC indicated Councils 
at risk of not being able to agree balanced budgets as 
their reserves were insufficient to mitigate either in year 
or 2021/22 estimated shortfalls in resources. LBC was 
still awaiting a response 
to its request for support from the MHCLG. 
Members noted that financial resilience depended in part 
on the Council maintaining an adequate level of reserves 
as set out in the report. In order to scrutinise the level of 
reserves held by the Council the policy on Earmarked 
Reserves was considered by the Audit Committee in July 
2020 and it was proposed to action the same review 
again in 2021/22 after the closure of the accounts for 
2020/21. 
Whilst the Council was utilising a number of reserves to 
support the 2021/22 revenue budget and anticipated a 
use of reserves in 2022/23, Members were assured that 

Page 55



 

Oldham Council currently remained financially resilient. 
Work was taking place to address the on-going financial 
pressures that the Council was facing. At the start of 
2021/22 it continued to be well placed to meet the difficult 
financial challenges ahead. However, this strategy relied 
on the delivery of the transformation programme over the 
short to medium term, so the comments made by the 
external auditor to support the value for money 
conclusion for the financial year-end 2020/21 were fair. 
However, transformational change at pace was required. 
Public findings reported 
elsewhere have shown that some Authorities have not, in 
a small number of cases, been able to deliver the level of 
transformational savings required. 
Members were advised of the robustness of the estimates 
and the affordability and prudence of capital investments 
for 2021/22. Despite the use of reserves over recent 
years, the level of reserves remained adequate to support 
the 2021/22 financial position and demonstrated financial 
resilience. However, this was only the case provided that 
action was taken to ensure that the balances were set at 
the level of £15.641m for 2021/22 as calculated in the 
report and that all budget options, or in year alternatives, 
were delivered as planned and monitored. 
The Statement of the Chief Financial Officer was 
presented for scrutiny to the Overview and Scrutiny 
Performance and Value for Money Select Committee on 
28 January 2021. The Select Committee was content to 
commend this to Cabinet. In turn, Cabinet approved the 
report at its meeting on 23 February 2021 and 
commended the report to Council. 

 
No members spoke on this item. 

 
RESOLVED that: 
 
1. The proposed General Fund Balance currently calculated 

for 2021/22 at £15.641m be approved. 
2. The initial estimate of General Fund Balances to support 

the Medium Term Financial Strategy be noted as follows: 

 £17.349m for 2022/23 and 

 £18.602m for 2023/24. 
3. The intended report to be presented to the Audit 

Committee on Earmarked Reserves to ensure this area 
was subject to the appropriate scrutiny be approved. 

4. The actions necessary to secure a properly balanced 
budget as presented in paragraph 3.6 of the report be 
noted. 

5. The actions necessary to ensure the prudence of the 
capital investments as noted in Section 4 of the report be 
approved. 
 

e) Council Tax Reduction Scheme 2020/21 
 

Page 56



 

Councillor Jabbar MOVED and Councillor Fielding 
SECONDED a report of the Director of Finance which 
presented the proposed Council Tax Reduction Scheme 
for 2021/22 for approval. 
 
Members were reminded that there was a requirement to 
have a Council Tax Reduction (CTR) scheme to support 
residents who qualified for assistance in paying Council 
Tax. The Local Government Finance Act 2012 placed a 
requirement that each year a billing authority must 
consider whether to revise its Council Tax Reduction 
scheme or to replace it with another scheme. Any change 
to the 2021/22 scheme must be agreed by full Council in 
line with budget setting and no later than 10 March 2021. 
For Oldham, this required the Council to agree a revised 
2021/22 scheme at the 4 March 2021 
Council meeting. Any proposed change must be subject 
to prior consultation with the major preceptors, such as 
the Greater Manchester Combined Authority, and the 
public. 
Since 2015/16, the CTR scheme had limited CTR to a 
maximum of 85% of Council Tax for a Band A property 
and removed the second adult rebate for those of working 
age. Following a public consultation exercise in Autumn 
2018, the scheme was then amended from April 2019 to 
introduce a range of changes to the scheme largely 
aimed at those CTR claimants who receive Universal 
Credit (UC). These included the application of some 
earnings disregards and treatment of 
information received from the Department for Work and 
Pensions (DWP) about UC as a claim for CTR. There 
were no changes to the CTR scheme for 2020/21. 
Members were informed that the number of CTR 
claimants of working age had increased during the 
COVID-19 pandemic and this impacted on the level of 
Council Tax that could be collected by reducing the 
Council Tax Tax Base. Local Council Tax Support Grant 
funding of £3.183m had been allocated for Oldham to 
offset the impact of increased caseloads on the tax base 
and this would be allocated to support the financial 
position of the Council for 2021/22. 
The economic impact of the pandemic in 2020/21 for 
those CTR claimants of working age had been partly 
offset by Government support in the form of the Hardship 
Fund grant which offered an additional reduction in 
Council Tax bills of up to £150. The Council also used the 
Hardship Fund grant to ensure CTR claimants were not 
detrimentally affected by the change in Housing Benefit 
earnings disregard regulations introduced under the 
Social Security (Coronavirus) (Further 
Measures) Regulations 2020 (SI 2020/371). This 
Hardship Fund protection would not be in place in 
2021/22. 
Members noted there was continued uncertainty about 
future impacts of the pandemic for residents and the local 

Page 57



 

economy which would impact on the Council’s ability to 
accurately model any proposed 
changes to the 2021/22 CTR scheme. 
Members were informed that the Council Tax was 
accounted for in the Collection Fund and had an impact 
on the General Fund budget of the Council one year in 
arrears. The Collection Fund challenges created by the 
pandemic had been acknowledged by the Government 
and it had allowed Councils to manage the impact of 
Council Tax (and Business Rates) losses in the Collection 
Fund for 2020/21 over 3 financial years rather than one. It 
had also provided support in 2021/22 in the form of the 
Local Council Tax Support Grant as well a support for 
both irrecoverable Council Tax and Business Rates 
income losses through a Local Tax Income Guarantee for 
which a sum of £1.000m had been incorporated into the 
2021/22 budget. These areas of Government 
financial support were important in considering the 
approach to the CTR scheme for 2021/22. 
Members were requested to approve the 
recommendation to maintain the current Council Tax 
Reduction scheme in 2021/22, being mindful 
of the aim of ensuring continuity about entitlement to 
those residents on the lowest incomes. 
The Council would continue to maintain a hardship 
provision for those residents in most need which was 
currently funded from the Council’s existing revenue 
budget at a value of £0.144m. The Council would 
consider its financial position during 2021/22 to assess if 
further support could be given to those residents in most 
need and to alleviate the impact of the loss of 2020/21 
COVID Hardship awards. 
At its meeting on 28 January 2021, the Overview and 
Scrutiny Performance and Value for Money Select 
Committee (PVFM) scrutinised the proposed Council Tax 
Reduction Scheme for 2021/22. 
The Select Committee was content to agree the proposal 
that there were no changes to the 2020/21 CTR scheme 
for 2021/22. It was therefore content to commend the 
proposed CTR scheme for 2021/22 to Cabinet without 
additional comment. On 23 February 2020, Cabinet had 
considered the proposal that there were no changes to 
the 2020/21 CTR scheme for 2021/22 and agreed to 
commend the report without amendment to full Council. 
 

No members spoke on this item. 
 
RESOLVED that: 
1. The Council Tax Reduction scheme, unchanged in 

2021/22, be approved. 
2. The financial position during 2021/22 be reviewed to 

assess whether resources could be found to support 
additional Exceptional Hardship Payments to support 
those residents in most need in 2021/22 and to alleviate 
the impact of the loss of COVID Hardship Fund grant 
awards. 

Page 58



 

 
b) Capital Strategy and Capital Programme 2021/22 to 
2025/26 
 
 

Councillor Fielding MOVED and Councillor Jabbar 
SECONDED a report of the Director of Finance which set 
out the Capital Strategy for 2021/22 to 2025/26 and 
thereby the proposed 2021/22 capital programme, 
including identified capital investment priorities, together 
with the indicative capital programme for 2022/23 to 
2025/26, having regard to the resources available over 
the life of the programme. 
The Capital Strategy 
Members were informed that the Council’s Capital 
Strategy and capital programme were set over a five year 
timeframe. The proposed Capital Strategy and 
programme for 2021/22 to 2025/26 took the essential 
elements of the 2020/25 and previous years’ strategies 
and programmes and moved them forward in the context 
of the financial and political environment for 2021/22. 
The Strategy included a longer term vision, a forward look 
at those projects that were likely to run beyond the five 
year strategy and programme period or be initiated 
subsequently. This covered a timeframe for the 10 years 
from 2026/27 to 2035/36. 
The format of the Capital Strategy reflected the latest 
Prudential and Treasury Management Codes issued by 
the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy (CIPFA). The strategy therefore presented: 

 A high-level long-term overview of how capital 
expenditure, capital financing and treasury 
management activity contribute to the provision of 
services; 

 An overview of how the associated risk is 
managed; and 

 The implications for future financial sustainability. 
The Capital Strategy was presented at Appendix 1 of the 
report and ensured that all Council Members were 
presented with the overall long-term capital investment 
policy objectives and resulting Capital Strategy 
requirements, governance procedures and risk appetite.   
The Strategy incorporated the refreshed and updated 
elements of the Creating a Better Place Strategy, the 
Medium-Term Property Strategy and Housing Strategy. 
Following a review of the Capital Programme, as a result 
of the unprecedented economic circumstances due to the 
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and the revised terms 
for PWLB borrowing, the principles established to 
complement the Capital Strategy as contained in the 
Commercial Property Investment Strategy and Fund and 
the Income Generation Strategy had been removed from 
the Capital Programme. 
The Capital Strategy section (section 1) highlighted the 
impact of COVID-19 and the way this had shaped capital 

Page 59



 

spending plans for 2021/22 and future years. During 
2020/21, the COVID-19 pandemic had a major impact on 
the borough, its residents and the economy. The financial 
year 2021/22 would begin, at least, with a COVID-19 
influence, however, it was expected, now that several 
vaccines were available, that normal activities would be 
resumed and the Councils capital spending plans which 
had inevitably been interrupted in 2020/21, could get 
back on track during 2021. 
The pandemic had presented significant challenges for 
the feasibility, design and delivery of capital projects. As 
well as practical issues associated with maintaining safe 
working arrangements, supply chains and similar issues, 
it had been necessary to revisit significant elements of 
the strategy to ensure the priorities for capital investment 
remained 
appropriate in the context not only of the Council’s 
challenging financial position but having regard to the 
potential longer-term impact of pandemic on the economy 
and the potential for behavioural changes in work and 
transport needs as well as retail and leisure pursuits. 
Members noted that, in preparing the Capital Strategy for 
2021/22, it was important to consider publication by HM 
Treasury in March 2020 of a consultation document 
seeking views on proposed changes to the lending terms 
of the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB). The 
Government launched the consultation as it was 
concerned that PWLB resources were being used to fund 
commercial investments solely for income generation 
purposes and carried a significant degree of risk. 
Alongside the 2020 Spending Review in November 2020, 
the Government largely confirmed the proposals set out 
in the original consultation meaning there would be 
stricter conditions associated with the approval of PWLB 
loans to Local Authorities. The PWLB would no longer 
provide loans to a Local Authority if their Capital 
Strategies included any plans to buy investment assets 
primarily for income generation. These new terms applied 
to all loans arranged on or after 26 November 2020. The 
Capital Strategy had been prepared to ensure that the 
Council was able to access PWLB funds despite the 
significant change to the lending criteria. 
In early February 2021, in response to the recent 
recommendation of the Public Accounts Committee and 
the substantial increase in commercial investment, CIPFA 
launched a consultation to consider proposals to 
strengthen the provisions within the Prudential Code for 
Capital Financing in Local Authorities. The areas that 
were proposed for strengthening were primarily linked to 
commercial investment. The Prudential Code consultation 
was aligned to a further consultation on The Treasury 
Management in Public Service Code of Practice. The 
consultation periods for both would close on 12 April 
2021.The Council would prepare a response to both 
consultations. 

Page 60



 

The National Infrastructure Strategy (NIS) published 
alongside the Chancellor’s 2020 Spending Review 
contained a range of Government capital spending 
announcements. The announcements contained little 
specific detail, and in some cases represented initiatives 
previously announced, however the NIS set out a 
considerable investment intention focussed on: 

 Boosting growth and productivity across the whole 
of the UK; 

 Driving recovery and rebuilding the economy; 

 Levelling up between regional areas and 
strengthening the Union; 

 Putting the UK on the path to meeting its net zero 
emissions target by 2050 by 

 decarbonising the economy and adapting to 
climate change; 

 Supporting private investment in infrastructure; and 

 Accelerating and improving the delivery of 
infrastructure projects. 

The Council would aim to access the maximum level of 
NIS resources to support projects in Oldham and the 
wider Greater Manchester region, working with the 
Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA) and 
other GM Authorities as necessary 
Annex C of Appendix 1 set out the proposed capital 
expenditure and financing for the period covered by the 
Capital Strategy, 2021/22 to 2025/26. 
The Strategy also advised that the Council was proposing 
to continue to use the flexibility provided by the Ministry of 
Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) 
to use capital receipts to fund the revenue cost of 
transformation. The 2021/22 revenue budget would rely 
on up to £2.000m of such funding from capital receipts. 
Annex D set out the required Flexible Use of Capital 
Receipts Strategy which advised of the summary of 
planned receipts, use and savings. 
Capital Programme 2020/21 to 2024/25 
The 2020/21 month 8 capital monitoring position 
approved at Cabinet on 23 February 2021 included 
expenditure projections that were a key determinant of 
the 2021/22 programme. As many schemes spanned 
more than one year, the anticipated level of reprofiling 
between years set the underlying position. 
The projected outturn spending position for 2020/21 was 
£81.013m. The People and Place Directorate which 
managed all of the major regeneration projects, 
constituted the main area of expenditure. Grants and 
Other Contributions (£20.151m) followed by Prudential 
Borrowing provided the main source of financing 
(£53.553m). 
Actual expenditure to 30 November 2020 was £50.566m 
(62.24% of forecast outturn). This spending profile was in 
line with that in previous years, however the position 
would be kept under review and budgets would continue 
to be managed in accordance with forecasts. 

Page 61



 

Capital Programme 2021/22 to 2025/26 
Members were informed that the Council had set out its 
capital programme for the period 2021/22 to 2025/26 
based on the principles of the Capital Strategy. The 
Capital Programme and Capital Strategy 
had been influenced by the level of resources considered 
available. The level of prudential borrowing included 
reflected the financing available in the revenue budget, 
capital receipts aligned with forecasts and grant funding 
and other contributions were based on already notified 
allocations or best estimates at time of preparation. If 
additional 
resources became available, projects that met the 
Council’s strategic capital objectives would be brought 
forward for approval. 
Due to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on a 
number of schemes, over the summer months the capital 
programme for 2020/21 was significantly re-phased. On 
24 August 2020, Cabinet approved a revised vision and 
strategic framework for ‘Creating a Better Place’ which 
had associated with it a significant level of investment. 
The revised vision placed more emphasis on economic 
recovery and accelerating the potential for generating 
revenue budget savings. The report was the culmination 
of a fundamental review of the programme which 
commenced in April 2020 close to the start of the 
pandemic. Following the review and in anticipation of the 
PWLB consultation outcome the Creating a Better Place 
Strategy was reduced by approximately £90.000m. 
As at the month 8 capital monitoring position, the 
anticipated expenditure over the five year life of the 
2020/21 to 2024/25 strategy was £404.630m, taking 
2020/21 aside (£81.013m) left £323.617m for the 
remainder of the approved 2021/22 to 2024/25 capital 
programme. Following the refresh of existing strategies 
including Creating a 
Better Place, and moving forward the planning period by 
one year, the Capital Strategy for 2021/22 to 2025/26 
totalled £341.580m.  
The capital programme included proposed expenditure 
for 2021/22 of £86.002m, with the largest area of 
expenditure being on regeneration, schools, transport 
and infrastructure projects within People and Place 
Directorate. Total expenditure increased to £94.153m in 
2022/23, then decreased to £71.418m, £62.553m and 
£27.454m in 2023/24, 2024/25 
and 2025/26 respectively. 
pandemic. Following the review and in anticipation of the 
PWLB consultation outcome 
the Creating a Better Place Strategy was reduced by 
approximately £90.000m. 
As at the month 8 capital monitoring position, the 
anticipated expenditure over the five 
year life of the 2020/21 to 2024/25 strategy was 
£404.630m, taking 2020/21 aside 

Page 62



 

(£81.013m) leaves £323.617m for the remainder of the 
approved 2021/22 to 2024/25 
capital programme. Following the refresh of existing 
strategies including Creating a 
Better Place, and moving forward the planning period by 
one year, the Capital Strategy 
for 2021/22 to 2025/26 totals £341.580m. 
The capital programme includes proposed expenditure 
for 2021/22 of £86.002m, with the 
largest area of expenditure being on regeneration, 
schools, transport and infrastructure 
projects within People and Place Directorate. Total 
expenditure increases to £94.153m 
in 2022/23, then decreases to £71.418m, £62.553m and 
£27.454m in 2023/24, 2024/25 
and 2025/26 respectively. 
Resources Available to Support the Capital Programme 
Members noted that the Government was continuing to 
provide significant levels of grant funding. The main 
sources of grant income were the Highway Maintenance 
Grant at £10.980m, along with 
Education-related Basic Need Capital grant provision of 
£10.677m over the life of the programme. There were 
also considerable resources allocated to the Council via 
the GMCA including the Mayors Cycling and Walking 
Challenge Fund (£11.273m in 2021/22). 
The grant funding provided by Government could be split 
into two categories: un-ringfenced and ringfenced 
resources, as explained in Section 10 of the Capital 
Strategy. The majority of capital Government Grant 
funding was un-ringfenced. Resources classified as 
ringfenced 
had to be utilised to finance particular categories of 
expenditure and therefore were restricted in their use. 
The 2021/22 capital programme relied on £11.459m of 
unringfenced and £24.210m of ringfenced grants. 
As in previous years, a major source of financing 
remained prudential borrowing. The amount required in 
2021/22 (£42.871m) included borrowing attributed to 
schemes that had slipped from prior years as well as new 
borrowing associated with the regeneration programme. 
The timing of the borrowing was linked to the cash 
position of the Council and might therefore not mirror the 
spending/financing profile set out in the report. 
On-going Review of the Capital Programme 
There would be a continued review of capital spending 
requirements as the Council had further regeneration 
ambitions, but affordability and deliverability would be a 
key consideration in this regard. It was, however, possible 
that the capital position may change prior to the start of 
2021/22 and during the year as: 

 There might be further Government funding 
allocations announced prior to the start of 2021/22 
including those related to the Towns Fund. 

Page 63



 

 The outcome of specific grant bids which would be 
announced during 2021/22. 

 It was also likely that there would be new initiatives 
announced later in the financial year. 

 There might also be the opportunity to bid for 
additional funding. 

 The Council may identify other funding sources, 
including capital receipts, to finance additional 
capital expenditure. 

Therefore, the overall capital programme position would 
be kept under review and any new information regarding 
funding allocations would be presented to Members in 
future reports. 
Consultation 
There had been consultation with the Members of the 
Capital Investment Programme Board on the proposed 
Capital Strategy and Capital Programme for 2021/22 to 
2025/26. The consideration of the proposed Capital 
Strategy and Capital Programme for 2021/22 to 2025/26 
by the Overview and Scrutiny Performance and Value for 
Money Select Committee on 28 January 2021 was a key 
element of the consultation process. The Select 
Committee was content to commend the report to 
Cabinet. The Cabinet considered the report at its meeting 
on 23 February 2021 and was content to commend the 
report to Council. 
 
No members spoke on this item. 
 

RESOLVED that: 
1. The Capital Strategy for 2021/22 to 2025/26 as detailed 

at Appendix 1 of this report and summarised at Section 
2.1 of the report be approved. 

2. The Capital Programme for 2021/22 and indicative 
programmes for 2022/23 to 2025/26 at Annex C of 
Appendix 1 to the report and summarised at Sections 2.2 
to 2.6 of the report be approved. 

3. The Flexible Use of Capital Receipts Strategy as 
presented at Annex D of Appendix 1 to the report be 
approved. 

 
f) Revenue Budget 2021/22 and Medium Term Financial 

Strategy 2021/22 to 2023/24 
Councillor Fielding MOVED and Councillor Jabbar 
SECONDED a report of the Director of Finance which 
provided Council with the forecast budget reduction 
requirement and the Administration’s 
budget proposals for 2021/22 together with forecast 
budget reduction requirement estimates for the period 
2022/23 to 2023/24 having regard to the Provisional 
Local Government Finance Settlement published on 17 
December 2020 and associated announcements and the 
subsequent Final Local Government Settlement approved 
on 10 February 2021 and the February 2021: COVID-19 

Page 64



 

Funding for Local Government in 2021 to 2022 Policy 
Paper. 
This report set out proposals for the Council’s Revenue 
Budget for 2021/22 and Medium Term Financial Strategy 
for 2021/22 to 2023/24. The report advised Members of 
the key financial challenges and issues which would be 
faced by the Council over the forecast period and set out 
the Administration’s revenue budget proposals for 
2021/22 together with updated budget reduction 
requirement estimates for the period 2022/23 to 2023/24. 
The report presented the purpose and scope of the 
Medium Term Financial Strategy and how it had a vital 
role to play in enabling the translation of the Council’s 
ambition and priorities into action. 
It also advised of the national policy landscape and 
economic context in which the Council was setting its 
revenue budget for 2021/22 and Medium Term Financial 
Strategy to 2023/24. 
Section 4 highlighted the local strategies and policies 
relevant to the Medium Term Financial Strategy including 
the Oldham Plan and Corporate Plan, Financial Policies 
and Strategies as well as other major strategies which 
had an influence on the allocation of Council 
resources. Developments in Local Government Finance 
were included at Section 5 incorporating the Financial 
Management Code, the review of Relative Needs and 
Resources, Business Rates Reform and Revaluation 
together with a commentary on the Council’s financial 
resilience. 
The report also highlighted policy announcements and 
implications arising from the Government’s 2020 
Spending Round published on 25 November 2020; 
Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement 
(LGFS) published on 17 December 2020 together with 
the complementary COVID Funding for Local 
Government in 2021/22 Consultative Policy Paper; Final 
Local Government Finance Settlement approved on 10 
February 2021; and February 2021: COVID-19 Funding 
for Local Government in 2021 to 2022 Policy Paper. 
Key items of funding confirmed in the 2021/22 LGFS 
were: 

 Continuation of the expected Improved Better Care 
Fund Grant at a value of £10.859m; 

 An increase to the Social Care Support Grant of 
£1.993m taking the total allocated to £8.947m. The 
£1.993m had been used to support the budget by 
offsetting assumed pressures in the children’s and 
adults social care budgets; 

 A new 2021/22 allocation for Lower Tier Services 
Support Grant (£0.407m). This new grant had 
been used to support the 2021/22 budget; 

 The switching of unringfenced homelessness grant 
funding of £0.358m to a new ringfenced grant, the 
Homelessness Prevention Grant of £0.532m; and 

Page 65



 

 A small increase to the Business Rates Top Up 
grant of £0.207m, however this was offset by a 
reduction of Grants in Lieu of Business Rates of 
£1.294m (as informed by completion of business 
rates information for Central Government). 

Key items confirmed in the COVID-19 Funding for Local 
Government in 2021 to 22 Policy Paper were: 

  A Local Tax Income Guarantee grant for 2020/21. 
A sum of £1.000m was anticipated and would be 
incorporated into the accounts for 2020/21. This 
would then be taken forward as a reserve to 
support the budget for 2021/22; 

 The notification of a new Local Council Tax 
Support Grant at a sum of £3.183m. This had been 
used in full to support the 2021/22 budget; 

 The allocation of unringfenced COVID grant of 
£7.737m. This had been used to finance COVID 
related pressures that had been anticipated of 
£3.741m. The balance offsets anticipated further 
pressures; and 

 The continuation of Sales, Fees and Charges 
grant compensation for the first quarter of 2021/22. 
The availability of this potential funding stream was 
part of the budget strategy to address COVID. 

The LGFS confirmed referendum limits for a general 
purpose Council Tax increase and the Government would 
permit rises of up to 2% per annum for 2021/22 without 
the need to hold a referendum. 
The Government also confirmed the continued ability to 
charge an Adult Social Care Precept allowing a combined 
increase of up to 3% in Council Tax across 2021/22 and 
2022/23 (ringfenced for use for Adult Social Care). 
The Council Tax referendum limits for 2021/22 applicable 
to the Council therefore allowed an overall increase of 
4.99% without requiring a referendum. 
Members were reminded that the Council Tax policy 
approved within the 2020/21 budget was that for 2021/22, 
the Council would revert to its previous position. The 
Council would therefore increase Council Tax by 2% for 
the Adult Social Care Precept (ASCP) and 1.99% for 
general 
purposes; an overall increase of 3.99%. The referendum 
limits for 2021/22 as advised above would permit this 
approach. However, mindful of the financial position of 
the Authority but also the impact of a further increase in 
Council Tax on the citizens of Oldham, a revision to 
Council Tax policy was therefore proposed. Whilst the 2% 
increase in relation to the ASCP would continue, Council 
Tax for general purposes would increase by 0.99% rather 
than 1.99%. In overall terms the Oldham Council Tax 
would increase by 2.99%. The Council proposed to use 
the flexibility allowed to defer a further 1% in the ASCP to 
2022/23.  
The Government proposed not to set Council Tax 
referendum principles for Mayoral Combined Authorities 

Page 66



 

in 2021/22 but had set referendum principles for Police 
and Crime Commissioners (including the GM Mayor) 
capped at a value of £15. The Mayoral General 
precept (including Fire Services) had been kept at 
2020/21 levels – with a Band D Council Tax Charge of 
£90.95. The Mayoral Police and Crime Commissioner 
Precept had increased by £10, giving a Band D Council 
Tax change of £218.30. 
The report also advised of the proposal to leave the 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme for 2021/22 unchanged 
from 2020/21. However, during 2020/21, working age 
Council Tax reduction recipients had benefitted from 
support of £150 from a Government Hardship fund. This 
scheme was not continuing in 2021/22 and it was 
recommended that the Council reviewed its financial 
position during 2021/22 to determine if it was able to 
provide any additional hardship relief. 
Members were informed that the starting point for 
preparing the 2021/22 revenue budget estimates was the 
Month 8 2020/21 revenue budget forecast outturn 
position and summarised in Section 8. It highlighted a 
current adverse projected variance for 2020/21 of 
£8.330m (including COVID pressures). A reduction in this 
overspend position was anticipated as a result of further 
funding being provided by Central Government and 
contributions from partners alongside management 
actions. However, it was important to note that if there 
was any remaining overspending at the end of 2020/21 
then it would need to be funded by the use of reserves. 
Section 9 of the report detailed key budget adjustments 
and expenditure pressures underpinning the forecasts 
that provided the backdrop for the Council’s Medium 
Term Financial Strategy including the mid-year 
adjustment to estimates from a budget reduction 
requirement of £23.251m to £29.940m (rounded to 
£30.000m). The major elements of this adjustment were 
addressing budget reduction proposals for 2020/21 
(some approved in the budget for 2019/20) that could be 
achieved (£2.089m), reduced treasury management 
income of £6.600m and an assumption that Flexible Use 
of Capital receipts at a value of £2.000m would support 
the budget. 
Since the mid-year budget review, there had been further 
changes to the estimates. Key expenditure adjustments 
following the mid-year review included: 

 £0.441m for additional treasury management and 
education services pressures. 

 £7.737m for pressures arising from COVID fully 
financed by Government grant. 

 A net reduction of pressures of £2.159m due to: 
o a revision of estimates for the cost of 

financing capital expenditure (Investment 
Fund) at a reduction of £1.650m. 

o reducing the estimate for pay inflation 
(£1.017m). 

Page 67



 

o releasing unallocated Development Fund 
resources of £0.825m but in effect using it to 
finance pressures relating to a contract with a 
third party supplier (£0.500m) and costs no 
longer chargeable to the Dedicated Schools 
Grant (£0.265m). 

o the release of £0.050m of resources that 
were previously allocated to support 
additional Coroners Service pressures 
identified through the 2020/21 Revenue 
Monitoring Process. 

o the inclusion of expenditure linked to a new 
duty placed upon the Council (subject to 
Parliamentary approval) in relation to 
domestic abuse safe accommodation 
provision (£0.578m) 

o provisional funding linked to housing benefit 
administration costs (£0.040m) 

 £0.166m reduction in spending relating to a 
revision to assumed passported Adult Social Care 
precept and Parish Precepts. 

 A net reduction in levies of £0.393m. 
 

In relation to income, the report highlighted: 

 A reduction in Central Government Business 
Rates Top Up Grant and Grants in Lieu of 
Business Rates at a combined value of £1.087m. 

 £13.820m of increased Unringfenced Grant 
Funding, primarily £7.737m of COVID Grant, 
£3.183m Local Council Tax Support Grant and an 
increase of £1.993m for the Social Care Support 
Grant. 

 A reduction in Locally Generated Retained 
Business Rates income of £0.364m. 

 A reduction in the Council Tax Tax base (due to 
the impact of the increase in claimants of Council 
Tax Reduction resulting in a total reduction in 
Council Tax income of £2.597m from that 
expected of which £0.175m relates to ASCP that 
could not be passported to the service. 

Section 9 also advised of a Collection Fund deficit that 
must be charged to the General Fund of £25.809m. Of 
this sum £0.353m related to an adjusted 2020/21 balance 
using flexibilities allowed by Central Government. The 
balance was a technical adjustment required to the 
budget as a result of the Collection Fund deficit caused 
by the Government introducing Business Rate reliefs for 
retail, leisure, hospitality and nursery businesses after the 
2020/21 budget had been set. The estimated sum (the 
final figures would only be confirmed at the end of the 
financial year) was £25.456m. Government was paying 
the Council grant compensation for this loss of Business 
Rates income through 2020/21 and this would be carried 
forward as a reserve. This would then offset the 
Collection Fund deficit but had a significant impact on the 

Page 68



 

overall use of reserves. Based on the latest estimates, 
the budget reduction requirement for 2021/22 had 
decreased from the previously reported figure of 
£29.940m to £27.623m, increasing to £53.079m after the 
technical adjustment. 
Section 10 of the report detailed the Administration’s 
budget reduction proposals. There were a total of 43 
proposals expected to deliver savings of £8.920m in 
2021/22 (of which one is a use of reserves), leaving 
recurrent budget reductions of £8.793m. In 2021/22, if 
approved in full, these recurrent proposals would further 
reduce the budget reduction requirement to £44.286m for 
2021/22. 
Sections 11 and 12 explained the approach to balancing 
the 2021/22 budget. Importantly, the budget strategy of 
using £29.000m of reserves to support the budget over a 
two year period (2021/22 and 2022/23) was outlined 
together with the use of the opportunities provided by the 
ability to use Capital Receipts to support spending on 
transformational projects up to a value of £2.000m in 
2021/22. 
A number of specific and corporate reserves would be 
used to address the balance as follows: 

 £25.456m of Section 31 grant received in 2020/21 
held to support the Collection Fund Deficit in 
2021/22 as a result of Business Rates relief for 
retail, leisure, nursery and hospitality businesses 
(a technical adjustment); 

 £0.127m as a result of budget reduction proposal 
REF-BR1-432; 

 £1.000m of 2020/21 Earmarked Reserves created 
as a result of the Local Tax Income Guarantee 
grant; and 

 £15.703m of other reserves brought forward from 
2019/20. 

Members were informed that there was also a reserve 
held at a value of £12.297m to support the 2022/23 
budget if required. 
Approval of the proposals set out in the report in full by 
Budget Council would deliver a balanced revenue budget 
for 2021/22. 
Other key sections in the report summarised the 
approach to managing the financial challenges of COVID 
in 2021/22, the forecast reserves and balances position 
supporting the Council’s financial resilience, set out the 
Administration’s proposals in relation to Fees and 
Charges and  detailed the Council’s Pay Policy Statement 
(as required by sections 38 to 43 of the Localism Act 
2011). The final section of the report set out the Council’s 
MTFS covering the period 2021/22 to 2023/24, a shorter 
timeframe than was usual practice given the uncertainties 
created by 
COVID and the lack of clear direction Government 
funding intentions for future years. 

Page 69



 

Members were asked to note that, as the Government 
had only provided grant funding notifications for 2021/22, 
the MTFS estimates for 2022/23 to 2023/24 were based 
on a series of assumptions and therefore must be 
considered indicative at this stage. This had generated 
significant uncertainty and hindered effective planning by 
the Council both financially and operationally as future 
Government funding intentions were difficult to assess. 
This position, together with the transformational and 
organisational plans for change that the Council will 
implement to address the financial challenge, were 
outlined in Section 17 of the report. After having 
addressed the £27.623m (adjusted for the technical 
Business Rates issue), the budget reduction requirement 
for subsequent years was forecast to be £31.900 m for 
2022/23 and £21.849m for 2023/24. 
The MTFS highlighted the plan to deliver significant 
savings from 2022/23 onwards. Whilst it was anticipated 
that the Council would continue to rely on the use of 
reserves to support the revenue budget in 2022/23 at a 
value of £12.297m, additional budget reductions were 
expected to be achieved as part of the Council’s 
transformation programme. Indeed, the 2021/22 budget 
reductions had implications for future financial years, with 
savings of £6.050m (2022/23) and £4.756m (2023/24) 
already assumed. 
After having allowed for the use of reserves and already 
assumed budget reductions, the targets to be addressed 
were £13.553m for 2022/23 and £17.093m for 2023/24. 
The Council’s approach to balancing its budget was the 
transformation programme which would deliver savings 
over four programme areas: 

 Place Based Working/Communities 

 Children’s Services 

 Health and Care 

 Economy 
In addition, there were a range of Cross Cutting initiatives 
that had been identified that would complement the 
transformational programmes and support the 
achievement of the significant financial challenge. 
Indicative targets had been assigned although there has 
to be some flexibility given the uncertainty that 
underpinned financial planning for the future years. 
Given the importance of delivering budget reductions and 
embedding the programme of transformational change, 
during 2021/22, there would be a regular review of the 
progress of existing change programmes against the 
delivery milestones and financial targets. It would also 
ensure that there was continuous emphasis on the 
delivery of change and the achievement of the budget 
reductions required in line with the three year strategy. 
The Revenue Budget 2021/22 and Medium Term 
Financial Strategy 2021/22 to 2023/24 was presented to 
the Overview and Scrutiny Performance and Value for 

Page 70



 

Money (PVFM) Select Committee for consultation and 
scrutiny on 28 January 2021. The Select Committee 
scrutinised the budget report and the other reports on the 
agenda that form a core part of the Council’s strategic 
financial planning framework. The Select Committee was 
content to commend the report to Cabinet without 
additional comment. 
A further meeting of the Select Committee took place on 
9 February 2021 to consider the budget amendments put 
forward by the main Opposition Party. No 
recommendations were supported and therefore none 
were presented for Cabinet to consider. However, 
acknowledging a previous request for work to be 
undertaken on reward and recognition packages for staff 
(including car allowances), this had been included within 
the transformation programme for 2021/22. 
Cabinet considered the Revenue Budget 2021/22 and 
Medium Term Financial Strategy 2021/22 to 2023/24 at 
its meeting on 23 February 2021 and was content to 
commend the report to Council. 
 

Members who spoke on the item: 
 
g) AMENDMENT 
 

Councillor C. Gloster MOVED and Councillor Sykes 
SECONDED the amendment to the budget as circulated 
and detailed in the Council Summons.  Councillor C. 
Gloster expressed his thanks to staff who had assisted in 
the preparation of the report. 

 
Councillors Murphy, Williamson, Harkness, Al-Hamdani, 
Hamblett and H. Gloster spoke in support of the 
Amendment. 

 
Councillors Akhtar, Leach, Jabbar, Ahmad, Shuttleworth, 
Chauhan, Ball, Hulme and Mushtaq spoke against the 
Amendment. 

 
Councillor Curley spoke on the Amendment. 

 
Councillor Fielding exercised his right of reply. 

 
Councillor C. Gloster exercised his right of reply. 

 
A recorded vote, in line with the Regulations was then 
taken on the AMENDMENT as follows: 

 

Councillor  Councillor  

Ahmad AGAINST Hulme AGAINST 

Akhtar AGAINST Hussain, A. AGAINST 

Al-Hamdani FOR Hussain, F. AGAINST 

Ali AGAINST Ibrahim AGAINST 

Alyas AGAINST Iqbal AGAINST 

Ball AGAINST Jabbar AGAINST 

Page 71



 

Bashforth, M. AGAINST Jacques AGAINST 

Bashforth, S. AGAINST Leach AGAINST 

Briggs AGAINST Malik AGAINST 

Brownridge AGAINST McLaren AGAINST 

Byrne ABSTAIN Moores AGAINST 

Chadderton AGAINST Murphy FOR 

Chauhan AGAINST Mushtaq AGAINST 

Cosgrove AGAINST Phythian AGAINST 

Curley ABSTAIN Price AGAINST 

Davis AGAINST Roberts AGAINST 

Dean AGAINST Salamat ABSENT 

Fielding AGAINST Shah AGAINST 

Garry AGAINST Sheldon ABSTAIN 

Gloster, C. FOR Shuttleworth AGAINST 

Gloster, H. FOR Stretton AGAINST 

Goodwin AGAINST Surjan AGAINST 

Hamblett FOR Sykes FOR 

Haque ABSENT Taylor AGAINST 

Harkness FOR Toor AGAINST 

Harrison AGAINST Ur-Rehman AGAINST 

Hewitt AGAINST Williams AGAINST 

Hobin AGAINST Williamson FOR 

Hudson ABSENT Alexander ABSENT 

 
On a recorded VOTE being taken, 8 VOTES were cast in 
FAVOUR of the AMENDMENT with 43 VOTES cast 
AGAINST and 3 ABSTENTIONS.  The AMENDMENT 
was therefore LOST. 

 
The following Councillors then spoke on the ORIGINAL 

MOTION: 
 

Councillors Shah, Roberts, Mushtaq, Ur-Rehman, 
Chauhan, Ahmad and S Bashforth spoke in support of 
the Original Motion. 

 
Councillors C Gloster, Al-Hamdani, Sykes, H Gloster, 
Williamson and Hamblett spoke against the Original 
Motion. 

 
Councillor Byrne spoke on the Original Motion. 

 
Councillor Fielding exercised his right of reply. 

 
A recorded VOTE, in line with regulations was then taken 
on the ORIGINAL MOTION as follows: 

 

Councillor  Councillor  

Ahmad FOR Hulme FOR 

Akhtar FOR Hussain, A. FOR 

Al-Hamdani AGAINST Hussain, F. FOR 

Ali FOR Ibrahim FOR 

Alyas FOR Iqbal FOR 

Ball FOR Jabbar FOR 

Page 72



 

Bashforth, M. FOR Jacques FOR 

Bashforth, S. FOR Leach FOR 

Briggs FOR Malik FOR 

Brownridge FOR McLaren FOR 

Byrne ABSTAIN Moores FOR 

Chadderton FOR Murphy AGAINST 

Chauhan FOR Mushtaq FOR 

Cosgrove FOR Phythian FOR 

Curley ABSTAIN Price FOR 

Davis FOR Roberts FOR 

Dean FOR Salamat ABSENT 

Fielding FOR Shah FOR 

Garry FOR Sheldon ABSENT 

Gloster, C. AGAINST Shuttleworth FOR 

Gloster, H. AGAINST Stretton FOR 

Goodwin FOR Surjan FOR 

Hamblett AGAINST Sykes AGAINST 

Haque ABSENT Taylor FOR 

Harkness AGAINST Toor FOR 

Harrison FOR Ur-Rehman FOR 

Hewitt FOR Williams FOR 

Hobin AGAINST Williamson AGAINST 

Hudson ABSENT Alexander ABSENT 

 
On a recorded VOTE being taken, 42 VOTES were cast 
in FAVOUR of the ORIGINAL MOTION with 9 cast 
against and 2 ABSTENTIONS.  The ORIGINAL MOTION 
was therefore CARRIED. 

 
RESOLVED that: 
1. The policy landscape and economic context in which the 

Council was setting its revenue budget for 2021/22 and 
Medium Term Financial Strategy to 2023/24 be approved; 

2. The impact of Oldham Council Policies and Strategies on 
the Council’s budget setting process and the 
development of its Medium Term Financial Strategy be 
approved ; 

3. The financial forecasts for 2021/22 to 2023/24 having 
regard to the Final Local Government Finance Settlement 
and the February 2021: COVID-19 Funding for Local 
Government in 2021 to 2022 Policy Paper and associated 
funding announcements be approved; 

4. The key issues to be addressed in continuing to respond 
to the financial challenges facing the Council be approved 
; 

5. The proposal that the Council would review its financial 
position during 2021/22 to determine if it was able to 
provide additional Council Tax hardship relief be 
approved ; 

6. The reaffirmation of the Council’s commitment to the 
modified Housing Benefits scheme, a discretionary local 
scheme which allowed the Council to disregard the value 
of any War Disablement Pension or War Widows Pension 
over and above statutory disregard limits be approved; 

Page 73



 

7. The release of two voluntary redundancy applicants 
previously affected by the £95k Exit Payment Cap whose 
exit costs exceeded the £100k threshold for Council 
approval now the Government had revoked the 
provisions of the legislation as detailed at paragraph 10.6 
be approved; 

8. The recurrent 2021/22 Budget Reduction Proposals at a 
value of £8.793m be approved; 

9. Flexible Use of Capital Receipts at a value of £2.000m be 
approved; 
10. The proposed use of £42.286m of reserves to balance 

the 2021/22 budget including £0.127m for a one off 
budget reduction be approved; 

11. The proposed use of £12.297m of reserves to support the 
2022/23 budget be approved; 

12. The approach to managing the budget during the COVID 
pandemic and the continuation of budget management 
measures introduced in 2020/21 as outlined in 
Paragraphs 12.6 to 12.11 be approved; 

13. The proposed fees and charges schedule included at 
Appendix 7 be approved; 

14. The draft pay policy statement included at Appendix 12 
be approved; 
15. A proposed 2021/22 Council Tax increase of 0.99% for 

Oldham Council general purposes be approved; 
16. A proposed 2.00% increase for the Adult Social Care 

Precept for 2021/22 and a further 1.00% increase for 
2022/23 be approved; 

17. The specific 2021/22 charges set out at paragraph 15.3 
and Table 29 of the report and in detail at Appendix 8 be 
approved; 

18. The proposal to draw on the Collection Fund for major 
preceptors of £116.241m for Borough Wide services and 
£98.552m for Council services be approved; 

19. The proposed net revenue expenditure budget for 
2021/22 for the Council set at £254.179m be approved; 
and 

20. Revised estimated budget reduction targets of £31.900m 
for 2022/23 and £21.849m for 2023/24 before any use of 
reserves and indicative budget proposals be approved. 
 

c) Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2021/22 
 

Councillor Jabbar MOVED and Councillor Fielding 
SECONDED a report of the Director of Finance which 
presented the strategy for 2021/22 Treasury 
Management activities including the Minimum Revenue 
Provision Policy Statement, the Annual Investment 
Strategy and Prudential Indicators together with linkages 
to the Capital Strategy. 
The report outlined the Treasury Management Strategy 
for 2021/22 including the Minimum Revenue Provision 
Policy Statement, Annual Investment Strategy and 
Prudential Indicators together with linkages to the Capital 
Strategy. 

Page 74



 

The Council was required through regulations supporting 
the Local Government Act 2003 to ‘have regard to’ the 
Prudential Code and to set Prudential Indicators for the 
next three years to ensure that the Council’s capital 
investment plans were affordable, prudent and 
sustainable. It was also required to produce an annual 
Treasury Strategy for borrowing and to prepare an 
Annual Investment Strategy setting out the Council’s 
policies for managing its investments and for giving 
priority to security and liquidity of those investments. 
The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of Practice on Treasury 
Management 2017 (the Code) also required the receipt 
by full Council of a Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement. 
The Strategy for 2021/22 covered two main areas. 

Capital Issues 

 The Capital expenditure plans and the 
associated Prudential Indicators 

 The Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) 
Policy Statement 

Treasury Management Issues: 

 The Current Treasury Position Treasury 
Indicators which limited the treasury risk 
and activities of the Council 

 Prospects for Interest Rates 

 The Borrowing Strategy 

 The Policy on Borrowing in Advance of 
Need 

 Debt Rescheduling 

 The Investment Strategy 

 The Creditworthiness Policy 

 The Policy regarding the use of external 
service providers. 

The report outlined the implications and key factors in 
relation to each of the above Capital and Treasury 
Management issues and made recommendations with 
regard to the Treasury Management Strategy for 
2021/22. 
The report included an economic background 
commentary which had been updated to reflect the latest 
position, especially in relation to the UK leaving the EU 
on 31 December 2020. 
The Audit Committee, the body charged with the detailed 
scrutiny of Treasury Management activities considered 
the proposed 2021/22 Treasury Management Strategy 
report at its meeting on 21 January 2021. It was also 
presented to the Overview and Scrutiny Performance and 
Value for Money Select Committee on 28 January 2021. 
Both the Audit Committee and the Select Committee 
were content to commend the report to Cabinet. The 
report was considered at the Cabinet meeting on 23 
February 2021. Cabinet was content to commend the 
report to Council. 
 

Page 75



 

No members spoke on this item. 
 
RESOLVED that: 
1. Capital Expenditure Estimates as per paragraph 2.1.2 be 
approved; 
2. MRP policy and method of calculation as per Appendix 1 
be approved ; 
3. Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) Projections as per 

paragraph 2.2.4 be approved; 
4. Projected treasury position as at 31 March 2021 as per 

paragraph 2.3.3 be approved; 
5. Treasury Limits as per section 2.4 be approved; 
6. Borrowing Strategy for 2021/22 as per section 2.6 be 
approved; 
7. Annual Investment Strategy as per section 2.10 including 

risk management and the creditworthiness policy at 
section 2.11 be approved; and 

8. Level of investment in specified and non-specified 
investments detailed at Appendix 5 be approved. 

 
Resolutions 1 and 2 related to the Council Tax Base for the 
Financial Year 2021/2022 as approved by the Cabinet on 23rd 
February 2021 and the Council Tax Requirement for the 
Council’s own purposes for 2021/2022 
 
No members who spoke on this item. 
 
A recorded vote, in line with the Regulations, was then taken on 
the Resolutions as follows: 
 

Councillor  Councillor  

Ahmad FOR Hulme FOR 

Akhtar FOR Hussain, A. FOR 

Al-Hamdani FOR Hussain, F. FOR 

Ali FOR Ibrahim FOR 

Alyas FOR Iqbal FOR 

Ball FOR Jabbar FOR 

Bashforth, M. FOR Jacques FOR 

Bashforth, S. FOR Leach FOR 

Briggs FOR Malik FOR 

Brownridge FOR McLaren FOR 

Byrne FOR Moores FOR 

Chadderton FOR Murphy FOR 

Chauhan FOR Mushtaq FOR 

Cosgrove FOR Phythian FOR 

Curley ABSTAIN Price FOR 

Davis FOR Roberts FOR 

Dean FOR Salamat ABSENT 

Fielding FOR Shah FOR 

Garry FOR Sheldon ABSENT 

Gloster, C. FOR Shuttleworth FOR 

Gloster, H. FOR Stretton FOR 

Goodwin FOR Surjan FOR 

Hamblett FOR Sykes FOR 

Haque ABSENT Taylor FOR 

Page 76



 

Harkness FOR Toor FOR 

Harrison FOR Ur-Rehman FOR 

Hewitt FOR Williams FOR 

Hobin ABSENT Williamson FOR 

Hudson ABSENT Alexander ABSENT 

 
On a recorded VOTE being taken, 51 VOTES were cast in 
FAVOUR of the ORIGINAL MOTION with 0 cast against and 1 
ABSTENTION.   
 
Resolution 3 related to the amounts calculated by the Council 
for the year 2021/2022 in accordance with Sections 31A to 36 of 
the Local Government Finance Act 1992 
 
No members who spoke on the item. 
 
A recorded vote, in line with the Regulations, was then taken on 
the RESOLUTION as follows: 
 

Councillor  Councillor  

Ahmad FOR Hulme FOR 

Akhtar FOR Hussain, A. FOR 

Al-Hamdani FOR Hussain, F. FOR 

Ali FOR Ibrahim FOR 

Alyas FOR Iqbal FOR 

Ball FOR Jabbar FOR 

Bashforth, M. FOR Jacques FOR 

Bashforth, S. FOR Leach FOR 

Briggs FOR Malik FOR 

Brownridge FOR McLaren FOR 

Byrne FOR Moores FOR 

Chadderton FOR Murphy FOR 

Chauhan FOR Mushtaq FOR 

Cosgrove FOR Phythian FOR 

Curley FOR Price FOR 

Davis FOR Roberts FOR 

Dean FOR Salamat ABSENT 

Fielding FOR Shah FOR 

Garry FOR Sheldon ABSENT 

Gloster, C. FOR Shuttleworth FOR 

Gloster, H. FOR Stretton FOR 

Goodwin FOR Surjan FOR 

Hamblett FOR Sykes FOR 

Haque ABSENT Taylor FOR 

Harkness FOR Toor FOR 

Harrison FOR Ur-Rehman FOR 

Hewitt FOR Williams FOR 

Hobin ABSENT Williamson FOR 

Hudson ABSENT Alexander ABSENT 

 
On a recorded VOTE being taken, the RESOLUTION was 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 

Page 77



 

RESOLVED that the following amounts be calculated by the 
Council for the year 2021/22 in accordance with the Sections 
31A to 36 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 be 
approved as follows: 
 

a) £607,320,700 Being the aggregate of the amounts which 
the Council estimates for the items set out 
in Section 31A(2) of the Act taking into 
account any Precepts for the Saddleworth 
and Shaw & Crompton Parish areas 
 

b) £508,468,848 Being the aggregate for the amounts which 
the Council estimates for the items set out 
in Section 31A(3) of the Act. 
 

c) £98,851,852 Being the amount by which the aggregate 
at 3(a) above exceeds the aggregate at 
3(b) above, calculated by the Council, in 
accordance with Section 31A(4) of the Act, 
as its Council Tax Requirement for the 
year (Item R in the formula in Section 31B 
of the Act) 
 

d) £1,728.18 Being the amount at 3(c) above, all divided 
by Item T(1(a) above), calculated by the 
Council, in accordance with Section 31B of 
the Act, as the basic amount of its Council 
tax for the year (including Parish precepts). 
 

e) £299,684 Being the aggregate amount of all special 
items referred to in Section 34(1) of the 
Act, being the Saddleworth and Shaw & 
Crompton Parish precepts. 
 

f) £1,722.94 Being the amount at 3(d) above less the 
result given by dividing the amount at 3(e) 
above by the amount by Item T(1(a) 
above), calculated by the Council, in 
accordance with Section 34(2) of the Act, 
as the basic amount of its council tax for 
the year for dwellings on those parts of its 
area to which no special item related. 
 

g) £1,746.45 Saddleworth Parish Area 
Being the amounts given by adding to the 
amount at 3(f) above the amounts of the 
special item or items related to dwellings in 
those parts of the Council’s area 
mentioned at 3(e) above divided by the 
amount at 1(b) above, calculated by the 
Council, in accordance with Section 34(3) 
of the Act, as the basic amounts of its 
council tax for the year for dwellings in 
those parts of its area to which one or 
more special items related. 

Page 78



 

h) £1,740.31 Being the amounts given by adding to the 
amount at 3(f) above the amounts of the 
special item or items related to dwellings in 
those parts of the Council’s area 
mentioned at 3(e) above divided by the 
amount at 1(c) above, calculated by the 
Council, in accordance with Section 34(3) 
of the Act, as the basic amounts of its 
council tax for the year for dwellings in 
those parts of its area to which one or 
more special items related. 

 
 

Resolution 4 – Relating to the Mayoral Police and Crime 
Commissioner Precept and the Mayor General Precept 
(including Fire Services) 
 
No members who spoke on this item. 
 
On being put to the VOTE, the RESOLUTION was CARRIED 
UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
RESOLVED that for the year 2021/22 the Mayoral Police and 
Crime Commissioner Precept and the Mayoral General Precept 
(including Fire Services) for Greater Manchester had been 
issued to the Council in accordance with Section 40 of the Local 
Government Finance Act 1992, for each category of dwellings in 
the Council’s area as indicated in the table below be noted. 
 
NOTE: Councillors Garry, C. Gloster and H. Gloster declared a 
pecuniary interest in this item and did not take part in the 
discussion or vote thereon. 
 
Resolution 5 – Relating to the Setting of the Council Tax for 
2021/2022 
 
No members who spoke on this item. 
 
A recorded vote, in line with the Regulations, was then taken on 
the RESOLUTION as follows: 
 

Councillor  Councillor  

Ahmad FOR Hulme FOR 

Akhtar FOR Hussain, A. FOR 

Al-Hamdani FOR Hussain, F. FOR 

Ali FOR Ibrahim FOR 

Alyas FOR Iqbal FOR 

Ball FOR Jabbar FOR 

Bashforth, M. FOR Jacques FOR 

Bashforth, S. FOR Leach FOR 

Briggs FOR Malik FOR 

Brownridge FOR McLaren FOR 

Byrne FOR Moores FOR 

Chadderton FOR Murphy FOR 

Chauhan FOR Mushtaq FOR 

Page 79



 

Cosgrove FOR Phythian FOR 

Curley FOR Price FOR 

Davis FOR Roberts FOR 

Dean FOR Salamat ABSENT 

Fielding FOR Shah FOR 

Garry FOR Sheldon ABSENT 

Gloster, C. FOR Shuttleworth FOR 

Gloster, H. FOR Stretton FOR 

Goodwin FOR Surjan FOR 

Hamblett FOR Sykes FOR 

Haque ABSENT Taylor FOR 

Harkness FOR Toor FOR 

Harrison FOR Ur-Rehman FOR 

Hewitt FOR Williams FOR 

Hobin ABSENT Williamson FOR 

Hudson ABSENT Alexander ABSENT 

 
On a recorded VOTE being taken, the RESOLUTION was 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
RESOLVED that the Council, in accordance with Sections 30 to 
36 of the Local Government Act 1992, hereby sets the 
aggregate amounts shown in the tables below as the amounts of 
Council Tax for 2021/22 for each part of its area and for each of 
the categories of dwellings: 
 
 
Authority/Parish Council Tax Bands (£) 

 A B C D E F G H 

Oldham Council 1,148.62  1,340.06 1,531.50 1,722.94 2,105.81 2,488.69 2,871.56 3,445.88 

Mayoral Police 
and Crime 
Commissioner 
Precept  

145.53  169.78  194.04  218.30  266.81  315.32  363.83  436.60 

Mayoral General 
Precept 
(including Fire 
Services) 

60.63  70.73  80.84  90.95  111.16  131.37  151.58  181.90 

Saddleworth 
Parish Precept 

15.67  18.28 20.89 23.51 28.73 33.95 39.18 47.02 

Shaw and 
Crompton 
Parish Precept 

11.58  13.51 15.44 17.37 21.23 25.09 28.95 34.74 

 
 
Authority/Parish Council Tax Bands (£) 

 A B C D E F G H 

Saddleworth Parish 
Area 

1,370.45  1,598.85  1,827.27  2,055.70  2,512.51  2,969.33  3,426.15  4,111.40 

Shaw & Crompton 
Parish Area 

1,366.36  1,594.08  1,821.82  2,049.56  2,505.01  2,960.47  3,415.92  4,099.12 

All other parts of the 
Council’s Area 

1,354.78  1,580.57  1,806.38  2,032.19  2,483.78  2,935.38  3,386.97  4,064.38 

 
 
 

The meeting started at 6.00 pm and ended at 10.07 pm 
 

Page 80



 

 

  
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
Reason for Decision 
 
The decision is for Elected Members to note the petition received by Council in 
accordance with the Petitions Protocol. 
 
Petitions Received 
 
People and Place 
 
Reference 2020-14: Petition requesting Don't Build on Greenbelt Land received 2 April 
2019 with 467 signatures 
 
Recommendations 
 
It is recommended that Council note the petition received. 
 

COUNCIL  

 
Petitions 
 

Portfolio Holder:  Various 
 
Officer Contact:  Various 
 
Report Author:  Elizabeth Drogan, Head of Democratic Services 
Ext. 4705 
 
24th March 2021 

Page 81

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 

CABINET 
14/12/2020 at 6.00 pm 

 
 

Present: Councillor Fielding (Chair)  
Councillors Brownridge, Chadderton, Chauhan, Jabbar, Moores, 
Mushtaq, Roberts and Shah 
 

 

 

1   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

There were no apologies for absence received. 

2   URGENT BUSINESS   

There were no items of urgent business received. 

3   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

There were no declarations of interest received. 

4   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME   

There were no public questions received. 

5   MINUTES OF THE CABINET MEETING HELD ON 30TH 
NOVEMBER 2020  

 

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the Cabinet meeting held 
on30th November 2020 be approved as a correct record. 

6   COUNCIL TAX TAX BASE AND NON-DOMESTIC RATES 
TAX BASE FORECAST 2021/22  

 

The Cabinet gave consideration to a report of the Director of 
Finance which set out information on the Council Tax Tax Base 
for 2021/22 using the most up to date valuation list and all other 
information and estimates available. 
The total number of chargeable properties included in the 
Council Tax Tax Base calculation in Oldham for 2021/22 was 
95,213. This figure was reduced to 86,254.25 after allowing for 
discounts and exemptions and translated to the equivalent of 
68,469.9 Band D properties. After applying adjustments for the 
Local Council Tax Support scheme offset by the additional 
charging for empty properties and an anticipated increase in the 
number of properties to be included in the valuation list over the 
forthcoming year, the number of Band D equivalent properties 
reduced to 59,121.6. The final Tax Base after the application of 
the anticipated collection rate of 96.75% is 57,200 which was a 
decrease of 463 when compared to the Council Tax Tax Base 
for 2020/21 of 57,663. 
The 2021/22 Tax Bases for Saddleworth and Shaw and 
Crompton Parish Councils of 8,699 and 5,479 respectively, had 
been calculated using the same methodology. 
Statute required local billing authorities to prepare and submit to 
the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government 
(MHCLG) a locally determined and approved Business Rates 
forecast through the NNDR 1 return by 31 January each year. 
This forecast would be used to determine the 2021/22 “demand” 
and payment schedule for Business Rates between Oldham 
Council and the Greater Manchester Combined Authority. Being 

Public Document Pack

Page 83

Agenda Item 9c



 

a participant in the Greater Manchester 100% Rates Retention 
Pilot Scheme (now extended by at least a further year until 31 
March 2022) meant the Council no longer payed a share of 
Business Rates to Central Government. Instead, Oldham 
currently retained 99% of the income with 1% being paid to the 
Greater Manchester Combined Authority for Fire and Rescue 
services. 
The estimated rating income for 2021/22 attributable to Oldham 
Council was currently £49.640m which was a reduction of 
£0.784m compared to 2020/21. Delegation was sought to 
enable the Business Rates forecast to be updated to take 
account of the 2021/22 PLGFS and up to date Non-Domestic 
Rates information, enabling the submission to Central 
Government of the annual NNDR 1 return by the statutory 
deadline of 31 January 2021. 
Oldham had pooled Business Rates revenues with other 
Greater Manchester districts and the two Cheshire Unitary 
Authorities since 2015/16 (Cheshire West & Chester joined the 
pool from 2016/17). The aim of pooling was to retain the benefits 
of any Business Rates growth within Greater Manchester for the 
benefit of the region.  
This report sought approval to continue these arrangements into 
2021/22 (subject to the notification of the 2021/22 PLGFS). 
It was highlighted to Members that the preparation of Council 
Tax and Business Rates taxbases was being undertaken in a 
period of unprecedented uncertainty and volatility. The COVID-
19 pandemic has reduced the Council Tax and Business Rates 
income collected in 2020/21 to the extent that an income deficit 
is projected at the end of 2020/21 (this is initially accounted for 
in the Collection Fund). 
In 2020/21, the Government significantly extended business 
rates reliefs to businesses and introduced a Council Tax 
Hardship grant. Both these initiatives were currently anticipated 
to conclude at the end of the year, but although these there had 
been a positive impact on the Collection Fund in year, a deficit 
still prevailed. 
The Government had provided a means for the impact of this 
deficit to addressed over 3 financial years and had advised of 
other support for in relation to reduced Council Tax and 
Business Rates income. This support was to be announced in 
the Spending Review which was due later this month.  
 
Options/alternatives 
The Council had little discretion in the calculation of the number 
of properties incorporated into the Council Tax Tax Base given 
the legislative framework that was in place. However, there was 
some discretion in estimating the number of new properties that 
will be included on the Council Tax register during 2021/22 and 
the change to the number of claimants of Council Tax 
Reduction. A prudent view had been taken in this regard. The 
main area for an alternative approach was over the level of 
assumed collection rate. An increase in the collection rate would 
boost the anticipated Council Tax income and a decrease in the 
rate would decrease income. The Council has chosen to reduce 
its 2021/22 collection rate to 96.75%. This decision had been 

Page 84



 

influenced by prevailing economic circumstances and current 
trends in collection rates.  
The NNDR1 return generated the figures upon which the 
Business Rates Tax Base is prepared. It was not therefore 
appropriate to consider an alternative approach. However, as 
the figures included on the NNDR1 return on 31 January 2021 
may vary from the estimated level, delegation was sought to 
allow the opportunity to revise the Business Rates forecast and 
approve a revised and more accurate position for budget setting. 
 
RESOLVED:  

1. The Council Tax Tax Base for 2021/22 at 57,200 Band D 
equivalent properties be approved. 

2. The latest estimate for 2021/22 Business Rates revenue 
that is attributable to Oldham Council as being £49.640m 
be agreed. 

3. The Tax Bases for Saddleworth and Shaw and Crompton 
Parish Councils of 8,699 and 5,479 respectively be noted.  

4. The decision to vary the final Business Rates forecast 
and hence the Business Rates Tax Base, if required, be 
delegated to the Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for 
Finance and Green in consultation with the Director of 
Finance.  

5. The final decision of the Council’s membership of the 
proposed Greater Manchester, Cheshire East & Cheshire 
West and Chester Councils Business Rates Pool for 
2021/22 be delegated to the Deputy Leader and Cabinet 
Member for Finance and Green in consultation with the 
Director of Finance,  (subject to the information contained 
in the 2021/22 Provisional Local Government Finance 
Settlement).  

7   SCHOOLS NATIONAL FUNDING FORMULA   

Consideration was given to a report of the Director of Finance 
which provided the Cabinet with details of the level of Dedicated 
Schools Grant (DSG) for 2021/22 together with its allocation 
across the three funding blocks for which information was 
currently available.  
The report also provides information about the National Funding 
Formula (NFF) for Schools, the High Needs Blocks for Oldham 
and also presented a recommended approach for the 
distribution of the Schools Funding Block of the DSG to Schools 
and Academies for 2021/22. 
The Cabinet were advised that this funding was based on 
October 2019 pupil numbers and would be subject to change 
once calculations have been updated to reflect October 2020 
pupil numbers. 
In addition, the report presented the proposed option (Model 1 
as detailed in Appendix 1) to move to the 2021/22 National 
Funding Formula cash values in full except for the Area Cost 
Adjustment (ACA) where it was proposed that the factor applied 
in Oldham was initially reduced from 1.00545 to 1.00000. 
However. Members were advised that if there are any resources 
available once funding allocations based on updated pupil 
numbers are received, then this additional funding would be 
allocated through an increase to the ACA. 

Page 85



 

It was also proposed that there was a 0.5% movement of 
funding from the Schools Block to the High Needs Block in order 
to manage the DSG (which was currently in a deficit position) so 
that the DSG was brought back into a balanced position as soon 
as possible. As highlighted in the report, the continued 
agreement of the Schools Forum to the proposed 0.5% 
movement of funds between the Schools and High Needs 
Blocks remained essential given the current financial position of 
the DSG. At its meeting on 18 November 2020, Schools Forum 
agreed to the 0.5% movement and approved the proposed 
distribution of the Schools Funding Block (Model 1). 
 
Option/alternatives considered  
There was a requirement for the 2021/22 funding formula to be 
agreed by Schools Forum. The report set out the funding 
formula agreed unanimously by Schools Forum members at 
their meeting on 18 November. Members are not therefore 
presented with an alternative approach. 
 
RESOLVED – That: 
The model outlined in the report which was a move to the 
2021/22 National Funding Formula cash values in full except for 
the Area Cost Adjustment factor, which was reduced to 1.00000 
but with the opportunity to adjust the ACA if there are any 
resources available once actual 2021/22 funding allocations are 
received be approved. 
The 0.5% transfer of funding between the Schools and the High 
Needs Blocks be approved.  

8   STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2019/20   

Consideration was given to a report of the Director of Finance 
which presented the Council’s audited Statement of Accounts 
for the financial year 2019/20 as considered by the Audit 
Committee on 21 July 2020. Delegated authority was given to 
the Vice Chair of the Audit Committee after consultation with 
Director of Finance to approve the accounts pending the 
resolution of two outstanding queries. The first was assurance 
with regard to the audit of the Greater Manchester Pension Fund 
(GMPF) and the second, the resolution of an outstanding item 
relating to the Council’s investment in the Manchester Airport 
Holdings Limited. The accounts were subsequently approved on 
10 November 2020, with only one change to the Statement of 
Accounts presented and accepted at the Audit Committee on 21 
July 2020, being additional wording required on the assurances 
of asset valuations highlighted as a result of the conclusion of 
the GMPF audit. 
The report highlighted: 
• The overall revenue outturn position for 2019/20 was a surplus 
of £0.270m. This was an increase on the favourable variance of 
£0.065m projected at month 9 that was reported to Cabinet on 
23 March 2020. 
• The year-end variances that were attributable to each Portfolio. 
• Schools balances at 31 March 2020 at £5.487m but offset by 
the deficit on the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) of £4.916m 
leaving a net balance of £0.571m held within Other Earmarked 
Reserves. 

Page 86



 

• The final Housing Revenue Account (HRA) balance was 
£21.796m. 
• The balance on the Collection Fund was a surplus of £3.295m 
• The small reduction in revenue account earmarked reserves of 
£1.263m to a level of £79.360m, a decrease in other earmarked 
reserves of £4.431m to a level of £8.504m and an increase in 
the General Fund balance of £0.270m to £15.110m, reflective of 
the revenue outturn position 
• Expenditure on the Council’s Capital Programme for 2019/20 
was £54.383m which was an increase on the month 9 forecast 
expenditure of £52.497m. The increase in expenditure required 
funding allocated to future years to be re-profiled to fully finance 
the Capital Programme in 2019/20. 
• Capital Receipts in year totalled £9.914m, all of which were 
used to finance the Capital Programme in year. 
• The significant items in each of the primary financial 
statements. 
• The preparation of Group Accounts incorporating the Councils 
two wholly owned companies – the Unity Partnership Ltd. and 
MioCare Community Interest Company 
• The performance of the Finance Team in closing the accounts. 
 
Options/alternatives considered  
No alternatives are presented other than that Cabinet notes the 
final accounts position for 2019/20, the Statement of Accounts 
and the Audit Completion Report and commends this report and 
the Statement of Accounts to Council. 
 
RESOLVED – That: 

1. The Council’s final accounts position for 2019/20, the 
Statement of Accounts, and the Audit Completion Report 
be noted.  

2. This report and Statement of Accounts be commended to 
Council 

9   COUNCIL PERFORMANCE REPORT SEPTEMBER 2020   

The Cabinet gave consideration to a report of the Head of 
Strategy and Performance which provided a review of Council 
performance to September 2020  
The report provided the Cabinet with an overview of the 
Council’s performance against priorities outlined within the 
Corporate Plan, which had been monitored in the period. 
Options/Alternatives considered:  
To note the Council performance September 2020. 
  
RESOLVED – That the Council Performance Report September 
2020 be noted 
 

The meeting started at 6.00pm and ended at 6.17pm 
 

Page 87



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 88



 

CABINET 
25/01/2021 at 6.00 pm 

 
 

Present: Councillor Fielding (Chair)  
Councillors Brownridge, Chadderton, Chauhan, Jabbar, Moores, 
Mushtaq, Roberts and Shah 
 

 

 

1   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

There were no apologies for absence received.  

2   URGENT BUSINESS   

There were no items of urgent business received. 

3   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

There were no declarations of interest received. 

4   MINUTES OF THE CABINET MEETING HELD ON 14TH 
DECEMBER 2020  

 

RESOLVED – That The minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 
14th December 2020 be approved.  

5   REVENUE MONITOR AND CAPITAL INVESTMENT 
PROGRAMME 2020/21 MONTH 7 - OCTOBER 2020  

 

Consideration was given to a report of the Director of Finance 
which sought to provide the Cabinet with an update on the 
Council’s 2020/21 forecast revenue budget position at Annex 1 
and the financial position of the capital programme as at 31 
October 2020 (Month 7) together with the revised capital 
programme 2020/25, as outlined in section two of the report at 
Annex 2 of the report.  
The current forecast outturn position for 2020/21 was a 
projected deficit variance of £8.504m after allowing for approved 
and pending transfers to and from reserves.  
Revenue Position  
It was reported the position also included additional costs and 
pressures that have been identified by the Authority in this 
financial year as a direct result of the Governments ongoing 
arrangements to mitigate the spread of COVID-19 which 
commenced on 23 March 2020. The additional pressures 
included forecasts of both income shortfalls and additional 
expenditure that have impacted on the Authority’s budgets as a 
result of the pandemic 
The pandemic has affected nearly all aspects of Council service 
delivery; however, the most significant areas of concern were 
the People and Place, Children’s Services and Community 
Health & Adult Social Care Portfolios. Action was being taken 
and would continue for the remainder of the financial year to 
address variances and take mitigating action as detailed in the 
report.  
The overall corporate position was partly being offset by the 
application of the £23.978m un-ringfenced Government COVID 
related grant funding from the Ministry for Housing, 
Communities and Local Government (MHCLG).  Of this sum, 

Public Document Pack

Page 89



 

£7.641m was received in 2019/20 and held in a specific 
Earmarked Reserve to underpin the 2020/21 budget and 
receipts in 2020/21 of £15.055m COVID Emergency Funding, of 
which £8.928mm is new funding introduced at month 7, 
including £1.282m for loss of income in relation to sales, fees 
and charges under the income compensation scheme. In 
Appendix 1 to the report, the full Government grant was 
presented as a single sum so that it highlighted the level of 
variation across all Council budgets, given that there was still 
insufficient resource to offset the adverse variance. However, 
this summary report presented the position after applying the 
Government grant across Portfolio areas.   
Further General Fund grant was expected, certainly in respect of 
lost income for sales, fees and charges (with two further returns 
scheduled for the current financial year), both the overall 
financial position and the application of Government grant would 
therefore change during the course of the financial year.  
As this financial monitoring report reflected the financial position 
at Month 7, it could be regarded as an indicator of the potential 
year end position, however, management action had been 
initiated across all service areas to review and challenge 
planned expenditure and to maximise income.  Although, the 
effect of this action had still to take full effect, and the Council 
was clearly operating in an uncertain and volatile environment, it 
is anticipated that by the year end, the outturn deficit should be 
reduced. 
However, it was important to note the worsening position in 
relation to the course of the pandemic and the continued 
stringent, Tier 3 restrictions re-imposed in Oldham following the 
end of the new national lockdown.  Financial pressures on the 
Council could increase even further and therefore the variance 
could rise.   
Information on the latest position of the Dedicated Schools 
Grant (DSG), Housing Revenue Account (HRA) and Collection 
Fund is also outlined in the report.  
Capital Position 
The report outlined the most up to date capital spending position 
for 2020/21 to 2024/25 for approved schemes. The revised 
capital programme budget for 2020/21 was £90.121m at the 
close of Month 7, a net decrease of £57.511m from the original 
budget of £147.632m.  Actual expenditure to 31 October 2020 
was £47.508m (52.72% of the forecast outturn). 
It was probable that the forecast position would continue to 
change before the year end with additional re-profiling into future 
years. 
 
Options/alternatives: 
Option 1 - To approve the forecast revenue and capital positions 
presented in the report. 
Option 2 - To approve some of the forecasts and changes 
included in the report  
Option 3 - Not to approve any of the forecasts and changes 
included in the report  
 
RESOLVED – That 

Page 90



 

1. The forecast revenue outturn for 2020/21 at Month 7 
being a £8.504m adverse variance having regard to the 
action being taken to manage expenditure be approved.  

2. The forecast positions for the Dedicated Schools Grant, 
Housing Revenue Account and Collection Fund be 
approved.  

3. The use of reserves as detailed in Appendix 1 to Annex 1 
of the report be approved.  

4. The revised capital programme for 2020/21 to 2024/25 as 
at Month 7 as presented in Annex 2 of the report be 
approved.  

6   KICKSTART SCHEME   

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director of 
Communities and Reform which sought approval to deliver the 
Kickstart Scheme as an employer and a gateway provider. 
The Kickstart scheme had been launched in response to the 
Covid-19 pandemic and the impact it was having on 
unemployment across England. 
Within the borough, youth unemployment had increased by 
1.6%. As of September 2020, there were 3,100 young people 
(aged 18-24) in Oldham unemployed. This represented a youth 
unemployment rate of 15.6%, the highest rate across Greater 
Manchester and higher than the national rate of 9.4%. 
The Kickstart programme would provide a six-month paid 
placement, fully funded by the government, and was available to 
16-24-year-old’s claiming Universal Credit. 
A Kickstart Scheme grant application must be for a minimum of 
30 jobs. An employer who can provide 30 jobs (or more) can 
apply directly to the Department of Work and Pensions for a 
grant.  
Gateway providers must have experience of managing 
partnership arrangements with third parties and have robust 
financial and governance arrangements. The suitability of a 
gateway provider would be assessed during the application 
process. If an application is successful, the employer or gateway 
for a group of employers must sign an agreement before the 
jobs begin. 
To date there has been an expression of interest for 27 jobs 
within the Council and at least 2 across Team Oldham. The 
Council had created and applied for 31 jobs as a Gateway which 
were within the education and care sectors.  
The Council were continuing to work closely with its 250+ 
partner colleagues to ensure that Oldham’s young people were 
aware of the positions and receive support to apply for them.  
This would enable us to support vulnerable young people, such 
as care leavers. 
For the Kickstart initiative, reasonable volumes have been 
considered to offer both employers and young people the right 
support which leads to progression. Under this scheme the 
Council has a very different financial position and operating 
model and therefore were looking to create a minimum of 50 
placement opportunities within Team Oldham, as supported by 
the Leader and Cllr M Ali, and develop a programme which 
offered a high standard of support and development, enabling 
successful candidates to gain experience, knowledge and skills, 

Page 91



 

and create a CV that will demonstrate their ability to succeed in 
future employment.  
 
Options/alternatives  
Option 1  Only act as a Gateway provider and pool 30 
placements from employers that are unable to provide 30 jobs.  
Option 2: Register as an employer in our own right and offer 30 
or more placements within the council. 
Option 3: Act as a Gateway provider and an employer in our 
own right. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Council act as a Gateway provider and 
an employer in its own right to deliver the Kickstart Scheme.  

7   GREATER MANCHESTER TRANSPORT STRATEGY 2040, 
OUR FIVE-YEAR DELIVERY PLAN (2021-2026) AND 
OLDHAM LOCAL IMPLEMENTATION PLAN  

 

Consideration was a given to a report of the Deputy Chief 
Executive -People and Place which provided details of the 
revised GM2040 Transport Strategy documents which are to be 
recommended to GMCA for adoption and approval  
It was reported that Transport for Greater Manchester (TfGM) 
had been working with the GMCA, the ten Greater Manchester 
councils and the Greater Manchester Mayor to prepare new, 
and updated, transport strategy documents that cover the entire 
city-region.  
This work included a refreshed version of the long-term, 
statutory local transport plan - the Greater Manchester Transport 
Strategy 2040 - and a final version of the Five-Year Delivery 
Plan (2021-2026) which sets out the practical actions planned to 
deliver the Strategy over the next 5 years. In addition, ten new 
Local Implementation Plans had also been prepared (one for 
each Greater Manchester council), including Oldham. 
Draft versions of these documents were published as part of the 
GMSF Transport Evidence Base for AGMA Executive Board on 
30th October 2020, which recommended GMSF 2020 and 
supporting background documents to the GM local authorities. 
Oldham Council’s Overview and Scrutiny Board and Cabinet 
considered the transport documents on 5th and 9th November 
2020 respectively.  
Following a change to the GMSF process, as discussed at 
AGMA Executive Board on 11th December 2020, minor 
amendments have been made to the refreshed 2040 Transport 
Strategy, Delivery Plan and Oldham Local Implementation Plan 
to ensure that the transport and spatial planning context and 
processes are referenced in an up-to-date manner and to 
include updates on funding following the 2020 Spending 
Review. 
This report considered the revised GM2040 Transport Strategy 
documents which were to be recommended to GMCA for 
adoption and approval.  
 
Option/alternatives considered  
Option 1 - Members can endorse the refreshed Greater 
Manchester Transport Strategy and the final version of Our Five-
Year Delivery Plan, approve the Oldham Local Implementation 

Page 92



 

Plan for publication as an appendix to Our Five-Year Delivery 
Plan and delegate authority to the Leader and the Cabinet 
Member for Neighbourhoods and Culture to approve future 
updates of the Oldham Local Implementation Plan. 
Option 2 - Members can decide not to endorse the refreshed 
Greater Manchester Transport Strategy and the final version of 
Our Five-Year Delivery Plan, not approve the Oldham Local 
Implementation Plan for publication as an appendix to Our Five-
Year Delivery Plan and not delegate authority to the Leader and 
the Cabinet Member to approve future updates of the Oldham 
Local Implementation Plan. The GM Transport Strategy would 
be published without an Oldham Local Implementation Plan, 
which could have a detrimental impact on investment in Oldham. 
 
RESOLVED – That: 

1. The refreshed Greater Manchester Transport Strategy 
2040 and the final version of Our Five-Year Delivery Plan 
(2021-2026) for approval by GMCA and publication be 
endorsed.  

2. The Oldham Local Implementation Plan for publication as 
an appendix to Our Five-Year Delivery Plan (2021-2026) 
by GMCA be approved.  

3. Authority be delegated to the Leader and the Cabinet 
Member for Neighbourhoods and Culture to approve 
future updates of the Oldham Local Implementation Plan.  

8   ALEXANDRA PARK ECO CENTRE   

Consideration was given to a report of the Deputy Chief 
Executive People and Place which provided the Cabinet with 
recommended options for the Alexandra Park Eco Centre 
project. 
Prior to the Covid-19 (CV19) lockdown commencing, the 
Alexandra Park Eco Centre project had progressed to RIBA 
Stage 3, and subsequently obtained planning approval on 22nd 
May 2020.  An Outline Business Case (OBC) was submitted in 
June 2020, and following detailed scrutiny of the proposals the 
project was unfortunately deemed to be financially unviable for 
delivery as one complete project, as the long-term revenue 
implications for the proposals needed significant subsidy, which 
could not be justified given the current financial climate. 
However, the ambition for embracing green technologies and 
sustainable property design solutions remained and due to the 
severe dilapidation issues noted with the corporate building and 
accommodation of staff / teams within Alexandrea Park, urgent 
works had been declared essential to ensure compliance with 
workplace safety and to provide an early phase of the 
masterplan on an accelerated delivery programme.  
As a result of this, five options were explored to provide an 
indication of what could be included as part of the initial phase to 
help rectify the building dilapidation issues. The report to be 
considered at Item 11 of the agenda would provide significantly 
more information on each of the options alongside the project 
objectives, benefits, issues, risks and revenue implication. 
 
Options/alternatives  

Page 93



 

Option 1 - Do nothing – only undertaking urgent reactive 
maintenance to maintain the buildings (not considered to be a 
feasible option given the current deteriorating condition of the 
depot building). 
Option 2 – Do minimum - undertake urgent backlog 
maintenance on the existing building to ensure it is compliant 
and safe for teams / services to use.  (This would need 
significant levels of investment; it would cause considerable 
disruption to the services and wouldn’t deliver any of the 
ambitions for green technologies or efficiency / sustainability). 
Option 3 – Progress an early phase of the masterplan for the 
Eco Centre including the green technology power solutions 
within the new office building.  
Option 4 – Build and deliver a new office with 
conventional/mains gas and electricity supply to help keep 
construction costs to a minimum (this helps support the building 
dilapidations, but does not allow opportunities to introduce or 
accelerate any of the eco / green technologies).   
Option 5 – Install emergency portacabins powered by electricity 
to provide a temporary / efficient solution to ensure staff were 
working in safe and compliant accommodation.  (This option 
fails to tackle any of the longer term building dilapidation issues 
and doesn’t introduce any of the green or sustainability 
ambition).   
 
RESOLVED -That the Cabinet would consider the commercially 
sensitive information contained at Item 11 of the agenda before 
making a decision.  

9   SCRUTINY REFERRAL - COUNCIL MOTION - BAN ON 
FAST FOOD AND ENERGY DRINK ADVERTISING  

 

Consideration was given to a report of the Chair of the Health 
Scrutiny Committee which required the Cabinet to consider the 
recommendations of the Health Scrutiny Committee in relation 
to a ban on fast food and Energy Drinks advertising. 
At the meeting of the Council held on 11th September 2019 the 
Council referred the following Motion to the Overview and 
Scrutiny Board –  
 “Council notes that: 
•Fast food contains high level of fats, salt and sugar and energy 
drinks often contain high levels of caffeine and sugar. 
•Excessive consumption of these products contributes to 
obesity, tooth decay, diabetes, gastro-intestinal problems, sleep 
deprivation and hyperactivity. 
•The Royal College of Paediatrics and Child Health predicts half 
of all children in the UK will be overweight or obese by 2020. 
•The Mayor of London banned all fast food advertising on 
publicly-controlled advertising spaces across London’s entire 
transport network. 
•Sustain and Foodwatch recently published a report ‘Taking 
Down Junk Food Adverts’ which recommends that local 
authorities regulate adverts on public telephone boxes and that 
the Advertising Standards Authority should be able to regulate 
advertising outside nurseries, children’s centres, parks, family 
attractions and leisure centres. 

Page 94



 

As a local authority with a statutory responsibility for public 
health, Council believes that it should do all that is possible to 
discourage the consumption of fast food and energy drinks. 
Council therefore resolves to: 
•Ask the Chief Executive to write to the Chief Executive of 
Transport for Greater Manchester asking TFGM to impose a ban 
on the advertising of fast food and energy drinks on publicly 
owned poster sites etc across the Greater Manchester transport 
network. 
•Ensure that fast food or energy are not advertised on any 
hoarding or within any building owned by this Council including 
large advertisements on bus stops.   
•Ensure that such products are not sold to children or young 
people on any of our premises. 
•Ask our NHS, social housing, voluntary and private sector 
partners, including the Mayor of Greater Manchester, to make a 
similar undertaking. 
•Ask the Chief Executive to write to the relevant minister 
requesting the recommendations of the ‘Taking Down Junk 
Food Adverts’ report be adopted as government policy as soon 
as possible; copying in our local members of Parliament to seek 
their support.” 
The matter was further referred to the Health Scrutiny 
Committee and consideration subsequently delayed due to the 
Covid-19 pandemic. 
The Health Scrutiny Committee gave full consideration to the 
Motion at a meeting held on 1st September 2020 on receipt of 
the report appended to this report.  In discussion, it was 
suggested that the issue was one which would be very difficult 
to progress in isolation and that Oldham alone could make only 
small changes.  While the intent of the Motion was considered to 
be good, it was further suggested that it would take leadership 
and support across Greater Manchester to make real progress.  
As such, it might be more appropriate to refer the matter to the 
Cabinet, rather than back to the Council, to consider the extent 
to which work with other authorities and bodies might progress 
this matter, and that any referral to Cabinet should include 
recommendations that discussions be held between all ten 
Greater Manchester Leaders and that the Mayor of Greater 
Manchester be asked to consider running a campaign on this 
issue in alongside the ten Leaders. 
The Health Scrutiny Committee therefore resolved that 
1.the Motion be referred to the Cabinet with a recommendation 
that the issues raised within the Motion relating to a Ban on Fast 
Food and Energy Drinks Advertising be progressed on a Greater 
Manchester-wide basis, that the matter be raised with the 
Leaders of the other Greater Manchester authorities, and that 
the Mayor of Greater Manchester be requested to run a 
campaign on these issues in conjunction with the Greater 
Manchester local authorities; 
2.the Cabinet be requested to submit a progress report on 
actions taken to this Committee. 
 
Options/alternatives 
Option 1 – That the Cabinet accept the recommendations and 
progress the motion. 

Page 95



 

Option 2 – That Cabinet do not accept the recommendations. 
 
RESOLVED – That: 

1. The issues raised within the Motion relating to a Ban on 
Fast Food and Energy Drinks Advertising be progressed 
on a Greater Manchester-wide basis, that the matter be 
raised with the Leaders of the other Greater Manchester 
authorities, and that the Mayor of Greater Manchester be 
requested to run a campaign on these issues in 
conjunction with the Greater Manchester local authorities. 

2. A progress report on actions taken in relation to the 
issues raised within the motion to a Ban on Fast Food 
and Energy Drinks Advertising be submitted to the Health 
Scrutiny Committee.  

10   EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC   

RESOLVED that, in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the 
Local Government Act 1972, the press and public be excluded 
from the meeting for the following items of business on the 
grounds that they contain exempt information under paragraphs 
3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, and it would not, on 
balance, be in the public interest to disclose the reports. 

11   ALEXANDRA PARK ECO CENTRE   

The Cabinet gave consideration to the commercially sensitive 
information in relation to Item 8 – Alexandra Park Eco Centre. 
 
RESOLVED – That the recommendations as detailed within the 
report be approved.  
 

The meeting started at 6.00pm and ended at 6.24pm 
 

Page 96



 

CABINET 
22/02/2021 at 6.00 pm 

 
 

Present: Councillor Fielding (Chair)  
Councillors Brownridge, Chadderton, Chauhan, Jabbar, Moores, 
Mushtaq, Roberts and Shah 
 

 

 

1   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

There were no apologies for absence received.  

2   URGENT BUSINESS   

There were no items of urgent business received. 

3   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

There were no declarations of interest received. 

4   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME   

There were no public questions received.  

5   MINUTES OF THE CABINET MEETING HELD ON 25TH 
JANUARY 2021  

 

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 
the 25th January 2021 be approved.  

6   GM CLEAN AIR PLAN CONSULTATION   

Consideration was given to a report of the Deputy Chief 
Executive which set out the progress that had been made on the 
development of Greater Manchester’s Clean Air Plan following a 
public consultation on proposals that were developed pre-
COVID-19 and the link to taxi and private hire common minimum 
licensing standards. 
In Greater Manchester, the 10 local authorities, the Greater 
Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA) and Transport for 
Greater Manchester (TfGM), collectively referred to as “Greater 
Manchester” or “GM”, had worked together to develop a Clean 
Air Plan to tackle NO2 Exceedances at the Roadside, referred to 
as GM CAP. This report set out the progress of the GM CAP 
and the next steps for the development of the Clean Air Plan 
and the closely linked Minimum Licensing Standards (MLS) for 
taxi and private hire services.  
Since the last report there has been no confirmation or offer of 
government funding for LGVs or hackneys, or the taxi and 
private hire electric vehicle charge points.  
Government ministers have agreed to consider extending 
Greater Manchester’s Clean Air Zone (CAZ) charges to the 
sections of the A628/A57 in Tameside which form part of the 
Strategic Road Network, within the proposed CAZ boundary. 
The extension of any charges to the A628/A57 will be subject to 
a full assessment of the potential impacts, to be led by 
Highways England. Following the assessment ministers will take 
the final decision on whether or not charging should be 
implemented on the A628/A57. 

Public Document Pack

Page 97



 

GM was awarded £14.7m of funding for the retrofitting of buses, 
and this work commenced in December 2020. GM’s bus retrofit 
fund offers operators of locally registered bus services up to 
£16k of funding per vehicle towards the retrofit of non-compliant 
buses. The funding is available for vehicles, including minibuses 
and coaches, operating on a registered bus service within 
Greater Manchester. This includes cross-boundary services 
operating within the GM CAZ boundary.  
The report also set out: 

 The near-term impacts of COVID-19 government 
restrictions on movement on air quality, how air quality 
was legally monitored, and how the Government has 
directed GM (and other areas) under UK law to address 
exceedance of the Annual Average standard for NO2 

which is set at 40 ug/m3.  

 Following the conclusion of the consultation, both GM 
CAP and MLS consultation responses were being 
analysed and reported on by an independent research 
agency. GM authorities would fully consider all of the 
information and evidence gathered during the 
consultation, to develop an understanding of the 
consequences COVID-19 has had on vehicle owners and 
trades which would be directly affected by the GM CAP 
and MLS. 

 The work TfGM was undertaking on behalf of the ten 
Greater Manchester Authorities in the preparatory 
implementation and contract arrangements required to 
deliver the CAZ and other GM CAP measures. 
Preparatory work was required in order to maintain 
delivery momentum in line with the funding arrangements 
agreed with JAQU, for example in relation to automatic 
number plate recognition (ANPR) cameras, back office 
systems and service providers.  

 The consultation approach, engagement activity, 
additional research undertaken and the number of 
responses to both the GM CAP and MLS consultations. 

 The governance approach to both GM CAP and MLS, 
with the GM CAP final plan to be brought forward for 
decision makers as soon as was reasonably practicable 
and no later than summer 2021, and the outputs of the 
MLS to be reported alongside the GM CAP at the same 
time. 

Due to the dynamic context of COVID-19 and national and 
regional/local lockdowns, progress on the development of the 
final plan would be provided by the Green City Region Lead, as 
required at GMCA meetings. 
 
Options/alternatives considered 
Option 1 – Approve the recommendations  
Option 2 – Not to approve the recommendations 
 
RESOLVED – That: 

1. The progress of Greater Manchester Clean Air Plan be 
noted.  

Page 98



 

2. The next steps for the development of the Clean Air Plan 
and Minimum Licensing Standards, listed at Section 12 of 
the report be noted.  

3. The distribution of Bus Retrofit funding commenced in 
December 2020 be noted.  

4. The decision of Government ministers to consider 
extending Greater Manchester’s Clean Air Zone (CAZ) 
charges to the sections of the A628/A57 which formed 
part of the Strategic Road Network, within the proposed 
CAZ boundary, subject to the outcomes of an 
assessment, which was expected to be completed by 
early 2021 be noted.  

5. The GM Clean Air Plan was required to take action tackle 
nitrogen dioxide exceedances until compliance with the 
legal limits has been demonstrated and that the nearer 
term influence of COVID-19 on air quality was not 
expected to lead to sufficiently long term reductions in 
pollution such that the exceedances of the legal limits of 
nitrogen dioxide would not occur without implementing a 
Clean Air Zone; 

6. The GM CAP final plan would be brought forward for 
decision makers as soon as was reasonably practicable 
and no later than summer 2021; 

7. The outputs of the MLS would be reported alongside the 
GM CAP as soon was reasonably practicable and no 
later than summer 2021.  

8. The establishment of joint committees for the purposes 
as set out in this report at paragraph 9.5 and the terms of 
reference, as set out in Appendix 6 of the report be 
agreed.  

9. The Cabinet Member, Neighbourhoods and Culture, Cllr 
B Brownridge, be appointed to sit on both committees for 
purposes as set out in this report at paragraph 9.5 with 
specific terms of reference, as set out in Appendix 6 of 
the report.  

10. The Deputy Cabinet Member for Neighbourhoods and 
Culture be appointed Cllr A Ur-Rehman, as substitute for 
both committees for purpose as set out in this report at 
paragraph at 9.5 with specific terms of reference, as set 
out at Appendix 6. 

11. Oldham Council agrees to enter into a collaboration 
agreement with the other 9 GM local authorities and 
GMCA/TfGM to clarify the rights, responsibilities and 
obligations of the authorities in relation to those contracts 
set out in Appendix 2 that are required to maintain 
delivery momentum in line with JAQU funding 
agreements.  

12. A delegation to the Deputy Chief Executive and Cabinet 
Member, Neighbourhoods and Culture to agree the final 
form of the collaboration agreement and to approve the 
submission of supplementary information to the 
Government's Joint Air Quality Unit (JAQU) be agreed.  

13. A delegation to Deputy Chief Executive and Cabinet 
Member, Neighbourhoods and Culture to award the 
contracts set out in Appendix 2 (subject to government 
funding) that were required to implement a charging 

Page 99



 

Clean Air Zone in Spring 2022 to ensure the achievement 
of Nitrogen Dioxide compliance in the shortest possible 
time and by 2024 at the latest as required by the 
Ministerial Direction be agreed.   

7   COUNCIL PERFORMANCE REPORT DECEMBER 2020   

The Cabinet gave consideration to a report of the Head of 
Strategy and Performance which provided a review of Council 
performance to December 2020  
The report provided the Cabinet with an overview of the 
Council’s performance against priorities outlined within the 
Corporate Plan, which had been monitored in the period.  
It was reported that 70 per cent of Performance targets had 
been met, days lost due to sickness had fallen and the level of 
council spend had increased. A number of measures have been 
suspended due to Coivd-19 and were being monitored only.  
Underperformance would be addressed at Directorate level 
within each portfolio where required.  
Options/Alternatives considered:  
To note the Council performance December 2020. 
  
RESOLVED – That: 

1. The areas of good performance detailed within the 
Council Performance Report December 2020 be noted. 

2. The improvement plans for any areas of under 
performance within the report be agreed.  

8   OLDHAM COMMUNITY LEISURE - CONTRACT  

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director, 
Communities and reform which presented options for the future 
of the Council Leisure Contract. 
Cabinet approved the recommendation to appoint Oldham 
Community Leisure (OCL) in December 2012 to operate and 
manage the Council’s leisure facilities. The contract became 
operational in April 2013. The current contract, without the 5-
year optional extension, was due to end on 31st March 2023. 
Under normal circumstances, pre Covid 19, the Leisure contract 
was performing well. The level of subsidy provided by the 
Council was low in comparison to other GM authorities and 
many nationally. The outcome and outputs stipulated in the 
contract were also being met.  In addition, memberships were 
high, the external inspections of the centres were all very good 
or excellent, and customer feedback was also good.  Overall 
financial performance was also positive.  
The Covid-19 situation had presented a number of significant 
issues to all Leisure providers across the country, not just OCL, 
and sport generally due to the two forced closures and a 
restriction on activity in our Leisure Centres when they have 
been open.  In addition, strict guidance on all team sport activity 
and cancellations of all National Governing Body of sport has 
further impacted, resulting in cancellation of block bookings, a 
reduction in the use of facilitates and an impact on income. 
The Leisure contract extension, which was a 10 plus 5 years, 
was due for consideration this next financial year. Initial 
discussion had already taken place prior to Covid to look at 
extending this but with some changes to the contract and 

Page 100



 

additional social value activity and measures added.  If an 
additional 5-year extension was agreed the contract would finish 
at the end of March 2028. 
During the lockdowns and through the pandemic OCL, as a 
social enterprise, had been a key partner in the Oldham 
community response to support our most vulnerable residents 
and have repeatedly demonstrated their commitment to be a 
provider that delivers social value.  This included offering 
Oldham Sports Centre as a venue to operate the foodbank from 
and a mass testing site with staff to support this.   
Ongoing conversations had taken place with OCL to understand 
the financial impact of Covid 19 and several mitigations have 
been put in place to reduce the running costs.  The Council 
would need to financially support OCL’s recovery into 
2021/2022. OCL have also proposed several mitigations to 
reduce the expenditure during the next period. Further detail is 
included in Part B of the Cabinet report. 
The Government had confirmed that £100 million would be 
made available to support public leisure facilities during this 
financial year.  The period is from December 2020 to the end of 
March 2021. Local authorities would be able to bid for money 
from the £100m fund.  Along with already agreed support given 
this will ease the financial ask on the Local Authority and ensure 
OCL are financially stable until the year end.   
Oldham had been successful in a bid of £530k. In addition, 
national discussions are also taking place with further support 
for next financial year and early indication is this will be a 
national figure of £200m to £300m which again will be a bid 
process but also linked to deprivation and inactivity levels and 
subsequently again reduce the ask financially from the Local 
Authority.  
 
Option/alternatives considered – To be considered at Item 15 of 
the agenda. 
 
REOLVED – That the Cabinet would consider the commercially 
sensitive information contained at Item 15 of the agenda before 
making a decision.  

9   APPROVAL TO AWARD THE LIQUID FUEL CONTRACT   

Consideration was given to a report of the Deputy Chief 
Executive People and Place which sought approval to utlise the 
Yorkshire Purchasing Organisation (YPO) framework for the 
supply of liquid fuels for use in the Council’s fleet.  
The Council required the supply of liquid fuel on site to ensure 
the vehicle fleet are fully operational. YPO ran a mini 
competition of behalf of AGMA (Association of Greater 
Manchester Authorities) obtaining continuity of supply and value 
for money.  
The current contract was supplied by Certas Energy. The 
procurement for this contract whilst driven by AGMA was 
undertaken by YPO (Yorkshire Purchasing Organisation) using 
a framework of their own establishment.  
Liquid Fuel was primarily used by the departments located at 
Moorhey St with use also by other departments and some 
schools. Fleet Management stores bunkered fuels on site at 

Page 101



 

Moorhey Street, (Max levels: Diesel – 60,000 litres, Petrol – 
13,000 litres and red diesel – 8,000 litres). Fuel was dispensed 
by onsite pumps which drivers could withdraw by use of a driver 
and vehicle key fob. 
The YPO Liquid Fuel framework had ceased however a re-
procurement was undertaken to re-establish and as before an 
exercise had been carried out for the AGMA authorities. This 
framework commenced on 22nd November 2019 for 2 years with 
an optional additional 2-year extension; the intention was that 
the Council would contract with the rank 1 supplier throughout 
the duration of the framework agreement. Standard Oil Fuels Ltd 
were currently rank 1 supplier and the AGMA authorities had 
made a decision to appoint the recommended supplier with the 
intention that each authority would now complete individual call 
off agreements.  
The call off agreement with Standard Oil Fuels Ltd WAS in place 
until 21st November 2021 after which YPO would run a further 
mini competition for a call off period of 2 years (ending 21st 
November 2023) which may change the rank 1 supplier.  
 
Options/alternatives considered  
Option 1:  

 To approve the use of the YPO framework to purchase 
liquid fuels from the rank 1 supplier as a result of the mini 
competitions. 

 Complete call off contract with the current rank 1 supplier 
Standard Fuel Oils Ltd and take advantage of the buying 
power and savings detailed in this report. 

 Following the second mini competition for the call off 
period 22nd November 2021 until 21st November 2023 
contract with the rank 1 supplier. 

Option 2 - To not approve the use of the YPO framework and 
the purchase of fuels from the rank 1 supplier in both this call off 
and the second thus not taking advantage of the buying power 
and savings. Also due to the spend associated an alternative 
procurement process would need to be completed which would 
not guarantee any savings. 
 
RESOLVED – That the purchase of liquid fuels using the 
Yorkshire Purchasing Organisation framework for the Supply of 
Liquid Fuels be approved. The Council would contract with the 
rank 1 supplier as per the outcome from the mini competition 
process.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

10   LIABILITY INSURANCE TENDER   

Consideration was given to a report of the Director of Finance 
which provided an overview of the recent tendering exercise for 
the Council, Unity Partnership and Miocare’s ongoing liability 
insurance. Following the end of the long-term agreement for 
current insurances, a tender exercise was carried out for 

Page 102



 

insurance and it is necessary to consider the insurance position 
going forward for the next five years. 
The insurances for the Council, Miocare and Unity Partnership 
were currently tendered in two parts: 

 Liability insurance which covered the Council’s legal 
liabilities including employers and public liability 
insurance. Examples of these are highway tripping 
claims and employee accidents.   These policies 
were appointed via a tender process in July 2016, 
these policy long term agreements expire on the 31 
March 2021. 

 Property insurance which provides cover for the Council’s 
assets for fire, lightning, explosion, aircraft, riot, 
storm and flood, and motor insurance. These 
policies were last tendered in 2019 and are subject 
to a Long Term Agreement with insurers until March 
2024. 

The insurance market for Local Authorities traditionally had been 
dominated by three providers.  Two new insurance providers 
entered the public sector market over the past few years.  A 
further insurer remains an interested party for property and 
liability risks but currently has very limited public sector clients. 
 The first quarter of 2020 saw the tenth consecutive quarter of 
price increases across the insurance market. The major price 
increases were around property, financial and professional lines, 
with the largest being in the Directors’ and Officers’ rates.  
Covid-19 has meant changes to prices, cover and risks across 
the public sector. 
Insurers were facing a double hit from coronavirus. Claims were 
increasing and there had also been a hit to reserves from 
volatile financial markets.  The Financial Conduct Authority 
(FCA) brought a case against eight insurers in June 2020 to 
clarify whether 21 policy wordings, affecting potentially 700 
types of policies, 60 insurers, 370,000 policyholders and billions 
in insurance claims, covered disruption and Government-
ordered closures to curb the virus.  The decision which was 
largely in the policy holders favour, had been appealed and the 
judgement was received in January, again in the policyholders’ 
favour.  This decision affected insurance pricing. 
There had been blanket exclusions put in place by insurers in 
relation to pandemic cover, with the adult care sector being one 
of the worst impacted.  Some areas are having insurance 
premiums quadrupled and exclusions put in place in relation to 
coronavirus/pandemic cover.   
In relation to risk exposure for insurers, existing insurance 
policies never anticipated that organisations would find 
themselves having to transform their operations to such an 
extent, and, as a result, have not respond as expected. An 
example of this is the redeployment of staff, where many 
employees who would normally be desk-based were stepping 
up to help operational roles.  The risks associated with an 
employee working in an office are markedly different to those of 
someone providing support for lateral flow tests or marshalling 
immunisation centres. 

Page 103



 

For this tender the Council used the Yorkshire Purchasing 
Organisation Insurance Services Dynamic Purchasing System 
which allowed the Council flexibility, legality, access to pre-
qualified suppliers, and the benefits of aggregation of spend.  
The tender was carried out with the assistance of Gallagher’s, 
the Council’s brokers, and the Council Procurement Team.  
There was now far more scrutiny of individual exposures and 
insurers were being more selective and discriminate more 
against poor risks.  The Council conducted the tender under the 
framework agreement and invited all insurers on the framework 
to tender. The criteria are weighted 50% on service standards 
and cover and 50% on price. 
Four suppliers on the framework confirmed that they were able 
to meet the criteria listed in the tender documentation and 
submitted proposals to the Council. 
An analysis of pricing and quality was carried out by an 
evaluation team made up of the Insurance Team, Procurement 
Section and Gallagher’s.  Quotes were obtained on the basis of 
a three-year deal with an option to extend for a further two 
years, and a straight five year long term agreement.  Most 
insurers provided prices on a five-year long term.  Four insurers 
quoted.   
Details in relation to the bidders are provided in the private 
version of the report due to reasons of commercial 
confidentiality.  However, the evaluation scores for two bidders 
(A) and (B) were higher and therefore subject to detailed 
consideration. 
 
Options/Alternatives  
Option 1 - To award the contract to Bidder A 
Option 2 - To award the contract to Bidder B. 
Option 3 - To not award the contract. This option would leave 
the Council with no formal insurance in place.  The Council 
would then need to self-insure all areas of insurance going 
forward from Council funds. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Cabinet would consider the 
commercially sensitive information detailed at Item 16 of the 
agenda before making a decision.  

11   FLEET FACTORS LTD TO MANAGE THE STORES 
FUNCTION FOR FLEET MANAGEMENT  

 

Consideration was given to a report of the Deputy Chief 
Executive, People and Place which sought approval to award a 
contract to manage the stores function for Fleet Management.  
A re-procurement was undertaken via the Yorkshire 
Procurement Organisation  Fleet Managed Services framework 
(921) as the current contract with Fleet Factors had expired. 
After evaluation Fleet Factors met all the criteria of the tender 
competition and Fleet Management were looking to award the 
contract to Fleet Factors for the next 2 years with an option to 
extend for a further 2 years. 
The main vehicle maintenance workshop was situated on 
Moorhey Street, Oldham. The site was a base for a number of 
frontline services including Fleet, Waste Management and 
Highways. There was a dedicated stores facility based within the 

Page 104



 

vehicle workshop at Moorhey Street depot, containing Impress 
stock, supplied and managed by an outside provider, (Currently 
Fleet Factors Ltd). Oldham’s Fleet consists of over 100 vehicles 
and around 500 items of plant equipment. 
 
Options/alternatives considered  
Option 1: To approve the contract with Fleet Factors Ltd 
Extending the current contract that is in place and keeping the 
Fleet Management stores in a compliant position. 
Option 2: To not approve the contract award to Fleet Factors Ltd 
and be without a stores   provider for Moorhey Street Depot. 
This would either place additional pressure and workload on 
staff to manage the day to day operations of the stores or put 
the Council in a non-compliant position with Fleet Factors Ltd 
continuing to provide the service on an informal basis. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Cabinet would consider the 
commercially sensitive information contained at Item 17 of the 
report before making a decision.  

12   GREEN HOMES GRANT LOCAL AUTHORITY DELIVERY 
SCHEME PHASE 1B  

 

Consideration was given to a report of the Deputy Chief 
Executive, People and Place which sought approval to accept 
Grant Funding Agreements with the Greater Manchester 
Combined Authority and to appoint contractors to deliver the 
Greater Manchester Green Homes Grant Local Authority 
Delivery Scheme. 
In July 2020, the Chancellor announced £2 billion of support 
through the Green Homes Grant (GHG) to save households 
money; cut carbon; and create green jobs. The GHG was 
comprised of up to £1.5 billion of support through energy 
efficiency vouchers and up to £500m of support allocated to 
English Local Authority delivery partners, through the Local 
Authority Delivery (LAD) scheme. 
On 4 August 2020, the Department of Business, Energy and 
Industrial Strategy (BEIS) announced the GHG LAD competition 
for the first £200m phase of funding. 
The primary purpose of the GHG LAD scheme is to raise the 
energy efficiency rating of low income and low EPC rated homes 
(those in EPC band E, F or G). 
BEIS expected the GHG LAD competition to result in the 
following outcomes: 

 Tackle fuel poverty by increasing low-income homes 
energy efficiency rating while reducing their energy 
bills. 

 Support clean growth and promoting global action to 
tackle climate change. 

 Support economic resilience and a green recovery in 
response to the economic impacts of COVID-19, 
creating thousands of jobs. 

 Use learnings from the delivery experience to inform 
the development and design of further energy 
efficiency and heat schemes. 

Page 105



 

The GMCA approached Oldham Council to develop a Greater 
Manchester (GM) GHG LAD Scheme bid, as Oldham is the only 
Council within GM that has an OJEU procured Framework 
Agreement for energy efficiency measures (through its Warm 
Homes Oldham scheme). 
On 28 August 2020, the GMCA submitted a Phase 1A bid for 
£4.7m to mainly retrofit External Wall Insulation and Air Source 
Heat Pumps in homes of all tenures occupied by residents with 
a gross annual household income of less than £30,000 using 
local Trustmark registered contractors. 
Full details of the Phase 1A bid were reported to the GMCA 
meeting held on 25 September 2020. 
On 1 October 2020, BEIS confirmed that the GMCA’s 
application was successful and awarded the bid amount in full. 
However, BEIS was only able to award £76m from the £200m 
available nationally. Therefore, it announced that the remaining 
£124m would be awarded through a Phase 1B competition, 
which was open to existing and new applicants. 
On 3 December 2020, the GMCA submitted a Phase 1B bid for 
£5.6m to mainly retrofit External Wall Insulation, Air Source Heat 
Pumps and Solar PV Systems in homes of all tenures occupied 
by residents with a gross annual household income of less than 
£30,000 using local Trustmark registered contractors. 
Full details of the Phase 1B bid were reported to the GMCA 
meeting held on 18 December 2020. 
On 27 January 2021, BEIS confirmed that the GMCA’s 
application was successful and awarded the bid amount in full. 
The GMCA had issued the following Grant Funding Agreements 
to Oldham Council: 
 

1 Private Sector 
Housing 

2 Social Housing 

Most of the Private Sector Housing funding is to be paid to EON 
Energy Solutions Ltd to deliver energy efficiency measures to 
homes across Greater Manchester. 
Some of the Private Sector Housing funding was to be retained 
by Oldham Council to cover the project management costs 
incurred by the Housing, Warm Homes Oldham, Procurement, 
Legal and Finance teams. 
Some of the Social Housing funding was to be paid to Inspiral 
Oldham Ltd to part fund External Wall Insulation to Crosswall 
Construction Council homes and Cavity Wall Insulation to 
Traditional Construction Council homes on the Primrose Bank 
Estate. The shortfall is to be met from the Housing Revenue 
Account Capital Programme.  
The balance of the Social Housing funding was to be paid to 
Oldham Retirement Housing Partnership Ltd to part fund Solar 
PV Systems to Council bungalows. The shortfall is to be met 
from the Housing Revenue Account Capital Programme.  
These measures would: 

 Improve energy efficiency and reduce fuel poverty, 
which will help to prevent illnesses linked to cold 
conditions. 

Page 106



 

 Contribute towards meeting the Council’s target for 
the borough to be carbon neutral by 2030, which will 
help to tackle climate change 

 Provide work for local contractors and 
apprenticeships or training for new green jobs, which 
will help with the economic recovery from the impact 
of COVID-19. 

 
Option/alternatives considered  
Option 1 - To accept the Grant Funding Agreements issued by 
the GMCA detailed in 2.1 above. 

 To issue a Call-off Order and enter into a contract with 
E.ON Energy Solutions Ltd under the Warm Homes 
Oldham Framework Agreement to deliver energy 
efficiency measures to private sector homes across 
Greater Manchester, as detailed in the GM GHG LAD 
Scheme Phase 1B bid. 

 To issue an Authority Notice of Change to Inspiral 
Oldham Ltd under the Housing PFI Project Agreement to 
install External Wall Insulation to Crosswall Construction 
Council homes and Cavity Wall Insulation to Traditional 
Construction Council homes on the Primrose Bank 
Estate. 

 To issue a Subsequent Phase Notice(s) to Oldham 
Retirement Housing Partnership Ltd under the Deed of 
Variation (Number 2) to the Housing PFI Project 
Agreement to install Solar PV Systems to Council 
bungalows. 
To approve the use of funds from the Housing Revenue 
Account Capital Programme to meet the shortfall in grant 
funding for 3.13 and 3.14 above. 

Option 2 -To reject the Grant Funding Agreements issued by the 
GMCA detailed in 2.1 above. 

 The energy efficiency measures would not be delivered to 
private sector homes across Greater Manchester; the 
External Wall Insulation would not be installed to 
Crosswall Construction Council homes; the Cavity Wall 
Insulation would not be installed to Traditional 
Construction Council homes; and the Solar PV Systems 
would not be installed to Council bungalows. 

 The grant funding would have to be returned to BEIS with 
the consequential reputational damage that this would 
cause to Oldham Council and the GMCA. 

 
RESOLVED – That the Cabinet would consider the 
commercially sensitive information contained at Item 18 of the 
agenda before making a decision. 

13   NEW SADDLEWORTH SCHOOL - AWARD OF CONTRACT 
FOR MAIN HIGHWAYS WORK  

 

Consideration was to a report of the Deputy Chief Executive, 
People and Place, which sought approval to award the contract 
for the Main Highways Works linked to the construction of the 
new Saddleworth School.  

Page 107



 

In accordance with the planning consent for access and wider 
highway works at Diggle, required in connection with the new 
Saddleworth School a tender exercise for these works had 
concluded. The procurement process had been undertaken and 
completed in accordance with the Council’s Contract Procedure 
Rules and Public Contract Regulations 2015. The route to 
market was the Council’s Lot 20 of the Construction and 
Highways Works and Services Framework via The Chest Portal. 
It was reported that a procurement process has been 
undertaken and completed in accordance with the Council’s 
Contract Procedure Rules and Public Contract Regulations 
2015. The route to market was the Council’s Lot 20 of the 
Construction and Highways Works and Services Framework via 
The Chest Portal. 
A total of 5 tenders were returned and evaluated on a cost, 
quality and Social value basis, with the weighting for Technical 
and quality 40%, Social Value 10% and cost 50%. 

 Rank 

Bid 1 Rank 5 

Bid 2 Rank 1  

Bid 3 Rank 2  

Bid 4 Rank 3  

Bid 5 Rank 4  

  
 
Options/alternatives considered  
Option 1 – Not to award the contract as recommended. The risk 
is the delay to the wider highway works which are required to be 
completed by the time the new school is occupied. 
Option 2 - Is to award the contract as recommended in this 
report, which has been tendered in accordance with the 
Council’s Contract Procedure Rules and Public Contract 
Regulations 2015. This will enable the wider highway works to 
be completed by the time the new school is occupied. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Cabinet would consider the 
commercially sensitive information contained at Item 19 of the 
agenda before making a decision.  

14   EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC   

RESOLVED that, in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the 
Local Government Act 1972, the press and public be excluded 
from the meeting for the following items of business on the 
grounds that they contain exempt information under paragraphs 
3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, and it would not, on 
balance, be in the public interest to disclose the reports. 

15   OLDHAM COMMUNITY LEISURE - CONTRACT   

Consideration was given to the commercially sensitive 
information in relation to Item 8 - Oldham Community Leisure – 
Contract. 
 
RESOLVED – That: 

1. An agreement in principle to extend the current contract 
with OCL, the current provider, with some changes to the 
term of this, as was allowed under the current terms of 

Page 108



 

the contract subject to a report being submitted to a 
future Cabinet to agree the extension, revisions and to 
include a social value outcomes framework.   

2. The Council would continue to financially support the 
existing leisure provider as required within the terms of 
the current contract, in order to ensure its survival for the 
2020/21 and 2021/2022 financial year. 

16   LIABILITY INSURANCE TENDER   

Consideration was given to the commercially sensitive 
information in relation to Item 10 – Liability Insurance Tender.  
 
RESOLVED – That: 

1. Approved Bidder A, under the liability tender 
arrangements for the Council, Unity Partnership and 
Miocare be agreed. 

2. The renewals for all other insurances would be 
undertaken with current insurers in line with the long term 
agreements be noted.  
 

17   FLEET FACTORS LTD TO MANAGE THE STORES 
FUNCTION FOR FLEET MANAGEMENT  

 

Consideration was given to the commercially sensitive 
information in relation to Item 11- Fleet Factors LTD to manage 
the stores function for Fleet Management. 
 
RESOLVED – That the award of contract to Fleet Factors Ltd be 
approved.  

18   GREEN HOMES GRANT LOCAL AUTHORITY DELIVERY 
SCHEME PHASE 1B  

 

Consideration was given to the commercially sensitive 
information in relation to Item 12 - Green Homes Grant Local 
Authority Delivery Scheme Phase 1B. 
 
RESOLVED – That recommendations 1-5 contained within the 
report be approved.  

19   NEW SADDLEWORTH SCHOOL - AWARD OF CONTRACT 
FOR MAIN HIGHWAYS WORK  

 

Consideration was given to the commercially information in 
relation to Item 13 - New Saddleworth School - Award of 
Contract for Main Highways Work. 
 
RESOLVED – That: 

1. The winning tender submission named in the report be 
awarded the Main Highway Works Contract. 

2. Authority be delegated to the Director of Economy to 
develop, consult, procure and arrange for the execution 
by the Director of Legal Services of any relevant 
contracts and incidental and ancillary documentation in 
accordance with the award for the Main Highway Works 
Contract.  

 
 

Page 109



 

The meeting started at 6.00pm and finished at 6.27pm 
 

Page 110



1 
 

MINUTES OF THE VIRTUAL MEETING OF THE GREATER MANCHESTER COMBINED AUTHORITY  
HELD ON FRIDAY 27 NOVEMBER 2020 VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS 

 
 

PRESENT: 
 
Greater Manchester Mayor  Andy Burnham (In the Chair) 
Greater Manchester Deputy Mayor Baroness Bev Hughes 
Bolton      Councillor David Greenhalgh  
Bury     Councillor Eamonn O’Brien 
Manchester    Councillor Richard Leese 
Oldham    Councillor Sean Fielding 
Rochdale     Councillor Allen Brett 
Salford     City Mayor Paul Dennett 
Stockport     Councillor Elise Wilson 
Tameside    Councillor Brenda Warrington  
Trafford    Councillor Andrew Western 
Wigan     Councillor Keith Cunliffe 

 
IN ATTENDANCE: 
 
Rochdale    Councillor Janet Emsley 
Trafford    Councillor Joanne Harding 
 
OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE: 
 
GMCA - Chief Executive  Eamonn Boylan 
GMCA - Deputy Chief Executive Andrew Lightfoot 
GMCA – Monitoring Officer  Liz Treacy 
GMCA – GMCA Treasurer  Steve Wilson 
Bolton     Tony Oakman 
Bury      Geoff Little 
Manchester    Louise Wyman 
Oldham    Lewis Greenwood 
Rochdale    Steve Rumbelow 
Salford     Ben Dolan 
Tameside     Steven Pleasant 
Wigan     Alison McKenzie-Folan 
Office of the GM Mayor  Kevin Lee 
TfGM     Kate Brown 
TfGM     Mike Renshaw 
TfGM     Steve Warrener 
TfGM     Simon Warburton 
GMCA     Simon Nokes 
GMCA     Julie Connor 
GMCA     Sylvia Welsh 
GMCA     Nicola Ward 
 

 

Page 111

Agenda Item 9d



2 
 

 
 
 
GMCA 180/20  APOLOGIES 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
That apologies be received and noted from Councillor David Molyneux, Helen Lockwood and Jim 
Taylor. 
 
 
GMCA 181/20  CHAIRS ANNOUNCEMENTS AND URGENT BUSINESS 
 
White Ribbon Day 
 
The GM Mayor thanked members of the Combined Authority for marking White Ribbon Day which 
gave another opportunity to speak out against violence towards women and girls and re-affirm the 
GMCA’s commitment never to condone any such abuse.  Deputy Mayor Beverley Hughes added 
that the 25 November had been set aside as an international day to pursue the elimination of 
violence towards women and girls, but sadly this remained an global issue with over 45,000 reports 
of domestic violence in Greater Manchester alone.  Great strides had been made in supporting 
women and girls, however the CA recognised that there was still work to do. 
 
Tier Arrangements 
 
The new tier arrangements and subsequent restrictions would come into place from the 2 
December following the recent lockdown period but would first be subject to a parliamentary 
debate.  The GM Mayor informed the GMCA that he would be writing to MPs from across Greater 
Manchester on a number of issues relating to the proposals, including the need for a more balanced 
approach to business closures in tier, 3 that moved away from a blanket sectoral approach to 
targeting those premises which posed the most significant risk.  There were growing concerns 
regarding about the cost to the hospitality sector and potential permanent closures of some 
businesses in the event they were unable to open for the winter period.  The importance of a 
meaningful review of the tier system in two weeks time, as figures in Greater Manchester were at 
the fastest rate of decline compared to anywhere else in the country, and therefore the city-region 
should not be retained in a higher tier for any longer than necessary.  There was a reported easing 
of pressure on the GM hospital system and a different trend in case numbers to other areas which 
were already to be placed in tier 2.   Finally, it was clear that for those businesses in tier 3 areas, 
further financial support would be required.  Receiving the same financial support across all tiers 
was illogical and unjustifiable and there needed to be some recognition of those thousands of jobs, 
not just in the hospitality sector, but throughout the supply chains, that had been 
disproportionately affected throughout this pandemic. 
 
Commissioning in the NHS 
 
Councillor Richard Leese, Portfolio Lead for Health, reported that NHS England had recently 
published the Integrated Care Systems Consultation, which looked to create stronger partnerships 
arrangements with the NHS, providing a more prominent role for Primary Care services and the 
move towards a greater locality and neighbourhood focussed system.  The consultation asked 

Page 112



3 
 

stakeholders to look ahead over the next five years, and consider how devolution could further 
support ambitions for an integrated care system, including the potential joining of CCG, Acute and 
Primary Care budgets into a single funding pot that would be devolved to ‘the lowest level’ 
supporting a locality based approach.  Through the creation of the CCG, further clinical leadership 
had supported a greater balanced governance structure, and therefore any new arrangements 
should set to strengthen this and ensure that there remained a voice for all. 
 
The GM Mayor added that this consultation was indicative of the right direction of travel for the 
NHS, but that it was imperative that Greater Manchester ensured it remained inclusive and paved 
the way for a place-based approach across the whole system. 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
1. That the GMCA further express its commitment to proactively supporting the White Ribbon 

Day standing up to eliminate violence towards women and girls. 
 

2. That it be noted that the GM Mayor would be writing to Greater Manchester MPs on a 
number of points hoped to be considered as part of the parliamentary debate on the current 
Tier 3 arrangements for GM, including a more targeted approach towards high-risk 
businesses rather than a blanket approach to closures; the need for a meaningful review in 
two weeks’ time in light of GM’s case numbers current rate of decline; and a fair financial 
support package for businesses that remain in Tier 3 that was reflective of their continued 
loss of income. 
 

3. That the recent publication of the Integrated Care Systems Consultation by Public Health 
England be noted, specifically its locality and neighbourhood focus which reflected the GMs 
place-based approach.   
 

4. That further details on the integrated care system proposals would be considered by the GM 
Health and Care Partnership Board at its meeting in January 2021, following which a GM 
response would be submitted to Public Health England. 

 
 
GMCA 182/20  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
There were no declarations of interests received. 
 
 
GMCA 183/20  MINUTES OF THE GMCA MEETING HELD 30 OCTOBER 2020 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
That the minutes of the GMCA meeting held on 30 October 2020 be approved as a correct record. 
 
 
GMCA 184/20  MINUTES OF THE GMCA OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MEETINGS 

HELD IN NOVEMBER 2020 

Page 113



4 
 

 
RESOLVED /- 
 
1. That the minutes of the meeting of the Corporate Issues and Reform Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee held on 10 November 2020 be noted. 
 
2. That the minutes of the meeting of the Housing, Planning and Environment Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee held on 11 November 2020 be noted. 
 
3. That the minutes of the meeting of the Economy, Business, Skills and Growth Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee held on 13 November 2020 be noted. 
 
 
GMCA 185/20  MINUTES OF THE GMCA AUDIT COMMITTEE - 20 NOVEMBER 2020 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
That the Minutes of the GMCA Audit Committee held on 20 November 2020 be noted. 
 
 
GMCA 186/20  MINUTES OF THE GMCA STANDARDS COMMITTEE - 19 NOVEMBER 2020 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
That the minutes of the GMCA Standards Committee meeting held on 19 November 2020 be noted. 
 
 
GMCA 187/20  GMCA APPOINTMENTS 
 
That the nomination of Councillor John Leech (Manchester) to the GMCA Scrutiny Committee 
Substitutes Pool be approved. 
 
 
GMCA 188/20  BUS REFORM  
 
Eamonn Boylan, Chief Executive Officer GMCA & TfGM, updated members on the aspiration of GM 
Local Authorities and the GMCA to improve the quality and integration of the bus network. The 
options following an independent assessment were set out in the Covid Impact on Bus Franchising 
report, recommending that franchising was the best option for reforming the bus market in GM, 
and it further proposed to undertake a formal consultation on the outcomes of this report between 
the 2 December 2020 – 29 January 2021.  The Chancellor has also indicated his commitment to fund 
the bus reform agenda, notwithstanding that further conversations with Government would be 
welcomed. 
 
Overall Members supported the proposals for the consultation to commence, however there were 
some concerns regarding the current financial climate and the lack of actualised funding from 
Government to progress this agenda.   It was clear that a ‘do nothing’ approach would also have 
cost implications, however, Members were clear that this cost should not be borne by Local 
Authorities or ultimately residents.  Members were acutely aware that over the long term, without 

Page 114



5 
 

significant reform, the cost of subsidising the bus network was likely to increase and under the 
current arrangements, the GMCA had very little control over these increasing costs.  Greater clarity 
on the liabilities and implications for pursuing bus reform were important to be ascertained 
alongside the consultation period.   
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
1. That the contents of the report be noted. 

 
2. That the contents of the Covid-19 Impact on Bus Franchising Report – November 2020  

(Appendix 1) be noted. 
 
3. That the contents of the Independent Auditor’s Assessment of the Transport for Greater 

Manchester’s (TfGM) Covid-19 Impact on Bus Franchising Report dated 19 November 2020 
(Appendix 2) be noted. 

 
4. That the publication of both the Independent Auditor’s Assessment of the Transport for 

Greater Manchester’s (TfGM) Covid-19 Impact on Bus Franchising Report and the Covid-19 
Impact on Bus Franchising Report be approved. 

 
5. That the proposed funding arrangements and mitigations, as set out in the report, be 

approved. 
 
6. That the mitigating responses to a downside risk scenario, as set out in Section 3 of the Covid-

19 Impact on Bus Franchising Report, be noted. 
 
7. That it be agreed to proceed with the Proposed Franchising Scheme by undertaking a public 

consultation, which would commence on 2 December 2020 and end on 29 January 2021.  
 
8. That the Proposed Franchising Scheme, as proposed to be modified following the consultation 

that ended in January 2020 and in accordance with the report (Appendix 3) be approved, for 
the purpose of the recommended consultation.  

 
9. That TfGM be instructed to carry out all tasks necessary to carry out that consultation on 

behalf of the GMCA. 
 
10. That it be noted that a further report will be submitted to the GMCA on the outcome of the 

consultation. 
 

11. That it be noted that the report has been exempt from call in under the provisions of Part 5, 
Rule 16 of the GMCA constitution. 

 
 
GMCA 189/20  HOMELESSNESS REPORTS 
 
The GM Mayor introduced a suite of reports which provided an update on the ongoing 
homelessness response to Covid-19 and informed the GMCA that there would be a further briefing 
on the arrangements that have been implemented across GM to support those who were homeless 
over the winter period, and to launch the Homelessness Prevention Strategy for 2021. 

Page 115



6 
 

 
The challenge of homelessness and rough sleeping still remained evident, with 106 people sleeping 
on the streets, at the last count, a significant number of which were clinically vulnerable.  In 
addition to this, 1000 households remained in emergency accommodation, and 3,600 households in 
statutory accommodation, many of which included children living in temporary accommodation.  
Members recognised that there had been significant progress in addressing the homelessness crisis, 
and thanked partners for their efforts to support schemes including ‘A bed every night’ and the 
Governments Rough Sleeper Programme.  The provision of safe, sustainable accommodation 
remained a key priority, and Members welcomed the work on the young person’s pathfinder to 
identify the wider determinants to homelessness and look to build a stronger network of prevention 
support from the grass roots upwards.  The likely increase of demand on Local Authorities, as a 
result of more people becoming at risk of, or homeless was recognised, and therefore it was 
imperative to put in place a system that was fit for purpose and ready to support people. 
 
10a Homelessness Covid-19 Update 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
1. That the standards developed in the Second Wave Homelessness Covid-19 Preparedness 

Plan to be upheld across Greater Manchester be noted and agreed.  
 
2. That the GMCA commit to meeting the funding gap for the existing A Bed Every Night 

provision (20/21) with £300,000 of Mayoral Precept.  
 
3. That the option to expand A Bed Every Night Covid-safe emergency accommodation capacity 

for people sleeping rough using £300,000 of Mayoral Precept be agreed. 
 
4. That it be noted that the GM Mayor, Andy Burnham, and Salford City Mayor Paul Dennett, 

would be undertaking a press briefing later this afternoon on Greater Manchester’s 
arrangements to support people experiencing homelessness during Winter 2020. 

 
10b Rough Sleepers Accommodation Programme 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
1. That the allocation of funding from the Rough Sleeper Accommodation Programme be 

noted. 
 
2. That the capital and revenue delivery plans and allocated spending be noted. 
 
3. That that proposed spending, as detailed within the report, be approved and that authority 

be delegated to the GMCA Treasurer Steve Wilson, in consultation with Portfolio Lead, 
Salford City Mayor, Paul Dennett, to approve minor amendments.  

 
10c Reform Investment Fund – GM Youth Homelessness Prevention Pathfinder Project (Key 
Decision) 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 

Page 116



7 
 

1. That approval be given to release £663,000 from the Reform Investment Fund in order to 
launch a Young Person’s Homelessness Prevention Pathfinder in response to the additional 
support needs created by Covid-19. 

 
2. That the offer from Wigan Council to be involved in the Pathfinder programme be 

welcomed. 
 
 
GMCA 190/20  GM INDEPENDENT INEQUALITIES COMMISSION 
 
Councillor Brenda Warrington, Portfolio Lead for Age Friendly Greater Manchester & Equalities, 
introduced a report which provided an update on progress with the establishment of the Greater 
Manchester Independent Inequalities Commission, designed to address long term systemic 
inequalities that had been made further evident through the Covid-19 pandemic.  The Independent 
Inequalities Commission was chaired by Kate Pickett (University of York), supported by a panel of 
experts and looked to shift the balance into proactive actions removing inequalities from sectors 
including education, skills and employment.  To prioritise their work, the commission were looking 
for areas where they could add the most value and build on from the listening exercises undertaken 
earlier this year. This work had already begun to highlight how all recovery activity in GM must be 
inclusive and designed to meet the needs of those most vulnerable.   
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
1. That the arrangements for the Independent Inequalities Commission be endorsed. 
 
2. That it be noted that the Commission would submit a further to the GM Mayor and the 

GMCA on its findings in Spring 2021. 
 
 
GMCA 191/20  EXTENSION TO MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTAND (MOU) WITH THE CENTRE 

FOR AGEING BETTER 
 
Councillor Brenda Warrington, Portfolio Lead for Age Friendly Greater Manchester & Equalities, 
took Members through a report which reviewed the scope of the shared ambitions between the 
GMCA and the Centre for Ageing Better, achievements of this strategic partnership to date, and the 
areas of focus if the three year extension was to be approved. 
 
There had been significant progress on this agenda as a result of the creative thinking and expertise 
from the Centre for Ageing Better, and in February 2020 the Strategy was refreshed including six 
key strategic priorities that addressed the cumulative disadvantages of ageing.  It was felt important 
that this partnership should continue as there was already new joint work underway to identify 
barriers for older people and bring about change that would continue to highlight GM as an 
exemplar for age friendly city regions. 
 
Members of the GMCA recognised the strong partnership and welcomed the extension of the MOU, 
in particular its contribution towards the Local Industrial Strategy was noted, in that it had a key 
role in ensuring accessible, adaptable, affordable and safe housing was available to support people 
living independently as long as possible. 
 

Page 117



8 
 

RESOLVED/- 
 
1. That a three-year extension of the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) of a Strategic 

Partnership between Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA) and the Centre for 
Ageing Better be approved.  

 
2. That in support of the MOU, the membership of the GMCA in the Housing Made for 

Everyone (HoME) Coalition be supported and that engagement of GMCA in the work of the 
Good Home Inquiry, commissioned by the Centre for Ageing Better, be noted.  

 
3. That the oversight of delivery of the agreement by the Ageing Hub Executive Group, on 

behalf of the Portfolio Lead Age-Friendly and Equalities and the Ageing Hub Partnership be 
endorsed.  

 
4. That it be noted that the cross-cutting nature of achieving successful delivery of the 

ambitions set out in the MOU and the impact of the specific shared projects will require 
clear governance links to and contributions from the Reform Board, Growth Board and 
Tackling Inequalities Board and the integration of this work across the strategy, policy and 
delivery functions of GMCA and the work of Greater Manchester’s local authorities. 

 
 

GMCA 192/20  PUBLIC SECTOR DECARBONISATION SCHEME (KEY DECISION) 
 
Councillor Andrew Western, Portfolio Lead for the Green City Region, introduced a report which 
outlined the opportunity presented by the Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme for GM to seek 
substantial funding for public building retrofit projects.  If the bid was to be successful, GM would 
receive £40-80m of funding from Salix (a non-departmental public body) to undertake low carbon 
retrofit projects on approximately 156 public buildings across Greater Manchester and potentially 
stimulate further growth.  Feasibility studies had already been completed, and if successful schemes 
would be required to be delivered by September 2021.   
 
The GMCA expressed its thanks to colleagues from across all GM Local Authorities for developing a 
suitable programme of works involving a range of partners, and confirmation of the outcome of the 
bid was anticipated late December. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
1. That the opportunity to bid for circa £40-80m of Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme 

funding from Salix (NDPB) be noted. 
 
2.  That, subject to a successful bid, the receipt of and defrayment of these funds either 

directly or via GM Local Authorities be approved and that authority be delegated to the 
GMCA Treasurer and Monitoring Officer to sign all necessary legal agreements. 

 
3. That it be noted that Chief Executive Officer, GMCA & TfGM and GMCA Treasurer approved 

in October, under delegated powers, the receipt of circa £1m grant from Salix (NPBD) to be 
utilised on feasibility studies on low carbon retrofit assessments of public buildings to 
support this bid. 

 

Page 118



9 
 

4. That it be noted that equalities impact from this proposal will be managed via utilising 
delivery companies with robust equality policies. The environmental outcome is to 
substantially reduce the carbon emissions from approximately 156 public buildings in 
Greater Manchester. 

 
GMCA 193/20  NATIONAL WASTE AND RESOURCES STRATEGY 
 
Councillor Andrew Western, Portfolio Lead for the Green City Region, took Members through a 
report which provided an overview of the draft National Waste and Resources Strategy, potential 
implications for waste collection and disposal and a draft timetable for implementation.  The 
second phase of the consultation was now underway, and GM would be providing a response, 
however, it was important that the GMCA kept a watching brief over these potential implications 
that would have to be delivered across GM. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
1. That the potential impacts for waste collection and disposal be noted. 
 
2. That the proposed scenario modelling agreed with district waste officers be noted. 
 
 
GMCA 194/20  MONTHLY ECONOMIC REVIEW 
 
Councillor Elise Wilson, Portfolio Lead for the Economy, provided the GMCA with the latest version 
of the Greater Manchester Economic Resilience Dashboard, within which potential significant 
economic challenges were detailed for the short, medium and long term future.  From the 2 
December 2020, GM would be placed into Tier 3 restrictions, which would have further impacts on 
the hospitality sector predominately and was not sustainable.  Members urged for a meaningful 
Government review at the earliest opportunity, and that in the meantime Local Authorities 
continue to support businesses as much as possible and signpost them to the range of support also 
on offer from the Growth Company. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
That the latest update of the Greater Manchester Economic Resilience Dashboard be noted. 
 
 
GMCA 195/20  GREATER MANCHESTER PREPARATIONS FOR EU EXIT AND ANALYSIS OF THE 

INTRODUCTION OF THE POINTS BASED IMMIGRATION SYSTEM 
 
Councillor Elise Wilson, Portfolio Lead for the Economy, introduced a report which provided an 
update on the coordination of activities across Greater Manchester to prepare for the end of the 
transition period from the EU on the 31 December 2020 and the introduction of a points-based 
immigration system from the 1 January 2021 including the possible implications for GM.  The report 
also highlighted the work underway on the Greater Manchester International Strategy and how it 
sought to respond to issues arising from the EU exit, along with identifying opportunities for 
continued joint working between GM and individual EU nations. 
 

Page 119



10 
 

The EU exit was clearly on businesses radar and was fast approaching, and they were continuing to 
gain further understanding of supply chains and set up systems to better manage stock levels. 
 
The new points-based immigration system would require migrants to seek sponsorship from UK 
employers in advance and have a confirmed minimum salary of £25,600 to enable their move to the 
UK.  This would be a minor adjustment to those migrating from outside of the EU, but a significant 
change for those who have previously moved freely to the UK from other EU countries, which was 
anticipated to have the most impact on the labour market for low skilled / low paid jobs. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
1. That the work underway by the GM Brexit Readiness Group to understand the impacts arising 

from EU exit and to coordinate responses across the city-region be noted. 

 

2. That the work underway on the GM International Strategy and ongoing partnership working 

with EU nations to develop GM opportunities in the future be noted. 

 
3. That the analysis undertaken of the points-based immigration system to be implemented 

from 1st January 2021 be noted. 

 
4. That it be agreed that a further update on Greater Manchester preparations for EU exit be 

submitted to the December GMCA meeting. 

 
 
GMCA 196/20  GREATER MANCHESTER LOCAL INDUSTRIAL STRATEGY IMPLEMENTATION 

ONE YEAR REVIEW 
 

Councillor Elise Wilson, Portfolio Lead for the Economy, introduced a report which updated the 
GMCA on the Implementation Plan for the Greater Manchester Local Industrial Strategy which was 
noted as critical to the pace of recovery for GM and would be a platform for future investment to 
be built upon.  The report was an annual review against all actions, one year after its initial approval 
and evidenced its integrated thread across GM and Local Authority policies.  It further recognised 
the radical impact of Covid on the GM economy, and to fully understand this, an initial impact 
assessment had been undertaken against each action.  In year 2, the Implementation Plan would 
prioritise areas for rapid intervention including the creation of good quality jobs and ways to protect 
the long term growth of the GM economy. 
 
The GM Mayor added that the Local Industrial Strategy was key to improving the employment offer 
for everyone, ensuring good quality, high standard jobs.  It was important that this document was 
reviewed on a regular basis, but it would also be helpful to have some further clarity from 
Government as to how the UK Shared Prosperity Fund could support its ambitions. 
 
Members echoed these concerns, and further added that greater clarity on the future of the Local 
Growth Fund would also be welcomed.  In the latest Comprehensive Review there had been no 
mention of the devolution of these funds to allow for sub-regions to design their own investment 
proposals, nor any inflation on the Shared Prosperity Fund or any equivalent to previous match 
funding opportunities.    The relationship between the Levelling Up Fund and Shared Prosperity 
Fund also remained vague, and concerns were raised in relation to the £20m cap on the levelling up 

Page 120



11 
 

fund which restricted its ability to support substantial projects.  This approach seemed to contradict 
strategic regional investment and was a concerning direction of travel. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
1. That the progress so far to implement the Greater Manchester Local Industrial Strategy, how 

activity was being adapted in response to the impacts of COVID-19, and the priorities for the 

following year, be noted. 

 
2. That the Year 2 Milestones (Annex 3) be agreed. 

 
3. That it be noted that a further update will be submitted to the GMCA in November 2021 to 

review progress in Year 2 and agree the Year 3 (2021/22) milestones. 

 
4. That it be agreed that further clarity from Government on the position of the UK Shared 

Prosperity Fund was required as soon as possible. 

 
 

GMCA 197/20  GREATER MANCHESTER THE KEY ROUTE NETWORK REVIEW 
 
The GM Mayor, Andy Burnham, took Members through a report which reviewed the current GM 
Key Route Network to ensure its full alignment with the Department for Transport’s recently 
introduced Major Road Network.  As there were 626km of strategic roads currently maintained by 
Local Authorities in GM, it was useful to align these to enable a greater focus on crucial roads and 
enable access to more funding from the National Roads Fund. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
1. That the proposed alignment of the Key Route Network with the Major Road Network, as 

published by the Department for Transport, be approved. 
 
2. That the proposed additions to the Key Route Network (Appendix 1), extending the Key Route 

Network by 29.7km be approved. 
 

 

GMCA 198/20  HS2 PHASE 2B WESTERN LEG DESIGN REFINEMENT CONSULTATION – GM 
RESPONSE APPROACH 

 
The GM Mayor, Andy Burnham, introduced a report which provided an overview of the proposed 
approach to responding to the HS2 Phase 2b Western Leg Design Refinement Consultation.  This 
review offered an opportunity to look again at the proposals and identify whether any of the 
changes could further reduce costs.  Included was the relocation of the rolling stock depot to Crewe, 
changes to the network around Manchester Airport and some additional changes around 
Manchester Piccadilly train station. 
 
The GMCA noted that these proposals did not affect the large-scale proposals which were still on 
the table regarding additional underground platforms at Manchester Piccadilly station.  Members 
reported that a recent briefing regarding improved services to Sheffield had further strengthened 

Page 121



12 
 

the investment case for these proposals.  Furthermore the Green Book Review (2020) had set out 
Government’s commitment to consider such schemes under its revised arrangements. 
 
In relation to the tunnel from the Airport to Manchester Piccadilly, the current proposals for vent 
shafts in the Birchfield Road area had been met with serious opposition from residents and local 
councillors as they would have a negative impact on local amenities including a primary school, and 
a number of alternative locations had been put forward. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
1. That the report be noted.  
 
2. That authority be delegated to the Chief Executive Officer, GMCA and TfGM to approve the 

final response to the consultation. 
 

3. That the residents of Birchfield Road, in their request for an alternative site for the vent 
shafts, that would not negatively impact local amenities and primary school be supported and 
included in Greater Manchester’s response. 
 

 
GMCA 199/20  THE MAYOR'S CYCLING AND WALKING CHALLENGE FUND (MCF) - FINANCIAL 

APPROVALS (KEY DECISION) 
 
 
The GM Mayor, Andy Burnham, introduced a report which sought funding approvals to ensure the 
continued delivery of the Mayor’s Challenge Fund programme for walking and cycling.  There had 
been significant progress to date, with a steady flow of projects and 56 schemes now having had 
their delivery costs approved.  
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
1. That the agreed Mayor’s Cycling and Walking Fund delivery priorities across GM and the 

prioritised first phase for the programme (Appendix 1) be noted. 
 
2. That £2.82 million Mayor’s Cycling and Walking funding for the Manchester Beswick (Phase 

1) and Chorlton (Phase 4) schemes be approved, in order to secure full approval and enable 
the signing of a delivery agreement. 

 
3. That the release of up to £2.74 million of development cost funding for the four Mayor’s 

Cycling and Walking Fund schemes be approved. 
 

 
GMCA 200/20  BUDGET REPORTS  
 
Steve Wilson, GMCA Treasurer, took Members of the GMCA through a suite of reports in relation to 
the budget for 2021/22, including the financial implications of Covid-19, the latest position in 
relation to retained business rates pilot scheme, an update on the capital expenditure programme 
and information on the forecasted revenue outturn position at the end of September 2020.   
 

Page 122



13 
 

In relation to the impact of Covid, the figures included in the report were based on the latest 
returns to DHCLG and included some of the impact of the second wave of cases which had seen a 
cost increase to Local Authorities and an overall shortfall of £398m across GM Local Authorities, 
TfGM and GMCA budgets for 2020/21.  This figure also expected funding from Government to cover 
the loss of fare box revenues for Metrolink. 
 
The second paper reported on the second year of the retained business rates retention pilot and 
sought the GMCA’s approval to progress seven schemes at a cost of £15.9m.  To date, there had 
been £16.7m returned to GM Local Authorities, however there were no further returns expected 
this year.  Each of the previously agreed schemes would be reviewed against slippage, non-
completion or potential reduced costs and any further funds would be returned to Local Authorities 
as appropriate. 
 
Members queried whether match funding had been confirmed for schemes in the pipeline and the 
GMCA Treasurer confirmed that this was still to be determined, but once confirmed an update 
would be provided. 
 
In relation to the proposed Unified Architecture scheme, Members requested further information 
before being able to progress any approval decision. 
 
 

 20a      COVID UPDATE 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
1. That the report be noted. 

 
2. That the estimated financial impacts of COVID 19 on GM districts, GMCA and TFGM 

budgets be noted. 
 

  
20b  BUSINESS RATES UPDATE (KEY DECISION) 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
1. That the report be noted. 
 
2. That the latest position against the approved investments from the retained business rates 

reserve be noted. 
 
3. That the proposed seven additional schemes at a cost of £15.9m be approved. 
 
4. That the return of the residual funding of £16.7 to the 10 Greater Manchester Authorities 

on the proposed basis be approved, final details to be confirmed between the GMCA 
Treasurer and the District Treasurers. 

 
5. That the proposals for ongoing monitoring of business rates investments be noted and that 

the use of any further slippage be submitted to the GMCA for approval with priority placed 
on supporting businesses and district’s financial positions. 

Page 123



14 
 

 
6. That further information on the proposed scheme by Unified Architecture be provided to 

Councillor Richard Leese in order to give further assurance as to its potential delivery. 
 

20c  CAPITAL UPDATE 2020/2021 (KEY DECISION) 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
1. That the current 2020/21 forecast increased spend of £19.710 million compared to the 

2020/21 capital forecast approved at the September 2020 GMCA meeting be noted. 
 
2. That the addition to the Capital Programme of the retrofit element of the Clean Bus Fund 

project (part of the Greater Manchester Clean Air Programme) with a current forecast 
expenditure of £3.4 million in 2020/21 and of £12.0 million in 2021/22 be approved. 

 
3. That the up to £4 million for #SafeStreetsSaveLives, funded from the earmarked reserves for 

revenue contribution to capital be approved and that it be noted that capital allocation in 
the programme for Mayor’s Challenge Fund will be reduced by up to £4 million. 

 
4. That the transfers to Districts of Pothole and Challenge funding totalling £20,899 million be 

approved. 

 
20d  REVENUE UPDATE 2020/2021 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
1. That it be noted that the Mayoral General revenue outturn position for 2020/21 shows a 

breakeven position. 
 
2. That it be noted that the GMCA General Budget revenue outturn position for 2020/21 shows 

a breakeven position. 
 
3. That it be noted that the Mayoral General – GM Fire & Rescue revenue outturn position for 

2020/21 shows an underspend position of £4.003 million. 
 
4. That it be noted that the Waste outturn position of breakeven for 2020/21 following the 

approval of proposals by the GMCA on 31st July and 25th September and the agreement in 
principle to refund the Districts for the levy adjustment that will be paid to GMCA as a result 
of increased tonnages 

 
5. That it be noted that the TfGM revenue position for 2020/21 was in line with budget after 

efficiency savings and transfers from reserves of £1.6 million. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 124



15 
 

GMCA 201/20  GM INVESTMENT FRAMEWORK: CONDITIONAL PROJECT APPROVALS (KEY 
DECISION) 

 
Eamonn Boylan, Chief Executive Officer GMCA & TfGM, introduced a report which sought approval 
for investment into Commercial and Northern Limited (Bank North) and Tootoot Limited (Tootoot) 
from re-cycled funds.  The first loan was to a small GM business unable to access other funds, and 
the second to a GM Tech Solutions firm developing software to address safeguarding, bullying and 
harassment. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
1. That the funding application for Commercial and Northern Ltd (investment of £1,250,000) be 

approved and progressed to due diligence. 
 

2. That the funding application for Tootoot Ltd (investment of £80,000) be approved and 
progressed to due diligence. 
 

3. That authority be delegated to the GMCA Treasurer and GMCA Monitoring Officer to review 
the due diligence information in respect of the above companies, and, subject to their 
satisfactory review and agreement of the due diligence information and the overall detailed 
commercial terms of the transactions, to sign off any outstanding conditions, issue final 
approvals and complete any necessary related documentation in respect of the investments 
at 1 and 2 above. 
 

 
GMCA 202/20  EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
That, under section 100 (A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the press and public should be 
excluded from the meeting for the following items on business on the grounds that this involved the 
likely disclosure of exempt information, as set out in the relevant paragraphs of Part 1, Schedule 
12A of the Local Government Act 1972 and that the public interest in maintaining the exemption 
outweighed the public interest in disclosing. 
 
 
GMCA 203/20  GM INVESTMENT FRAMEWORK: CONDITIONAL PROJECT APPROVALS 
 
Note: This item was considered in support of the Part A – GM Investment Framework: Conditional 
Project Approvals (minutes reference GMCA 201/20) 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

1.  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 125



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

MINUTES OF THE VIRTUAL MEETING OF THE GREATER MANCHESTER COMBINED AUTHORITY  
HELD ON FRIDAY 18 DECEMBER 2020 VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS 

 
 

PRESENT: 
 
Greater Manchester Mayor  Andy Burnham (In the Chair) 
Greater Manchester Deputy Mayor Baroness Bev Hughes 
Bolton      Councillor Martin Cox 
Bury     Councillor Eamonn O’Brien 
Manchester    Councillor Richard Leese 
Oldham    Councillor Sean Fielding 
Salford     City Mayor Paul Dennett 
Stockport     Councillor Tom McGee 
Tameside    Councillor Brenda Warrington  
Trafford    Councillor Andrew Western 
Wigan     Councillor David Molynuex 

 
IN ATTENDANCE: 
 
Tameside    Councillor Leanne Feeley 
 
OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE: 
 
GMCA - Chief Executive  Eamonn Boylan 
GMCA - Deputy Chief Executive Andrew Lightfoot 
GMCA – Monitoring Officer  Liz Treacy 
GMCA – GMCA Treasurer  Steve Wilson 
Bolton     Tony Oakman 
Bury      Geoff Little 
Salford     Jim Taylor 
Stockport    Caroline Simpson 
Tameside     Steven Pleasant 
Trafford    Sara Todd 
Wigan     Alison McKenzie-Folan 
Office of the GM Mayor  Kevin Lee 
GMCA     Simon Nokes 
GMCA     Julie Connor 
GMCA     Sylvia Welsh 
GMCA     Nicola Ward 
GMCA     Gemma Marsh 
Young Person’s Guarantee, Chair Diane Modhal 

 
 
GMCA 204/20  APOLOGIES 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 

Page 127



2 
 

1. That apologies be received and noted from Cllr Elise Wilson (Cllr Tom McGee attending), Cllr 
David Greenhalgh (Cllr Martin Cox attending) Joanne Roney and Pam Smith. 
 

2. That apologies from Councillor Allen Brett and Steve Rumbelow (Rochdale), who were unable to 
join due to technical difficulties be noted. 

 
 
GMCA 205/20  CHAIRS ANNOUNCEMENTS AND URGENT BUSINESS 
 
The GM Mayor expressed his disappointment that all GM boroughs remained in the Government’s 
tier 3 restrictions despite progress in all areas, and overall covid case numbers lower than the UK 
average.  Thanks were expressed to the residents of Greater Manchester for their sacrifices that 
have contributed to this position, and recognition as to the added pressures that this puts onto both 
individuals and businesses as they face the challenges of a winter period within these restrictions.  
Concerns as to the impact of an ease of restrictions over the Christmas period were noted, 
specifically the added pressure that this would give to the enforcement action that would be 
required to be undertaken by Greater Manchester Police. 
 
Sir Richard Leese, Deputy Mayor and Portfolio Lead for Health added that the tier decision of 
Government was inexplicable in light of all indicators moving in the right direction.  The unified 
position to apply these restrictions across GM was not in line with decisions taken to split other 
areas of the UK, such as Surrey, and the people of GM would be understandably frustrated by this.  
It was important that messaging continued to advise people to adhere to social distancing, in 
particular over the Christmas period when potentially mixing with elderly or vulnerable relatives. 
 
Members of the GMCA expressed their concern as to the lack of clarity regarding how an area can 
move tiers, when all indicators were pointing to another tier, the recent push back from 
Government regarding GM’s position was seeming to undermine the whole tiering system and 
could further reduce public confidence.  It was clear that there would be a significant 
disproportionate impact on businesses, specifically those in the hospitality industry and further 
Government support would be essential to their survival.  
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
1. That the GMCA express its disappointment that the Government had decided that GM will 

remain Tier 3, despite the Covid related data evidencing the decline in infection rates in all 
GM districts and overall the number of cases in GM now being below the national average.  
 

2. That the GMCA recognise the exceptional challenges for businesses as a result of GM 
remaining in Tier 3, in particular those businesses in the hospitality sector, and the GMCA 
would continue to lobby Government for extra support for those businesses unable to open 
and operate in the usual way.   
 

3. That the GMCA would continue to urge Government to provide clarity on the thresholds that 
would enable GM to move to Tier 2, together with a full review of tiers at the earliest 
opportunity. 
 

4. That it be noted that the GM Mayor and Deputy Mayor would be making a statement later 
today following the recent announcement by HMIC (Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of 

Page 128



3 
 

Constabulary and Fire & Rescue Services) regarding the requirement for Greater Manchester 
Police to enter special measures. 

 
 
GMCA 206/20  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
That Salford City Mayor Paul Dennett and Councillor Richard Leese declared a personal, prejudicial 
disclosable interest in Item 18 – GM Investment Framework Approvals. 
 
 
GMCA 207/20  MINUTES OF THE GMCA MEETING HELD 27 NOVEMBER 2020 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
That the minutes of the GMCA meeting held on 27 November 2020 be approved as a correct record. 
 
 
GMCA 208/20  MINUTES OF THE GMCA OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MEETINGS 

HELD IN DECEMBER 2020 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 

1. That the minutes of the Economy, Business Skills & Growth Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
held on 4 December 2020 be noted. 
 

2. That the minutes of the Corporate Issues & Reform Overview & Scrutiny Committee held on 
8 December 2020 be noted. 

 
 
GMCA 209/20  GMCA APPOINTMENTS 
 
1. That the appointment of Councillor Carter, replacing Councillor Duffield (Trafford), on the 

Corporate Issues & Reform Overview & Scrutiny Committee be approved. 
 

2. That the appointment of Councillor Adshead, replacing Councillor Lloyd (Trafford) on the 
GMCA Waste & Recycling Committee be approved. 

 
 
GMCA 210/20  YOUNG PERSONS GUARANTEE  
 
Diane Modhal, Chair of the Young Person’s Task Force introduced a report which provided an 
overview of the Young Person’s Guarantee work to date and outlined the progress from the youth 
consultation period undertaken in June 2020.  The recommendations within the report outlined the 
areas that the Task Force and Youth Advisory Group felt were the current priorities that should be 
addressed. 
 

Page 129



4 
 

Members recognised that 2020 had disproportionately affected young people, and that there was a 
role for the GMCA in improving the offer available to them in terms of services and support and 
enabling them to recover as promptly and successfully from the pandemic as possible.  It was 
important that these recommendations had been developed from the most significant concerns of 
young people themselves as this furthers understanding and helps GM to get the offer right. 
 
The leadership and passion in young person’s engagement was praised, as this was contrary to the 
disconcerting way young people were currently being treated in society, in relation to the cost of 
higher education, the lack of suitable housing, zero hour contracts, and the impact of welfare 
reform.  All of which had been further negatively impacted through the pandemic. 
 
The under-funding of youth services and preventative engagement was highlighted as a further 
system concern, as this work had previously supported people not to ‘fall through the net’ or 
experience exclusion. 
 
There was strong support for the recommendations contained within the report, and Members 
added that they helped to offer some real hope and optimism for young people across GM, 
enabling new doors to be opened to them and further inequalities to be addressed. 
 
In response, Diane Modahl thanked the GMCA for their support, and echoed the sense of urgency in 
securing some traction for the highlighted priorities.  A set of measures to be held accountable by 
would be useful in ensuring the availability of resources to support delivery throughout 2021, 
however the progress to date was also noted by the GMCA. 
 
The GM Mayor added that there was already strong commitment to action across all GM 
authorities, supported by a recent revision of the GMCAS (Greater Manchester Apprenticeship and 
Careers Service) as a single portal for opportunities for young people.  All partners were thanked for 
their commitment to the GMCAS scheme, however it was felt that it could be further populated in 
relation to internships and work experience opportunities. 
 
Ensuring provision for young people within the current challenges for Local Authorities would have 
its difficulties, therefore innovative networks and funding streams alongside new ways of working 
would be imperative to its success.  However, it was recognised that the work of the Youth Task 
Force further emphasised Greater Manchester’s commitment to support young people in times of 
great uncertainty and an extension of the Our Pass Pilot would provide free travel to education and 
offer further opportunities to help to get their lives back on track. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 

1. That the report and final project report be noted. 
 

2. That the further development of the Young Person's Guarantee into a set of actions with Key 
Performance Indicators be agreed, covering: 

  
I. Staff resource capacity to develop the scope of the actions and recommendations (from 

the final project report attached) within the context of the city-region; across partners, 
business & LAs. This will sit in the GMCA (W&S Team) and work across all areas within the 
recommendations to act as a connecter to develop the work. 
 

Page 130



5 
 

II. Exploration of additional resource requirements to deliver the recommendations in the 
final project report and where this is within current budgets or where there are gaps; also 
what can be taken forward at no cost. 

 
III. Accountability process retaining Diane Modahl as Chair of the Young Persons Guarantee, 

including the engagement of the GM Youth Combined Authority. 
 

IV. Evaluation of what has been successful: Have we reached Young People…One year on. 
 

3. That the GMCA commit to action in localities by supporting the generation of further 
commitments that will be published on the GM Apprenticeships & Careers Service. 
 

4. That the extension of the Our Pass Pilot for further year, from 1 September 2021, be 
approved. 
 

5. That a further report be submitted to the GMCA on progress against the developed Key 
Performance Indicators. 
 

6. That it be noted that the GMCA would continue to make further representations to 
Government in the New Year regarding the fair allocation of examination grades for current 
Year 11 and Year 13 pupils in recognition of the time spent out of the classroom during the 
Covid 19 pandemic. 

 
 
GMCA 211/20  NO CHILD GOES HUNGRY 
 
The GM Mayor introduced a report which outlined the proposals for the ‘No Child Goes Hungry’ 
campaign over Christmas 2020 which was aimed at responding to gaps in national provision and 
supporting the ongoing humanitarian response being led by GM Local Authorities.  The report both 
sought to raise awareness of the immediate intentions of the campaign as well as the long-term 
ambitions of future work to tackle the issue of child poverty across the city-region.  It was noted 
that the number of families struggling financially during 2020 was continuing to rise, and thanks 
were expressed to local leadership who have stepped forward to plug the gaps created by 
Government policy for demographic groups including those recently unemployed, self-isolating and 
with no recourse to public funds.  Over 1000 emergency food cards had been distributed across GM 
providing a lifeline to children and young people in crisis.  
 
Members added that they would also be continuing to lobby for the continuation of Universal 
Credit post April 2021 and the end of the benefit cap.  It was important not to leave people behind 
as we move into post pandemic recovery and to ensure minimal impact on families.  However, the 
challenge of poverty was recognised as considerable and growing and therefore, it would be 
imperative for the GMCA to keep a wider focus on the underlying issues of poverty and maintain 
pressure on Government to improve systems that currently fail people. 
 
Schemes such as the Northern Roots project in Oldham were recognised as flagships in relation to 
food poverty and should be developed as part of the long-term solution to this issue through real 
and sustainable Government investment. 
 

Page 131



6 
 

The GMCA further recognised the vital support of the 3rd sector in supporting people with no access 
to other funds, such as food parcels provided to 300 students who were in GM over the Christmas 
period.  However, this support should not have to be relied upon in the modern world and it was 
anticipated that demand would only increase following the end of the furlough scheme and as the 
pandemic continued. 
 
The GM Mayor summarised, that as a city-region there was a need for creative service design that 
stopped people falling through the gaps and ensured that they were supported to access all 
opportunities available to them.  
 
RESOLVED/- 
 

1. That it be noted that the GMCA supports the immediate intentions of the No Child Should 
Go Hungry campaign over the Winter to fill gaps in national provision and provide further 
support to work being led locally. 
 

2. That it be noted that whilst there was a crisis response element to this campaign it was 
intended that a more upstream approach to fulfilling the pledge ‘No Child Should Go Hungry’ 
in GM would be developed over coming months, building on learning through this phase. 

 
 
GMCA 212/20  LIVING WITH COVID RESILLIENCE PLAN PROGRESS UPDATE 
 
The GM Mayor took Members through a report which provided an update on the progress of the 
implementation of the Living with Covid Resilience Plan and the development of mechanisms to 
drive system change to better respond to the environmental and equalities impacts arising. 
 
The initial plan was approved in September 2020 and has been used as a route map for the work of 
the GMCA and partners over recent months.  The second wave of the pandemic had further tested 
structures and increased the pressure on resources and it was now a timely opportunity to review 
the progress and determine the way forward in the current landscape.  A recent survey undertaken 
had given further insight into the lived out experience of Covid-19 for people across Greater 
Manchester and had recognised the significant hardship that was being faced across the sub-region 
with over half of respondents also reporting a negative impact on their mental health. 
 
The GM Tackling Inequalities Board had been established to create the infrastructure by which a 
focus could be maintained on these issues going forward as it was clear that inequalities as a result 
off the pandemic were growing. 
 
Work so far had included progress on the ‘No Child Goes Hungry’ initiative, a continuation of ‘A Bed 
Every Night’ providing accommodation for 520 people over the Christmas period, and had 
highlighted the need for both digital exclusion and mental health provision to be prioritised as we 
move into 2021. 
 
Members welcomed this update, and reported how it had further spotlighted the need to address 
significant inequalities across GM.  The Tackling Inequalities Board would be overseeing this agenda 
and had already begun to advise Local Authorities as to identifying the potential inequality impact 
of any new policy that was coming into place.  This work would be able to further support 

Page 132



7 
 

Government’s ambition to level up communities across England and keep Greater Manchester a 
great place to live. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 

1. That the progress made over the first quarter delivery and the overall progress as reported 
in the Greater Manchester Strategy outcomes dashboards be noted.  
 

2. That the GMCA would continue to pursue tackling the impact of inequalities, digital 
exclusion and improving the provision of mental health support services. 
 

3. That the GMCA’s commitment to ensuring that all new policies would be assessed against 
their potential impact on inequalities be reaffirmed. 

 
 
GMCA 213/20  MONTHLY ECONOMIC RECOVERY DASHBOARD 
 
Jim Taylor, Lead GM Chief Executive for the Economy introduced a report which provided the latest 
version of the Greater Manchester Economy Resilience Dashboard.  It detailed how there had been 
a rapid increase in benefit claimants in April/May 2020 which had now levelled out but remained 
high.  8% of the GM workforce remained furloughed, equating to 103,000 people.  Further 
unemployment was also envisaged for the next few months contributing to a forecasted reduction 
in GVA (gross value added) of 10% by the end of the financial year. 
 
Members informed the GMCA that there had been recent positive news in relation to new 
ownership of the Trafford Centre as a major employer and retail location for Greater Manchester.  It 
was also recognised that the recent extension of the Metrolink line to Trafford Park would 
contribute to making it a significant destination once the covid restrictions had been removed. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 

1. That the latest update of the Greater Manchester Economic Resilience dashboard be noted. 
 

2. That it be noted that the online version of the Economic Recovery Dashboard was updated 
regularly and available online. 
 

3. That the recent news regarding the future ownership of the Trafford Centre be welcomed 
given the significant role in providing employment opportunities and the wider economic 
impact across GM. 

 
 

GMCA 214/20  GREATER MANCHESTER PREPARATIONS FOR EU EXIT AND UPDATED 
ANALYSIS ON THE POSSIBLE ECONOMIC IMPACTS 

 
Jim Taylor, Lead GM Chief Executive for the Economy provided an update on the coordination of 
activities across GM to prepare for the end of the EU transition period on the 31 December 2020.  
The report provided an overview of the current position regarding GM activity around the 
International Strategy, EU funding and a detailed analysis of possible economic impacts arising from 
Brexit.  Greater Manchester’s coordination group continued to meet to look at areas including 

Page 133



8 
 

border control and civil contingencies and plans continued to change in the rapidly moving climate.  
Data within the report offered a range of forecasted scenarios built on previous reports to ensure 
the GMCA were as informed as much as possible on the current position.  Furthermore, it was 
recognised how important the refreshed International Strategy would be to progressing forward as 
a no deal Brexit could result in a further 2% reduction in the UK’s GVA. 
 
Members were concerned that an Australian style deal would not be positive for the UK’s economy, 
especially in a post-covid climate where public finances were in a difficult state, and therefore urged 
that negotiations remained open to ensure an ongoing trade relationship with the EU. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 

1. That the work underway by the GM Brexit Readiness Group to understand the impacts 

arising from EU exit and the coordination of responses from across the city-region be noted. 

 
2. That the work underway on the GM International Strategy and ongoing partnership working 

with EU nations to develop GM opportunities in the future be noted. 
 
3. That the update provided regarding EU funding sources be noted. 

 
4. That the refreshed economic analysis undertaken and possible implications for the GM 

economy be noted. 

 
5. That it be noted that the GMCA would continue to engage with Government to pursue  a 

deal for UK that maintains a trading relationship with the EU, given that an ‘Australian Style 

Deal’ would be detrimental to the economy. 

 
 
GMCA 215/20  THE MAYORS CYCLING AND WALKING CHALLENGE FUND 
 
The GM Mayor introduced a report which sought funding approvals in order to ensure the 
continued delivery of the Mayor’s Challenge Fund programme for walking and cycling.  There had 
been significant progress to date, and thanks were expressed to the team.  This round of approvals 
sought to further develop the BeeNetwork which had wider benefits to health, the environment 
and people’s overall quality of life.  In the recent announcement regarding Active Travel funding 
from Government, Greater Manchester had been successful in being awarded £12.7m for capital 
costs which evidenced Government’s confidence in GM’s ability to deliver. 
 
Members of the GMCA welcomed the additions to the network and recognised their role in 
enabling people to move about the city region.  Having an interconnected public transport and 
active travel system would be crucial to reducing the number of cars on the road.  Schemes should 
be ambitious, have significant capacity and create space for more investment and further funding.  
Government support should also influence national and local policy and allow Local Authorities to 
deliver on their ambitions. 
 
Members expressed their pride for the initiative that Greater Manchester had already shown to this 
agenda which had enabled the programme to have already achieved so much.  The support from 
officers at TfGM and across Local Authorities was welcomed, as were their creative ideas and 
solutions.  In developing a BeeNetwork, school pupils had been offered safe routes to school, older 

Page 134



9 
 

people were able to move about their neighbourhood with reduced fear of the roads and there 
were now areas where a number of modes had successfully been able to share a space. 
 
There was strong support for the initiatives included within the report, and those already being 
delivered across the sub-region.  However, there were reports of some shared space schemes not 
being as welcomed by all road users.  Particularly a scheme in Bolton where feedback from cyclists 
and motorists was being collected to ensure their comments could be taken into account for further 
scheme adaptations or other similar future schemes. 
 
The Covid lockdown periods had significantly encouraged residents to walk and cycle more, and all 
GM boroughs had been able to benefit from the growth of the BeeNetwork to offer further routes 
for their communities encouraging more active travel and spreading the reach of the network.  
Members were keen to ensure that schemes remained equitable across GM, and where possible 
that they connected with other routes and other areas.  People had already reported that they had 
allowed them to better reach employment and educational sites, access retail provision safely and 
avoid heavy traffic areas.  Ensuring people feel safe along these pathways was vital to their success, 
and therefore Members further welcomed the inclusion of signage and lighting within scheme 
designs. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 

1. That the agreed MCF delivery priorities across GM and the prioritised first phase for the 
programme, as set out in Appendix 1 of the report, be noted. 

 
2. That £6.3 million MCF funding for the three named schemes be approved, in order to secure 

full approval and enable the signing of a delivery agreement. 
 
3. That the release of up to £2.12 million of development cost funding for the 4 MCF schemes, 

set out in section 2 of the report, be approved. 
 
4. That the addition to the 2020/21 Capital Programme of £12.7 million of costs to be funded 

from the capital grant of £12.7 million that forms part of the £15.9 million of Active Travel 
(Tranche 2) funding, as set out in section 4 of the report, be approved. 

 
5. That the addition of the £3.2 million to the GMCA Transport Revenue Budget, funded from 

the £3.2 million revenue grant that forms part of the £15.9 million of Active Travel (Tranche 
2) funding, as set out in section 4 of the report, be approved.  
 

6. That the GMCA would urge the Cycling and Walking Commissioner and his team to look for 
further avenues to build greater capacity within the bee network to further improve 
connectivity. 

 
 
GMCA 216/20  LOCAL GROWTH DEAL UPDATE AND APPROVALS 
 
The GM Mayor took Members through a report which provided an overview of progress on the 
delivery of the Local Growth Deal Programme, tranches 1,2 and 3 and sought approval to vary the 
transport grant allocation in order to maximise Growth Deal spend by March 2021.  Its specific 
proposal, which had already been agreed with Government, was to create a variation on the 

Page 135



10 
 

Growth Deal transport element to the Mayor’s Challenge Fund of £.4m that could ultimately be 
recovered. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
1. That the progress made in relation to the Growth Deal Transport Programme, as set out in 

Section 3 of the report, be noted. 
 

2. That the progress made in relation to the non transport Skills Capital and Economic 
Development & Regeneration (ED &R) programmes, as set out in Section 5 of the report, be 
noted. 

 
3. That the £5.4 million variation of the Growth Deal Transport Grant to maximise eligible grant 

spend on the Mayors Challenge Fund Cycling and Walking programme for 2020/2021, as set 
out in Section 2 of the report, be agreed. 

 
 
GMCA 217/20  GREEN HOMES GRANT LOCAL AUTHORITY DELIVERY SCHEME: PHASE 1B 
 
Councillor Andrew Western, Portfolio Lead for the Green City Region introduced a report which 
sought approval for a proposal for the GMCA to bid for an additional £5-6m Government funding 
from the ‘Green Homes Grant: Local Authority Delivery’ Phase 1b Fund on behalf of GM Local 
Authorities and Registered Providers. 
 
Greater Manchester had already been successful in its Phase 1a award for a share of Government’s 
£0.5b Green Homes Grant.  Both elements of the scheme aimed to support the lowest income 
households to improve their energy efficiency and actively contribute to Government’s target of 
zero carbon by 2050.  If successful, the GMCA could secure 15% of the allocated grant funding to 
coordinate the scheme, which had already seen a significant level of interest from private landlords 
across the conurbation. 
 
Members welcomed the support of Government to reduce carbon emissions from homes, and help 
GM deliver its own ambition of zero carbon by 2038, however there was some anxiety around this 
policy as it had already been introduced and removed between 2006 and 2015 and therefore 
needed an ambitious pace to counteract the previously missed opportunities.  With greater 
strategic thinking, new homes would be built to a zero carbon spec and would no longer require 
retrofitting in 10-15 years’ time with difficulty as their initial construction was non-standard.  The 
GMCA urged for this scheme to be offered as widely as possible, as lives would be changed as a 
result of lower fuel bills and less fuel poverty. 
 
Members further recognised the significant impact on the environment and climate at large and 
recognised that often the poorest communities often have the worst pollution, the dirtiest air, the 
highest risk of flooding etc and these challenges are inequitable and unfair so must be addressed.  
This was a substantial challenge that required monumental investment, but Greater Manchester 
was determined to deliver and see the wide-ranging benefits improve lives. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 

Page 136



11 
 

1. That it be agreed that GM Local Authorities should collectively bid for £5-6m of Green 
Homes Grant, to extend the existing green homes grant funded programme from March 21 
to September 21. 
 

2. That it be agreed that the GMCA should be the accountable body for the bid on behalf of 
GM Local Authorities and Registered Providers. 
 

3.  That authority be delegated to the GMCA Treasurer and Monitoring Officer, subject to a 
successful bid, to contract with BEIS, receipt and defray the funds to partners. 
 

4. That it be noted that equalities impact from this proposal will be managed via utilising 
delivery companies with robust equality policies, and to note the environmental outcome is 
to substantially reduce the carbon emissions from approximately 500 homes in Greater 
Manchester.  
 

 
GMCA 218/20  SOCIAL HOUSING DE-CARBONISATION FUND DEMONSTRATOR 

 
Councillor Andrew Western, Portfolio Lead for Green City Region took Members through a report 
which outlined the opportunity presented by the Social Housing Decarbonisation Fund 
Demonstrator, and Greater Manchester’s ambition to seek funding from the scheme for social 
housing retrofit projects across the conurbation.  Since the publication of the report, GM had been 
informed that their initial bid had been unsuccessful, but they had been placed on the reserve list 
should any other project not become deliverable.  However, through the development of the bid, 
GM had been able to successfully engage with landlords that they had not previously engaged with 
before and therefore the process had been positive overall. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 

1. That it be noted that GM’s bid for circa £7m of Social Housing Decarbonisation Fund 
Demonstrator funding from BEIS had not been successful, although GM had been included in 
the reserve list. 
 

2. That it be agreed that the GMCA should be the accountable body for the bid on behalf of 
GM Local Authorities and Registered Providers, in the event that GM bid was brought 
forward from the reserve list of bids. 
 

3. That authority be delegated to the GMCA Treasurer and Monitoring Officer, subject to a 
successful bid, to contract with BEIS, receipt and defray the funds to partners, in the event 
that the GM bid was brought forward from the reserve list. 
 

4. That it be noted that in the event that the GM  bid was brough forward from the reserve list,  
equalities impact from this proposal will be managed via utilising delivery companies with 
robust equality policies and to note the environmental outcome is to substantially reduce 
the carbon emissions from approximately 250 social homes in GM and to demonstrate 
innovative delivery mechanisms which can be upscaled and replicated. 
 
 

Page 137



12 
 

GMCA 219/20  GREATER MANCHESTER LOCAL FULL FIBRE NETWORK PROGRAMME - 
PUBLIC SECTOR BUILDING UPGRADE (PSBU) 

 
Councillor Sean Fielding, Portfolio Lead for Digital took the GMCA through a report which sought 
their agreement to an increase in the GMCA Capital Programme to reflect the anticipated DCMS 
(Department for Digital, Culture, Media and Sport) grant allocation for public sector building 
upgrades.  This allocation would allow for 500km of new fibre, connecting 1500 sites across GM and 
allowing 1.2m people who were previously digitally excluded to now have full fibre connectivity. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 

1. That it be agreed that the GMCA should enter into a grant funding agreement with DCMS 
and Manchester City Council to confirm GMCA as the administrative lead for the PSBU as 
well as the PSAT element of the LFFN programme as set out in this report. 
 

2. That an increase in the GMCA’s Capital Programme of up to £835,000 to reflect the 
maximum grant from DCMS for the Manchester City Council LFFN PSBU programme be 
approved.  
 

3. That it be noted that Salford City Council will not be pursuing its application to DCMS for a 
small amount of PSBU LFFN grant funding.   
 

4. That authority be delegated to the GMCA Monitoring Officer to review and complete all 
necessary legal documentation relating to the grant funding agreement to be entered into 
between (1)   DCMS (as Funder), (2) GMCA (as Administrative Lead for the DCMS LFFN PSBU 
Grant) and (3) Manchester City Council (as LFFN PSBU Grant Recipient). 

 
 

GMCA 220/20  GREATER MANCHESTER HOUSING INVESTMENT LOANS FUND - INVESTMENT 
APPROVAL RECOMMENDATIONS   

 
Salford City Mayor Paul Dennett, Portfolio Lead for Housing, Homelessness and Infrastructure 
introduced a report which sought approval of two further GM Housing Investment Loans Funds 
applications which, if approved, would take the total amount of approved loans to £437.5m. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 

1. That the GM Housing Investment Loans Fund loans detailed in the table below and as 
detailed further in this and the accompanying Part B report be approved: 

 

BORROWER  SCHEME  DISTRICT  LOAN 

Greengate Investments 1 Ltd Collier’s Yard, Greengate Salford  £37.562m 

Great Jackson Street 
Investments Ltd 

The Blade Manchester £32.438m 

 
2. That authority be delegated to the GMCA Treasurer acting in conjunction with the GMCA 

Monitoring Officer to prepare and effect the necessary legal agreements. 
 

 

Page 138



13 
 

GMCA 221/20  GREATER MANCHESTER INVESTMENT FRAMEWORK - CONDITIONAL 
PROJECT APPROVAL 

 
RESOLVED/- 
 
That it be noted that the meeting was inquorate for consideration of this report and the 
accompanying report at item 21 of the agenda. 
 
Note: the report was dealt with under the Chief Executive’s delegated powers and the decision 
published separately. 
 
 
GMCA 222/20  EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
That, under section 100 (A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the press and public should be 
excluded from the meeting for the following items on business on the grounds that this involved the 
likely disclosure of exempt information, as set out in the relevant paragraphs of Part 1, Schedule 
12A of the Local Government Act 1972 and that the public interest in maintaining the exemption 
outweighed the public interest in disclosing. 
 
 
GMCA 223/20  GREATER MANCHESTER HOUSING INVESTMENT LOANS FUND - INVESTMENT 

APPROVAL RECOMMENDATIONS   
 
Note: This item was considered in support of the Part A – GM Housing Investment Loans Fund – 
Investment Approval Recommendations (minutes reference GMCA 220/20) 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
That the report be noted. 
 
 
GMCA 224/20 GREATER MANCHESTER INVESTMENT FRAMEWORK - CONDITIONAL 

PROJECT  APPROVAL 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
That it be noted that the meeting was inquorate for consideration of this report. 
 
 

1.  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 139



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

MINUTES OF THE VIRTUAL MEETING OF THE GREATER MANCHESTER COMBINED AUTHORITY  
HELD ON FRIDAY 29 JANUARY 2021 VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS 

 
 

PRESENT: 
 
Greater Manchester Mayor  Andy Burnham (In the Chair) 
Greater Manchester Deputy Mayor Baroness Bev Hughes 
Bolton      Councillor David Greenhalgh 
Bury     Councillor Eamonn O’Brien 
Manchester    Councillor Nigel Murphy 
Oldham    Councillor Sean Fielding 
Rochdale    Councillor Allen Brett 
Salford     City Mayor Paul Dennett 
Stockport     Councillor Elise Wilson 
Tameside    Councillor Brenda Warrington  
Trafford    Councillor Andrew Western 
Wigan     Councillor Keith Cunliffe 

 
IN ATTENDANCE: 
 
Tameside    Councillor Leanne Feeley 
 
OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE: 
 
GMCA - Chief Executive  Eamonn Boylan 
GMCA - Deputy Chief Executive Andrew Lightfoot 
GMCA – Monitoring Officer  Liz Treacy 
GMCA – GMCA Treasurer  Steve Wilson 
Bolton     Tony Oakman 
Bury      Donna Ball 
Manchester    Joanne Roney 
Salford     Jim Taylor 
Stockport    Pam Smith 
Tameside     Steven Pleasant 
Trafford    Sara Todd 
Wigan     Alison McKenzie-Folan 
Office of the GM Mayor  Kevin Lee 
GMCA     Simon Nokes 
GMCA     Julie Connor 
GMCA     Nicola Ward 
GMCA     Lindsay Dunn 

 
 
GMCA 01/21  APOLOGIES 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 

Page 141



2 
 

1. That apologies be received and noted from Sir Richard Leese (Councillor Nigel Murphy 
attending), and Councillor David Molyneux (Councillor Keith Cunliffe attending). 
 

2. That it be noted that Steve Rumbelow (Rochdale) was unable to join due to technical 
difficulties. 

 
GMCA 02/21  CHAIRS ANNOUNCEMENTS AND URGENT BUSINESS 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
That it be noted that the GM Mayor and the GMCA expressed their sincere thanks and appreciation 
to Jim Taylor, retiring Chief Executive of Salford, for his 40 years of dedicated service to Greater 
Manchester and within seven out of the 10 boroughs. 
 
 
GMCA 03/21  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
There were no declarations of interest made in relation to any item on the agenda. 
 
 
GMCA 04/21  MINUTES OF THE GMCA MEETING HELD 18 DECEMBER 2020 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
That the minutes of the GMCA meeting held on 18 December 2020 be approved as a correct record. 
 
 
GMCA 05/21  MINUTES OF THE GMCA OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MEETINGS 

HELD IN JANUARY 2021 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
1. That the minutes of the Corporate Issues & Reform Overview & Scrutiny Committee held on 19 

January 2021 be noted. 
 

2. That the minutes of the Housing, Planning and Environment Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
held on 14 January 2021 be noted. 

 
 
GMCA 06/21  GMCAMINUTES OF THE GM WASTE COMMITTEE HELD 13 JANUARY 2021  
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
That the minutes of the GM Waste and Re-cycling Committee held 13 January 2021 be noted.  

 
 
 

Page 142



3 
 

GMCA 07/21  MINUTES OF THE GMCA AUDIT COMMITTEE HELD 22 JANUARY 2021 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
That the minutes of the GMCA Audit Committee held 22 January 2021 be noted. 
 
 
GMCA 08/21  MINUTES OF THE GM TRANSPORT COMMITTEE HELD 11 DECEMBER 2020  
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
That the minutes of the GM Transport Committee held 11 December 2020 be noted. 
 
 
GMCA 09/21  MINUTES OF THE LOCAL ENTERPRISE PARTNERSHIP HELD 19 JANUARY 2021 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
That the minutes of the GM Local Enterprise Partnership held 19 January 2021 be noted. 
 
 
GMCA 10/21  GMCA APPOINTMENTS  
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
That the appointment of Councillor Dylan Butt (Trafford) to replace Councillor Brian Shaw on the 
GM Waste & Recycling Committee be noted. 
 

 
GMCA 11/21  MAYORAL GENERAL BUDGET & PRECEPT PROPOSALS 
 
The GM Mayor introduced a report which set out proposals for the Mayoral General Budget and 
precept for 2021-22.  It was proposed that the level of precept remained the same as 2020-21 
which equated to £70 per year for the majority of households in Greater Manchester, consisting of 
£51 for fire services and £19 for the mayoral element.  Retaining the same level of precept had been 
considered in light of the current covid situation, the financial pressures that families were already 
facing and in recognition of the significant deficit in Local Authority finances further exaggerated by 
the pandemic. 
 
Uniquely amongst Combined Authorities, the proposals included a significant element for the Fire 
Service.  Freezing the level of precept would still allow for 50 pumps to be maintained across GM’s 
fire service, the A Bed Every Night project to continue to provide accommodation for c. 520 people, 
an extension to the Our Pass scheme offering free travel and new opportunities for young people 
and the continued support for Bus Reform. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 

Page 143



4 
 

1. That the proposal to freeze the Mayoral General Precept at £90.95 (Band D) comprising of 
£66.20 for functions previously covered by the Fire and Rescue Authority precept and £24.75 
for other Mayoral General functions be approved. 

 
2. That the overall budget proposed for the Fire and Rescue Service, the use of the reserves to 

support the revenue and capital budgets, the assessment by the Treasurer that the reserves as 
at March 2022 are adequate, the proposed Fire Service capital programme and proposals for 
funding, and the medium term financial position for the Fire and Rescue Service covered by the 
Mayoral precept be noted. 

 
3. That the detailed budget proposals for other Mayoral functions be noted. 
 
4. That the funding included in the budget for Bus Reform be noted, and that a further update on 

expenditure and funding would be provided following a Mayoral decision on Bus Reform. 
 
5. That the use of reserves as set out in section 4 of the report be noted. 
 
6. That it be noted that the GMCA would consider whether they would wish to submit any written 

comments to the Mayor in line with the legal process and timetable described in this report. 
 
7. That it be noted that at the meeting of the GMCA on 12 February 2021 there would be an 

updated budget submitted, consistent with the precept proposals, to reflect final tax base and 
collection fund calculations and the final Revenue Support Grant. 

 
 
GMCA 12/21  MONTHLY ECONOMIC RECOVERY UPDATE 
 
Councillor Elise Wilson, Portfolio Lead for the Economy took Members through the latest version of 
the Greater Manchester Resilience Dashboard.  The most recent data from the Office of National 
Statistics showed that 141,250 people had claimed unemployment benefit during November 2020 
which was a slight increase on the previous month.  It also highlighted that economic activity in the 
North West was disproportionate to the rest of the country, and that this should be a focus for 
Government support going forward. 
 
Many GM businesses were still relying on Government loans and grants, and in the last survey 
undertaken by the Growth Hub, there had been a 18% increase in the number of businesses who 
had reported a negative impact from the EU exit compared to the previous month.  The issues in 
relation to leaving the EU were complex and were requiring businesses to undertaken high levels of 
adjustment specifically in relation to importing and exporting.  It was a serious concern amongst 
businesses that the increased cost of goods transportation would remain, which was just one of the 
issues that needed to be worked through in more detail to ensure economic growth moving 
forward. 
 
Members reported that local businesses were not always reporting issues with Brexit through 
central channels, but directly with their haulier and export companies.  There were a number of 
cross cutting concerns in relation to the bureaucracy of the new systems and associated additional 
costs which could ultimately result in UK products becoming less competitive and businesses 
unstable. 
 

Page 144



5 
 

It was felt that these issues may be recurring throughout businesses across GM and that it was 
important to identify them as promptly as possible for collective action through the most 
appropriate mechanisms. 
 
Members asked whether there was any evidence to date of businesses being advised to set up an 
EU base to mitigate the challenges of importing and exporting.  There were no specific incidents 
reported, however it was noted that there was difficulty in separating the impact of Covid vs the 
impact of EU exit.  It was still early days for businesses to identify what leaving the EU really meant 
for their business, and many were reporting just ‘muddling through’.  There were further concerns 
that there would be even greater challenges for the movement of people across the EU for work 
purposes in relation to the recognition of qualifications.  The Growth Hub would continue to 
monitor this data and report back to the GMCA through the dashboard on a regular basis. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
That the report be noted. 
 
 
GMCA 12/21  GREATER MANCHESTER TRANSPORT STRATEGY 2040, OUR FIVE-YEAR 

DELIVERY PLAN AND LOCAL IMPLEMENTATION PLANS 
 
The GM Mayor informed the GMCA that the GM Transport Strategy and Five Year Delivery Plan had 
been designed to create the foundation for an affordable, integrated public transport network for 
Greater Manchester.  Specifically addressing the ambitions for a zero carbon city region, full 
accessibility across all modes and ticketing that was supported between all types of public 
transport.  Its vision was significant, but would be vital to ensuring the levelling up of GM. 
 
Members welcomed the Delivery Plan, with its wide-ranging priorities and ambitions to also 
connect orbital routes around the conurbation.  The ambition for further Metrolink lines was 
supported, specifically in relation to high frequency connections for northern towns creating intra-
GM links that would further support economic prosperity. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
1. That the revised Greater Manchester Transport Strategy 2040 be approved for adoption and 

publication. 
 

2. That the final version of Our Five-Year Transport Delivery Plan (2021-2026) be approved for 
adoption and publication as a statement of what GM plans to achieve in the next five years 
through transport investment and reforms, in support of Our Network and the 2040 Transport 
Vision for Greater Manchester. 

 
 
GMCA 13/21  GM CLEAN AIR PLAN: CONSULTATION 
 
Councillor Andrew Western, Portfolio Lead for the Green City Region introduced a report which set 
out the progress that had been made on the development of Greater Manchester’s Clean Air Plan 
following the recent public consultation.  The report further detailed the establishment of a Clean 

Page 145



6 
 

Air Charging Authorities Committee and an Air Quality Administration Committee (with the terms of 
reference set out in appendix 6 of the report). 
 
In relation to the issue regarding the Mottram By-Pass there were reported increasingly positive 
dialogues with Government and an assessment was underway that was envisaged to offer further 
specific asks of Ministers. 
 
Councillor Western firmly emphasised that the Clean Air Plan was Government Policy that GMs 
approach would only affect older high polluting vehicles. He added that recent reports in circulation 
from some local Conservative MPs stating that it was akin to a congestion charge were seriously 
misleading to the public and it was critical that this misinformation is corrected.  
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
1. That the progress of the Greater Manchester Clean Air Plan be noted. 

 
2. That the next steps for the development of the Clean Air Plan and Minimum Licensing 

Standards, listed at Section 11 of the report, be noted. 
 

3. That the distribution of Bus Retrofit funding commenced in December 2020 be noted. 
 

4. That it be noted that Government ministers had agreed to consider extending Greater 
Manchester’s Clean Air Zone (CAZ) charges to the sections of the A628/A57 which form part of 
the Strategic Road Network, within the proposed CAZ boundary, subject to the outcomes of an 
assessment, which was expected to be completed by early 2021. 
 

5. That it be noted that the GM Clean Air Plan was required to take action tackle nitrogen dioxide 
exceedances until compliance with the legal limits had been demonstrated and that the nearer 
term influence of COVID-19 on air quality was not expected to lead to sufficiently long term 
reductions in pollution such that the exceedances of the legal limits of nitrogen dioxide would 
not occur without implementing a Clean Air Zone. 

 
6. That it be noted that the GM CAP final plan would be brought forward for decision makers as 

soon as is reasonably practicable and no later than summer 2021. 
 

7. That it be noted that the outputs of the MLS will be reported alongside the GM CAP as soon as 
is reasonably practicable and no later than summer 2021. 
 

8. That the proposal to establish a Clean Air Charging Authorities Committee (a joint committee 
created by the 10 Greater Manchester Local Authorities) be noted and that the establishment of 
an Air Quality Administration Committee (a joint committee created by the ten Greater 
Manchester local authorities and the GMCA) be agreed for the purposes as set out in the report 
at paragraph 8.5 with specific terms of reference, as set out in Appendix 6. 
 

9. That the Portfolio Holder with responsibility for the Clean Air Plan for the GMCA be appointed 
as the representative on the Air Quality Administration Committee and that the Assistant 
Portfolio Holder with responsibility for the Clean Air Plan be appointed as the substitute 
member for the purposes as set out in the report at paragraph 8.5 with specific terms of 
reference, as set out in Appendix 6 of the report. 

Page 146



7 
 

 
 
GMCA 14/21  PRIORITISATION OF SECOND TRANCHE OF TRANSFORMING CITIES FUNDING  
 
The GM Mayor took Members through a report which sought the GMCA’s approval for the second 
tranche of Transforming Cities Funding.  In 2017 GM had received its allocation of the first tranche 
of funding which enabled the establishment of the BeeNetwork and for additional trams to be 
purchased.  This second tranche offered a further £69m for other emerging priorities including 
improved access at Swinton train station, and a proposal for a new train station at Golbourne. 
 
Members welcomed the proposals for the prioritisation of this funding and reflected on the long 
campaign for a station in the Golbourne area to ensure that the west of the conurbation was better 
served by rail links.  The Park and Ride proposals for Tyldesley were also welcomed, as due to its 
success the Guided Busway had experienced some issues relating to parking and congestion.  Such a 
scheme would be welcomed in other areas of GM to improve bus services to further improve the 
network and provide wider connectivity. 
 
Members urged for consideration to be given as to how to integrate the electric charging network 
within these proposals to initiate a move towards alternative fuelled vehicles that would encourage 
the market to follow suit. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 

1. That the contents of the report be noted. 
 
2. That the prioritisation of the Transforming Cities Funding Tranche 2 (TCF2) funds be 

approved. 
 

3. That it be approved that the TCF2 programme be governed by the Single Pot Assurance 
Framework and, as such, the existing Growth Deal governance procedures be used for 
scheme development and approval. 

 
4. That the TCF2 programme is included in the transport capital programme from 2021/22 be 

approved. 
 
 

GMCA 15/21  THE MAYOR'S CYCLING AND WALKING CHALLENGE FUND (MCF) 
 
The GM Mayor introduced a report which sought approval for the detailed funding requirements to 
ensure the continued delivery of the Mayor’s Challenge Fund Programme for Walking and Cycling. 
 
Members welcomed the funding for all areas of GM as this allowed them to reach a competitive 
position to access further support for active travel schemes.  This remained a key priority across the 
whole of the City Region with further initiatives being built around the MCF funded schemes. 
 
The Mayor added that these funds had been spent well due to full devolution that has allowed 
them to be allocated to the schemes deemed necessary by local residents.  Government’s 
commitment to this funding was welcomed and devolved allocation was recognised as allowing for 
areas previously neglected by central government funding to see the benefit of such a programme. 

Page 147



8 
 

 
RESOLVED/- 
 

1. That the agreed MCF delivery priorities across GM and the prioritised first phase for the 
programme, as set out in Appendix 1 of the report be noted. 
 

2. That the release of up to £1.3 million of development cost funding for the 4 MCF schemes set 
out in section 2 of the report be approved. 

 
 

GMCA 16/21  DATE AND TIME OF FUTURE MEETINGS   
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
That it be noted the next meeting of the GMCA would be held on Friday 12 February 2021, as 
agreed at the GMCA Annual Meeting. 

1.  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 148



MINUTES OF THE VIRTUAL MEETING OF THE GREATER MANCHESTER TRANSPORT COMMITTEE 
HELD ON FRIDAY 11 DECEMBER 2020 VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS 

 
 
PRESENT: 

Councillor Mark Aldred (in the Chair) Wigan Council 
Councillor Stuart Haslam Bolton Council 
Councillor Richard Gold Bury Council 
Councillor Sean Fielding GMCA 
Councillor John Leech Manchester City Council 
Councillor Angeliki Stogia Manchester City Council 
Councillor Dzidra Noor Manchester City Council 
Councillor Naeem Hassan Manchester City Council 
Councillor Howard Sykes Oldham Council 
Councillor Phil Burke Rochdale Council 
Councillor Shah Wazir Rochdale Council 
Councillor Roger Jones Salford Council 
Councillor Barry Warner Salford Council 
Councillor David Meller Stockport MBC 
Councillor Doreen Dickinson Tameside MBC 
Councillor Warren Bray 
Councillor Peter Robinson 

Tameside MBC 
Tameside MBC  

Councillor Nathan Evans Trafford Council 
Councillor Steve Adshead Trafford Council 
  
 
OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE: 

Bob Morris Chief Operating Officer, TfGM 
Alison Chew Interim Head of Bus Services, TfGM 
Kate Brown Director of Corporate Affairs, TfGM 
Richard Nickson Programme Director for Cycling & Walking, 

TfGM 
David Sidebottom Transport Focus 
Qulzam Bhatti BAME Connect 
Stephen Rhodes Customer Director, TfGM 
Rachel Hutchins Senior Travel Information Manager, TfGM 
Chris Cordwell Delivery Officer, TfGM 
Gwynne Williams Deputy Monitoring Officer, GMCA 
Nicola Ward Governance Officer, GMCA 

 
 

GMTC 79/20 APOLOGIES 
 

1. That apologies be received and noted from Cllr Joanne Marshall (Wigan), Councillor Atteque 
UrRehman (Oldham) and Eamonn Boylan (Chief Executive Officer GMCA & TfGM). 
 

2. That it be noted that Councillor Roy Walker could not join the meeting due to technical 
difficulties. 

Page 149



2 

 

 
 

GMTC 80/20 CHAIRS ANNOUNCEMENTS AND URGENT BUSINESS 
 

Resolved /- 
 
1. That future dates of the GMTC and sub committees be shared again with all members. 

 
2. That thanks be expressed to the Transport Operators in attendance including Northern, 

Arriva, Go North West, Nexus Move, Diamond, One Bus and Stagecoach. 
 

3. That it be noted that the procedure for petitions has been shared with Members. 
 

 
GMTC 81/20 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
Resolved /- 
 
That Councillor Phil Burke declared an interest in relation to item 7 (Transport Network 
Performance) as an employee of Metrolink. 
 

 
GMTC 82/20 MINUTES OF THE GM TRANSPORT COMMITTEE MEETING HELD 9 OCTOBER 2020 

 
Resolved /- 
 
That the minutes of the meeting held 9 October 2020 be approved. 

 
 

GMTC 83/20 MINUTES OF THE GMTC SUB COMMITTEES HELD IN NOVEMBER 
 

Resolved /- 
 
That the minutes of the following sub committees be noted – 

 Bus Services – 13 November 2020 

 Metrolink and Rail – 20 November 2020 
 

 
GMTC 84/20 GMTC WORK PROGRAMME 

 
Resolved /- 

 
That the GM Transport Committee Work Programme be noted. 

 
 

GMTC 85/20 TRANSPORT NETWORK PERFORMANCE UPDATE 

Page 150



3 

 

 
Bob Morris, Chief Operating Officer TfGM, updated the Committee on the latest performance 
information for the public transport network in GM.  The general decline of passenger numbers 
had continued, however since the end of lockdown 2, there had been a slight increase in 
patronage, with the strongest recovery being experienced on the bus network. 
 
Trambassadors had recently been employed to work across the Metrolink network, providing 
advice and encouragement to passengers in relation to social distancing measures and general 
travel information.  Thanks were expressed to operators for their support in ensuring passengers 
had access to alternative transport when a road traffic collision affected the Metrolink Ashton line 
recently.  In relation to this incident, Members questioned as to why it took so long to re-instate 
the line.  Officers confirmed that this was a significantly serious incident in which the driver of a 
van was trapped and had to be freed from the vehicle.  There was damage caused to the 
Metrolink infrastructure above and below ground which had to be thoroughly checked and 
temporarily repaired before the line could re-open. 
 
Members of the Committee asked for further information regarding face covering compliance on 
Metrolink, as anecdotal reports had indicated that compliance remained low on some routes.  
There were concerns raised that through the distribution of face coverings that members of the 
public were not taking responsibility for following the rules and were therefore not being 
prosecuted for breaking them.  Officers reported that a higher presence of Travel Safe staff on the 
network had improved compliance, and that an inform, educate and advise approach was 
sufficient to deal with most cases, however enforcement would continue to be used where a 
person failed to comply. 
 
Traffic flows on the highways were reported as c. 86% and cycling levels remained significantly 
higher than pre-covid levels at c. 76%. 
 
Train operators reported that performance remained strong, but patronage levels were still low at 
c. 26% pre covid levels, equating to c. 45 persons per train.  11 additional Travelsafe officers had 
been appointed to the GM train network, which was hoped to further enhance customer insight.  
Northern informed the Committee that there had been a series of planned cancellations on the 
Manchester-Liverpool line due to driver shortages, however as resource levels had improved 
there were no further foreseen cancellations.  TransPennine Express reported that over the last 48 
hours they had been in discussions with Trade Unions regarding a potential industrial action.  It 
had been informally reported that negotiations had been successful and there would be no strike 
action, however this was yet to be formally advised.   
 
Members questioned the continued poor performance of the Liverpool – Trafford Park rail line 
which had experienced a number of issues, and whether there had been improvements recently.  
Northern confirmed that over the last three days there had been a number of planned 
cancellations, however alternative routes had been provided in every case.  These cancellations 
were necessary due to a spike in covid related absence in the Liverpool depot, with an 
unprecedented 35% of staff non-attendance. 
 
The progress on the Rose Hill line was welcomed by Members, however it had been noted that 
some of the units on this line did not have the facility to display detailed messages on screen.  
Northern were asked whether there were plans to improve this function.  It was confirmed that 
the legacy fleet were going through a refurbishment programme which was 90% complete, but 

Page 151



4 

 

comments and suggestions for further improvements would be welcomed.  Members added that 
this function would also be useful to enhance social distancing messaging. 
 
In relation to current works at Hyde Central and Hyde North rail stations, members questioned as 
to why the current platform was not being reinstated.  Northern agreed to take this query away 
and report back directly. 

 
Resolved /- 
 
1. That the report be noted. 

 
2. That it be noted that Northern would speak to Cllr Meller with regards to the display screens 

on its older fleet vehicles. 
 

3. That it be noted that Northern would bring an update on the work being undertaken to make 
vehicles fully accessible to a future meeting of the committee. 
 

4. That it be noted that Northern would speak directly to Cllr Robinson with regards to proposals 
for the platform extensions at Hyde North and Hyde Central. 
 
 

GMTC 86/20 TRAVEL AND JOURNEY SATISFACTION DURING COVID RESEARCH 
 

David Sidebottom, Transport Focus took the Committee through the latest research in relation to 
travel and journey satisfaction undertaken with 2000 people across England to provide a source of 
intelligence to transport providers. 
 
The research had highlighted that the number of journeys following lockdown 2 had increased 
more rapidly than following the initial lockdown, the use of cars had stabilised both in GM and 
across the UK and there were continued peaks for cycling and walking in good weather periods. 
 
With regards to public confidence in the public transport system, ¼ of respondents had reported 
that they were avoiding or had no reason to use public transport.  However, satisfaction amongst 
users was higher, with some regional variations.  This had indicated a clear perception gap 
between current users and non-users that needed to be addressed. 
 
Members expressed concern that there should be stronger enforcement in relation to face 
covering compliance but were aware of previous confrontation to operator staff in cases where 
they have approached passengers who were not complying.  The Committee recognised the 
importance of the right levels of enforcement when attempting to build back public confidence in 
the public transport network and welcomed the fact that there were now between 50-60 
Travelsafe officers working across Greater Manchester.  Officers reported that there had been 18 
fixed penalty notices issued as a result of non-compliance (in comparison there have been 154 
fixed penalty notices issued across the whole of the UK Rail network).  In addition, on Metrolink 
there had been over 4500 interventions including refused travel, asking people to wear a face 
covering, etc.  In comparison circa 70,000 interventions had been made for the reminder of the 
UK Rail Network.  
 
In relation to Spring 2021, Members questioned as to how the network would manage with an 

Page 152



5 

 

increase in passenger numbers as people began to be vaccinated, but social distancing measures 
remained.  Transport Focus had recently undertaken some additional research on the potential 
impact of the vaccine on passenger travel choices, which would be shared with the Committee. 

 
Resolved /- 
 
1. That the report be noted. 

 
2. That the slides shared at the meeting be circulated to Members. 

 
3. That further information on the enforcement of face coverings on the Metrolink and the 

wider network be brought to a future meeting of the Committee. 
 

4. That it be noted that Transport Focus would share the latest research on the impact of the 
imminent vaccine on passenger perceptions with the Committee once it was published. 
 
 

GMTC 87/20 WALKING PROGRAMME UPDATE 
 

Richard Nickson, Programme Director for Cycling & Walking TfGM introduced a report which 
explored the range of activities and measures being taken across GM to support the ambition of 
the 2040 Transport Strategy to increase walking trips by one third to over 2 million trips a day.  
Qulzam Bhatti from the BAME Connect Programme presented information to the Committee on 
her scheme that has connected people in Oldham through walking. 
 
Members welcomed the presentation and report and recognised the importance of walking for 
mental health and social interaction especially during this pandemic, however, were concerned 
that in some of the most deprived areas of GM walking was not easy due to a high number of cars 
parked on the pavement and concerns regarding traffic safety. 
 
It was suggested that the lessons learnt and the outcomes of the BAME Connect programme be 
shared across GM to encourage other areas to set up similar schemes and give equal 
opportunities to communities across the city region.  Members further suggested a short 
promotional video may be made that could be distributed to interested parties, with a specific 
focus on those communities who are often difficult to reach. 
 
The Committee were pleased to see a report that focussed on walking, and that there were 
champions like Qulzam taking the lead on such schemes across GM.  In relation to the Mayor’s 
Challenge Fund, Members asked whether this funding had been used within walking schemes, and 
if so, how many of such projects had been delivered and who were their target audience.  Officers 
reported a range of consultation exercises being undertaken with communities to establish their 
challenges when walking locally and identify projects that would improve connectivity or journey 
experience.  Members added that often there was no need for brand new routes, just small 
improvements to the routes already in place to improve access, safety and encourage more 
people to walk.  In relation to crossing schemes funded through the Mayor’s Challenge Fund, 
there had been 18 completed within phase 1, and further schemes being delivered within phase 2. 
 
Members urged for future schemes to look to prioritise walking routes for older people, ensuring 
their safety and feeling of being safe through provisions that protect pavement space and mitigate 

Page 153



6 

 

the risks of speeding vehicles etc.  Such schemes were envisaged to have minimal costs, but 
significant benefits, especially in relation to mental and physical health. 

 
Resolved /- 
 
1. That the report be noted. 

 
2. That information as to how the Mayors Challenge Fund had benefitted walking schemes be 

shared with the Committee. 
 

3. That further information on the Mode Shift Stars scheme be shared directly with Cllr Adshead. 
 

4. That it be noted that Qulzam Bhatti would be willing to share further information about the 
BAME Connect Walking Programme with any interested parties. 

 
 

GMTC 88/20 WINTER SERVICE PLAN 2020/21 
 

Stephen Rhodes, Customer Director TfGM introduced the Winter Service Plan and Rachel Hutchins 
Senior Travel Information Manager, TfGM gave further details on transport provision during the 
2020/21 winter period, including over Christmas and the New Year.  In particular, the use of data 
to indicate current behaviours, the anticipated hotspots on the network and planned 
interventions to mitigate any issues that may arise. 
 
There were no significant changes anticipated to public transport services over the Christmas and 
New Year period, and any alteration of tier allocation was also not expected to have any 
significant effect.   
 
Members expressed their concerns in relation to shopping hotspots and increased footfall in these 
areas.  Furthermore, if Greater Manchester were to move to tier 2 whether this would encourage 
further shopping and socialising and cause issues on the public transport network.  Officers 
confirmed that there were multi-disciplinary teams in place to review any changes to Government 
guidelines and ensure a prompt appropriate response.  It was anticipated that there would be a 
review of the tiering levels on the 16 December, and TfGM would continually update their 
communications to ensure that they were inline with the latest Government messaging. 
 
The Committee recognised that there would inevitably be a spike in cases following the Christmas 
period, and therefore stronger enforcement, increased communications and a greater visibility of 
Travelsafe officers would be particularly important during this time.  Officers confirmed that there 
would be a range of initiatives taking place in early 2021 to support Greater Manchester to build 
back, support people to live with Covid and encourage people to travel again at an appropriate 
time. 

 
Resolved /- 
 
1. That the report be noted. 

 
2. That specific data in relation to transport interventions around the Rock at Bury be shared 

with Councillor Gold. 

Page 154



7 

 

 
 

GMTC 89/20 DATE AND TIME OF FUTURE MEETINGS 
 

Resolved /- 
 
That the date of future meetings be noted. 

 
 

 

Page 155



This page is intentionally left blank



 

COMMISSIONING PARTNERSHIP BOARD 
22/10/2020 at 1.00 pm 

 
Present: Majid Hussain (Chair)    

Councillors Fielding, Jabbar and Moores 
Ben Galbraith, Chief Finance Officer; Dr. Ian Milnes, Deputy 
Chief Clinical Officer; and Dr. John Patterson, Chief Clinical 
Officer and Deputy Accountable Officer, Oldham CCG 
 

 Also in Attendance: 
 Mike Barker  Strategic Director of 

Commissioning/Chief Operating 
Officer   

 Graham Foulkes Lay Member for Patient and Public 
Involvement   

 Nicola Hepburn Director of Commissioning   
 Mark Warren Managing Director Community 

Health and Adult Social Care 
 Rebekah Sutcliffe Strategic Director Communities and 

Reform 
 Sian Walter-Browne Constitutional Services   

 

 
 

1   ELECTION OF CHAIR   

RESOLVED that Majid Hussain be elected Chair for the duration 
of the meeting. 
 

2   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Chauhan, 
Dr. Grumbridge, Claire Smith and Helen Lockwood. 
 

3   URGENT BUSINESS   

There were no items of urgent business received. 
 

4   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

There were no declarations of interest received. 
 

5   MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING   

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Commissioning Partnership 
Board held on 24th September 2020 be approved as a correct 
record. 
 

6   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME   

There were no public questions received. 
 

7   IMPLEMENTING PHASE 3 RECOVERY   

The Board gave consideration to a report which provided an 
overview of the confirmed ‘Phase 3 Recovery’ Plan within local 
health and care services.   
 

Page 157



 

The Board were informed that following the implementation of 
Phase 2 Recovery as part of the Covid-19 response, Oldham’s 
health and care Phase 3 Recovery Assessment and route to 
implementation had been established.  The aim of the recovery 
work was to ensure that more, if not all, services were stepped 
back up safely whilst operating within the context of enhanced 
infection, prevention and control (IPC) measures, which 
impacted on care delivery as well as estate capacity.  A hospital 
and mental health activity template for the locality was being 
submitted to the Greater Manchester Health and Social Care 
Partnership.  The data used for the planning was based on 
assumptions using existing and current capacity and demand 
modelling and was aligned with Northern Care Alliance and 
Pennine Care. 
 
The report also detailed: 

 The ability to assess the gap between the national ask 
around Phase 3 Recovery and currently local capacity 
and delivery; 

 Activity context where the CCG was required to plan for 
its population, hospitals required to plan for the utilisation 
of their facilities; and 

 National activity target expectations related to referrals, 
elective inpatients, elective outpatients, non-elective 
patients and emergency department attendances. 

 
Actions were outlined which addressed cancer services; elective 
activity; primary care and community services; mental health, 
learning disabilities and autism; Winter; workforce; and health 
inequalities and prevention.   
 
The success of the Phase 3 Recovery Plan would be reliant on: 

 Robust partnership working; 

 Strong clinical leadership and engagement;  

 Effective engagement with communities and patients; 

 Clear programmes for service redesign and 
transformation. 

 
The core transformation programmes would centre around: 

 A new model of managing long-term conditions, utilising a 
‘hub’ that included non-elective, elective and 
primary/community care 

 A new model for urgent care as linked to the Greater 
Manchester model 

 Redesign of local community services. 
 
The Board also noted some of the external factors that would 
impact on Phase 3 Recovery including the rates of infection of 
Covid-19 and the need to support the management of any 
outbreaks as well as potential changes to the future of 
commissioning. 
 
Options Considered:  There were no options to consider as the 
plan was mandated by NHS England and NHS Improvement. 
 

Page 158



 

RESOLVED that the Phase 3 Recovery Plan for the Oldham 
Health and Care System be approved. 
 

8   CANCER PERFORMANCE UPDATE   

The Board were provided an update on cancer performance 
which included: 

 an overview of the National Cancer Standards; 

 current Oldham performance; 

 Greater Manchester (GM), North West (NW) and national 
performance; 

 improvements to date; 

 challenges in delivering improvements; and 

 actions in place to support performance improvements. 
 
Cancer constitutional standards were outlined as well as 
Oldham’s performance against set targets.  The service had 
consistently achieved greater than 93% against the two-week 
wait (2WW) standard from October 2019.  While this had 
dropped in April 2020, it had recovered well in May and June to 
deliver greater than 93% again.  Whilst the 2WW and 31-day 
performance had faired well, the 62 Day Standard had dropped 
indicating extended waits from initial assessment to diagnosis.  
Local cancer performance was compared with GM, NW and 
national data showing that Oldham CCG was consistently 
exceeding performance in these areas, with the exception of 
April 2020.  Finally, a brief oversight of cancer performance 
across GM as a whole was provided. 
 
Members were asked to note the great progress made in the 
service over the past 12 months.  Issues did remain regarding 
diagnosis as illustrated by difficulties concerning the 62 Day 
Assessment, and comment made that matters relating to clinical 
inputs due to Covid and staffing issues meant the planned 
developments had not yet occurred.  However, the importance 
of bringing back pathways and ensuring timely diagnosis was a 
challenge that would need to be addressed. 
 
RESOLVED that the information related to cancer performance 
and the great progress made in this area be noted. 
 
 

The meeting started at 1.00 pm and ended at 1.44 pm 
 

Page 159



This page is intentionally left blank



 

COMMISSIONING PARTNERSHIP BOARD 
28/01/2021 at 1.00 pm 

 
 

Present: Councillor Chauhan (in the Chair) 
Councillors Fielding and Moores 
 
Ben Galbraith (Chief Finance Officer); Majid Hussain (Lay 
Chair), Dr. Ian Milnes (Deputy Chief Clinical Officer) and Dr. 
John Patterson (Chief Clinical Officer and Deputy Accountable 
Officer), Oldham CCG 
 

 Also in Attendance: 
 Mike Barker  Strategic Director of 

Commissioning/Chief Operating 
Officer   

 Graham Foulkes Lay Member for Patient and Public 
Involvement   

 Dr Shelley Grumbridge GP Governing Body Member - East 
Cluster 

 Nicola Hepburn Director of Commissioning   
 Claire Smith Director of Nursing and Quality 
 Gerard Jones Managing Director Children 

Services  
 Anne Ryans Director of Finance 
 Andy Cooper Senior Finance Manager 
 Sian Walter-Browne Constitutional Services   
 Mark Hardman Constitutional Services   
   

 

 

1   ELECTION OF CHAIR   

RESOLVED that Councillor Chauhan be elected Chair for the 
duration of this meeting. 
 

2   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Shah, Dr 
Mudiyur Gopi, Rebekah Sutcliffe, Mark Warren and Carolyn 
Wilkins. 
 

3   URGENT BUSINESS   

There were no items of urgent business received. 
 

4   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

There were no declarations of interest received. 
 

5   MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING   

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the 
Commissioning Partnership Board held on 22nd October 2020 be 
approved as a correct record. 
 

Page 161



 

6   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME   

There were no public questions received. 
 

7   SECTION 75 BUDGET MONITOR MONTH 6   

The Board gave consideration to a report presenting the Oldham 
Cares Section 75 (s75) pooled fund forecast position at the end 
of Month 6 in 2020/21.  The report advised of forecast 
expenditure in the 2020/21 financial year of £176.973m 
compared to a budget of £169.504m, an adverse variance of 
£7.469m.  It was noted that all this variance related to Oldham 
Council services and included a significant amount for Covid-
related costs. 
 
The Board was reminded that the 2020/21 s75 agreement had 
not been formally agreed due to the many changes that had 
occurred since 1st April 2020.  However, a final position would 
be presented to the March 2021 meeting of the Board.  The 
submitted report was therefore based on the amounts that it is 
estimated will be included in the final agreement.  Oldham 
Council was reporting an adverse variance of £7.469m at this 
stage, with proposed actions and anticipated financial changes 
to occur over coming months that would impact on this position 
being reported.  The CCG was showing a balanced position at 
month 6 and was confident this position would remain to year 
end given the NHS funding regime. 
 
The additional cost of dealing with the Covid-19 pandemic for 
Community Health and Adult Social Care was also being pooled 
within this s75 agreement.  The financial implications of and 
sources of funding for this work were presented, and ongoing 
consideration to the funding of these costs would be given. 
 
RESOLVED that the report be noted. 
 
 

The meeting started at 1.00 pm and ended at 1.15 pm 
 

Page 162



 

 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE GM POLICE, FIRE AND CRIME PANEL HELD ON       
MONDAY 16 NOVEMBER 2020 VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS  

 

PRESENT: 

Councillor Nadim Muslim  Bolton Council 

Councillor David Jones  Bury Council 

Councillor Nigel Murphy   Manchester City Council – (In the Chair) 

Councillor Steve Williams  Oldham Council 

Councillor Janet Emsley  Rochdale Council    

Councillor David Lancaster  Salford City Council 

Councillor Amanda Peers  Stockport Council 

Councillor Warren Bray  Tameside Council 

Councillor Mike Freeman  Trafford Council 

Councillor Kevin Anderson  Wigan Council 

Majid Hussain    Independent Member 

ALSO PRESENT: 

Baroness Beverley Hughes  GM Deputy Mayor  

Chris Sykes    Assistant Chief Constable, GMP    

OFFICERS: 

Clare Monaghan Director Policing, Crime and Fire, GMCA 

Jeanette Staley   Salford City Council & GM Police and Crime Policy Lead 

Gwynne Williams   Deputy Monitoring Officer, GMCA   

Sarah Keaveny    Head of Comms, GMCA  

Nicola Ward                  GMCA Governance and Scrutiny 

Paul Harris                  GMCA Governance and Scrutiny   

Paul Duggan    GMF&RS 

 
Steve Annette    GMCA Governance and Scrutiny 

APOLOGIES 

Apologies were received on behalf Carolyn Wilkins, Lead Chief Executive, Policing, Fire and 

Crime and Angela Lawrence, Independent Member. 

Page 163



 

2 
 

PFCP/13/20     CHAIR’S ANNOUNCEMENTS AND URGENT BUSINESS     

There were no items raised.  
 
PFCP/14/20  MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 29 SEPTEMBER 2020 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 

1. That the Minutes of the meeting held on 29 September 2020 be approved as a          
correct record. 

 
PFCP/15/20  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
There were no declarations of interest made. The Chair reminded members to return the 
GMCA Annual Declaration of Interest form to the GMCA Governance officer.     
 
PCFP/16/20  GM POLICE PRECEPT SETTING PROCESS 
 
Steve Wilson, GMCA Treasurer introduced a report and provided an overview of the 
statutory duties of the Police, Fire and Crime Panel in relation to the setting of the police 
precept and the timescale. He added that conversations were on-going with GMP 
colleagues, the GM Mayor and GM Deputy regarding the in-year financial position, to 
better understand the issues and medium-term planning drivers moving forward. He added 
that the report referred to the Comprehensive Spending Review, further adding that the 
multi-years spending review and budget had been pushed back. Details of the spending 
review which will be announced next week would provide an indication of the Home Office 
settlement.        
 
RESOLVED/- 
 

1. To note that statutory duties of the Police, Fire and Crime Panel in relation to the 
setting of the police precept.  

 
2. To note the timetable for the setting of the 2021/22 police precept and to agree 
that an additional meeting of the Panel be convened in mid-January for this purpose, 
under the direction of the Chair. 

 
PCFP/17/20  GMP – POLICE RECRUITMENT  
 
Steve Williams, Oldham Council introduced a report which outlined a Motion raised at the 
Full Council meeting in Oldham on 9 September regarding a report published by Her 
Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary and Fire and Rescue Services (HMICFRS) on Roads 
Policing. The Motion asked GMP to provide more responsive support in relation to drivers’ 
behaviour and speeding. 
 
There followed a detailed discussion with members asking a variety of question and making 
comments including;  
 
Members agreed that greater support would be valued by most local communities as there 
was significant local reporting of excessive traffic speeds and some evidence of increased 

Page 164



 

3 
 

road traffic accidents and one recent local fatality. Investment was needed but the Panel 
also welcome a view from GMP about priorities for road safety. Other members believed 
that a great deal of work was already being undertaken by LA Community Safety Teams / 
Community Action Groups in partnership with GMP, using resources. Including cameras, 
provided from the Deputy Mayor’s budget. The importance of developing a unified 
partnership approach was emphasised and for the purpose of developing that approach 
data on road traffic accidents to enable informed comparisons of the position across GM 
authorities and other police forces.      
         
The Deputy Mayor in thanking members for their contributions, added that she felt this 
was an important issue and that the approach that should be adopted moving forward is by 
way of a partnership approach between GMP, LA and TfGM and GMF&RS. She added that 
ACC Bailey, GMP was leading through the safer roads partnership on the development of a 
new strategy and to urge the promotion of a National Road Strategy, and would welcome 
the opportunity to provide members with an update on its aims and objectives.    
 
RESOLVED/- 
 

1. To note the motion passed at the Full Council meeting in Oldham and it was agreed 
that this is a substantive item for consideration at a future meeting of the Panel.  

 
PCFP/18/20  IOPS UPDATE 

ACC Sykes, GMP introduced a paper and provided members an update on the progress in 
the continuing development of GMPs iOPS technology. He reported that the programme of 
works under iOPS Futures would be concentrating on its next version of Police Works, the 
GMP records management system, which is a software improvement which will 
significantly change the way that officers search and interrogate the system.  

It was anticipated that this would be launched before Christmas, subject to any operational 
issues with suppliers due to Covid restrictions. He added that the system was performing 
well and was stable, despite the pressures and demands placed upon it as a result of Covid.    

A member commented that there had been issues with local authorities accessing crime 
statistics to inform future planning. ACC Sykes said accessibility should now be happening 
through the existing community safety partnership structures. 

A member added that there had been an issue in his borough in accessing data in relation 
to some cumulative impact zones in Leigh and Wigan town centres, and ACC Sykes agreed 
to look into this matter and report back in due course.  

A member asked about the current position regarding remote access by community safety 
teams and the roll-out of IT equipment. Jeanette Staley, Salford City Council, Police, Fire & 
Crime Policy Lead, reported that this was something that she was coordinating pan- GM 
and added that there was a commitment from GMP to roll-out Windows 10 laptops to 
community safety teams.  

A member in acknowledging the improvements in the system, asked if there was any work 
being undertaken to improve customer service and whether there was an ambition going 
forward to share data, where appropriate, with other partner organisations such as the 
NHS improve the way services are delivered to communities.       

Page 165



 

4 
 

RESOLVED/- 
 

1. That the update be noted. 
 

PCFP/19/20  GM POLICE, FIRE AND CRIME PANEL – COMPLAINTS PROCEDURE 

Gwynn Williams, Deputy Monitoring Officer, GMCA introduced a report which presented 
for approval minor revisions to the Panel’s Complaints Procedure, arising from the Greater 
Manchester Combined Authority (Fire and Rescue Functions) (Amendment) Order 2020 
and requesting that the Panel delegate the functions of the Lead Chief Executive, Carolyn 
Wilkins, under the Complaints Procedure to the Chief Executive of Salford City Council, Jim 
Taylor, in the GM Lead Chief Executive’s current absence from role.  

RESOLVED/- 

1. That the revised Complaints Procedure as described in Appendix 1 to the report be 
approved.   
 

2. That approval be given to the revised Complaints Procedure delegating authority to 
Jim Taylor, Chief Executive of Salford City Council, to undertake the functions of the 
GM Lead Chief Executive under the Complaints Procedure, in the GM Lead Chief Ex-
ecutive’s absence from role.  

PFCP/20/20  DECISIONS AND ACTIONS TAKEN BY THE GM DEPUTY MAYOR   
 

Consideration was given to a report which highlighted decisions made by the GM Deputy 
Mayor in the period from September 2020 to November 2020. 

RESOLVED/- 
 
1. That the report be noted. 

2. That all future reports include recommendations that assess and identify the impact of 
the proposal on inequalities, environmental and financial issues in relation to the topic. This 
would be supported by a commitment to collect, analyse and report on data, including 
community intelligence, to understand that impact.  

PFCP/21/20  DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
To be confirmed.  
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 166



 

5 
 

 

Page 167



This page is intentionally left blank



 

HEALTH AND WELL BEING BOARD 
10/11/2020 at 2.00 pm 

 
 

Present: Councillor Stretton (Chair)  
Councillors Ball, M Bashforth, Chauhan and Moores 
 

 Dr John Patterson Oldham CCG 
 Majid Hussain Oldham CCG 
 Mike Barker Executive Director Commissioning 

and Chief Operating Officer 
(Oldham Council/Oldham CCG) 

 Mark Warren Managing Director of Health and 
Adult Care Services 

 Gerard Jones Managing Director of Children and 
Young People 

 Rebekha Sutcliffe Executive Director Communities 
and Reform 

 Katrina Stephens Director of Public Health 
 David Jago Pennine Acute NHS Trust 
 Karen Worthington Bridgewater NHS Trust 
 Tamoor Tariq Oldham Healthwatch 
 Stuart Lockwood Oldham Community Leisure 
 Keith Wrate First Choice Homes 
 Liz Windsor-Welsh Oldham Together 
   
 Also in Attendance:  
 Hayley Eccles Head of Strategic Safeguarding 
 Abigail Pemberton Strategic Safeguarding and 

Safeguarding Adults Board 
Manager 

 Sian Walter-Browne Constitutional Services 
 Kaidy McCann Constitutional Services 

 

 

1   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor 
Chadderton, Dr Bal Duper, Dr Keith Jeffrey, Chief Supt. Chris 
Allsop, Val Hussain, Claire Smith and Joanne Sloan.   
 

2   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

There were no declarations of interest. 
 

3   URGENT BUSINESS   

There were no items of urgent business. 
 

4   MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING   

RESOLVED – that the minutes of the meeting of the Health and 
Wellbeing Board held on 21st July 2020 be approved as a 
correct record. 
 
 

Page 169



 

5   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME   

No public questions had been received. 
 

6   OLDHAM SAFEGUARDING ADULTS BOARD ANNUAL 
REPORT  

 

The Board gave consideration to the Oldham Safeguarding 
Adults Board (OSAB) 2019/20 Annual Report and priorities for 
2020/21, the OSAB being a statutory partnership set up to 
safeguard adults at risk of experiencing abuse, neglect or 
exploitation and which had duties to produce a Strategic Plan; to 
publish an Annual Report; and to undertake a Safeguarding 
Adult Review (SAR) where it believes someone has experienced 
harm as a result of abuse, neglect or exploitation. 
 
Over the past year the OSAB had introduced a series of 
measures designed to remodel adult safeguarding 
arrangements across Oldham, looking to strengthen and 
improve multi-agency working through a combination of new 
safeguarding structures, greater alignment with the Children’s 
Safeguarding Partnership (CSP) and integrating safeguarding 
structures across Community Health and Social Care.  The 
2019/20 Annual Report was the first under these new 
arrangements and reflected the OSAB’s ambition to develop a 
more outward facing role to ensure that there is ‘no wrong door’ 
to reporting safeguarding concerns and that the work of the 
OSAB is publicly accountable.   
 
The Annual Report provided information on the number and type 
of safeguarding concerns reported during 2019/20, setting out 
the actions taken to ensure that lessons learnt from the SARs 
have be used to change front line practice and improve the way 
services work.  The Board’s specific attention was drawn to the 
following matters from the 2019/20 period - 

 1,580 safeguarding referrals were made and, of these, 
556 became the subject of a formal safeguarding 
Enquiry. The number of referrals had almost doubled in 
the last two years, possibly due to a combination of 
improvements in data recording and campaigns 
encouraging people to report safeguarding concerns; 

 1,543 safeguarding referrals and enquiries were dealt 
with and closed, an increase over the 960 in the previous 
year.  Of the cases closed, 48% were complex cases 
involving people who lacked capacity to make their own 
decisions. The breakdown by sex, age and ethnicity 
suggested that White British women aged between 18 
and 64 were more likely to be the subject of a reported 
safeguarding concern compared to any other group; 

 an increase in the number of safeguarding concerns 
relating to self-neglect, acts of omission and domestic 
abuse had been seen.  Some of the increase in domestic 
abuse cases coincided with the start of the Covid-19 
lockdown where those living with an abusive partner may 
have experienced an escalation in abuse, coupled with 

Page 170



 

restricted access to community contacts and professional 
support; and  

 five SARs had been conducted, compared to two in 
2018/19. In each case, the OASB adopted the 
recommendations of the independent reviewer and 
overseen changes designed to prevent similar cases 
happening again. These changes had also been 
informed by ‘Making Safeguarding Personal’ 
conversations with local people who had first hand 
experience of safeguarding issues. 

 
For 2020/21, the ambitions for Oldham’s new safeguarding 
arrangements included an effective ‘all age’ safeguarding offer 
and progress had been made over the past year to align the 
work of the OSAB with the SCP.  The ongoing impact of the 
Covid presented challenges for adult safeguarding with 
lockdown restrictions and social isolation creating conditions for 
new safeguarding concerns to emerge, as well as escalating 
existing safeguarding issues.  A trend in SAR referrals for 
people experiencing neglect or abuse compounded by the first 
wave of Covid-19 restrictions could already be seen and the 
OSAB was prioritising the sharing of lessons from these cases 
as quickly as possible to inform current and future waves of 
restrictions. 
 
In response to a query, it was confirmed that multi-agency work 
and communications between organisations had continued over 
the Covid period, the developing extent of greater partnership 
working over the period being advised. 
 
The near doubling of safeguarding referrals over two years was 
noted and the capacity to investigate these referrals and to 
support those at risk was queried.  It was acknowledged that the 
‘no wrong door’ approach would generate increased recorded 
demand, but the partnership approach meant that issues 
reported under safeguarding need not necessarily be dealt with 
by the organisation initially contacted.  The operational team 
would be dealing with safeguarding issues among other work, 
but Duty Managers kept the overall position under review.  With 
regard to the increase in referrals, it was noted that the 
proportion of referrals leading to full Investigations had not risen 
proportionately and assurance sought that this was not due to 
capacity issues.  The Board was assured that all safeguarding 
referrals raised were considered and addressed, and that those 
proceeding to full Investigations were considered against Care 
Act provisions.  Where cases did not meet Care Act criteria, the 
service would look to see trends in reporting and look to develop 
targeted preventative solutions. 
 
With regard to communications and the reported greater use of 
websites, the need to ensure that other means of accessing 
information and services were robust enough was suggested.  A 
Member commented that there was a need to further promote 
the Helpline service which, it was suggested, was considered by 
some in the community as being for Covid-related issues only.  

Page 171



 

Further to a query as to the helpfulness of the Community Hubs 
in generating safeguarding referrals, it was advised that while 
there was little evidence at this time, some referrals had come 
through this route and it was acknowledged that proactive links 
between the Hubs, community services and safeguarding to 
provide preventative measures was key. 
 
With specific regard to incidents of domestic violence which 
were known to have increased during lockdown, the experience 
of families in need of emergency accommodation was queried in 
terms of emergency accommodation availability and capacity.  It 
was advised that part of a person’s protection plan would 
include inputs from Children’s Services in instances where 
children were involved, would look at the availability of 
community support, and would involve other agencies such as 
housing, the police, and probation as necessary. 
 
RESOLVED that the Oldham Safeguarding Adults Board 
2019/20 Annual Report, including the plans for keeping people 
safe in the future, be noted. 
 

7   OLDHAM SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN BOARD ANNUAL 
REPORT  

 

The Board was reminded that the Local Safeguarding Children 
Board (LSCB) had been replaced by the Oldham Safeguarding 
Children Partnership (OSCP), a statutory partnership, on 30th 
September 2019.  The Board was invited to give consideration 
to the LSCB annual report covering the period 1st April 2018 to 
30th September 2019 in order to conclude the work of the LSCB. 
 
LSCBs had been introduced in April 2006 with the primary 
responsibility of coordinating and ensuring the effectiveness of 
the work undertaken by partner agencies for the purposes of 
safeguarding and promoting the welfare of children and young 
people.  The 18-month report demonstrated the activity and 
impact that the Oldham LSCB had in year one of a three-year 
strategic plan (2018-2021) across six key priority areas of 
domestic abuse; complex and contextual safeguarding; children 
not accessing education; transitions; understanding the impact 
of trauma; and the child’s lived experience. 
 
It was noted that in the 18 month period progress had been 
evident in all priority areas with key successes including the 
introduction of Operation Encompass to support information 
sharing about domestic abuse between police and schools; the 
introduction of multi-agency training to support trauma informed 
practice across the Partnership; and dedicated work with 
children and young people to develop tools to support access to 
mental health support services.  Learning and improvement 
activity focused on areas of complex safeguarding, and the 
Greater Manchester peer review of September 2019 highlighted 
both good practice and areas for improvement, all of which are 
being used to shape and develop Oldham’s Complex 
Safeguarding offer.  
  

Page 172



 

Six serious case reviews and two multi agency concise reviews 
were held during the period of the report, highlighting key 
learning themes including -   

   the need for evidence-based approaches and 
interventions relating to children’s mental health and 
trauma; 

   a focus on improving the quality of assessments; 

   a collective commitment to addressing neglect;  

   a focus on collaborative working, decision making and 
planning; 

   early identification of risk specifically in relation to 
unborn babies, non-mobile children and those at risk of 
exploitation; and 

   supporting professionals to be culturally competent in 
their practice. 

  
Considering the period following the annual report, the Board 
was advised that the vision and aims of the OSCP were those 
stated in the three-year strategic plan (2018-2021), with the local 
safeguarding partners continuing to be committed to this vision 
and aims, demonstrating continuity of commitment to the 
safeguarding partnership, irrespective of change to governance 
structures.  Joint working with the Oldham Safeguarding Adults 
Board was continuing to develop a joint Safeguarding Oldham 
brand, social media and website platforms and to engage with 
adult safeguarding colleagues in a new model of learning and 
improvement which will ensure that cross cutting themes are 
identified and responded to quickly and effectively.  
 
RESOLVED that the Oldham Safeguarding Children Partnership 
Annual Report for 1st April 2018 to 30th September 2019 be 
noted. 
 

8   THE OLDHAM RESPONSE TO COVID-19   

The Board received a report providing an update on how the 
Council and its partners continued to monitor and manage the 
impact of Covid-19 in Oldham.  The report advised of the 
position in Oldham as at 29th October 2020 with regard to the 
number of Covid cases, tests carried out and deaths.  Within the 
report, Oldham’s response was broken down into four key 
themes of Test, Trace, Enforcement and Compliance, and 
Community Engagement and Communications, with a 
commentary of activities under each theme being provided.  
Board Members were asked to note that notice of a national 
lockdown commencing on 5th November 2020 and to run to 3rd 
December 2020 had been given as the submitted report was 
being completed.   
 
The Board was advised that the evidence available did not link 
Covid transmission to any specific setting but did suggest 
transmission happening in a range of settings where there is 
social contact between people that is not socially distanced.  In 
order to reduce transmission and bring the R value below 1, it 
was therefore necessary to substantially reduce the amount of 

Page 173



 

social contact between people from different households and 
there had been some recognition that measures which go 
further than the current tier 3 package of measures may be 
needed in order to substantially reduce infection rates.  
  
Beyond the current period of national lockdown, it was 
necessary to consider what package of measures/strategy 
would be needed for the coming months, as the challenges of 
controlling transmission will persist throughout the winter and 
into the spring, periods which would normally see increases in 
viral infections and pressures on health and social care services.  
Control measures would need to be supported by effective 
communications, engagement and enforcement as well as 
testing and contact tracing and the ongoing work on these 
remains a vital part of Oldham’s ongoing strategy.   
 
In response to a query regarding facilities for homeless people, 
the Board was advised that a seven day testing service was 
provided and that should a homeless person be found to have 
Covid or be required to isolate, partners would be engaged to 
find appropriate accommodation as set out in Oldham’s 
response plan.  Further to a concern as to access to testing 
provision for those without internet access or a mobile phone, it 
was advised that this had been raised with the national testing 
programme which relied on email or text communication: a 
response to this approach was awaited.  It was hoped that 
newer tests providing more immediate results might offer a 
solution, and locally a scheme involving a ‘trusted contact’ was 
being investigated.  
 
The Board was further advised that Healthwatch Oldham had 
undertaken a survey of patient experience across Oldham 
during the Covid period.  This survey had concluded at the end 
of October following particular efforts to ensure the input of 
disadvantaged groups.  It was hoped that an interim report could 
be shared by late 2020/early 2021, with a full report following. 
 
RESOLVED that the report be noted. 
 

9   IMPACT ON THE HEALTH AND CARE SYSTEM   

The Board received a briefing, supported by a presentation, 
regarding the impact of Covid on the health and care system, 
with a particular focus on the Royal Oldham Hospital and acute 
services.  Board members were advised that data presented 
had been taken from the date of circulation with the Board 
agenda, and brief updates were provided at certain points during 
the presentation. The briefing also considered the overall 
picture, the changes that had been made in across the health 
and care system, and the impact on various aspects of acute 
services across both the North East Sector of Greater 
Manchester and Oldham specifically. 
 
The Board was reminded that the Oldham response to Covid 
had been the result of great efforts by many people working 
across the various partner organisations in Oldham.  All parts of 

Page 174



 

the system had needed to continue to adjust and change ways 
of working in order to address the Covid pandemic, embracing 
ways of working that could not have been envisaged earlier in 
the year.  The presentation indicated the changed ways of 
working in the acute sector, primary care, mental health services 
and community services, and provided a ‘snapshot’ listing of 
those services and arrangements that had been changed. 
 
The presentation provided a series of graphs showing various 
trends across the North East Sector and on the emergency 
department at the Royal Oldham Hospital during the pandemic 
period.  It was highlighted that locally, relatively more cases of 
Covid were being found and were being treated, but that a 
related increase in excess deaths was not being seen.  Looking 
ahead, each system within Greater Manchester had submitted 
their plans outlining how they proposed to manage and mitigate 
the impact of a rise in COVID cases and a number of illustrative 
scenarios had been modelled.  The presentation concluded with 
a listing of highlights of activities and approaches that had 
worked well during the Covid response. 
 
The Board was reminded that there remained significant 
challenges to be faced.  It was to be hoped that lockdown would 
reduce instances of community transmission, and the prospect 
of mass vaccination was a hopeful sign.  It was however noted 
that delivery of such vaccinations would likely fall on primary 
care which was already responsible for flu vaccination and some 
Covid testing.   
 
RESOLVED that the report be noted. 
 

10   IMPLEMENTING THE PHASE 3 RECOVERY PLAN   

The Board gave consideration to a report which provided an 
overview of the confirmed ‘Phase 3 Recovery’ Plan within local 
health and care services that had been prepared in response to 
the NHS National activity target expectations and targets for 
dealing with referrals, elective inpatients, elective outpatients, 
non-elective inpatients, and emergency department 
attendances. The Plan has been prepared and submitted as part 
of the Greater Manchester system and considered the actions 
required under each of the target strands. 
 
Consideration was given as to the realistic ability to deliver on 
the national targets, and actions either underway or planned for 
delivery in respect of cancer services; elective activity; primary 
care and community services; mental health, learning disability 
and autism services; winter activities; workforce issues; and in 
addressing health inequalities and prevention were advised.  
The core transformation programmes would centre around 
developing a new model of managing long-term conditions, a 
new model for urgent care as linked to the Greater Manchester 
model, and the redesign of local community services. 
 
It was considered that the success of the Phase 3 Recovery 
Plan would be reliant on robust partnership working; strong 

Page 175



 

clinical leadership and engagement; effective engagement with 
communities and patients; clear programmes for service 
redesign and transformation; and good governance, while noting 
that changes to Covid-19 infection rates and the need to support 
the management of any outbreaks, as well as potential changes 
to the future of commissioning, might affect delivery of the 
recovery plan. 
 
The Board was advised that there was a big focus on the winter 
period, and that the position with regard to elective surgery was 
fluid.  There were issues to focus on, such as future provision of 
mental health services and ensuring that the joint working seen 
to date in response to Covid was capitalised upon.  It was 
acknowledged that this would not be an easy plan to implement, 
and some changes in tack had already been seen.  There was 
also a lack of clarity on future financial arrangements to 
consider.  Notwithstanding, the restoration of NHS services and 
their taking forward on a partnership basis were key tasks. 
 
Looking ahead to Spring 2021, it was stressed that people 
would need to have had their flu vaccinations by this time as 
primary care would be required to deliver Covid vaccinations as 
these came on line: there would not be capacity in the system to 
deliver both.  Further, as new testing came on-line, it would be 
necessary to deliver this in order to take infective people out of 
the system.   
 
RESOLVED that the report and the Phase 3 Recovery Plan be 
noted. 
 

11   FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS IN THE NHS   

The Board received a presentation intended to introduce a 
continuing discussion around the setting of a direction of travel 
for the Oldham health and care system which assumed that the 
current system evolving into a new, more dynamic place based 
unified health and care system capable of operating within a 
Covid-19 environment and that the move forward would erode 
the current descriptors of commissioning and provision. 
 
The presentation considered the intentions and vision of the 
NHS Long Term Plan alongside the possible and emerging 
outcomes of a Greater Manchester strategic review of 
commissioning arrangements.  Arising from these 
considerations there was an acknowledgment that Oldham’s 
system needed to adapt and evolve, and a new Oldham model 
and approach to health and social care was presented for 
consideration.  The need to give a balanced consideration, one 
that focused upon local authority’s general duty to promote 
wellbeing as well as on the NHS, was stressed, and an 
integrated  model of care based firmly on population health 
management, a reduction in health inequalities and the enabling 
of people to live well at home that would be delivered through 
community resources, primary care, integrated community 
health and social care, and specialist and hospital based care 
was presented. 

Page 176



 

 
This model would be delivered by a core group of partners who 
would be supported by key partner organisations and, where 
appropriate, there would be support for developing provider 
alliances to help with the delivery of holistic pathways.  The 
model would be delivered by integrated teams working through 
integrated community hubs which would offer opportunities to 
connect services such as schools, vulnerable tenants etc, and a 
new Assurance Framework would be developed to ensure 
standards and quality.  The next steps and timescales for what 
was acknowledged as a challenging activity to develop a system 
fit for the 21st century were considered. 
 
The submission and consideration of the presentation as a 
starting point to enable people to focus on the necessary 
developments needed to develop the local health and social 
care system was noted. 
 
RESOLVED that the presentation be noted. 
 

12   DATE OF NEXT MEETING   

It was noted that the next meeting of the Board was scheduled 
to be held as a Development Session on Tuesday, 15th 
December 2020 at 2.00pm. 
 
 

The meeting started at 2.00 pm and ended at 4.00 pm 
 

Page 177



This page is intentionally left blank



BOLTON MANCHESTER ROCHDALE STOCKPORT TRAFFORD 

BURY OLDHAM SALFORD TAMESIDE WIGAN 
 

MINUTES OF THE VIRTUAL MEETING OF THE ASSOCIATION OF GREATER MANCHESTER 
AUTHORITIES EXECUTIVE BOARD HELD ON 11 DECEMBER 2020 VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS 

 
 

PRESENT: 
 
Greater Manchester Mayor  Andy Burnham (In the Chair) 
Greater Manchester Deputy Mayor Baroness Bev Hughes 
Bury     Councillor Eamonn O’Brien 
Manchester    Councillor Richard Leese 
Oldham    Councillor Sean Fielding 
Rochdale     Councillor Allen Brett 
Salford     City Mayor Paul Dennett 
Stockport     Councillor Elise Wilson 
Tameside    Councillor Brenda Warrington  
Trafford    Councillor Andrew Western 
Wigan     Councillor David Molyneux 

 
IN ATTENDANCE: 
 
Rochdale    Councillor Janet Emsley 
 
OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE: 
 
GMCA - Chief Executive  Eamonn Boylan 
GMCA – Monitoring Officer  Liz Treacy 
GMCA – GMCA Treasurer  Steve Wilson 
Bolton     Tony Oakman 
Bury      Geoff Little 
Manchester    Fiona Ledden 
Oldham    Helen Lockwood 
Rochdale    Steve Rumbelow 
Salford     Jim Taylor 
Tameside     Seven Pleasant 
Trafford    Sara Todd 
Wigan     Alison McKenzie-Folan 
Office of the GM Mayor  Kevin Lee 
GMCA     Julie Connor 
GMCA     Anne Morgan 
GMCA     Sylvia Welsh 
GMCA     Nicola Ward 
 

 

Page 179



2 

 

 
AGMA 28/20  APOLOGIES  

 
RESOLVED /- 
 
1. That apologies be received and noted from Councillor David 

Greenhalgh (Bolton), Joanne Roney (Manchester) and Pam Smith 
(Stockport). 
 

2. That apologies from Councillor Martyn Cox (Bolton), who was 
unable to join due to technical difficulties be noted. 

 

 

AGMA 29/20  CHAIRS ANNOUNCEMENTS AND URGENT BUSINESS 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
There were no Chairs announcements or urgent business. 
 

 

 
AGMA 30/20 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
 There were no declarations of interest in relation to any item on the agenda.  

 
 

AGMA 31/20 MINUTES OF THE AGMA EXECUTIVE BOARD MEETING HELD ON 30 OCTOBER 2020  
 
RESOLVED /- 
 

 That the minutes of the meeting held on 30 October 2020 be approved as a correct record. 
 

  
AGMA 32/20 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

GREATER MANCHESTER’S PLAN FOR HOMES, JOBS AND THE ENVIRONMENT: GREATER 
MANCHESTER SPATIAL FRAMEWORK PUBLICATION PLAN 2020 – NEXT STEPS 
 
Salford City Mayor Paul Dennett introduced a report which updated Members on the 
progress of Greater Manchester’s Plan for Homes, Jobs and the Environment: Greater 
Manchester Spatial Framework Publication Plan 2020 and outlined the proposed next steps. 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
1. That the preparation of a Joint Development Plan Document of the nine GM Local 

Authorities, as set out in Section 3 of the report, be agreed in principle. 
 

2. That a further report addressing the issues, set out in Section 3 of the report, be 
submitted to a future meeting. 
 

3. That the nine GM Local authorities be commended to establish a joint committee,  
with delegated authority to co-ordinate and develop a Joint Plan on their behalf as 
the nine local planning authorities. 

Page 180



3 

 

 

Page 181



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE GMCA WASTE AND RECYCLING COMMITTEE 
HELD ON WEDNESDAY 14 OCTOBER 2020 VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS 

 
 
PRESENT:  

Councillor Adele Warren 
Councillor Alan Quinn (Chair) 
Councillor Rabnawaz Akbar 
Councillor Ateeque Ur-Rehman 
Councillor YasminToor 
Councillor Susan Emmott 

Bolton 
Bury 
Manchester 
Oldham 
Oldham 
Rochdale 

Councillor Tom Besford Rochdale  
Councillor David Lancaster 
Councillor Robin Garrido 
Councillor Roy Driver 

Salford 
Salford 
Stockport 

Councillor Helen Foster Grimes 
Councillor Judith Lloyd 

Stockport 
Trafford 
 

OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE: 
 
David Taylor GMCA – Executive Director, Waste & Resources 
Paul Morgan GMCA – Waste & Resources 
Justin Lomax 
Lindsay Keech 

GMCA – Waste & Resources 
GMCA – Waste & Resources 

Michelle Whitfield 
Michael Kelly 
Gwynne Williams 
Sarah Mellor 

GMCA – Waste & Resources  
GMCA – Waste & Resources 
GMCA – Deputy Monitoring Officer  
GMCA – Environment Team 

Kerry Bond 
 

GMCA – Governance & Scrutiny  
 

 
 

WRC 20/46   APOLOGIES 
 
Apologies for absence were received  and noted from Councillors Alison Gwynne (Tameside) and 
Shaukat Ali (Manchester). 
 
 
  

Page 183



 

 

WRC 20/47  CHAIR’S ANNOUNCEMENTS AND URGENT BUSINESS 
 
There were no announcements or items of urgent business reported. 
 
 
WRC 20/48  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
There were no declarations of interest reported by any Member in respect of any item on the 
agenda.  
 
 
WRC 20/49 MEMBERS’ CODE OF CONDUCT AND ANNUAL DECLARATION OF INTEREST 

FORM   
 
RESOLVED/- 

 
1. That Members noted their obligations under the GMCA Members’ Code of Conduct. 

2. That members of the Committee complete the  annual declaration of interest forms and 

return to the Governance and Scrutiny Officer as soon as possible for publication on the 

GMCA website be noted.  

 
WRC 20/50  MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 22 JULY 2020  

 
 

RESOLVED/- 
 
That the minutes of the previous meeting, held on 22 July 2020, be approved as a correct record 
subject to the addition of Councillor Judith Lloyd to the list of those in in attendance. 
 
 
WRC 20/51  CONTRACTS UPDATE 
  
Consideration was given to a report which provided the Committee with an update on 
performance of the Waste and Resource Management Services and Household Waste Recycling 
Centre (HWRC) Management Services Contracts that commenced on 1 June 2019. 
 
It was reported that performance reporting provided used verified data to the end of June 2020, 
which is the Quarter 1 position for financial year 2020/21 of the Suez Contracts. 
 
A progress update on the works at Chichester Street in Rochdale and Reliance Street in 
Manchester was provided alongside an update on the implementation of the Household Waste 
Recycling Centre Van Permit Proposal. 
 

Page 184



 

 

Data for Quarter 1 position for financial year 2020/21 was provided, below, to show the overall 
position for comparison to the previous year: 
 

Annual Performance Comparison  
(Year end – April to June 2020) 

2020 / 2021 2019 / 2020 

OVERALL performance   

Total arisings (t)   267,834    271,795  

Recycling Rate (%) 47.8% 52.9% 

Diversion Rate (%) 97.7% 90.7% 

HWRC performance  

Recycling Rate (Household Waste) % 34.3% 34.4% 

Diversion (Total Arising, inc. rubble) % 98.6% 84.5% 

Longley Lane MRF  

Rejection of Kerbside Recycling Collections (t) 2594 126 

MRF Contamination Rate (Commingled) % 21.2% 19% 

  
In summary, the overall performance for both contracts for Quarter 1 of financial year 2020/21 
(April to June 20) gives a diversion rate approaching 98% and recycling rate of almost 48%.  
 
At the July 2020 meeting Members resolved to approve the development of a project plan for a 
potential van permit scheme. Since that meeting the GMCA has discussed with Suez the brief for 
the development of a van permit system including a timeline for introduction and indicative cost. 
 
As reported previously, vans comprise a relatively small proportion of total visits to the HWRCs 
but represent over 150,000 visits annually. It is evident that vans make up a significant proportion 
of the vehicles that are abusing the sites with trade waste. The restriction on the number of visits 
vans can make has reduced numbers but the van permit system will provide a greater degree of 
control over trade waste abuse at the HWRCs. 

Under the scheme, a householder who owns a van will need to register the vehicle with the GMCA 
via a dedicated web portal. The figure below summarises the high-level application and 
operational process: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 185



 

 

Figure 1: Van Permit Scheme Application and Operational Process 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Suez has provided two options for the development and continued support of the system, which 

are detailed below: 

 

1. To build and develop the service, one-off costs are estimated to be nearly £45k with £7k 

annual costs; and 

2. A subscription service estimated at £3k for the initial build and £15k per annum to cover 20 

HWRCs. 

 

Following discussion, the development and subscription service was recommended. The initial 

estimate to go live is the beginning of February 2021 once development, testing and rollout to 

sites has been completed. 

 

Members asked the following questions: 

 

a. If there is any Government funding available due to sites being closed during the Covid-19 

national lockdown?  

 

b. What action is being undertaken to reduce contamination of kerbside waste?  

 

Officers confirmed that an additional picking process has been introduced to ensure the waste 

is of an acceptable level. 
 

Page 186



 

 

c. How are van permits being managed to ensure business owners don’t use different vehicles 

to dispose of their trade waste?  
 

Officers confirmed that this would be flagged up at the access point of the centre, via the 

database, and would be managed by Suez officers. 

 
RESOLVED/- 
 
1. That the contract performance, health and safety, Household Waste Recycling Centre (HWRC) 

performance, construction works, and other matters set out in the report be noted. 
 

2. That the subscription service for the development, implementation, and maintenance of a 
Van Permit Scheme for the Household Waste Recycling Centre’s be approved. 

 

3. That officers be requested to investigate the availability of Government funding due to the 
closure of sites during the Covid-19 national lockdown.  

 
 
WRC 20/52 ASSET MANAGEMENT PLAN UPDATE  
 
The Head of Engineering and Asset Management, GMCA Waste and Resources Team provided 
members with an update on the implementation of the asset management plan and current 
capital engineering projects, highlighting progress between April and September 2020. Waste and 
Resource assets are managed by the Engineering team and fall into the following categories. 
 
 

(A) - Operational Waste Facilities  

 WRMS Contract Facilities - Lot1 
28 waste processing and reception facilities across 11 locations. 

 WRMS Contract – Lot 2 
11 Household Waste Recycling Centres 

(B) - Buildings and Land  

 Includes vacant land and building premises at 8 locations 

(C) - Closed Landfill Sites  

 4 Closed landfill sites managed by GMCA 

 18 Closed landfill sites managed by POS Landcare 

 
Members asked what measures are being taken to ensure lithium batteries aren’t mixed with the 
waste for shredding. Officers advised that there hadn’t been any recent incidents, and that GMCA 
officers are engaging with Manchester University on a new trial system to detect whether lithium 
batteries are mixed with waste. 
 

Page 187



 

 

RESOLVED/- 
 
That the report be noted. 
 
 
WRC 20/53 COMMUNICATIONS AND BEHAVIOURAL CHANGE PLAN 2021/22 
 
The Head of Communications and Behavioural Change, GMCA Waste and Resources Team 

provided members with an update on the draft Recycle for Greater Manchester 
Communications 

& Behavioural Change Delivery Plan 2021/22 proposals, in advance of the final plan being costed 
and included in the budget setting process for 2021/22. Details of the planned activities from April 
2021 to March 2022 are set out in Appendix A of the report. The communications plan is split 
over 5 aims and these will continue to be central to the 2021/22 Plan: 
 

 Reduce contamination and improve the quality and quantity of recycling; 

 Encourage waste prevention; 

 Raise awareness of recycling across Greater Manchester; 

 Develop and promote the education service; and 

 Increase recycling at the HWRCs. 
 
Members requested that a breakdown of access to digital and social media advertisement 
statistics be made available.  
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
1. That the report and appended Action Plan from April 2021 - March 2022 be noted. 

 
2. That the Communications & Behavioural Change Delivery Plan 2021/22 be noted. 
 
3. That a breakdown of digital and social media advertisement statistics be circulated to 

Members. 
 
 

WRC 20/54 BUDGET UPDATE 2020/21 AND MEDIUM-TERM FINANCIAL PLAN TO   
2023/24  

 
The Head of Finance, Waste and Resources Team provided an update on the forecast revenue 
outturn for 2020/21 and set out an updated strategy outlining major assumptions/risks which 
have been considered in producing the proposals. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
That the forecast revenue outturn for 2020/21 and the updated strategy be noted. 

Page 188



 

 

WRC 20/55  ENGLAND'S RESOURCE AND WASTE STRATEGY UPDATE  
 
Consideration was given to a report, presented by the Head of Sustainable Consumption and 
Production, GMCA Environment Team, updating Members on recent Government publications 
and the work being carried out in preparation for the second round of public consultations on 
England’s Resources and Waste Strategy. 
 
Following the Government publication, on 18th December 2018, of the Our Waste, Our 
Resources: A Strategy for England, four consultations were released, on 18th February 2019. The 
second round of the consultation is expected between January – March next year, work is being 
commissioned to quantify the financial, resource and environmental impacts of the collection 
systems proposed, should they be placed in secondary legislation. Further modelling of possible 
scenarios continues to be undertaken so that an in-depth evidence based response to the second 
round of consultations can be developed. 
 

 Consistent Collections; 

 Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR); 

 Deposit Return Scheme (DRS); and 

 Plastic Packaging Tax 
 
Defra have released two further documents; the Strategy’s Evaluation Plan and the Waste 
Management Plan, which includes a Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA) relating to the 
Plan.  
 
The Evaluation Plan sets out how Defra intend to evaluate the impact England’s Resources and 
Waste Strategy and focuses on the following principles as set out below: 

  
 High quality, rigorous and robust; 
 Independent of influence; 
 Inclusive of stakeholders, not only as participants in the delivery phase but also in the 

development of the scoping and design phases; 
 Transparent and open to scrutiny; 
 Proportionate, both in terms of time and money; 
 Flexible and appropriate for complex situations; and 
 Inclusive of an economic evaluation, if appropriate. 
 
The Waste and Resources Action Programme (WRAP) have also released ‘A Framework to Greater 
Consistency in Household Recycling in England’ which provides an understanding into the 
direction of the next round of public consultation in relation to consistent collections. 
 
Upon setting secondary legislation there is now a duty to include a statutory review position when  
the legislation influences business. This means that a lot of the Strategy's commitments will be  
subject to a 'Post Implementation Review (PIR)' to establish whether: 

 

Page 189



 

 

 A measure has achieved its original objectives; 
 These objectives remain appropriate; 
 The measure is still required; 
 It remains the best opinion for achieving those objectives; and 
 Objectives could be achieved in a way which involves less onerous regularly provision to 

reduce burden on business and/or increase overall societal welfare 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
1. That the principles set out in DEFRA’s Resources and Waste Management Strategy: Evaluation 

Plan be noted. 
 

2. That the proposed response to the Waste Management Plan for England consultation be 
approved. 

 

3. That the on-going work in preparation for the second round of consultations on England’s 
Resources and Waste Strategy be noted. 
 

 
WRC 20/56 EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
RESOLVED/-  
 
That, under section 100 (A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, member of the press and public 
should be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that this 
involves the likely disclosure of exempt information, as set out in paragraphs 3 & 5, Part 1, 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 and that the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information. 
 
 
WRC 20/57 CONTRACTS UPDATE  
 
Consideration was given to a report that updated the Committee on performance and commercial 
issues relating to the Waste and Resources and Household Waste Recycling Centre Management 
Services Contracts that commenced on 1st June 2019. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
1. That the contract updates and key risks set out in the report be noted. 

 
2. That the establishment of the Suez Community Fund as a ring-fenced section of the Greater 

Manchester Environment Fund, as set out in section 6 of the report, be approved. 
 
 

Page 190



 

 

WRC 20/58 DATE AND TIMES OF FUTURE MEETINGS  
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
That the following programme of meetings for the Committee for 2020/21 be agreed, following 
confirmation that these don’t conflict with Local Authority Council meetings: 
 

 13 January 2021, 9.30am, Via Microsoft Teams 

 14 April 2021, 9.30am, Venue TBC 
 

Page 191



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

    

(MioCare Group CIC, Oldham Care and Support Ltd,  

MioCare Services Ltd) 

Minutes of the Board of Directors’ Meeting 

Thursday 22nd October 2020 

Via MS Teams 4pm 

Public Minutes 

 

Present: 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Apologies  

Board Members  

Cllr Steven Bashforth (Cllr SB) – 
Chair 

Cllr Louie Hamblett (Cllr LH) 

Peter White – Deputy Chair, Non-
Executive Board Member (PW)  

Jeff Jones – Non-Executive Board 
Member (JJ) 

Cathy Butterworth – Non-
Executive Board Member (CB) 

Karl Dean – Managing Director 
(KD) 
 
Cllr Zahid Chauhan (Cllr ZC) 

 

In attendance 

Mark Warren – Shareholder’s Advisor & DASS (MW) 

Paul Entwistle – Director Legal Services, Oldham 
Council (PE) 

Danny Jackson – Finance Manager (DJ) 

Karen Wilson – Business Support Manager (Minutes)  

 

No Agenda Item Action 

1 Confidential – Board Members Only 
No items to discuss 

 

2 Welcome, Introduction, attendees and apologies  
SB welcomed all attendees.  

 

3 Declaration of Interest 
MW is the MD of the Community Health and Adult Social Care Service (CHASC) & DASS 
for Oldham.  MW is also the Shareholder’s Advisor to the Board.  

 

 For Information  

4 Minutes of Last Meeting 
a) The confidential minutes of the last Board meeting held on 23rd July 2020 were 

agreed as a true and accurate record. 
b) The public minutes of the last Board meeting held on 23rd July 2020 were agreed 

as a true and accurate record. 
c) The Board action log was discussed and updated accordingly.   
d) The minutes of the last Operations Committee held on 27th August 2020 were 

agreed as a true and accurate record.  
e) The minutes of the last Finance, Audit and Risk (FAR) Committee held on 9th 

September 2020 were agreed as a true and accurate record.  
    
In reference to October 19/8 of the action log; KD suggested he contact the Chair of 
Board to proposed approach of progressing Board Member development and appraisals. 
Action: KD & CllrSB to discuss development and appraisals of Board Members 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
KD&SB 

Page 193



2 
 

 For Discussion  

5 Operating Environment Update  
KD provided Board Members with a presentation on the current operating environment 
for the group and covered 4 key areas which were then discussed by members.   
 

1. The latest on COVID-19 in Oldham 
2. MioCare Group Covid-19 impact and challenges  
3. Integration update 
4. The Council financial challenge impact on MioCare 

 
Thanks, was offered to KD for the presentation. 
 

 

6 Committee Updates – Key Matters 
As Chair of the Operations Committee, PW advised the main focus of the recent meeting 
was integration and potential savings impact. As members might expect It was a 
meeting dominated by the challenges of Covid-19.  
 
As Chair of the Finance, Audit and Risk Committee, JJ advised that the recent meeting 
was also primarily concerned with the impact of Covid-19. At future FAR Committee 
meetings Service Managers will attend to discuss the risks in their service. Financial 
performance and the resources needed over the winter was a focus. The risk register 
review focused on the appropriateness of the proposed additional actions to reduce the 
scores.   
 

 

7 MD Update 
KD reminded Board Members that this paper provides an organisational update with 
regard to items not covered elsewhere on the agenda. 
KD gave an update in the following areas: 

 NHS England has launched its ‘implementing phase 3’ response to the Covid-19 
pandemic. 

 The Department of Health and Social Care has published the ‘Adult Social Care 
Corona Virus (Covid-19) Winter Plan 2020-2021’. 

 The Infection and Prevention Control grant has been extended. 

 Winter and Covid-19 may impact the ability to deliver some 2020/21 objectives. 

 Following engagement with Board members and Council Executives, MioCare 
will not be progressing voluntary options for the workforce.  

 The 2020 staff awards ceremony was delivered virtually. It was well received 
across the Group. The 2021 awards are booked in for July next year. 

 Medlock Court is starting to fill up and increasingly taking more complex people. 
The team are adapting well to the challenge and achieving good outcomes for 
people previously deemed too complex for Medlock Court.  

 A further 3 residents are being transitioned and expected to move into Holly 
Bank before Christmas. Work is underway with Adult Social Care to identify an 
appropriate second cohort of residents. There are some problems with the 
building that are being raised with the necessary stakeholders. 

 
KD was offered thanks for the report. 

 

8 Assurance Report 
VP informed Board Members that the information referenced in this report had been 
cited at one or both Committees. VP updated in the following areas: 

 Routine compliance activity has been reinstated and therefore the corporate 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 194



3 
 

performance dashboard will be produced in the next reporting period. 

 Revisions of the Risk Register were accepted at the recent FAR Committee. 

 Further CQC interview under the Emergency Support Framework for Medlock 
Court has been completed. The service was assessed as ‘managing the impact of 
the pandemic well’. A copy of the report is attached. No notifications for 
Reablement or the Respite service have been received to date.  

 The spotlight review process will recommence from November. 

 There has been a slight increase of staff absence related to Covid-19. This will be 
closely monitored over the coming weeks. 

 The flu vaccination programme is underway with clinics at various locations. 
Staff are being encouraged to uptake. 

 IPC remains the focus this period. Guidance is regularly reviewed and 
procedures and routines are amended when necessary. 

 The supply of PPE requirements is closely monitored. We are confident there are 
no issues with supplies at this time. 

 The Health & Safety Committee meetings will resume this month. Service 
specific reporting will be shared with the FAR Committee for review. 

 The NHS Data Security & Protection Toolkit has been fully completed for the 
Group with all standards met. 

 A new Covid-19 response plan is being developed to help prepare for the next 
phase of the pandemic. The plan will be presented to both Committees for 
further scrutiny. 

 Work is ongoing to plan for the Winter period. 
 
VP was offered thanks for the report. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9 Management Account Period 9 
KD formally introduced DJ to Board members and informed that DJ had been working 
with the Finance team since the beginning of August to provide senior financial support 
to the group.  
DJ informed the Board Members that at Month 9 the operating position was a surplus 
across all 3 companies was £165k and whilst favourable this was an artificial position to 
the impact of Covid-19 and considerable costs will be incurred in the remainder of the 
year.   
 

 
 

 

 

 For Decision  

10 Council Governance Proposal for MioCare Group 
PE, the Director of Legal Services with Oldham Council advised members that Oldham 
Council was looking to agree a consistent approach for the governance of wholly owned 
companies. A paper would follow to MioCare Board members for consideration.  
 

 

 

11 AOB 
Chair wished to offer thanks to the SLT and MioCare Board members for the hard work 
completed for the good of MioCare. 

 

 Next Meeting  
Thursday 22nd January 2021 4pm – 6pm 
MS Teams  

 

 

Page 195



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Peak District National Park Authority 
Tel: 01629 816200 

E-mail: customer.service@peakdistrict.gov.uk 
Web: www.peakdistrict.gov.uk 
Minicom: 01629 816319 
Aldern House, Baslow Road, Bakewell, Derbyshire. DE45 1AE 

 

 
MINUTES 

 
Meeting: 
 

National Park Authority 
 

Date: 
 

Friday 13 November 2020 at 10.00 am 
 

Venue: 
 

Webex - Virtual Meeting 
 

Chair: 
 

Cllr A McCloy 
 

Present: 
 

Mr J W Berresford, Cllr W Armitage, Cllr P Brady, Cllr M Chaplin, 
Cllr D Chapman, Cllr C Farrell, Cllr C Furness, Cllr A Gregory, 
Prof J Haddock-Fraser, Mr Z Hamid, Ms A Harling, Cllr A Hart, 
Cllr Mrs G Heath, Mr R Helliwell, Cllr I  Huddlestone, Cllr B Lewis, 
Cllr C McLaren, Cllr Mrs K Potter, Cllr V Priestley, Cllr K Richardson, 
Miss L Slack, Mr K Smith, Cllr P Tapping, Cllr R Walker, Mrs C Waller 
and Ms Y Witter 
 

  
Apologies for absence:  
 

Cllr J Atkin, Cllr G D Wharmby and Cllr B Woods. 
 

 
79/20 ROLL CALL OF MEMBERS PRESENT, APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND 

MEMBERS DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Item 13 
 
It was noted that all Members had received correspondence regarding this item from Mr 
Simon Wills, Mr John Fallows and Mr John Youatt. 
 
Cllr A McCloy had also received an email from Mr Nancolas. 
 
It was noted that all Members had an interest in this item as it related to a site owned by 
the National Park Authority. 
 

80/20 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING OF 2ND OCTOBER 2020  
 
The minutes of the last meeting of the National Park Authority held on 2nd October were 
approved as a correct record. 
 

81/20 URGENT BUSINESS  
 
There were no items of urgent business. 
 
 

82/20 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
There was no public participation. 

Page 197



National Park Authority Meeting Minutes 
Friday 13 November 2020  
 

Page 2 

 

 

 
83/20 AUTHORITY CHAIR'S UPDATE  

 
The Chair reported that an extra Authority meeting was being held on Friday 4 
December prior to the Programmes and Resources Committee meeting being held that 
day.  The Authority meeting would consider the Part B, exempt report on the 
management restructure. 
 
The Chair then paid tribute to Prof John Tarn OBE, a former Member of the Authority 
when it was known as the Peak Park Joint Planning Board (PPJPB), who had died on 8 
November aged 85.  Prof Tarn was a towering figure in the areas of architecture and 
teaching but also crossed many other boundaries.  He was a long time resident of the 
Peak District and during his long service as a Member of the PPJPB was Chair of the 
Planning Committee for 20 years.  Following this he became Vice President of Friends of 
the Peak District.  Prof Tarn was a Pro Vice Chancellor at Liverpool University and was 
involved with many professional and distinguished bodies including being Chair of a 
prominent social housing association in Liverpool.  His involvement with the Historic 
Churches Committee led to him receiving a papal award from Pope Francis.  Prof Tarn 
was a commanding presence, respected academic and author, he was knowledgeable, 
respected and liked. 
 

84/20 CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REPORT (SLF)  
 
Members noted the Chief Executive’s report which gave updates to Members on key 
items since the previous Authority meeting including: 
 

 Consultation of the draft woodland landscapes plan 

 Peak Park Summit 

 Planning White Paper 

 Green Growth Challenge Fund 

 Latest on the revised Government advice on COVID-19 restrictions 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
To note the report. 
 
 

85/20 UPDATES TO CORPORATE STRATEGY 2019-24 (SF)  
 
Members considered the report which gave details of proposed updates to the Corporate 
Strategy 2019-24.   
 
The Head of Strategy and Performance reported that since the report had been written 
Appendix 1 had been updated to simplify some of the KPIs and make them more active 
in response to further comments received from Members.  The amendments were 
shared with Members via a PowerPoint presentation.  Recommendation 3 of the report 
was also amended to state another report “will be necessary to further update the 
Corporate Strategy in light of further priorities and uncertainties”. 
 
The recommendation as set out in the report and as amended above was moved and 
seconded. 
 
Following discussion it was agreed to further amend KPI 23 to include the words ‘in 
order to attract and retain talent’.   
 

Page 198



National Park Authority Meeting Minutes 
Friday 13 November 2020  
 

Page 3 

 

 

The impacts on staff of changes and short review timescales were noted and these 
would be considered further by the Chair and Deputy Chair of the Authority in 
consultation with the Chief Executive. 
 
The motion which had been moved and seconded was voted on and carried. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

1. To adopt the updates to our Corporate Strategy 2019-24 provided in 
Appendix 1 of the report and the additional amendment to KPI 23 to include 
the words ‘in order to attract and retain talent’.   
 

2. That any changes needed in the final update of the Corporate Strategy 
2019-24 as a result of the Authority meeting are delegated to the Chief 
Executive.  
 

3. To note another report will be necessary to further update the Corporate 
Strategy in light of future priorities and uncertainties. 

 
86/20 ANNUAL REPORT ON MEMBER LEARNING AND DEVELOPMENT  

 
The report on the Member Learning and Development Framework and the proposals for 
the next annual programme of Member learning and development events was 
considered.  It was noted that the Chair and the Member Champion for Member 
Learning and Development, Cllr Becki Woods, would be looking at the Member induction 
process with Officers. 
 
Unfortunately Cllr Woods was unable to attend the meeting today but Andrea McCaskie, 
Head of Law, had spoken with her prior to the meeting and Cllr Woods had confirmed 
she was supportive of the report. 
 
Following discussion of the report it was noted that Members wished to have a 
mechanism to record relevant learning and development obtained outside of the 
Authority’s provision and recirculation of the information available regarding personal 
development plans.  Officers also noted the suggestion that further information could be 
included as explanations for the optional learning and development topics offered in 
Appendix 2 of the report. 
 
The recommendations as set out in the report were moved, seconded, voted on and 
carried. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

1. To agree the Member Learning and Development Framework (Appendix 1 of 
the report) and the events programme for January to December 2021.  
 

2. To continue to record Member learning and development activities in terms 
of hours and include personal learning and development by Members 
outside of events organised by the Authority, with the target of 20 hours 
per Member in every 12 months. 

 
87/20 2020/21 QUARTER 2 CORPORATE PERFORMANCE (A91941/HW)  

 
The Senior Strategy Officer – Research introduced the report which gave details of 
monitoring information for the end of Quarter 2 2020/21 to review performance against 

Page 199



National Park Authority Meeting Minutes 
Friday 13 November 2020  
 

Page 4 

 

 

the second year of the 2019-24 Corporate Strategy.  The report also included details of 
forthcoming changes in performance management. 
 
Members discussed the report and the following points were noted: 
 

 The success of the digital Festival of Archaeology emphasised the need to not 
lose digital connections when working situations become more normal. 

 Officers will consider comments regarding the layout and presentation of the 
information in the appendices to the report. 

 The National Park is now in the top 4 UK National Parks for its social media 
channels in terms of number of hits, followers and reach.  The Chair 
congratulated the Marketing and Communications Team on their expertise. 

 Pages on the Authority’s website are being reviewed with regard to digital and 
social media and this includes considering how to raise awareness and connect 
with target audiences. 

 
The recommendations in the report were moved and seconded.  The motion was voted 
on and carried. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

1. That the Quarter 2 performance report, given in Appendix 1 of the report, is 
reviewed and any actions to address issues agreed.  

2. That the Quarter 2 corporate risk register given in Appendix 2 of the report 
is reviewed and status of risks accepted.  

3. To note the status of complaints, Freedom of Information and 
Environmental Information Regulations requests, given in Appendix 3 of 
the report.   

4. To note the proposed change to performance reporting being undertaken at 
Quarter 2 and Quarter 4.  Any concerns between these periods regarding 
performance will be reported to Members in the Chief Executive’s update 
reports to Authority. 

 
88/20 OUTSIDE BODY FEEDBACK REPORT  

 
Mr Ken Smith had submitted a feedback report on a meeting held on 6 October between 
the Member Champion for Cultural Heritage and Landscapes with Authority Officers. 
 
RESOLVED:- 
 
To note the report. 
 
 

89/20 EXEMPT INFORMATION S100 (A) LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of Item Nos. 12 
& 13 to avoid the disclosure of Exempt Information under S100 (A) (4) Local 
Government Act 1972, Schedule 12A, paragraph 1 “ information relating to any 
individual” and paragraph 3 ‘information relating to the financial or business 
affairs of any particular person (including the Authority holding that information).  
 
  
 

Page 200



National Park Authority Meeting Minutes 
Friday 13 November 2020  
 

Page 5 

 

 

The meeting adjourned for a short break at 11.30 and reconvened at 11.40. 

 
When the meeting reconvened Members were reminded of the need to dispose of Part B 
confidential papers securely and with this in mind stamped, addressed return envelopes 
would be sent to all Members to enable them to return the papers to the office for 
disposal.  Members were also reminded that when in the Part B section of a meeting 
they needed to be alone with no other persons present. 
 
The Head of Law stated that report for agenda item number 13 was being considered in 
Part B as it was not a decision on the future of the site but consideration of options for 
further investigation.  When the report back on the further investigations is made then a 
Part A report will also be made to allow interested parties to participate under the public 
participation at meetings scheme. 
 
 

90/20 EXEMPT MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING OF 2ND OCTOBER 2020  
 
The confidential minutes of the last meeting of the National Park Authority held on 2 
October 2020 were approved as a correct record. 
 
 
SUMMARY 
 
The Committee determined the following item, full details of which are contained in the 
exempt minutes: 
 
91/16 Brosterfield - An Analysis for Future Options for the Site (CBM) 
 
The meeting ended at 12.15 pm 

Page 201



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

  
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
    

Reason for Decision 
 
This report provides an update on how the Council and its partners continue to monitor 
and manage the impact of COVID-19 in Oldham.   
 
Executive Summary 
 
COVID-19 is still circulating across the UK and we continue to see new cases in Oldham 
every day. This report summarises our activity, demonstrating how we will collectively 
manage and prevent the spread of COVID-19 across our communities. 
 
Recommendations 
 
To note the content of the report. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Report to COUNCIL  

 
Oldham’s COVID-19 Response - Update 
 

Portfolio Holder:  
Councillor Shah, Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for COVID-
19 Recovery 
 
Officer Contact:  
Rebekah Sutcliffe, Strategic Director of Communities & Reform  
 
Report Author: Jonathan Downs (Corporate Policy Lead) / 
Amanda Richardson (Corporate Policy Manager)  
 
24.03.2021 
 
 

Page 203

Agenda Item 12



 

  2 

 
 
Council 24.03.2021 
 

1 Background 
 
1.1 At the end of 2020, a new and more transmissible variant of COVID-19 (B.1.1.7) began to 

spread very quickly across the UK, becoming the dominant strain. As a consequence, the 

B.1.1.7 variant led to further surges in cases, hospitalisations and deaths. 

 
1.2 The Government responded by reintroducing the Stay at Home order first in the regions 

most affected and then nationally across England. The Devolved Administrations took 

similar approaches. 

 

1.3 On 2nd December, UK regulators granted emergency-use authorization to a vaccine from 

drug firms Pfizer and BioNTech. This was followed the same month by authorisation for use 

of the AstraZeneca vaccine developed by Oxford University and in January 2021, the 

Moderna vaccine. 

 

1.4 In January 2021 vaccination roll-out began – and the Government’s ambition to offer 

everyone in JCVI cohorts 1 to 4 at least one dose of the vaccine by 15 February was met 

two days early. 

 

1.5 On 19 February, over 17.2 million people had already received their first vaccine dose and 

604,885 people had also received their second dose across the UK. Everyone will be 

offered their second dose no more than 12 weeks after their first dose; so those in JCVI 

cohorts 1 to 4 who received their first dose by mid-February, will be invited for their second 

dose by mid-May. 

 

1.6 Cases, hospitalisations and deaths have fallen since lockdown started. Between 6 and 12 

February, 1 in 115 people have tested positive for COVID-19 in England compared to a 

peak between 3 and 9 January when 1 in 50 tested positive for the virus. 

 
1.7 In March, the NHS began to offer vaccinations to people aged 60 – 64 years of age; those 

aged 50 and over and people with underlying health conditions. The aim is to give a first 

dose of the vaccine by 15 April, and a second dose by mid-July 2021. Phase 2 of the roll-

out is scheduled from mid-April and aims to offer everybody aged 18 and over a first dose 

of the vaccine by 31 July. 

 

1.8 March has also seen the Government issue its roadmap out of lockdown – made possible 

by the success of the vaccination programme. It details a cautious approach in order to 

avoid a surge in cases which would put unsustainable pressure on the NHS and claim more 

lives before people have the chance to take a vaccine.  Before taking each step, the 

Government will review the latest data on the impact of the previous step against four tests. 

The tests are: 

 

1. The vaccine deployment programme continues successfully.  

2. Evidence shows vaccines are sufficiently effective in reducing hospitalisations and 

deaths in those vaccinated 

Page 204



 

  3 

3. Infection rates do not risk a surge in hospitalisations which would put unsustainable 

pressure on the NHS 

4. Our assessment of the risks is not fundamentally changed by new Variants of Concern 

 

1.9 The easing of restrictions in England began on the 8th March with measures including the 

return of students to schools and colleges and the relaxation of restrictions on the number 

of people who can meet outside.  

 
2 COVID-19 in Oldham 
 
2.1 As of the 8th March 2021 there has been 21,823 cases of COVID-19 identified in Oldham, 

the weekly infection rates are currently running at around 82 cases per 100,000 people. 
 
 
2.2 Over the past 28 days (up to 19th February), 42,833 people have been tested for COVID-

19 in Oldham. This includes 22,951 in Pillar 1 (tests undertaken through hospital and Public 
Health England laboratories) and 19,882 in Pillar 2 (commercial labs that process most of 
the at-home and community tests). Out of the 42,833 tests undertaken, 2,388 people tested 
positive (384 in Pillar 1 and 2,004 in Pillar 2). There have been 688 Covid-19 related deaths 
in Oldham (up to 19th February). 

 
 
3.0 Oldham’s COVID-19 Response Updates  
 
3.1 For the purposes of this report, Oldham’s response has been broken down into four key 

themes: Test and Trace, Vaccination, Enforcement and Compliance, and Community 
Engagement and Communications.  

 
4.0 Test and Trace 
 
 
4.1 Community Testing On the 18th January 2021, Oldham commenced targeted testing at 

scale for those that could not work from home, setting up 4 large tests sites for twice 
weekly routine testing. This utilises lateral flow devices with rapid results in approximately 
30 minutes ensuring that positive cases are identified at the earliest opportunity. This is 
connected into the national contact tracing systems provision an opportunity for positive 
cases and their contacts to isolate and break the chain of transmission at the earliest 
point. 

 
4.2 This programme of work has now been extended until the end of June 2021, and we are 

moving towards a different model to significantly increase the number of testing sites at 
smaller venues that are better suited to meet the needs of residents. By having more sites 
spread across the borough, residents and those visiting Oldham for work, education or to 
see a loved one in a Care Home, will have greater choice and be able to access testing 
closer to home.  

 
4.3 In addition to testing sites, an outreach testing and training provision ensures that testing 

can be offered at large settings such as workplaces or community venues. Through these 
arrangements we are building a network of settings that can provide training in a 
sustainable model going forward. The settings are trained to be competent in basic 
infection, prevention and control, registering as a test site, registration for those attending, 
talking people through a self-swab, undertaking the analysis, interpreting the results and 
uploading of results to the national portal.    

 

Page 205



 

  4 

4.4 Symptomatic testing the network of local test sites (LTS) operated by NHS Test and 
Trace continue to operate to provide testing to people with coronavirus symptoms.  Three 
LTS are currently in operation and plans underway to place a 4th site in Failsworth. The 3 
static sites are situated in:  

 

 Southgate Street Car Park, Centre of Oldham OL1 1DN 

 Peel Street in Chadderton, OL9 9JX 

 Honeywell Centre, Hadfield Street. Hathershaw, OL8 3BP 
 
4.5 Although there is a national booking portal, Oldham continues to work with DHSC to make 

the process as flexible as possible for those residents to ensure that lack of digital access 
does not present a barrier to being able to access testing.  

 
4.6 In addition to the static sites, we have utilised mobile testing units (MTU) around the 

borough to ensure that wards with greatest travel distance or barriers in accessing a LTS 
have access to the MTU on a rotation basis. Where data identifies areas of high 
transmission or low testing uptake, MTUs have been strategically placed in these areas 

 
4.7 From the beginning of July 2020, Oldham Council and Clinical Commissioning Group 

commissioned a dedicated testing service to provide local testing from a clinical provider, 
ensuring that our local model meets the needs of the residents and core service, and is 
flexible to changes in demand.  

 
4.8 The commissioned service has been providing routine asymptomatic PCR testing for health 

and social care staff, symptomatic testing for those working for Oldham Cares and staff 
providing system resilience when there are surges in demand. In addition to this, the 
commissioned service has provided pre-surgery testing and domiciliary support to a small 
number of residents that are unable to attend a test site or unable to undertake a self-swab 
though a home test/ postal kit. 

 
4.9 Contact Tracing and the Local Tracing Partnership (tier2): When an individual test 

positive for COVID-19 they were first notified by text or email instructing them to isolate. 
The national contact tracing tier 2 team receive information about all positive cases and 
attempt to contact to ensure that isolation requirements are understood and to acquire a list 
of contacts that the positive case has been in contact with 2 days prior to symptom onset 
(or test date if there were no symptoms). If after 48hours, the national team have failed to 
make contact or been unable to acquire the contacts, the cases are securely passed to the 
Local Authority. Oldham Council only receives details of cases who are Oldham residents.   

 
4.10 Trained contact tracers have made significant progress in making contact with residents 

that the national team have been unable to contact. Where required bilingual contact 
tracers are available. The phone call includes instruction to isolate and asks for information 
of contacts, but in addition to this Oldham staff use this call as an opportunity to check if 
individuals have any support needs such as food deliveries or prescription collections for 
those without a local support network. In addition to this the team are also able to connect 
individuals into isolation payments for those that are eligible. 

 
4.11 The team prioritises contact tracing for any cases that has been identified as a variant of 

concern and will escalate these cases immediately to the director of public health. 
 
 
 
 

Page 206



 

  5 

4.12 The GM Integrated Contact Tracing Hub (GM ITCH) serves as a resilience hub to support 
surges in demand that exceed local capacity utilising expertise and capacity from the 
Greater Manchester Fire and rescue service. 

 
4.13 As part of the national test and trace service, contact tracing which involves complex 

settings, groups or individuals requiring local knowledge will be automatically passed to 
the GM Integrated Contact Tracing Hub (GM ICTH). This complex contact tracing is 
referred to as tier 1 and is locally lead. Cases that relate to an Oldham setting are passed 
to the Local Authority daily for contact tracing that can commence without delay. The 
notifications are received through the Single Point of Contact (established within the 
Oldham Public Health team). The team have developed a standard operating procedure 
that details escalation routes and key officers for each of the specific settings identified. 
This function of a SPOC also serves to escalate notifications to GM, particularly those that 
are across geographical boundaries within Greater Manchester.  

 
 
5.0 Vaccination 
 
5.1 The original Government plan included a vaccination programme comprising 1) mass 

vaccination sites run by Regional NHS Teams and 2) local sites run by Primary Care 
Networks under nationally agreed Directly Enhanced Service contracts.  

 
5.2 The national rollout plan was executed at rapid pace and the priority for rollout was set 

nationally by the JCVI, which advises that the first priorities for the COVID-19 vaccination 
programme should be the prevention of mortality and the maintenance of the health and 
social care systems. As the risk of mortality from COVID-19 increases with age, 
prioritisation is primarily based on age. The order of priority for each group in the 
population corresponds with data on the number of individuals who would need to be 
vaccinated to prevent one death, estimated from UK data obtained from March to June 
2020.  

 

 all those 80 years of age and over and frontline health and social care workers 

 all those 75 years of age and over 

 all those 70 years of age and over and clinically extremely vulnerable individuals 

 all those 65 years of age and over 

 all individuals aged 16 years to 64 years with underlying health conditions which put 
them at higher risk of serious disease and mortality 

 all those 60 years of age and over 

 all those 55 years of age and over 

 all those 50 years of age and over 
 
5.3 Achieving a high coverage across all population groups will contribute to reducing COVID-

19 risks in the population and the associated inequalities.  
 
5.4 In terms of mass vaccination centres, this is organized at Greater Manchester level and is 

located at the Etihad Stadium. Uptake by Oldham residents of the Etihad facility is only just 
starting to become known to the Oldham system as this is a nationally run programme. 
Usage by Primary Care Network is as follows: South Central: 4.39% of people from this 
area have had their vaccine at the Etihad facility 

 

 North Central: 4.45% 

 West: 9.04% 

 South: 14.92% 

 North: 9.06% 

 East: 18.86% 

Page 207



 

  6 

 
 
 
5.5 The Oldham vaccination programme was set up as operational from 6 sites within the five 

Primary Care Networks. It was first launched on 14 December 2020 in Glodwick in South 
Central PCN followed later that week in North PCN (Royton Health & Wellbeing Centre) 
and West PCN (CH Medical), then between Christmas and New Year at South PCN 
(Failsworth) and then in January at North Central PCN (ICC Building) and then East PCN 
(Moorside Medical Centre). 

 
5.6 During the course of February and early March additional ‘pop-up’ clinics have also been 

held at Greengate Street Mosque, the EIC Centre and Millennium Centre all of which have 
been targeted at encouraging greater levels of update in our BAME communities. 

 
5.7 In terms of uptake figures progress, the following table (Table 1) shows the key headlines. 

In summary, so far more than 76,000 vaccines have been administered – more than 90% 
taken up by those over 80 years old; more than 90% by those over 75 years of age; around 
80% by those over 70 years of age and clinical extremely vulnerable; and around 85% of 
those over 65 years of age. 

 
 

Table 1: Number of Vaccines by Cohort 
 

 

 
 
 
5.8 Table 2 below shows a break down by Ward across Oldham which shows the lowest 

uptake for Cohorts 1-6 can be seen in Werneth, Coldhurst and St Mary’s Wards with the 
highest uptake in Crompton, Saddleworth and Royton Wards. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 208



 

  7 

Table 2: Breakdown by Ward for Cohorts 1-6 
 

 
 
5.9 Now we have vaccinated a significant number of our residents, we are starting to clearly 

see and understand the impact and correlation between deprivation and ethnicity, and this 
is being looked at in detail by our Equalities Advisory Group. Table 3 below shows the 
correlation between ethnicity and the Index of Multiple Deprivation and it is clear that 
uptake rates are higher for every ethnic group in the most more affluent areas.  

 

Table 3: Vaccine Uptake across Ethnicity & IMD 

 
 

 

Page 209



 

  8 

 
 
 
5.10 The next phase of rollout will continue to move down the Cohort list and focus on 

supplementing PCN clinics with additional clinics run in hyper-local community facilities 
such as Mosques. In addition, as we enter March we are also now starting to administer 
first as well as second doses. 

 

6.0 Enforcement and Compliance  
 
6.1 The Enforcement Team (Environmental Health, Licensing, Community Safety and GMP 

colleagues) have been working 7 days a week visiting premises, responding to complaints 
and attending gatherings and other breaches. Fixed penalty notices have been served for 
breaches of the various regulations together with prohibition notices where appropriate to 
prevent businesses from continuing the trade when instructed to close as part of the 
national restrictions. 

 
6.2 The Enforcement and Compliance partnership have also commissioned the provision of 

COVID marshals who attend locations where there are incidents of heavy footfall such as 
Dovestones Reservoir and other open spaces where potential social distancing breaches 
may occur due to sheer numbers.  These officers will be linked into the partnership 
approach for support if more formal activity is required. 

 
6.3 Support to Business the Chancellor announced the continuation of business support 

schemes in the March Budget including: 
 

 extending furlough, until the end of September. The Government will continue to pay 
80% of employees' wages for hours they cannot work, employers will however be 
asked to contribute 10% in July and 20% in August and September respectively, 

 

 paying support for the self-employed also to be extended until September, 600,000 
more self-employed people will be eligible for help as access to grants is widened, 

 

 continuing the business rates holiday until the end of June followed by nine months of 
66% relief. 

 

 freezing the business rates multiplier in England for 2021/22, saving firms around 
£600m over the next five years. 

 

 making business restart grants available (in England) of up to £6,000 for non-essential 
retail businesses and up to £18,000 for hospitality and other sectors 

 

 introducing an additional £425m of discretionary business grant funding for distribution 
for local authorities, on top the £1.6bn already allocated nationally 

. 
Support to Oldham businesses The Council has launched the Discretionary Business 
Grants for Taxis scheme to help drivers across the borough. The scheme would see 
eligible drivers receive a one-off payment. It is aimed at hackney carriage and private hire 
taxi drivers who are licensed by Oldham Council. Under the scheme every taxi driver in 
Oldham could receive £1,000 to help them get over the impact of coronavirus after Oldham 
Council agreed a potential funding package of more than £1.3million. 

 
 
 
 

Page 210



 

  9 

7.0 Community Engagement and Communications  
 
7.1  Community engagement and communications has been key to our Covid-19 response here 

in Oldham; in order to ensure our residents and businesses are aware of the restrictions and 
public health advice, and are also signposted towards the range of support and advice 
available from the council and our partner organisations 

 
7.2 Communications and engagement work has focused on all aspects of our Covid-19 

response, including encouraging take-up of the vaccination; signposting towards testing 
provision; providing public health advice; and publicising support available to residents and 
businesses. A wide range of communications channels are used to ensure as many people 
in Oldham as possible, from all communities, are engaged with. This has included out of 
home (OOH) billboards and digital screens; social media; video; newsletters; communication 
through the traditional media; leaflets; community television programmes; and direct 
engagement with communities; as well as our engagement teams going door-to-door in 
specific areas to speak with residents and deliver important information. 

 
7.3 Engagement work has also taken place through a programme of “community conversations” 

with existing community groups in Oldham. This has enabled us to gain additional insight that 
has informed engagement and communications activity. A Covid-19 Recovery survey, 
carried out in February and March 2021, also gained responses from more than 600 
residents, who gave their views on how the pandemic affected them, and what our recovery 
plan as a Council should involve. The responses to this survey are currently being analysed 
and will inform the next stage of our recovery planning. 

 
7.4 A new “We Are Oldham” communications campaign launched in March, encouraging 

residents to keep following the new Coronavirus restrictions as lockdown is gradually lifted, 
so we as a borough can recover more quickly from the pandemic. This campaign outlines 
the steps residents, businesses, the Council and its partners should take to keep Coronavirus 
rates low as the Government’s roadmap to recovery is rolled out. 

 
8 Consultation 
 
8.1 N/A 
 
9 Financial Implications  
 
 General Unringfenced Grants  
 
9.1 The Government continues to allocate a range of ringfenced and unringfenced grants to 

support the Local Government response to COVID-19.  The Council has received £23.978m 
of unringfenced funding including £1.282m as compensation for lost sales, fees and charges 
income.  The Council also anticipates receiving a further £2.824m of unringfenced grant, 
comprised of two additional tranches of compensation for lost sales, fees and charges 
income (£1.824m) as well as £1m in relation to the Local Tax Income Support Grant (this 
£1m will be carried forward into 2021/22 to support the budget, as approved at Council on 4 
March 2021).  These   general grants are available to every Local Authority and the impact 
of these grants on the overall financial position of the Council has been included in Financial 
Monitoring reports presented to Cabinet covering the period from month 3 to month 9. 

 
 COVID Specific Grants  
 
9.2 The Council has been notified of 19 COVID specific grants to support its COVID response.  

There has been more than one allocation of some of these grants so in total the Council is 
monitoring 28 individual allocations of funding. The total funding received or notified is 
£21.588m.    

Page 211



 

  10 

 
9.3 The highest value grants received are: 

 Control Outbreak Management Fund - £6.125m (from six allocations) 

 Infection Control Grant - £4.592m (from two allocations) 

 Hardship Fund Grant - £3.019m  

 COVID Winter Grant - £0.975m 

 Test and Trace Support Payments - £0.866m  
 

The Council will maximise the use of the grant and if possible, carry forward resources into 
2021/22. 

 
9.4 Furthermore, the Council has, and continues to receive contributions from the NHS via 

Oldham CCG (as prescribed in NHS Guidance) to support Adult Social Care provision 
including hospital discharges to a social care setting.  The current full projection for this 
funding is £10.419m. 

 
 Support for Businesses  
 
9.5 Members will recall that Cabinet on 23 April was advised that the Council had been awarded 

grant funding of £54.738m to provide support for small businesses and those in the retail, 
hospitality and leisure sectors in the form of two grant funding schemes, the Small Business 
Grant Fund (SBGF) and the Retail, Hospitality and Leisure Grant Fund (RLHGF). The 
Government subsequently announced that this funding allocation would also provide 
Discretionary Grant support for those businesses not qualifying for the other categories of 
grant.  

 
9.6 These grant schemes closed on 28 August and all final payments have been made and a full 

reconciliation undertaken. Government was notified in accordance with the deadline of 30 
October that in total payments of £47.845m were made under the SBGF and RLHGF grant 
regimes to 4,232 businesses and £2.501m (the maximum allowable) of discretionary grants 
paid to 267 businesses.  The Council has now repaid the Government £4.392m representing 
the excess of grant received over that paid out.  The total payments made to businesses in 
the initial round of funding is therefore £50.346m. 

 
9.7 Introduced from October 2020 was a second round of grants, again split into mandatory and 

discretionary grants.  The grants are the Local Restrictions Support Grant (LRSG) which has 
mandatory and discretionary elements and a separate discretionary grant, the Additional 
Restrictions Grant (ARG). 

 
9.8 In addition to LRSG payable on either a 14 or 28 day cycle linked to the rateable value (RV) 

of business premises, there have been 2 rounds of national lockdown grants together with a 
cash grant payment of £1k for ‘wet led’ pubs (Christmas Support Grant) and  a Closed 
Business Lockdown payment of £4k, £6k and £9k (again dependent on the business RV).   

 
9.9 The number of businesses eligible for mandatory grants reduced with the categories of 

businesses required to close having changed with the tiering of restrictions and national 
lockdowns.  In addition, the take up of LRSG by qualifying businesses was initially slow.  A 
simplified application process was introduced requiring one set of information to be 
completed, resulting in eligibility being assessed and then payments being made on an 
automatic basis for each qualifying period and category of grant (subject to checks for fraud). 

 
9.10 The total value of LRSG received from Government is £28.520m.  At the time of preparing 

the report, a total of 8,906 individual payments had been made to 1,544 qualifying businesses 
with grant paid of £18.369m.  The amount of grant paid changes on a daily basis and the 
Council aims to maximise the payment of grant to qualifying businesses. 

Page 212



 

  11 

 
9.11 Announced alongside the Chancellors budget on 3 March 2021 was the closure of most of 

these grant schemes, with a requirement for final applications to be made by 31 March 2021 
and with final payment date of 30 April 2021. The Christmas Support Grant for Wet Led Pubs 
has already closed to new applicants.  The final date by which an application could be 
submitted was 28 February with final payments having to be made by 31 March 2021. 

 
9.12  The ARG received by Oldham is initially paid to GMCA, who in turn allocates the grant on a 

population basis.  As this is a discretionary grant, it is more challenging to administer.  There 
have been two rounds of ARG paid totaling £7.123m.  The support for taxi drivers referred to 
at 6.3 is being paid from the ARG allocation.  The amount of grant paid to businesses 
changes on a daily basis and the Council is aiming to allocate all the grant to qualifying 
businesses. 

 
9.13 The Government has announced a new round of support for business which will start from 1 

April 2021.  The guidance and detail have not yet been announced and the Council will 
ensure that once received, systems will be initiated to facilitate the payment of grant to 
qualifying businesses as quickly as possible. 

 
10 Legal Services Comments 
 
10.1 There are no direct legal issues arising from the report, however, Central Government has 

issued emergency legislation and guidance in relation to many functions affected by the 
pandemic and it is important that such functions comply with or have regard to such 
provisions or guidance to ensure that the Council is acting lawfully. Further, the Council is 
required to maintain its decision-making processes, ensure good governance and that 
appropriate health and safety risk assessments are in place and operational to avoid legal 
challenge. (Colin Brittain) 

 
11 Co-operative Agenda 
 
11.1 As a Co-operative Council, Oldham is committed to tackling the impact of COVID-19, 

protecting our most vulnerable residents and communities. We are putting the voice of the 
resident at the heart of our response, ensuring the voice of lived experience and the people 
impacted by COVID-19 shapes our approach to mitigation and recover. (Jonathan Downs 
– Corporate Policy Lead)  

 
12 Human Resources Comments 
 
12.1 N/A 
 
13 Risk Assessments 
 
13.1 N/A 
 
14 IT Implications 
 
14.1 N/A 
 
15 Property Implications 
 
15.1 N/A 
 
16 Procurement Implications 
 
16.1 N/A 

Page 213



 

  12 

 
17 Environmental and Health & Safety Implications 
 
17.1 N/A 
 
18 Equality, community cohesion and crime implications 
 
18.1 The response to the global COVID-19 pandemic, and the emergency legislation powers 

introduced to tackle it, has had a significant impact on Oldham’s communities. 
 
18.2 In Oldham we are committed to minimising the impact of COVID-19 across our 

communities. The steps we are taking to tackle the pandemic and the subsequent recovery 
planning, aim to support people, especially those groups with protected characteristics who 
are often most impacted. 

 
18.3 To support this approach we have established an Advisory Group, made up of council, 

community and partnership representatives, to support Oldham Council and the wider 
partnership with its commitment to integrate Equality and Diversity throughout its Covid-19 
response and subsequent recovery planning. 

 
19 Equality Impact Assessment Completed? 
 
19.1  Yes 
 
20 Key Decision 
 
20.1 No  
 
21 Key Decision Reference 
 
21.1 N/A 
 
22 Background Papers 
 
22.1   Council Report – COVID-19 Response – June 2020 
 
22.2 Council Report – COVID-19 Response – July 2020 
 
22.3 Council Report – COVID-19 Response Update – November 2020 
 
22.4 Council Report – Covid-19 Response Update – December 2020 
 
23 Appendices  
 
23.1 N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 214



 

  13 

 
DELETE THE SIGNATURE BOX IF THE REPORT IS A CABINET DECISION 

 

 

 
Signed _______________________ 
  Cabinet Member (specify whom) 
 

 
Dated _________________________ 
 

 
Signed _______________________ 
  Strategic Director/Deputy  
             Chief Executive  
 

 
Dated __________________________ 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 215



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Reason for Decision 
 
The decision is for Elected Members to note the updates to the actions from previous 
Council meetings. 
 
Executive Summary 
 
1. This report provides feedback to the Council on actions taken at the Council 

meeting on 16th December 2020. 
 
2. This report also provides feedback on other issues raised at that meeting and 

previous meetings. 
 
Recommendations 
 
Council are asked to agree the action taken and correspondence received regarding 
motions and actions agreed at previous Council meetings. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

COUNCIL  

 
Update on Actions from Council 
 

Portfolio Holder:   Various 
 
 
Officer Contact:  Director of Legal Services 
 
Report Author:  Elizabeth Drogan, Head of Democratic Services 
Ext. 4705 
 
24th March 2021 

Page 217

Agenda Item 13



 

  2 

Council 24th March 2021 
 
Update on Actions from Council 
 
1 Background 
 
1.1 The report sets out the actions officers have taken on motions of outstanding business and 

notice of motions approved at the Council meeting held on 16th December 2020. 
 
2 Current Position 
 
2.1 The current position from actions as a result of motions is set out in the table at Appendix 

One.  Letters are attached at Appendix Two in response to the actions approved at Council. 
 
3 Options/Alternatives 
 
3.1 N/A 
 
4 Preferred Option 
 
4.1 N/A 
 
5 Consultation 
 
5.1 N/A 
 
6 Financial Implications  
 
6.1 N/A 
 
7 Legal Services Comments 
 
7.1 N/A 
 
8. Co-operative Agenda 
 
8.1 N/A 
 
9 Human Resources Comments 
 
9.1 N/A 
 
10 Risk Assessments 
 
10.1 N/A 
 
11 IT Implications 
 
11.1 N/A 
 
12 Property Implications 
 
12.1 N/A 
 
13 Procurement Implications 
 

Page 218



 

  3 

13.1 N/A 
 
14 Environmental and Health & Safety Implications 
 
14.1 N/A 
 
15 Equality, community cohesion and crime implications 
 
15.1 None 
 
16 Equality Impact Assessment Completed? 
 
16.1  No 
 
17 Key Decision 
 
17.1 No  
 
18 Key Decision Reference 
 
18.1 N/A 
 
19 Background Papers 
 
19.1 The following is a list of background papers on which this report is based in accordance with 

the requirements of Section 100(1) of the Local Government Act 1972.  It does not include 
documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information as defined by the Act: 
 

 Agenda and minutes of the Council meeting held 16th December 2020 are available 
online at:  http://committees.oldham.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails 
 

 
20 Appendices  
 
20.1 Appendix 1 – actions taken following the Council meeting held on 16th December 2021. 
 
20.2 Appendix 2 – Letters and other information received in response to actions approved at 

previous Council meetings. 

 

Page 219

http://committees.oldham.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 

Page 1 of 6 Update on Actions from Council  

Actions from Council 16th December 2020 
 

ACTION ISSUE/RESPONSE WHO RESPONSIBLE DATE COMPLETED 

Administration Motion 1: Fair 
Grade for All 2021 

Letter to be sent to the Secretary of 
State for Education 
 
Letter to be sent to Oldham’s Three 
MPs 
 

Leader and Chief 
Executive 
 
Leader and Chief 
Executive 

8th February 2021 
 
 
8th February 2021 

Administration Motion 2: 
Spending Review November 
2020 
 

Letter to be sent to LGA 
 
Letter to be sent to Oldham’s Three 
MPs 
 
Letter to be sent to the Secretary of 
State for Work and Pensions 
 

Chief Executive 
 
Chief Executive 
 
 
Chief Executive 

8th February 2021 
 
8th February 2021 
 
 
8th February 2021 

Opposition Motion 1: Tracking 
Stalkers and Domestic Abusers 
 

Letter to be sent to Home Secretary 
 
Letter to be sent to Oldham’s Three 
MPs 
 
Letter to be sent to the Mayor and 
Deputy Mayor of Greater 
Manchester 
 

Chief Executive 
 
Chief Executive 
 
 
Chief Executive 

8th February 2021 
 
8th February 2021 
 
 
8th February 2021 

Opposition Motion 2: Young 
Carers Action Day 

RESOLVED that: 
1. Young Carers Action Day would 

be promoted as widely as 
possible on an annual basis, 
particularly to young carers and 
their families. 

 
2. The Health and Wellbeing Board 

be asked to work with the Carers’ 

 
Communications 
 
 
 
 
 
Health and Wellbeing 
Board 

 
In progress 
 
 
 
 
 
In progress 

P
age 221



Appendix 1 

Page 2 of 6 Update on Actions from Council  

Trust, the Connexions Young 
Carers’ Project and the Youth 
Council to establish an annual 
event in Oldham to mark this 
date, to which young carers and 
their families could be invited in 
person or online, and at which 
appropriate information and 
services could be accessed. 

 

Opposition Motion 3: Turning 
Over a New Leaf 
 

RESOLVED that: 
1. The inclusion of the protection of 

Ancient Woodland into the 
forthcoming Local Plan be 
considered, and it be included as 
a theme within the forthcoming 
Issues and Options consultations 
on the emerging Local Plan. 

 
2. The Chief Executive be asked to 

write to the Secretary of State to 
ensure that any changes to the 
planning system do not remove 
the rights of Local Councils to 
protect Ancient Woodland as part 
of their planning policies 

 
3. Subject to any adoption of a 

policy on Ancient Woodland as 
part of the Local Plan, an 
opportunity for residents to 
identify Ancient Woodland sites 
throughout the borough which 
should be covered by protection 
be included in later consultation. 

 

 
Councillor Roberts 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Chief Executive 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Councillor Roberts 
 

 
In progress 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8th February 2021 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
In Progress 
 

P
age 222



Appendix 1 

Page 3 of 6 Update on Actions from Council  

 

Oldham’s Covid-19 Response RESOLVED that: 
1. Oldham’s Partnership Response 

to the COVID-19 pandemic be 
noted. 

2. The questions and responses 
provided be noted. 

 

Council Council noted the report on 16th 
December 2020 
 

Update on the Actions from 
Council 
 

RESOLVED that the actions taken 
regarding motions and actions from 
previous Council meetings be 
agreed and correspondence and 
updates received be noted. 
 
 

Council 
 
 
 
 
 

Council approved the report on 
16th December 2020 
 
 
 

Children’s Services Update RESOLVED that the update on 
Children’s Services and progress to 
date be noted. 
 

Council Council noted the report on 16th 
December 2020. 
 

Treasury Management Mid-Year 
Review Report 2020/21 

RESOLVED that: 
1. The Treasury Management 

activity for the first half of the 
financial year 2020/21 and the 
projected outturn position be 
approved. 

2. The Amendments to both 
Authorised Limit and Operational 
Boundary for external debt as set 
out in the table at Section 2.4.5 of 
the report be approved. 

3. The Amendments to the Capital 
Financing Requirement (CFR) as 
set out in the table at Section 
2.4.5 be approved. 

 

Council Council approved the report on 
16th December 2020. 

P
age 223



Appendix 1 

Page 4 of 6 Update on Actions from Council  

2019/20 Annual Statement of 
Accounts 

RESOLVED that Authority’s final 
accounts position for 2019/20, the 
Statement of Accounts and the 
Audit Completion Report be noted. 
 

Council Council noted the report on 16th 
December 2020. 

Civic Appreciation Nomination 
2021 

RESOLVED that: 
1. The nomination of Steve Hill to 

receive the Civic Appreciation 
Award be agreed. 

2. The ceremony for the award to 
take place prior to the Council 
meeting to be held on 24th 
March 2021. 

 

Council Council approved the report on 
16th December 2020. 

Municipal Diary 2021/22 RESOLVED that: 
1. The current version of the 

Council’s calendar of meetings 
for 2021/22 be approved as set 
out at Appendix 1. 

2. Approval of any outstanding 
dates for changes to dates be 
delegated to the Chief Executive 
in consultation with Group 
Leaders. 

Council Council approved the report on 
16th December 2020. 

 

P
age 224



Appendix 1 

Page 5 of 6 Update on Actions from Council  

Previous to 16 December 2020 
Council: 

   

ACTION RESPONSE WHO RESPONSIBLE DATE COMPLETED 

Opposition Motion 1:  Tackling 
Dog Fouling and Nuisance (20 
March 2019) 

Consultation be undertaken on 
application of maximum on the 
spot penalty and O&S Board 
asked to examine current 
examples of best practice and 
confer with the Dog Trust 
 

People & Place /  
O&S Board 

The motion was taken to the O&S 
Board at the meeting held on 18 
June 2019.  It was reported to 
Council on 17 July 2020 that work 
on progressing the motion via the 
Overview and Scrutiny Board had 
been delayed.  A councillor had 
been nominated form the Board 
to work with officers to progress 
the points raised and this work 
would now be prioritised.   
 

Youth Council Motion: Make 
Your Mark (8 Jan 2020) 
 

Task and Finish Group with 
Relevant Cabinet Members 
 

Cabinet Members / 
Youth Council 

In progress.  Report in process of 
being prepared. 

Opposition Motion 2:  
Accessible Shopping Districts 
(17 Jun 2020) 

Ensure investment took account 
of good practice in improving 
access; members be encouraged 
to consider bids to the Local 
Improvement Fund and continue 
to promote and support the work 
of the Oldham Dementia 
Partnership, Oldham Dementia 
Alliance and Oldham Dementia 
Friends Network 
 

People and Place In progress – information sent to 
relevant officers 

Youth Council Motion (15 July 
2020) 

Quality job opportunities and 
apprenticeships for young people 

Overview and Scrutiny 
Board 
 

O&S Board agreed a workshop to 
be organised with the Youth 
Council and relevant officers.   
 
In progress. 
 

P
age 225



Appendix 1 

Page 6 of 6 Update on Actions from Council  

Opposition Motion 1: Not Every 
Disability is Visible (9 Sep 20) 
 

Referred to Overview and 
Scrutiny 

Overview and Scrutiny In progress. 

Opposition Motion 1: 20’s Plenty 
in 2020 (4 Nov 2020) 

Look at practicalities and 
timescale for introduction 

O&S Board In progress. 

 

P
age 226



From: Debbie Abrahams <abrahamsd@parliament.uk>  
Sent: 02 March 2021 17:00 
To: Carolyn Wilkins <Carolyn.Wilkins@oldham.gov.uk> 
Subject: Full Council Resolutions - December (Case Ref: DA39633) 
 

Dear Carolyn  
 
Thank you for your letters of 8th February, received 15th February, detailing resolutions 
passed by Full Council at the meeting on 16th December. 
 
With regard to the Fair Grade campaign on school exams, you will be aware that the 
Education Secretary announced on Wednesday 6th January that exams would be cancelled 
this year.  In his statement to Parliament he said: 
 
“Another area where we have learnt lessons is exams. Last year, all four nations of the 
United Kingdom found that their arrangements for awarding grades did not deliver what 
they needed, with the painful impact felt by students and their parents. Although exams are 
the fairest way we have of assessing what a student knows, the impact of the pandemic 
means that it is not possible to have these exams this year. I can confirm that GCSE, A-level 
and AS-level exams will not go ahead this summer. 
 
“This year, we will put our trust in teachers rather than algorithms. My Department and 
Ofqual had already worked up a range of contingency options. While the details will need to 
be fine-tuned in consultation with Ofqual, the exam boards and teaching representative 
organisations, I can confirm now that I wish to use a form of teacher-assessed grades, with 
training and support provided to ensure that these are awarded fairly and consistently 
across the country.” 
 
We believe that any replacement system must be fair and consider the huge amount of 
learning that has been lost by pupils – and the regional differences in disruption to schooling 
over the last year.  We will be holding Ministers to account on this to ensure last summer’s 
exam fiasco is not repeated. 
 
On the Spending Review and support for local government, you will be aware that at the 
outset of the pandemic, on 16 March, Robert Jenrick told over 300 council leaders that the 
Government stood ready to do whatever is necessary to support councils in their response 
to coronavirus. They have broken this promise leaving councils facing a funding gap this 
financial year estimated by the cross-party Local Government Association to be £2.6 billion.   
 
The Covid-19 pandemic has had a catastrophic impact on council finances. According to the 
Local Government Association, “the latest figures from the COVID monitoring survey put the 
financial impact of COVID-19 on local authorities at an estimated £9.7 billion for 2020/21, 
with a further £2.8 billion of lost income from council tax and business rates.” This follows 
on the heels of a decade in which councils took the brunt of Government cuts. Councils in 
England have seen their core funding from central government reduce by £15 billion in the 
last decade. 
 
In addition, hidden in the fine print of the Chancellor’s November Spending Review was an 

Page 227

mailto:abrahamsd@parliament.uk
mailto:Carolyn.Wilkins@oldham.gov.uk


assumption that councils would raise council tax by up to 5%. That council tax hike is central 
government passing the burden over to local councils, and ultimately to families across the 
country. £1.9 billion of the £2.2 billion forecast increase in spending power in 2020-21 is 
based on councils raising council tax by the maximum possible allowed without a 
referendum.  I raised this with the Secretary of State in the Commons on 17th December 
– https://hansard.parliament.uk/Commons/2020-12-17/debates/4E79132B-ED11-441E-
85F5-616B46B665F4/ProvisionalLocalGovernmentFinanceSettlement#contribution-
EE4BC9F7-1A1A-4220-BF3E-51BA71E65A28 
 
This year’s funding settlement continues the Government’s trend of making councils ever 
more reliant on council tax to fund services. The Institute for Fiscal Studies (IFS) estimate 
that council tax will account for 61% of overall core funding in 2021-22, compared to 49% in 
2015-16 and closer to 40% back in 2009-10. 
 
On key worker pay, I am concerned at the pay freeze for public sector and key workers. As 
you will be aware, over 1 million key workers face a real-terms pay cut next year. That 
includes 125,000 police officers, 500,000 teachers, 300,000 civil service staff and 125,000 
armed forces personnel. 
 
By failing to reaffirm the Government’s manifesto commitment to ensure that teachers’ 
starting salaries reach £30,000 by 2022, the Chancellor has made it clear that he has no 
intention to back our public sector workers.  
 
The Government are making poor spending decisions that threaten to push our economy 
and public services to breaking point. I believe that the Government should give our key 
workers the pay rise they deserve. 
 
I appreciate you taking the time to share with me the proposals the Council supports on 
strengthening the tracking and apprehension of stalkers and domestic abusers and for 
letting me know you have raised this issue directly with the Home Secretary.  
 
Domestic abuse is not just physical violence. Coercive control plays a major role in domestic 
abuse and is often present in the form of controlling behaviour, high levels of control, 
stalking, isolation and economic abuse, forced marriage and honour-based violence, which 
are also key parts to domestic abuse. The impact of violence and controlling behaviour have 
long term devastating effects on someone’s mental health. 
 
As my colleague and Chair of the Home Affairs Select Committee said at Report Stage of the 
Domestic Abuse Bill in July: 
 
“We need to make sure that when the call comes in about domestic abuse by someone who 
has been convicted before for abuse against someone else, it is not just treated as a new or 
one-off offence. We need to ensure that there are systems in place to join up the dots to link 
police, probation and support services together and to monitor people who have a series of 
previous domestic abuse or stalking convictions so that if they start a new relationship, the 
police and local services know that a new family are at risk and can take action. Too often, 
that does not happen. Clare’s law does not solve the problem because it relies on an 

Page 228

https://hansard.parliament.uk/Commons/2020-12-17/debates/4E79132B-ED11-441E-85F5-616B46B665F4/ProvisionalLocalGovernmentFinanceSettlement#contribution-EE4BC9F7-1A1A-4220-BF3E-51BA71E65A28
https://hansard.parliament.uk/Commons/2020-12-17/debates/4E79132B-ED11-441E-85F5-616B46B665F4/ProvisionalLocalGovernmentFinanceSettlement#contribution-EE4BC9F7-1A1A-4220-BF3E-51BA71E65A28
https://hansard.parliament.uk/Commons/2020-12-17/debates/4E79132B-ED11-441E-85F5-616B46B665F4/ProvisionalLocalGovernmentFinanceSettlement#contribution-EE4BC9F7-1A1A-4220-BF3E-51BA71E65A28


individual asking about an offender’s history. What if they do not know to ask? What if they 
are too scared? Why is it still left to victims to ask for help, rather than having a proper 
system in place to monitor serial abusers and offenders? As Laura Richards points out, 
 
“professionals load the victim up with actions and a safety plan and rarely do any multi-
agency problem solving and risk management regarding the perpetrator.” 
 
New clause 32 calls on the Government properly to review the way in which serial abusers 
are monitored and managed, and to publish that review swiftly. New clause 33 sets out a 
stronger way to respond to serial abusers, by bringing them into the process for managing 
serious offenders—the multi-agency public protection arrangements, or MAPPAs—so that 
serial domestic abuse perpetrators and stalkers can be properly addressed. So far, the 
Government have resisted this. 
 
Thank you again for taking the time to make me aware of the Council’s December 
resolutions. 
 
With best wishes 
 
Debbie 
 
Debbie Abrahams FFPH 
Member of Parliament 
Oldham East and Saddleworth 
  
2019 People’s Choice Labour MP of the Year 
  
Parliamentary Office: 
House of Commons 
London 
SW1A 0AA 
  
Oldham Office: 
9 Church Lane 
Oldham 
OL1 3AN 
  
Tel: 0161 624 4248 (Oldham) 0207 219 1041 (London) 
  
Email: abrahamsd@parliament.uk 
  
Website: www.debbieabrahams.org.uk 
  
Twitter: Debbie_abrahams 

  
 

Page 229

mailto:abrahamsd@parliament.uk
http://www.debbieabrahams.org.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



 

GMCA, Broadhurst House, 56 Oxford Street, Manchester, M1 6EU 
 

  

 

 

 

Carolyn Wilkins  

Chief Executive  

Level 3, Civic Centre 

West Street  

Oldham 

OL1 1UG  

Carolyn.wilkins@oldham.gov.uk  

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

Our Ref: 1330496/ 

Your Ref: Tracking Stalkers and 
Domestic Abusers 20201216 

 

4th March 2021 

 
Dear Carolyn, 
 
Thank you for your letter of 8th February, in respect of your full council resolution in respect of 
Stalkers and Domestic Abusers, the contents of which I note. 
  
I entirely share the council’s stated view that domestic abuse crimes are ‘insidious and 
terrifying.’  This is why my office has been leading on the development of a gender-based abuse 
strategy for Greater Manchester.  This strategy will seek to address crimes such as domestic 
abuse and stalking, as well as many others, and will focus heavily in particular on violence against 
women and girls.  I am hopeful that a draft strategy can be published for public consultation in the 
near future. 
  
It is the case that dependent upon the severity of offending, as viewed by a court, that many 
abusers are on the violent offender register and thus subject of Multi-Agency Public Protection 
Procedures (MAPPA).  
 
Nonetheless there remains much to do. Noting the council’s request, I will consider the existing 
legislation and make any representations to government that may be appropriate. 
  

Yours sincerely 
 

 
 
 

 

 
Rt. Hon Baroness Beverley Hughes 
Deputy Mayor for Police and Crime  

Page 231

mailto:Carolyn.wilkins@oldham.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Page 233



Page 234



From: Debbie Abrahams <abrahamsd@parliament.uk>  
Sent: 10 December 2020 14:33 
To: Carolyn Wilkins <Carolyn.Wilkins@oldham.gov.uk> 
Subject: OMBC Resolutions - Child Food Poverty Campaign and Street Harassment (Case Ref: 
DA38256) 
 

Dear Carolyn Wilkins 
 
Thank you for your recent letters, received 24th November, regarding resolutions passed by 
the Council on child food poverty and street harassment (Your Refs: Council – Child Poverty 
– 20201104 and Council – Street Harassment – 20201104). 
 
I appreciate you taking the time to share with me the Council’s views on these areas and the 
strong stance Members are taking to press Government to ensure a long term strategy to 
end child food poverty and to tackle street harassment effectively through the criminal 
justice system. 
 
The outstanding campaign by Marcus Rashford has brought to the fore the great evil of child 
poverty. Child food poverty is about so much more than a single issue or policy, it is about 
saying to the millions of children who grow up worrying that they will go to bed hungry, or 
the parents worried that they have to choose between feeding their children or heating 
their home, that they matter, that their concerns are the concerns of their Government. 
 
Child poverty was rising before this pandemic, and if nothing is done it will continue to rise. 
This cannot happen. This must now be a turning point, when all parties commit themselves 
to the end of child poverty, including child food poverty.  The Government must make 
ending child poverty their priority. It is only by focusing relentlessly on these issues that we 
will make Britain the best place to grow up in. 
 
Street harassment is appalling and I was pleased to see the Council focus on the Our Streets 
Now campaign.  As you may be aware, recent research from Plan International and Our 
Streets Now suggested more than half of young women and girls were harassed on the 
street during the summer.  A fifth (19%) of young women and girls aged between 14 and 21 
experienced being catcalled, followed, groped, flashed or upskirted during the spring 
lockdown, which rose to 51% during the summer as coronavirus restrictions were eased and 
more people returned to public life. 
 
Given that half of the girls and young women polled believed a clear law making it a specific 
crime would help prevent street harassment, and that being able to report harassment by 
text or online would also help, I would support additional measures to tackle street 
harassment specifically. 
 
This persistent and pervasive harassment of girls across the UK is completely 
unacceptable,and is something that affects not only girls, but their families, with parents 
worrying from a young age about the abuse their daughters face in public. 
 
Thank you for taking the time to make me aware of the Council’s resolutions on these 
issues. 

Page 235

mailto:abrahamsd@parliament.uk
mailto:Carolyn.Wilkins@oldham.gov.uk


 
Yours sincerely 
 
Debbie 
 

Page 236



Page 237



Page 238



Page 239



Page 240



Page 241



This page is intentionally left blank



 
GMCA, Broadhurst House, 56 Oxford Street, Manchester, M1 6EU 
 

 

 
Carolyn Wilkins 
Via email carolyn.wilkins@oldham.gov.uk 
 
 

Our Ref: CWilkins/BH/CM  

Date:  14th December 2020  

 
 
Dear Carolyn,  
 
Thank you for your letter of 7 December regarding the council resolution about the independent CSE 
assurance review.  
 
As you are aware, the independent review was commissioned by the Mayor in his role as PCC after 
allegations about historic CSE in the borough were raised with him by Cllr Fielding and the Chair of the 
Oldham Safeguarding Partnership. That review is ongoing and at present looks set to report in the 
middle of 2021. 
 
I note that the council motion refers to allegations about the interviews conducted by the review team 
and the accuracy of notes provided to interviewees. I would like to make clear that notes of interviews 
are written by a member of business support staff of the GMCA and provided to interviewees to check 
and amend where necessary. This process has been followed for all interviewees. If any interviewee 
has any concerns about the notes of their interview I would encourage them to contact the review team 
to discuss. I also note that concerns have been raised about the review team failing to attend 
interviews. To my knowledge, there has been one instance where an interviewee had been offered a 
provisional date for an interview, which could not go ahead for legal reasons and more could have been 
done to keep the interviewee informed on progress.  
 
If anyone has information which may be relevant to the review I would support the council resolution to 
ask that this be submitted by 15 January. 

Yours sincerely  
 

 
 

 
Rt. Hon Baroness Beverley Hughes 
Deputy Mayor of Greater Manchester 

Page 243

mailto:carolyn.wilkins@oldham.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Page 245



Page 246



Page 247



Page 248



 

  
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
PURPOSE OF REPORT  
 
To consider proposed new warding arrangements in response to the electoral review of the 
Council as detailed within this report.   
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The model of warding arrangements attached at Appendix 1 which has been recommended by a 
cross group of elected Members be considered by Council and if approved, be submitted to the 
Local Government Boundary Commission for England (LGBCE)  
 
 
1.        Background 
 
1.1 The LGBC announced in 2019 an electoral review for the Council. In 2020, the LGBCE 
 concluded, after consultation that it was minded to proceed with 60 elected Members for 
 the borough. That decision concluded stage 1 of the review.   
 
1.2.  Subsequently, the LGBCE launched stage 2 of the review- a public consultation exercise 
 on new warding arrangements.  The deadline for submission is the 29th March 2021. 
 
1.3 A cross party group of elected Members have considered the matter and various mapping 

models developed by officers from within the Strategy and Performance Service. 
  
  
2. WARDING ARRANGEMENTS 
  
2.1.  The map at Appendix 1 and the methodology behind the warding arrangements represents 
 the outcome of the above exercise. The LGBCE criteria includes balancing the projected 
 2026 electorate in each proposed ward as equally as possible, usually keeping within 5% 
 of the average. The 2026 electorate was projected in a submission required by the LGBCE 

Report to COUNCIL  

 
WARDING ARRANGEMENTS 

 
Officer Contact:  Paul Entwistle, Director of Legal Services and 
Rebekah Sutcliffe, Strategic Director of Reform 
 
 
 
24th March 2021 

Page 249

Agenda Item 14



  2 

 at an earlier stage of the review, and for this work was disaggregated to household level to 
 allow flexibility in where boundaries were drawn. In line with LGBCE recommendations, 
 officers worked from the edges of the borough towards the centre. Officers first established 
 broader, well-defined areas such as Saddleworth and Failsworth, where borough 
 boundaries and other features such as Parish areas and the motorway, limit the scope for 
 change. In this way a variety of models were produced, detailing how broader areas might 
 be divided into wards, whilst balancing the three criteria as per the LGCCE guidance. The 
 models were shared with the working group of Members, allowing feedback and resulting 
 refinement. This iterative process eventually generated one consensus model. 
 
2.2  The LGBCE will review warding proposals against statutory criteria and all proposals 
 should  demonstrate how they meet these requirements: 
 

 To deliver electoral equality where each borough councillor represents roughly the 
same number of electors as others across the borough.  

 That the pattern of wards should, as far as possible, reflect the interests and 
identities of local communities.  

 That the electoral arrangements should provide for effective and convenient local 
government.  

  
3.  CONSULTATION AND COMMUNICATIONS 
  
3.1.  The consultation is open to all interested parties and members of the public. The LGBCE 
 have requested that the council publicise the consultation via usual channels. This has 
 been undertaken. 
 
3.2.  The LGBC have emphasised that all submissions carry equal weight and all Members or 
 groups may submit an individual submission. 
  
4. NEXT STEPS 
 
4.1        Once the LBCE has considered all the proposals received during this phase of consultation, 

it plans to publish draft recommendations for new electoral arrangements. This is scheduled 
to take place between June and August 2021. Once the Commission has considered the 
representations and evidence as part of that consultation, it intends to publish final 
recommendations in November 2021 

             
4.2        New electoral arrangements for the borough are scheduled to come into effect at the borough  
            council elections in 2023.  
 
5          Financial Implications  
 
5.1 There are no specific financial implications arising from this report. (Anne Ryans, Director 

of Finance) 
 
6           Legal Services Comments 
 
6.1  These are contained within the report. 
 
7           Human Resources Comments 
 
7.1 None 
 
8 Risk Assessments 
 
8.1 N/A 

Page 250



  3 

 
9  IT Implications 
 
9.1 N/A 
 
10 Property Implications 
 
10.1 None 
 
11 Procurement Implications 
 
11.1 N/A 
 

12 Environmental and Health & Safety Implications 
 
12.1 N/A 
 
13 Equality, community cohesion and crime implications 
 
13.1 The intention is to ensure that electorates in each ward are as equal as possible. 

 
14 Equality Impact Assessment Completed? 
 
14.1  N/A 
 
15 Key Decision 
 
15.1 No  
 
16 Key Decision Reference 
 
16.1 N/A 
 
17 Background Papers 
 
17.1 - Appendix 1  

- Models of warding arrangements  
 
 
 
 

Page 251



This page is intentionally left blank



Page | 1  v1.1 LGBCE warding submission 

Appendix 1 

Boundary Review 2021: Warding proposals 

Oldham Council submission to LGBCE 

Overview 

In all cases in the maps below, purple boundaries represent new proposals, teal boundaries 

represent current wards. 

 

Methodology 

The methodology used has been (in line with LGBCE recommendations) to work from an edge of the 

borough, and design areas in sequence based on our projections of 2026 electorate.  

As a result, this document will be presented in the order in which proposed wards were constructed. 

• Saddleworth 

• Royton, Shaw and Crompton 

• Failsworth 

• Chadderton 

• Inner Oldham 

In constructing wards, we have used 2026 population projections as previously supplied. Note that we 

have however conducted further work to improve property locations when new housing is projected to 

be built by 2026. This should make no differences to overall totals, but might make a very small 

improvement to ward totals from the polling district figures previously supplied. 

 

District Working 

One key project for the borough at present is a reworking of our district working arrangements. Oldham 

is at the forefront of partnership-based district working, and we have been co-designing for some time a 

new set of district boundaries which will provide integration across council, police and critically Primary 

Care Networks. 

As this has been a long and complex process, a key objective for us, to provide the best services to 

residents, was to ensure that the new pattern of wards still works with those PCN configurations. To 

some extent this has been a constraint on warding proposals, but one which keeps larger communities 

together and provides the best integrated services for them.  

The result of this objective is that the ward pattern shown is relatively “traditional”- we believe this is 

justified in the circumstances and delivers good quality community-based wards in which we can 

optimise services and support from elected members. 

  

  

Page 253



Page | 2  v1.1 LGBCE warding submission 

Overview proposal map 

P
age 254



Page | 3  v1.1 LGBCE warding submission 

Ward Numbers 

 As can be seen from the table below, this proposed model moves all wards to within 5% variance of 

the 2026 average. 

Consensus Model 1   

New ward 
2026 
electors 

variance 

Alexandra 8319 -2.7% 

Chadderton Central 8350 -2.3% 

Chadderton North 8827 3.2% 

Chadderton South 8213 -3.9% 

Coldhurst 8795 2.9% 

Crompton 8307 -2.8% 

Failsworth East 8228 -3.7% 

Failsworth West 8173 -4.4% 

Hollinwood 8800 2.9% 

Lees 8409 -1.6% 

Medlock Vale 8857 3.6% 

Royton North 8505 -0.5% 

Royton South 8724 2.0% 

Saddleworth North 8467 -1.0% 

Saddleworth South 8686 1.6% 

Shaw 8268 -3.3% 

St James' 8553 0.1% 

St Mary's 8804 3.0% 

Waterhead 8758 2.4% 

Werneth 8933 4.5% 

Page 255



Page | 4  v1.1 LGBCE warding submission 

Saddleworth proposals 

 

Area commentary 

Saddleworth comprises a relatively large Uppermill-Greenfield conurbation to the South (which while 

they have separate identities are residentially continuous), a collection of smaller, more rural, villages 

to the North, and a larger Lees-Springhead-Austerlands conurbation. The boundaries of the villages 

are clear, or at least in electoral terms they pass through low population rural areas, so moving the 

boundary a little will have little impact on electoral make-up. 

There is a Parish council. Parish wards cover all of the villages, plus parts of the Lees-Springhead-

Austerlands urban area, which is a continuous residential area. As a result, Lees is included in this part 

of the proposal. 

The area currently comprises 3 wards. On current boundaries these are all around average electorate. 

There are natural boundaries to this area, which are difficult to change 

• Borough boundary to the North, South and East 

• Parish boundary to the North-west is adjacent to Shaw Parish boundary 

• Eastern boundary is well defined by Lees Brook, the valley separating Lees from the rest of 

Oldham 

 

Proposal Outline 

The shape of Saddleworth is such that the villages to the North will always be in the same ward. 

Because of number limitations, this will always be a different ward than the Uppermill-Greenfield area. 

As such, it is likely that the current Saddleworth wards already form a good quality configuration, 

uniting areas correctly.  

Two issues are apparent 

• Austerlands- the Austerlands area, while it was once a physically separate village, is now part of 

the Lees-Springhead-Austerlands residential area, and should be considered one larger 

community. However, it currently sits in Saddleworth North ward. 

• Birks- a small area North of Huddersfield Rd, which clearly has warding issues. 

We would propose that current boundaries be retained, with the exception of the Birks proposal outline 

below. 

Austerlands 

We considered the option of moving Austerlands into Saddleworth West and Lees ward, which would 

be better from a community perspective. However, this would make Saddleworth North too small to be 

viable. This would then need to be corrected by moving Uppermill (or part of) to Saddleworth North, 

and probably then moving Grotton to Saddleworth South. While this would be a better outcome for 

Austerlands, it would electorally divide Uppermill and Greenfield, which are closely linked in location, 

facilities and issues. It is felt that in solving one issue, this creates a worse issue, and on balance this is 

not recommended in our proposal. 

 

  

Page 256



Page | 5  v1.1 LGBCE warding submission 

Birks  

Current ward boundaries divide this area (shown in red below): some individual houses and one street 

are in Saddleworth North, while the rest of the area is in Saddleworth West and Lees. Feedback from 

councillors is that this causes confusion and difficulties in meeting the needs of residents. 

 

Moving the boundary to Huddersfield Rd (i.e. moving this area within Saddleworth North) unites this 

community and creates a more logical and understandable boundary pattern. We would thus propose 

that the new ward boundary reflect this. 

 

 

  

Page 257



Page | 6  v1.1 LGBCE warding submission 

Royton, Shaw and Crompton proposals 

 

Area commentary 

Royton, Shaw and Crompton comprises the urban area of Royton, and the urban area of Shaw and 

Crompton. Each has a town centre which will often act as a community focus, and the two areas have 

very separate identities (although they unite in feeling more distant from inner Oldham). While they are 

predominantly urban in nature, there are more rural areas around the fringes.  

There is a Parish council covering Shaw and Crompton, but not Royton. 

The area currently comprises 4 wards, which are currently low-electorate wards. However the 

electorate is too large to be covered by 3 wards. 

There are natural boundaries to this area, which are difficult to change 

• Borough boundary to the North and North-West 

• Parish council boundary with Saddleworth Parish to the North-East 

• A627(M) forms a very definite boundary with Chadderton to the South-West 

• Countryside and few roads between Shaw and Sholver/Stoneleigh to the East 

These boundaries limit the potential to expand the electorate in this area  

 

Proposal Outline 

We propose 

• That Royton should continue with two wards in a North-South arrangement, due to boundary 

constraints to the North making other arrangements impractical 

• That Shaw and Crompton should continue to consist of a Crompton Ward and Shaw Ward, in a 

West-East arrangement, as the area is most defined by the geographic split along valleys and 

railway line. This is somewhat more natural than a North-South arrangement. 

• While ward names are retained, there are substantial differences in the proposed boundaries, 

reflecting more natural community boundaries where possible. 

 

Royton North 

The current Royton North ward is well-formed, focused on Rochdale Rd which is the obvious focal 

point of the area, drawing residents towards the community focus of Royton town centre.  

We propose adding the Holden Fold neighbourhood area to Royton North. This area is bounded to the 

South by Broadway, a busy main road, but is connected internally to Haggate and Royley to the North, 

so would be manageable as one ward with them, and bring connected communities with similar 

demography together. The East of this area is not residential, but would logically be included.  

Page 258



Page | 7  v1.1 LGBCE warding submission 

 

This would create a new Royton North ward with an equitable electorate of 8505. 

 

  

Page 259



Page | 8  v1.1 LGBCE warding submission 

Shaw and Crompton 

In order for wards in this community to have an equitable electorate, some spatial expansion is 

required. 

We considered and rejected the possibility of including part of Heyside within these wards, moving from 

Royton South at present. This would have split a close-knit area, and particularly separated recreation 

areas into a different ward from some users. 

We instead propose two linked changes, forming a new Crompton-Royton South border. 

First, in the Cowlishaw area, an area of new build is projected to cross the existing Crompton-Royton 

South boundary. As there will be no road link from this area to Royton South, we propose this area sit 

within a new Crompton Ward.  

Second, we propose moving the Linkside Ave area to Crompton, from the existing Royton South. 

At present, the Fir Lane area is split between three wards, which is unhelpful. Moving this area to 

Crompton reunites it with some other housing along Fir Lane, to which it is demographically similar, 

and the area does have links to the centre of Crompton along Low Crompton Road. 

It is proposed also to move the golf course (Crompton and Royton golf course). This would create a 

new boundary as follows; 

  

Page 260



Page | 9  v1.1 LGBCE warding submission 

A revised boundary between Shaw and Crompton is also proposed, with two significant changes from 

the present line (which also forms a parish ward boundary).  

The area west of Chamber Rd/Church Rd is proposed to be within Shaw. It is not dissimilar to 

neighbouring streets already in Shaw, and the model reunites residents on Chamber Rd and Church 

Rd in one ward. 

 

 

The area of Alston Ave was previously in Shaw ward, but is proposed to sit in a new Crompton ward- it 

forms one estate with housing around Alison St to the West, and has small green boundaries East and 

North so this is a more natural community dividing line. 

  

Page 261



Page | 10  v1.1 LGBCE warding submission 

Royton South 

The boundary of Royton South is largely defined by the changes described above. However, some 

expansion is required to move the electorate to a sensible level. 

Our proposal is that this be achieved by moving Higginshaw to Royton South. Higginshaw is adjacent 

to the South of Royton, and despite its relatively central location is relatively isolated by Oldham Edge 

to the West and an industrial valley and tram line to the East. 

  

Page 262



Page | 11  v1.1 LGBCE warding submission 

Failsworth proposals 

 

Area commentary 

Failsworth comprises one community with a strong Failsworth identity. The whole community focuses 

for facilities on Manchester Rd, and particularly the supermarket area, the town hall/library and the area 

known as Failsworth Pole, an important identity point. This area, and particularly the West of the area, 

tends to identify more with Manchester as a focus rather than Oldham centre. 

The area is predominantly urban, but with the village of Woodhouses to the South adjacent to the 

Medlock valley. 

The area currently comprises 2 wards, with relatively low electorate numbers but within 5% variance. 

There are natural boundaries to this area 

• Borough boundary to the West, South and (parts) North 

• M60 motorway forms a strong division to the East, with the exception of links across connecting 

Woodhouses to connected rural areas to the East (Woodhouse Green/Crime Bridge, Daisy 

Nook) which are reflected in current ward boundaries 

• There is a natural division between Failsworth and Chadderton, both areas with strong 

identities. This is further concreted by the barrier of Meadowbank Business Park 

 

Proposal Outline 

We propose that this area remain as two wards with boundaries similar to those presently in place. 

While this does present challenges in terms of electorate numbers, this is not critical and there is little 

scope for sensible change: any expansion would mean an awkward fit across the motorway, probably 

along Roman Rd. This then creates further issues in uniting areas along Hollins Rd (current Hollinwood 

ward), so we would actively deprecate this, and keep the motorway boundary as at present. 

The current boundaries meet the core objectives: they reflect the identity of Failsworth as a whole, and 

the West-East split in terms of Manchester focus. 

Two small changes are proposed 

• Minor alignment change around Failsworth Pole/Town Hall 

• Minor change around Crime Lake/Crime Farm  

Page 263



Page | 12  v1.1 LGBCE warding submission 

One issue is apparent. New developments in the centre of Failsworth, Ben Brierley Wharf (residential 

accommodation) and the Keppel Building (medical centre) both connect strongly towards Failsworth 

Pole in the East of Failsworth, but sit in Failsworth West at present. Our proposal moves them to 

Failsworth East. 

 

 

As part of the proposed new border between Hollinwood and Medlock Vale, it is proposed to move 

Crime Farm and Crime Lake into Failsworth East, as these share a commonality and identity with 

Crime Bridge, and are best accessed from that settlement. 

  

Page 264



Page | 13  v1.1 LGBCE warding submission 

Chadderton proposals 

 

Area commentary 

Chadderton is a predominantly urban but geographically widespread area. There is certainly an identity 

as Chaddertonians, often rather than Oldhamers. The central service focus is Chadderton town centre, 

with shopping and leisure facilities widely used. The reach of the area is also defined by Middleton Rd, 

and Broadway, which cross Chadderton West-East and North-South respectively. New build is taking 

place in the Foxdenton area which will further urbanise the area. 

The area currently comprises 3 wards. On current boundaries these are broadly below average 

electorate, though not dramatically so. 

There are natural boundaries to this area, which are difficult to change 

• Borough boundary to the North and West 

• Southern boundary is defined by the community separation from Failsworth 

• While there is no continuous Eastern boundary, the Metrolink line tends to act as a practical 

boundary in the Freehold area, and Manchester Rd further South. 

 

Proposal Outline 

Our proposal is that Chadderton remain as three wards focused on that community, and remain with a 

North-South-Central split as the best practical layout 

• Chadderton North is well-defined as the whole area North of Middleton Road, and remains 

similar to the present boundary, but with some expansion along the Eastern boundary into Busk 

• Chadderton Central and South retain the same outer boundaries, but are proposed to have a 

completely new boundary between the two. This reflects new development since the last 

boundary review, and changing electorate numbers. 

 

Chadderton North 

The boundary to the East changes as follows. 

This area is adjacent to Chadderton Town Hall, so fits well in terms of electors feeling linked to the rest 

of Chadderton North. 

Page 265



Page | 14  v1.1 LGBCE warding submission 

 

 

Chadderton Central/South boundary 

This is essentially a new boundary. 

To the west of Broadway, a change expands Chadderton South at the expense of Chadderton Central. 

 

The area to the East of Broadway will all tend to act as one community in this vicinity. The line along 

Cotswold Avenue has the least housing in the immediate vicinity so we propose forms the most 

sensible place for the boundary. 

  

Page 266



Page | 15  v1.1 LGBCE warding submission 

 

To the East of Broadway, the proposed boundary again follows a new line. 

 

There are several reasons why we believe this line forms a good boundary 

• This area contains very little housing, being mainly industrial. The main Road through that 

industrial area goes to the M60 junction in Chadderton South, so that is the main point of 

focus. 

• The area now contains several facilities built since the last boundary review which will 

provide services most closely to South Chadderton residents 

o Police station 

o Costco 

o Lidl 

• The line drawn follows the railway line South. To the West of that line, residents (small in 

number) have no access route to South Chadderton, but instead connect to Middleton 

Junction (West Central Chadderton) 

• The line is carefully drawn as to leave Foxdenton Lane and environs in central Chadderton, 

a more logical arrangement, especially given the new build expected in the Foxdenton area, 

which would not have any commonality with South Chadderton. 

Chadderton South/Hollinwood boundary 

Manchester Rd, moving NE from the M60 junction, is a dual carriageway, often with adjacent industrial 

land. Communities do not interact across the road which acts as a barrier, and this is reflected in our 

proposed boundary. 

Page 267



Page | 16  v1.1 LGBCE warding submission 

 

  

Page 268



Page | 17  v1.1 LGBCE warding submission 

Inner Oldham proposals: Hollinwood 

 

Area commentary 

Hollinwood is a mixed area of social housing to the South, with more private renting and owner 

occupation to the North and East. The areas all use Hollins Rd as the main bus and transport route, 

and it also has significant shops etc. 

 

Bounding features 

• Borough boundary (South) 

• Manchester Rd (Northwest) 

 

Proposal 

The existing Hollinwood ward is below average electorate. 

We propose the following additions 

• Area of Wood Park, South of Coal Pit Lane. New housing is planned for Wood Park Clough, by 

2026. This would connect to Coal Pit Lane and thus potentially to Hollinwood. 

• Howgill Cres and adjacent housing, adjacent to Copster Park. This is relatively new housing, 

which has more in common with Garden Suburbs within Hollinwood ward than it does with other 

adjacent areas. It sensibly sits within a Hollinwood ward. 

• Small adjustment to include more of Heron St, plus Wolverton Ave and Sandys Ave, to make a 

more logical boundary with Werneth. 

The resulting new Hollinwood ward is somewhat above average size, but within tolerance. Any further 

expansion would have to take in parts of Werneth which is a very different community without the same 

Hollins Rd focus. 

  

Page 269



Page | 18  v1.1 LGBCE warding submission 

Inner Oldham proposals: Werneth 

 

Area commentary 

Werneth is a broad area, loosely focused on Werneth Park. It consists of Freehold to the West of 

Manchester Rd and areas North and South of the park, stretching East as far as Coppice, where the 

boundary is less concrete. 

 

Bounding features 

• Metrolink line divides from Chadderton 

 

Proposal 

The existing Werneth ward is well-formed, with sensible boundaries that define this community well. 

Only two changes are proposed 

• Slight modification around Heron St. as previously described 

• Inclusion of the entire Primrose Bank area 

While this ward is 4% over average electorate, we consider this is justified in order to unite the 

Primrose Bank area in particular. 

 

Primrose Bank 

The Primrose Bank estate stretches from Primrose Bank itself down to the junction of Lee St and 

Ashton Rd. The area has recently been rebuilt, and it is served by a community centre/group (The 

Primrose Centre). It makes sense that this area should sit in one ward rather than be split. 

 

  

Page 270



Page | 19  v1.1 LGBCE warding submission 

Inner Oldham proposals: Coldhurst 

 

Area commentary 

Coldhurst is a compact and densely populated area, consisting of social housing East of Rochdale Rd, 

as well as by Manchester Rd, and often owner-occupied terraced housing in the remainder.  

There is a strong sense of Coldhurst identity in much of the area, as well as in the sub-area of 

Westwood. There are a lifelong learning centre and library which can act as focuses, but the shops and 

facilities along Featherstall Rd are probably a key focus for many, along with the town centre which is 

within easy reach. 

 

Bounding features 

• The area of Boundary Park forms a natural boundary to the North 

• Oldham Edge forms a partial boundary to the East 

• There is a natural population break around Oldham town centre 

 

Proposal 

The existing Coldhurst ward is well-formed, with sensible boundaries that define this community well. 

Two changes are proposed 

• Section of Busk moved to Chadderton N as previously described- this creates a more viable 

electorate size 

• Inclusion of Clayton Playing Fields, adjacent to Boundary Park. This has no impact on 

electorate size, but is a consequence of moving the Royton North boundary to Broadway, 

cutting off Clayton from Royton South  

The proposed Coldhurst ward is 3% over average electorate, which we consider close enough given 

the advantages of the new layout. 

  

Page 271



Page | 20  v1.1 LGBCE warding submission 

Inner Oldham proposals: St James’ and Waterhead 

 

Area commentary 

This is an area of currently two wards. It is united by Huddersfield Rd and Ripponden Rd as key routes, 

with multiple services particularly along Huddersfield Rd and at the junction with Ripponden Rd (“Hill 

Stores”), where Tesco is situated.  

The area consists of many sub areas such as Derker, Stoneleigh, Sholver, Moorside, Watersheddings, 

Littlemoor, Waterhead and Greenacres, united by the facilities and road structure. 

 

Bounding features 

• Saddleworth parish to the East, and also the Saddleworth hills 

• Shaw and Crompton parish to the North-West 

• Metrolink line and valley to the West (also countryside and few road links, although this may 

change with new build areas in the valley, eventually) 

• Industrial area West of Derker 

 

Proposal 

This area is of a good size for two wards, and the current ward arrangement meets the requirements 

almost “as is”, as far as possible dividing the community into sections along Ripponden Rd and 

Huddersfield Rd. While other solutions could be proposed it is likely that all layouts would to some 

extent replicate this, so we propose no change. 

The only exception, is that we propose Lea Green Close be moved from St James’ to Waterhead ward. 

This was a small new development post- the last boundary review. There is no road access to St 

James’ ward. 

This leaves St James’ ward exactly on an average figure, and Waterhead only 2% over. 

  

  

Page 272



Page | 21  v1.1 LGBCE warding submission 

Inner Oldham proposals: St Mary’s 

 

Area commentary 

St Mary’s comprises three key residential areas 

• St Mary’s estate with social rented stock continuing down Egerton St 

• Glodwick- a high density area of predominantly terraced housing 

• A further continuous area of terraced and semi-detached housing stretching from Moorhey 

through New Earth to Salem (South of Lees Rd), with Lees Rd being a focus 

All these areas probably use the town centre as a focus, but have very separate identities (although 

there is much community overlap and family links between Glodwick and Moorhey etc., making them 

sensible to be placed in the same ward). St Mary’s is physically separated from the remainder by 

industrial and town centre areas. 

 

Bounding features 

• Alexandra Park forms a Western boundary 

• Lees Brook is a boundary to the East 

• Glodwick Lows forms a natural Southern boundary 

• As per the “working inwards” methodology, we have already proposed Royton South including 

Higginshaw as a boundary to the North 

 

Proposal 

The proposal here is somewhat pragmatic, and broadly in line with the previous iteration of St Mary’s, 

but with reductions in size to ensure a realistic electorate. 

The following changes are proposed to the existing boundary pattern 

• Move Higginshaw to Royton South 

• Move Queens Rd from Alexandra to St Mary’s 

• Move an area centred on Lowside Ave to Alexandra 

  

Page 273



Page | 22  v1.1 LGBCE warding submission 

Queens Rd 

This road is adjacent to Glodwick, but of different character, in that it has extremely large Victorian 

housing, with a number of nursing homes. Probably because of this different character, it was 

previously placed in Alexandra ward. However, it is a long way from any other housing within 

Alexandra, and it makes more sense for it to be in the same ward as Glodwick. 

  

 

Lowside Ave 

Ideally, Glodwick Lows would form a ward boundary. However, it is clear that this would leave 

electorates unbalanced, so we propose that a small area alongside the Lows be included in Alexandra 

ward, not St. Mary’s. 

As the name suggests, this housing is built on the side of the Lows, and is of a different character to 

the housing below, with perhaps a somewhat less deprived population. It will in this regard likely be 

very similar in terms of outlook to much of the electorate south of Abbey Hills Rd in Alexandra, making 

this a good if pragmatic boundary. 

 

  

Page 274



Page | 23  v1.1 LGBCE warding submission 

 

Inner Oldham proposals: Alexandra 

 

Area commentary 

Alexandra comprises three key residential areas 

• Holts estate- a socially and physically isolated estate that should be electorally kept together 

• Abbey Hills and Alt- an area of mixed housing adjacent to Glodwick Lows and Snipe Clough 

• Lower Hathershaw- an area opposite Alexandra Park, of primarily terraced and sometimes 

private rented accommodation 

While historically it is probably true to say that Alexandra ward has been a pragmatic construct, as it is 

difficult to divide electorates well without a ward crossing Snipe Clough, this situation is now changing, 

with the creation of Northern Roots. 

The Northern Roots project (https://northern-roots.uk/), which is attracting significant investment, is a 

new eco-park, taking in all the green space South of Alexandra Park. Northern Roots should provide 

real focus to bring together the communities of Alexandra Ward and at the same time improve the 

walking and cycling routes between different parts of the ward. 

 

Bounding features 

• Borough boundary to S. 

• Glodwick Lows to East 

Proposal 

We propose a slightly reshaped Alexandra ward, with the two boundary changes already mentioned 

under St Mary’s above. 

This is slightly under average size: it would be possible to even up the size with other wards, but this 

would be at the price of splitting coherent communities such as Holts or Fitton Hill, which would not be 

desirable. 

  

Page 275

https://northern-roots.uk/


Page | 24  v1.1 LGBCE warding submission 

Inner Oldham proposals: Medlock Vale 

 

Area commentary 

Medlock Vale comprises Fitton Hill (an extensive estate of largely social or ex-social housing), Bardsley 

(a smaller area to the South spanning Ashton Rd), and to the North, Upper Hathershaw and Coppice, 

two diverse areas of mixed owner-occupied and private rented housing. 

The prime feature bringing these areas together is Ashton Rd, a local shopping area with a community 

centre (the Honeywell Centre) and a key bus route. 

  

Bounding features 

• Borough boundary to South. 

• Currently open land to South West (some new build projected) 

• Snipe Clough to South East 

 

Proposal 

The proposed ward is similar to the previous Medlock Vale, but reduced in size to even out electorate 

numbers. 

Again, the arrangement is somewhat pragmatic, but the layout does have Ashton Rd as a clear 

community focus, keeps Fitton Hill together which is essential, and likewise Bardsley. 

 

 

 

 

Page 276



Page | 25  v1.1 LGBCE warding submission 

Notes 

• Estimates of 2026 electorate numbers have been modelled down to household level, allowing 

us to provide accurate estimations of electorates for any boundary shape. For future new build 

where house numbers are known but precise locations are not, a randomised methodology has 

been used to allocate the new electorate within the known site boundary. 

• Where there are differences of only a few metres between existing and proposed boundaries, 

this will be an approximation in the drawing process rather than a proposal for change. 

• All maps © Crown copyright and database rights 2020 Ordnance Survey licence 0100019668 

  

 

Page 277



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 279



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 281



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 283



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 285



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 287



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 289



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 291



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 293



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 295



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 297



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 299



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 301



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 303



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 305



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 307



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 309



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 311



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 313



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 315



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 317



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

  
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
Reason for Decision 
A refresh of the Council Constitution has been undertaken with two principal objectives in mind.  
Firstly, to ensure that all legislative and procedural references are current and up to date, including 
cross referencing from descriptive content to more detailed procedures and, secondly, to look to 
simplify content so far as is possible in what will always be a complex procedural document in 
order to aid both understanding and application to practical circumstances. 
 
This report looks to progress changes to employment-related decision making arrangements that 
were noted by the Council in June 2020 as having been recommended by the Members’ 
Constitutional Working Group, subject to the submission of further detail; refreshed terms of 
reference for the Health and Wellbeing Board; and determine a commencement date for the 
Council’s revised Overview and Scrutiny arrangements that were agreed by Council in June 2020. 
 
  
Recommendations 

1. That Council agree the suggested amendments to Part 3 (Responsibility for Functions) as 
part of the refresh of the Council’s Constitution arising from the review of employment 
related decision making and the refresh of the Health and Wellbeing Board terms of 
reference; 

2. That the Employment Committee further consider the procedures and arrangements for the 
operation of the established Sub-Committees of the Committee; 

3. That the revised employment related decision making arrangements be reviewed in 12 
months time; 

4. That the Council’s revised employment related decision making arrangements and 
Overview and Scrutiny arrangements be implemented with effect from the date of Annual 
Council, 19th May 2021; 

5. The dates for meetings of the Council’s revised Overview and Scrutiny arrangements be as 
proposed in paragraph 4.2;  

6. That any consequential amendments to the Council’s Constitution arising from the 
amendments as presented in this report be delegated to the Director of Legal. 

Report to COUNCIL  

 
Constitutional Amendments  
 
Officer Contact:  Liz Drogan, Head of Democratic Services, Mark 
Hardman, Constitutional Services Officer  
 
 
24th March 2021 

Page 319

Agenda Item 15



 

  2 

 
Council 24th March 2021 
 
Constitutional Amendments  
 
1 Background 
 
1.1 A review exercise of the Constitution has been undertaken and has been the subject of 

significant reports submitted to the Council in January and June 2020.   
 
1.2 Within the papers submitted to Council on 15th June 2020 it was noted that the 

Constitutional Working Group had agreed in principle to the establishment of an 
Employment Committee, an Appointments Committee and an Investigation and 
Disciplinary Committee and that detailed terms of reference and consequent amendments 
to the Officer Scheme of Delegation would be submitted to a future meeting of the 
Council.  

 
1.3 It was further noted that the terms of reference of the Health and Wellbeing Board were to 

be subject to consultation with the Board and be submitted to a future meeting of the 
Council.  

 
1.4 The Council on 15th June 2020 agreed Committee terms of reference for a revised 

Overview and Scrutiny structure, with an implementation date to be agreed.   
 
1.5 It should be stressed that the Constitution review generally has been a ‘refresh’ exercise, 

focused on updating and refining content rather than revising procedural arrangements.  
While circumstances drove a more detailed consideration of employment related decision 
making, this was nonetheless considered against the law and current employment 
procedural arrangements. 

 
2  Employment-related decision making arrangements 
 
2.1 The Council’s employment decision making arrangements were reviewed in line with 

statutory requirements. While procedural matters related to the recruitment, appointment 
and discipline of the Council’s senior officers were considered by the Council in June 
2020 when approving revised Officer Employment Procedure Rules as part of the 
Council’s Constitution, the related decision making structure was delayed to allow more 
consideration between Officers in Constitutional Services and Human Resources.  

 

2.2 The various governance arrangements with regard to employment decision making needs 
to be acknowledged, with different parts of the Council responsible for different aspects of 
decision making –  
 The Council must, by law, adopt the Officer Employment Procedure Rules and the 

Code of Conduct for Employees (as part of the Constitution), appoint the Head of 
Paid Service, designate the posts of Head of Paid Service, Chief Finance Officer and 
Monitoring Officer and be the dismissing body for such posts, consider the statutory 
reports of those postholders, and receive the Pay Policy Statement; 

 The “Power to appoint staff, and to determine the terms and conditions on which they 
hold office (including procedures for their dismissal)” is a function not to be the 
responsibility of the executive.  This is therefore a Council function that may be 
undertaken by the Council or, with the exception of the posts specified above, be 
delegated to a Committee or to Officers,  However, it should be noted that the power 
to appoint and dismiss is further qualified such that the functions of appointing and 
disciplining staff other than Chief Officers and Deputy Chief Officers is a function of 
the Head of Paid Service; and 

Page 320



 

  3 

 Remaining functions are executive functions which includes all policy matters in 
relation to staffing, including consultation arrangements, and in relation to industrial 
relations within the Council.  These may, at the determination of the Leader of the 
Council, be undertaken by the Cabinet, a Committee of the Cabinet, an individual 
Cabinet Member or by Officers. 

 
2.3 The proposal considered by the Constitutional Working Group and reported to Council in 

June 2020 would see the disestablishment of the Selection Committee and the 
establishment of three new Committees. 

 
2.3.1 The Employment Committee would  

 determine all terms and conditions matters for all Council staff (except Chief Officer 
related posts). 

 determine all matters related to the Council’s Reward Strategy; 

 consider matters related to the Workforce Strategy; 

 agree to the recruitment of Chief Officers and related matters as provided for in 
Officer Employment Procedure Rules; 

 agree whether individual posts of Deputy Chief Officer are to be subject to Member or 
Officer recruitment/discipline and, where appropriate, agree to the recruitment of 
Deputy Chief Officers and related matters as provided for in Officer Employment 
Procedure Rules 

 consider all significant Directorate/Departmental restructuring proposals; 

 be the ‘deciding committee’ where national conditions allow a representation to be 
made prior to a redundancy situation; 

 establish a Sub-Committee to consider hearings at the Chief Executive Grievance 
Process Stage 1; and  

 establish a Sub-Committee to look to resolve any dispute between the local authority 
and the trade unions that is escalated to that level. 

 
2.3.2 The Appointment Committee would, in place of the Selection Committee, be responsible 

for  

 recruitment and appointment procedures in respect of the Head of Paid Service, 
Chief Officers and such Deputy Chief Officers as determined by the Employment 
Committee. 

 Determine all terms and conditions for Chief Officer related posts.  
 
2.3.3 The Investigation and Disciplinary Committee would, in place of the former Sub-

Committee of the Selection Committee, be responsible for 

 disciplinary procedures in respect of the Head of Paid Service, Chief Officers and 
such Deputy Chief Officers as determined by the Head of Paid Service as provided 
for in Officer Employment Procedure Rules; and 

 suspending and keeping under review the suspension of the Head of Paid Service, 
Monitoring Officer and Chief Finance Officer. 

 
2.3.4 The current Appeals Committee would hear Stage 2 hearings under the Chief Executive 

Grievance Procedure, as agreed by the Council when considering a revised Part 3 
(Responsibility for Functions) of the Council’s Constitution in June 2020. 

 

2.4 The Terms of Reference for the three new Committees, as attached in the appendix to 
this report, address the procedural requirements of the Officer Employment Procedure 
Rules agreed by Council in June 2020 and allocate particular Council functions to 
Committees of the Council. 

 

2.5 The papers submitted to Council in June 2020 also noted that a review of the relevant 
sections of the Officer Scheme of Delegation would be undertaken.  The full proposed 

Page 321



 

  4 

revised Personnel Section is provided in the appendix attached to the report.  The 
principal proposed changes to the delegation scheme, which state certain current content 
more explicitly or reflect or enact other Council procedures, are 

 clarification that the Strategic Director Communities and Reform (or such Officer who 
is senior Officer with responsibility for HR) shall have authority to determine all policy 
matters in relation to staffing, unless otherwise directed by the Leader of the Council; 

 the provision of delegations in respect of arrangements for the suspension of the 
Council’s senior Officers.  

 
3 Health and Wellbeing Board 
 
3.1 The terms of reference refresh exercise has reviewed the presentation of the statutory 

functions of the Board as defined by the Health and Social Care Act 2012 and ensured 
that subsequent discretionary functions delegated by the Council to the Board, 
governance related matters assigned to the Board by either the Government or local 
practice in response to guidance, and alignment with the terms of reference of the 
Commissioning Partnership Board have been properly reflected.  

 
4 Overview and Scrutiny arrangements 
 
4.1 Council in June 2020 agreed terms of reference for a revised overview and scrutiny 

structure comprising a Policy Overview and Scrutiny Committee, a Performance and Value 
for Money Overview and Scrutiny Committee, and a Health Scrutiny Committee, 
determining to agree the date of implementation of the revised arrangements at a future 
meeting of the Council.  In consultation, a shorter name for the Performance and Value for 
Money Overview and Scrutiny Committee has been requested and it proposed that this 
body be called the Performance Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

 
4.2 In implementing the new arrangements, Council is asked to confirm the dates of meetings 

of the new Committees and vary the calendar of meetings as agreed by the Council on 16th 
December 2020 accordingly –  

 the Policy Overview and Committee to meet on dates previously identified for the 
Overview and Scrutiny Board and for O&S budget meetings; 

 the Performance Overview and Scrutiny Committee to meet on the dates previously 
identified for the Overview and Scrutiny Performance and Value for Money Select 
Committee; 

 the new Health Scrutiny Committee meet on the same dates as determined for the 
former Committee. 

 
 
3 Options/Alternatives 
 
3.1 Option 1 – To agree the suggested refresh and other proposed amendments to the 

Council’s Constitution. 
 Option 2 – Not to agree the suggested refresh and other proposed amendments to the 

Council’s Constitution. 
 
4 Preferred Option 
 
4.1 Option 1 is the preferred option to ensure and bring coherence to previous piecemeal 

amendment to the Constitution, to ensure that incidental amendments and cross 
references are incorporated in full to aid understanding and implementation of the 
Constitution, to reflect mandatory procedural requirements that the Council must adopt, 
and to reflect revised procedures and arrangements for the effective conduct of Council 
business more generally. 

Page 322



 

  5 

 
5 Consultation 
 
5.1 The Constitutional Working Group have recommended the suggested changes arising the 

from the general review of the Council’s Constitution.  Proposals in respect of the Health 
and Wellbeing Board and of the overview and scrutiny arrangements have been consulted 
on with the Health and Wellbeing Board and the Chairs of the current overview and 
scrutiny bodies respectively. 

 
6 Legal Services Comments 
 
6.1 Legal comments are provided in the body of the report. 
 
7 Background Papers 
 
7.1 None.  
 
8 Appendices  
 
8.1 Appendix – Part 3 Responsibility for Functions (extracts relating to Committee terms of 

reference and the Officer Scheme of Delegation (Personnel). 

Page 323



This page is intentionally left blank



Part 3 Extract only Responsibility for Functions draft March 2021 

 
 

APPENDIX 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Part 3 
Responsibility for Functions 

 
Extract only 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 325



Part 3 Extract only Responsibility for Functions draft March 2021 

4. RESPONSIBILITY FOR COUNCIL FUNCTIONS – COUNCIL COMMITTEES 
AND TERMS OF REFERENCE 

 
4.1 Committees and Memberships 
 
4.1.1 The Council has established the following Committees with memberships and 

quoracy arrangements as follows –  
 

Committee Membership Quorum 

   

   

   

   

   

   

Employment Committee 7 Council Members, with a 
recommendation that at 
least one of which must be 
an Executive Member. 

3 Members 

Appointment Committee 5 Council Members, at least 
one of which must be an 
Executive Member. 

3 Members 

Investigation and 
Disciplinary Committee 

3 Council Members, at least 
one of which must be an 
Executive Member 

3 Members 

   

   

   

Health and Wellbeing 
Board 

At least one Council 
Member appointed by the 
Leader of the Council; the 
Council’s Directors of Adult 
Social Services, of 
Children's Services, and of 
Public Health; a CCG 
representative; a 
Healthwatch representative; 
any additional person/body 
the Board or the Council 
(subject to consultation with 
the Board) thinks 
appropriate. 

One Third 

 
4.1.2 The ability of appointed Members to serve on certain Council Committees or 

Panels, or on certain Sub-Committees or Panels established by those bodes, 
may be dependent upon the appointed Members having attended such 
relevant training as may be determined by the Council. 

 
4.1.3 The Terms of Reference for each of the above Committees are as follows. 
 

Page 326



Part 3 Extract only Responsibility for Functions draft March 2021 

…………… 
…………… 
 
4.8 Employment Committee 
 
4.8.1 The Employment Committee will, in pursuance of the Council or ‘non-

executive’ function relating to the power to appoint staff, and to determine the 
terms and conditions on which they hold office (including procedures for their 
dismissal) as defined in Schedule 1 to the Local Authorities (Functions and 
Responsibilities) Regulations 2000 (as amended), with reference to s112 of 
the Local Government Act 1972 – 
a) Determine all terms and conditions matters and other Council-related 

functions for all employees;  
b) Determine all matters related to the Council’s Reward Strategy; 

 
4.8.2 The Employment Committee shall be consulted on and give consideration to 

matters related to the Council’s Workforce Strategy; 
 

4.8.3 The Employment Committee shall, pursuant to Schedule 1 of the Local 
Authorities (Standing Orders) Regulations 1993 and subject to the 
requirements of the Council’s Employment Procedure Rules, agree to the 
recruitment to posts of Chief Officer and the statement specifying the duties of 
the post, any qualifications or qualities to be sought in the person to be 
appointed, and arrangements for the post to be advertised; 
 

4.8.4 The Employment Committee shall determine whether recruitment to individual 
posts of Deputy Chief Officer or the discipline of individual Deputy Chief 
Officer postholders is to be undertaken either by elected Members or by or on 
behalf of the Head of Paid Service; 
 

4.8.5 The Employment Committee shall, pursuant to Schedule 1 of the Local 
Authorities (Standing Orders) Regulations 1993 and subject to the 
requirements of the Council’s Employment Procedure Rules, agree to the 
recruitment to such posts of Deputy Chief Officer identified under term of 
reference 4.8.4 as being subject to recruitment by elected Members, the 
statement specifying the duties of the post, any qualifications or qualities to be 
sought in the person to be appointed, and arrangements for the post to be 
advertised;  

 
4.8.6 The Employment Committee will, in furtherance of the Council’s receipt of the 

statutory reports of the Head of Paid Service under s4 of the Local 
Government Act 1989, consider significant Departmental restructuring 
proposals; 

 
4.8.7 The Employment Committee will be the ‘deciding committee’ for the purposes 

of JNC Chief Officers and the making of representations prior to any potential 
redundancy situation. 
 

4.8.8 The Employment Committee will establish a Sub-Committee to consider 
Stage 1 hearings under the Chief Executive Grievance Procedure. 

Page 327



Part 3 Extract only Responsibility for Functions draft March 2021 

 
4.8.9 The Employment Committee will establish a Sub-Committee (the ‘Disputes 

Committee’) with full delegated powers of the Council and the Executive 
(through a delegation from the Leader of the Council to the Executive 
Member(s) of the Disputes Committee) to resolve declared collective disputes. 
 

4.8.10 Employment Committee Sub-Committees 
a) The Sub-Committee established to consider Stage 1 hearings under the 

Chief Executive Grievance Procedure shall comprise three or five 
Members on a politically balanced basis, it being noted that involvement at 
this stage might exclude those Members from involvement in later stages 
or processes should the matter progress; 

b) The Sub-Committee established to act as the Dispute Committee shall 
comprise five members, one of whom must be an executive member with 
powers to act, on a politically balanced basis.   

 
4.9 Appointments Committee 

 
4.9.1 The Appointments Committee shall, pursuant to Schedule 1 of the Local 

Authorities (Standing Orders) Regulations 2001 and subject to the 
requirements of the Council’s Employment Procedure Rules –  
a) Longlist, shortlist and interview for the post of Head of Paid 

Service/Chief Executive and recommend an appointment to Council; 
b) Longlist, shortlist, interview and appoint to the posts of Chief Officer (as 

defined by s2 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989); and 
c) Longlist, shortlist, interview and appoint to such posts of Deputy Chief 

Officer (as defined by s2 of the Local Government and Housing Act 
1989) as determined by the Employment Committee. 

 
4.10   Investigation and Disciplinary Committee  
 
4.10.1 The Investigation and Disciplinary Committee shall, pursuant to Schedule 1 

of the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) Regulations 2001 and subject to 
the requirements of the Council’s Employment Procedure Rules –  
a) Make recommendations to Council as to the dismissal of the Head of 

Paid Service, Monitoring Officer and Chief Finance Officer; 
b) Take disciplinary action short of dismissal against the Head of Paid 

Service, Monitoring Officer and Chief Finance Officer; 
c) To suspend and keep under review the suspension of the Head of Paid 

Service, Monitoring Officer and Chief Finance Officer (other than in 
emergency situations requiring immediate suspension); 

d) To take disciplinary action up to and including dismissal against Chief 
Officers (as defined by the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 
but with the exception of the Monitoring Officer and Chief Finance 
Officer); 

e) To take disciplinary action up to and including dismissal against such 
Deputy Chief Officers (as defined by the Local Government and 
Housing Act 1989) as determined by the Employment Committee. 

 
………. 

Page 328



Part 3 Extract only Responsibility for Functions draft March 2021 

………. 
 
4.12 Health and Wellbeing Board 

 
4.12.1 To lead and co-ordinate system-wide actions, including those of the Council, 

NHS Oldham CCG and partners in assessing the health needs of the local 
population and to prepare and publish the statutory Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment (JSNA) in accordance with s196 of the Health and Social Care 
Act 2012; 

4.12.2 To lead and co-ordinate system-wide actions, including those of the Council, 
NHS Oldham CCG and partners in support of the preparation and 
publication of the Board’s Health and Wellbeing Strategy in accordance with 
s196 of the Health and Social Care Act 2012; 

4.12.3 To approve submission of the Better Care Fund Plan to NHS England; 
4.12.4 To encourage those persons and organisations holding responsibility for the 

commissioning or provision of any health or social care services in the 
Borough to work together in an integrated and/or partnership manner for the 
benefit of the local population; 

4.12.5 To consider reports from the Commissioning Partnership Board on key 
issues, including the joint commissioning intentions of the Council and the 
CCG and the Locality Plan; 

4.12.6 To be advised of further joint health and social care commissioning 
arrangements agreed and implemented between the Council and/or the 
CCG and/or other partners and be kept updated as to key issues arising; 

4.12.7 To be consulted in relation to the CCG annual report and performance 
assessment in connection with s14Z of the NHS Act 2006; 

4.12.8 To ensure that the Council complies with its duties to improve public health 
as set put in Sections 2B and 111 of the National Health Act 2006 as 
amended; 

4.12.9 To undertake such oversight of local safeguarding arrangements as the 
Board considers appropriate and necessary; 

4.12.10 To undertake, jointly with the Bury and Rochdale Health and Wellbeing 
Boards, such oversight of the Bury, Oldham and Rochdale Child Death 
Oversight Panel as the Board considers appropriate and necessary. 

 

……….. 
……….. 
 
9. OFFICER SCHEME OF DELEGATION 
 

Section 9B - General Delegations to Officers 
 

1. General delegations to Officers 
 
1.1 The Chief Executive, the Deputy Chief Executive, a Strategic Director, a 

Managing Director or other named Officer shall have power to carry into effect 
without reference to the Council or the Executive, matters of day to day 
management and administration and, in particular, the following functions: 

  

……..….. 

Page 329



Part 3 Extract only Responsibility for Functions draft March 2021 

…………. 
 

1.1.4 Personnel  
 

a) Personnel Policies  

 The Strategic Director Communities and Reform (or such Officer who is 
senior Officer with responsibility for HR) shall have authority to 
determine all policy matters in relation to staffing, including consultation 
and industrial relations arrangements (but excluding appeals, individual 
disciplinary matters and terms and conditions of service), unless 
otherwise directed by the Leader of the Council. 

 
b) Dispute Resolution 

 In the event that the Deputy Chief Executive, a Strategic Director, a 
Managing Director or nominee is unable to reach agreement following 
required consultation on any matter, the matter will be referred to the 
Chief Executive/Head of Paid Service for advice or recommendation for 
resolution of the issue, including referral to the Disputes Committee. 
 

c) Suspension 

 The Strategic Director Communities and Reform (or such Officer, other 
than the Head of Paid Service, Monitoring Officer or Chief Finance 
Officer, who is most senior Officer with responsibility for HR), in 
consultation with the Leader of the Council and the Director for 
Workforce and Organisational Development, has power to suspend the 
Head of Paid Service, Monitoring Officer or Chief Finance Officer with 
immediate effect in an emergency situation. 

 The Strategic Director Communities and Reform (or such Officer, other 
than the Head of Paid Service, Monitoring Officer or Chief Finance 
Officer, who is most senior Officer with responsibility for HR), in 
consultation with the Director for Workforce and Organisational 
Development, has authority to take all actions to progress any 
investigations into the conduct of the Head of Paid Service, Monitoring 
Officer or Chief Finance Officer, as the case may be, or other actions 
as may be required, following the suspension of one or more of those 
Officers.  

 The Chief Executive, in consultation with the Director for Workforce and 
Organisational Development or their nominee, has the power to 
suspend Chief Officers. 

 
d) Early Release 

 Applications for early release are to be authorised by the Strategic 
Director Communities and Reform or nominee with responsibility for HR 
and the Director of Finance in consultation with the relevant Executive 
Member. 

 
The following are delegated to the respective Deputy Chief Executive, 
Strategic Director or Managing Director who must ensure that any action is 
managed within the Directorate's bottom line budget. 

 

Page 330



Part 3 Extract only Responsibility for Functions draft March 2021 

e) Appointments 

 To appoint employees unless the appointment falls within the 
responsibility of the Appointments Committee (i.e. Chief Officers and 
such Deputy Chief Officers as might be determined by the Employment 
Committee). 

 To appoint employees or contractors on a temporary basis to provide 
cover for absences of employees or to cater for peaks in workload. 
Such employees should be employed on terms set out in guidelines 
issued by the Strategic Director Communities and Reform or nominee. 

 To approve removal expenses for an employee taking up employment 
with the Council in accordance with the Council’s Removal and 
Relocation Scheme. 

Each Directorate Scheme of Delegation should specify the level of 
Officers with powers to appoint. 

 
f) Departmental Structure 

 To deploy existing employees within the overall structure of the 
Directorate. 

 To agree changes to staffing structures except where either 
o the restructure is deemed to be ‘significant’ and/or requires 

consideration by the Employment Committee on other grounds; or 
o the restructure involves the re-grading of posts and/or the creation 

and grading of new posts in which case the decision must be taken 
in consultation with the relevant Cabinet Member and the proposals 
must have been subject to prior consultation with the Strategic 
Director Communities and Reform or nominee (as lead Officer for 
HR matters) and the Director of Finance or nominee.  

 To undertake prior consultation with all appropriate parties affected by 
a staffing structure proposal, notably the Trades Unions, prior to a 
decision being made. 

 To authorise the filling of the vacant half of a job share post following 
the resignation of one of the job-share partners. 

 To authorise career grade progression for relevant employees in line 
with previously agreed criteria. 

 
g) Discipline and Dismissal 

 To discipline and dismiss employees with the exception of Chief 
Officers and such Deputy Chief Officers as might be determined by the 
Employment Committee. 

Each Directorate Scheme of Delegation should specify the level of 
Officers with powers to discipline and dismiss. 

 
h) Additional Payments 

 To approve acting up payments, e.g. honoraria in line with guidelines 
issued by the Strategic Director of Communities and Reform or 
nominee. 

 To authorise merit increments and ex-gratia payments in line with 
guidelines issued by Strategic Director of Communities and Reform or 
nominee. 

Page 331



Part 3 Extract only Responsibility for Functions draft March 2021 

 To approve non-contractual overtime payments to employees. 

 To request the Director of Finance to approve the making of loans for 
car purchase to employees who are approved as essential car users. 

 
i) Allowances 

 To approve eligibility for essential and casual car allowances within an 
overall car allowance scheme approved by Council. 

 To approve the payment of a telephone allowance to applicable 
employees. 

 
j) Special Leave 

 To authorise time off for public duties in line with guidelines issued by 
the Strategic Director Communities and Reform.  

 To authorise carer’s leave for sick dependents in excess of 5 days 
subject to such decisions being notified to the Strategic Director 
Communities and Reform or nominee. 

 To authorise a leave of absence without pay for a maximum of 30 
working days per year. This can be extended up to 3 months in 
consultation with the Strategic Director of Communities and Reform or 
nominee. 

 To authorise all other requests for special leave in line with the 
guidelines issued by Strategic Director of Communities and Reform or 
nominee. 

 
k) Miscellaneous 

 To authorise employees to attend courses. 

 To approve claims for damages to employees’ personal effects, 
clothing and motor vehicles in accordance with guidelines issues by the 
Director of Finance. 

 To authorise employees taking up additional employment outside the 
Council in line with National Terms and Conditions of Service and the 
provisions of the Council’s Code of Conduct. 

Page 332



 

 

  
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
Reason for Decision 
The report highlights, on grounds of good governance, consequential amendments that were 
made to the Council Constitution during 2020 by the Director of Legal/Monitoring Officer under 
delegated powers. 
 
 
 
Recommendation 

1. That the report be noted. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Report to COUNCIL  

 
Constitution - Consequential Amendments 
 

 
Officer Contact:  Liz Drogan, Head of Democratic Services, Mark 
Hardman, Constitutional Officer  
 
 
24th March 2021 

Page 333

Agenda Item 16



 

  2 

Council 24th March 2021 
 
Constitution Consequential Amendments  
 
1 Background 
 
1.1 At meetings of the Council held on 8th January and 17th June 2020, arising from a general 

review of the Council’s Constitution, specific reviews of the Land and Property Protocol 
and arrangements relating to Planning decision making, and Regulations providing for 
ongoing governance arrangements due to the Covid pandemic, the Council agreed 
revisions to Parts 1 (Introduction), 2 (Articles), 3 (Responsibility for Functions), 4A-E and 
H (Procedure Rules), 5(e) (Codes and Protocols: Land and Property Protocol) and 8 
(Appendices: Appendix 3 Protocols).  On both occasions, the Council authorised the 
Director of Legal to make any consequential amendments to the Council Constitution.  

 
1.2 Arising from the above approvals the Director of Legal reviewed the Constitution and, in 

addition to incidental amendments such as formatting of content intended to better 
signpost users around the Constitution, made the following consequential amendments –  

 Part 1 – Introduction 
o Citizens’ rights – clarification that the provision of 28 days notice of 

consideration of private business applies to executive meetings generally, 
and that complaints concerning potential breaches of the Code of Conduct 
should be made to the Monitoring Officer – amendments made to align with 
content in Part 4B (Access to Information Procedure Rules) and Part 3 
(Responsibility for Functions) approved by Council in January and June 
2020 respectively. 

 Part 2 – Articles 
o Article 5 (The Mayor, Deputy Mayor, Youth Mayor and Deputy Youth Mayor) 

– clarification that the Mayor will be elected and the Deputy Mayor appointed 
at the annual meeting of the Council – amendment made to align with the 
provisions of Part 4A (Council Procedure Rules) approved by Council in 
January 2020; and 

o Article 13 (Officers) – new content at Articles 13.1.3 and 13.1.4 to define 
posts of ‘Chief Officer’ and ‘Deputy Chief Officer’ in statutory terms – 
amendment made to align with the provisions of Part 4H (Employment 
Procedure Rules) approved by Council in June 2020. 

 Part 4C – Budget and Policy Procedure Rules  
o Paragraph 1 – Clarification that references to the ‘Budget’ includes related 

policies and strategies – amendment made to align with the provisions of 
Part 2 Article 4 (The Full Council) approved by Council in January 2020; and 

o Paragraphs 3 and 4 – Clarification that procedures relating to decisions 
outside the Budget and Policy Framework apply also to Committees or 
Boards of the Cabinet – amendment made to align with content in Part 3 
(Responsibility for Functions) approved by Council in July 2020. 

 Part 8 Protocols  
o Appendix 3 – Aligning reference to the availability of Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee agenda with content in Part 4B (Access to Information Procedure 
Rules) approved by Council in June 2020.  

 
1.3 Part 2 Article 16 of the Constitution also authorises the Monitoring Officer (Director of 

Legal) to make amendments to the published Constitution –  
a) arising from decisions of the Council; 
b) arising from changes made by the Leader of the Council in respect of the 

discharge of executive functions; and  

Page 334



 

  3 

c) incidental changes arising as a result of approved organisational change, including 
officer designations for the purposes of schemes of delegation. 

 
1.4 The following amendments have been made in respect of provision a) above -   

 Part 4A (Council Procedure Rules) – provision of electronic means of voting at 
meetings of the Council approved by the Council in September 2020; 

 Part 4F (Financial Procedure Rules) – revised Procedure Rules approved by 
Council in January 2020; 

 Part 5B (Officers Code of Conduct) - revised Appendix 2 included on approval of 
revised Whistleblowing Policy by Council in July 2020; and 

 Part 6 (Members Allowance Scheme) – revised Scheme approved by Council in 
June/July 2020. 

 
1.5 No amendments have been made with regard to provisions b) or c) beyond those adopted 

by Council. 
 
2  Consultation 
 
2.1  None – this report is for information. 
 
3 Background Papers 
 
3.1 None.  
 
4 Appendices  
 
4.1 None. 

Page 335



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Executive Summary 
As part of the ongoing work to strengthen accountability to local people and their role as a 
Councillor in a co-operative borough, Elected Members are asked to produce an annual report 
presenting factual information of their work in the community over the last  
12 months. 
 
Individual reports include ward priorities, work in the community in particular during  
Covid-19 pandemic and contact information. 
 
The Reports are also available to view under Councillors’ section on Oldham Council’s website. 

 
 
 

  

Report to COUNCIL 

 
Members Annual Reports 2020 
 

Portfolio Holder:  
Councillor Sean Fielding, Leader of the Council 
 
Officer Contact:  Paul Entwistle, Director of Legal Services 
 
Report Author: Nicola Windle, Civic & Political Support Manager 
 
24 March 2021 
 

Page 337

Agenda Item 17



Cllr Riaz Ahmad – Waterhead Ward  

MY WARD PRIORITIES 
 

• Ward priorities are aligned with the Council  
priorities which are to make the ward clean,  
green and safe place for the residents. 

• With COVID 19, we have worked hard with  
the Council to ensure that the residents have  
access to good health and food provision,  
children’s education is maintained and the  
Council services respond quickly to the  
changed circumstances. 

 
 

Work in the community 
I have been busy with the casework and my work is supported by the other councilors and the excellent 
District team who deal with the cases on almost immediate basis. Dealing with the casework is the most 
satisfying part of being a Councillor. 
I and other ward councilors are continually working on clean ups in the areas where it is required, road safety 
and future planning. 

 
Our councilor’s budget has been spent on supporting the following services 

- Citizens Advice bureau 

- Environmental schemes 

- Grit bins 

- Footpaths and bridleways 

- Food parcels for the needy 

- Local clean ups 

COUNCIL 
 
I chair the Overview, Performance and Value for money Scrutiny committee which monitors council’s 
finances, human resources and performances. It plays a huge part in ensuring that any expenditure provides 
value for money, capital project are fully justified and affordable, staff performance and attendance is of 
good /high standard and council is achieving its targets and public expectation. It regularly calls Chief 
Officers and Cabinet Members to answer any areas of poor performance. 
 
I am also a leading member of the Audit Committee which provides a system of control over Council 
finances, income and expenditure, capital and revenue. It ensures that the finances are fully safeguarded 
and expended in a justifiable and transparent manner. 
I have attended a number of training sessions on Finance, Audit, Safeguarding, Prevent and other similar 
subjects 
 

MAJOR AIMS FOR THE NEXT 12 YEARS 
 

• To support the residents from the COVID 19 impact and help with the recovery process. 

• To provide means of health improvement. 

• To improve the education offer in the Ward 

• To make the Ward a clean, green and safe place 

• To ensure that all public services work together for the benefit of the residents i.e. Police, Council, 
NHS, Housing and voluntary sector 

 
 

 

CONTACT ME 

E: riaz.ahmad@oldham.gov.uk  

SURGERIES 

Face to face Ward Surgeries are cancelled 

due to COVID-19 restrictions.  Please contact 

me by phone or email for any issues or 

problems. 

Page 338

mailto:riaz.ahmad@oldham.gov.uk


 

 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

  

 

Page 339



Cllr Shoab Akhtar – Werneth   

MY WARD PRIORITIES 
 

• Environment  

• Highways  

• Education 

• Health and Well-being 

• Harford Mill Site  
 

 
 
 

  
 

 
 

 

Work in the community 
• Hartford Mill demolition has been completed 

• Various roads across the ward have been resurface such as, Frederick St and Werneth Hall Rd (partially) 

• Working with ASRA to address issues around phase 1 & 2 of Suthers St development 

• Working with Oak Chase Mill residents to address the issues around the open space and ASB 

• Working with residents to address parking issues on Primrose Bank 

• Werneth Cricket club – provided supporting letter for a funding bid 

• Keepmoat have started the second phase in Primrose Bank and Suthers St  

• Arranged for various alleyway clearances 

• Covid door knocking 

• Funding the following projects through the cllrs budget; 
➢ WFCDP – Toy Library 
➢ St Thomas School – Forest area 
➢ Grit Bins - Newport St, St Thomas Circle 
➢ Kashmir Cricket Club  
➢ Glodwick Dynamoes FC (£3960 requested) 
➢ Indian Association  
➢ WFCDP - Electrcity charges for pitch lights 
➢ CAB Neighbourhood advice - over the phone 

 

Participation on outside bodies and partnerships 
 

Details of participation in groups and bodies attended as a representative of the Council; 

• Chair of Health Scrutiny Committee 

• Board member of Sixth Form College 

• Director of Oldham Enterprise Trust 

• Planning Committee 

• Oldham West District Partnership 

• Primrose Community Centre 

 
The Council has been at the frontline in responding to the Covid19 pandemic; including distributing 
emergency food and medicine, providing vital social care, running testing centres and now rolling out the 
vaccinations. 
 
Throughout 2020 it also had a huge impact on the way that the Council and Councillors worked. 
 
Instead of attending meetings on your behalf at Oldham Civic Centre, all meetings have been held virtually, 
accessed via phone or laptop. I have undertaken training on using this technology so that I could continue to 
represent you throughout this difficult time. 
 

Page 340



In my ward I have had to scale back the amount of work I can do in the community due to not being able to 
get out and about, but I have still been available by e-mail or telephone for people to contact me if they have 
problems they would like my assistance with. 
 
I have kept in touch with local community groups as much as possible, particularly on social media, and I look 
forward to becoming more active in the area again when restrictions are finally lifted. 
 

 
 

 

CONTACT ME 

E:shoab.akhtar@oldham.gov.uk 

T: 0161 287 2005 

M: 07973 101633 

Twitter; @shoaboldham 

Facebook: www.facebook.com/shoabakhtar  

SURGERIES 

Face to face Ward Surgeries are cancelled 

due to COVID-19 restrictions.  Please contact 

me by phone or email for any issues or 

problems. 

 

 

 

 

Page 341

mailto:shoab.akhtar@oldham.gov.uk
http://www.facebook.com/shoabakhtar


 

Cllr Ginny Alexander – St James Ward  

MY WARD PRIORITIES 
 
• Road safety 

• Pot holes 

• Fly tipping 

• Anti social behavior 

• Isolation 

• Parking 

• Dog fouling 

• Creating new jobs 

 
 

 

 

Work in the community 

• 100% attendance at Oldham Council meetings  

• Attended training on “Safeguarding”, “Casework & Advocacy Skills”  

• Raised concerns about speeding on various roads throughout the ward,  

• Worked with the local community centre with food packages for vulnerable and elderly during national 
COVID-19 lockdown 

• Dealt with Fly tipping problems looking at ways to change mind set on how to combat this problem 

• Visiting sites and locations when safe to do so regarding problems that have arisen 

 
 
The Council has been at the frontline in responding to the Covid19 pandemic; including distributing 
emergency food and medicine, providing vital social care, running testing centres and now rolling out the 
virus. 
 
Throughout 2020 it also had a huge impact on the way that the Council and Councillors worked. 
 
Instead of attending meetings on your behalf at Oldham Civic Centre, all meetings have been held virtually, 
accessed via phone or laptop. I have undertaken training on using this technology so that I could continue to 
represent you throughout this difficult time. 
 
In my ward I have had to scale back the amount of work I can do in the community due to not being able to 
get out and about, but I have still been available by e-mail or telephone for people to contact me if they have 
problems they would like my assistance with. 
 
I have kept in touch with local community groups as much as possible, particularly on social media, and I 
look forward to becoming more active in the area again when restrictions are finally lifted. 

 
 

 

CONTACT ME 

E:ginny.alexander@oldham.gov.uk  

M: 07720187763 

 

 

 

 

SURGERIES 

Face to face Ward Surgeries are cancelled 

due to COVID-19 restrictions.  Please contact 

me by phone or email for any issues or 

problems. 

Page 342

mailto:ginny.alexander@oldham.gov.uk


 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Page 343



Cllr Mohon Ali – Chadderton North Ward  

MY WARD PRIORITIES 
 
• Road safety 

• Community Cohesion 

• Creating new jobs 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Work in the community 

• Raised concerns about speeding on Burnley Lane, from Elk Mill roundabout to Millbrow leading to 
the installation of traffic splitter islands, helping to promote lower traffic speeds and encourage 
better driver behaviors. 

• Worked with the local community and supplied huge donations to the foodbank, that is supporting the 
vulnerable. 

• Communicated with residents by telephone, email and Mircosoft Teams during COVID-19 pandemic 
to tackle a range of problems 

 
The Council has been at the frontline in responding to the Covid19 pandemic; including distributing 
emergency food and medicine, providing vital social care, running testing centres and now rolling out the 
vaccine. 

 
Throughout 2020 it also had a huge impact on the way that the Council and Councillors worked. 

 
Instead of attending meetings on your behalf at Oldham Civic Centre, all meetings have been held virtually, 
accessed via phone or laptop. I have undertaken training on using this technology so that I could continue to 
represent you throughout this difficult time. 
 
In my ward I have had to scale back the amount of work I can do in the community due to not being able to 
get out and about, but I have still been available by e-mail or telephone for people to contact me if they have 
problems they would like my assistance with. 
 
I have kept in touch with local community groups as much as possible, particularly on social media, and I look 
forward to becoming more active in the area again when restrictions are finally lifted. 
 

 

 

CONTACT ME 

E: Mohon.Ali@oldham.gov.uk  

M: 07734206623 

Twitter @MohonAli10 

Facebook www.facebook.com/MohonAli

SURGERIES 

Face to face Ward Surgeries are cancelled 

due to COVID-19 restrictions.  Please contact 

me by phone or email for any issues or 

problems.

 

Page 344

mailto:Mohon.Ali@oldham.gov.uk
http://www.facebook.com/MohonAli


Cllr Mohammad Alyas – Medlock Vale Ward  

MY WARD PRIORITIES 
 

• Housing and Tackling Health  
inequalities 

• Environmental improvements 

• Tackling Antisocial Behaviour 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Work in the community 
 
I have supported the following organisations/groups/Services 

 

• REEL Fitton Hill Food Club 

• CAB Advice Surgeries  

• Glodwick Dynamos (Werneth) 

• Saheli Women’s Group-Building Relationships 

• Grit Bins (Gainsborough Ave, Keb Lane)  

• Indian Associations 

• Kashmir Cricket Club 

 

I Was Elected as Medlock Vale Councilor in 2019 and represent on the following: 

• Member of Health Scrutiny Committee 

• Member CGN (Community Groups Network)  

• Board Member: For Housing Association  

Meetings attended 

• 100% attendance at Oldham Council meetings  

• 100% attendance at ward meetings and District partnership meetings 

• Attended “safeguarding” training.  

• Worked with the police to tackle Anti-social behaviour  

• Raised concerns about speeding on Fredrick Street  

• Worked with individuals and families (through case work) to help raise and in most cases 

resolve their issues 

 
With Covid – 19, national restrictions & lockdowns, it has been a difficult year. We prioritized emergency help 
and support for our residents in collaboration with other organisations and agencies. This meant that some of 
the ‘normal’ casework took longer than expected.  
Ward surgeries haven’t been allowed throughout the year and we are looking forward to regular ward 
surgeries as soon as it is safe and we are allowed to.  
 

 

 Page 345



CONTACT ME 

E:mohammed.alyas@oldham.gov.uk 

M: 07866502184 

SURGERIES 

Face to face Ward Surgeries are cancelled 

due to COVID-19 restrictions.  Please contact 

me by phone or email for any issues or 

problems. 

 

 

 

Page 346

mailto:mohammed.alyas@oldham.gov.uk


Cllr Sam Al-hamdani – Saddleworth West & Lees Ward  

 

MY WARD PRIORITIES 
 

• Coronavirus response 

• Speeding and traffic issues 

• Environmental health and waste 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Work in the community 

• Shadow cabinet member for Housing and Homelessness. Member of the cross-party environmental group, Oldham 
Music Service (Music Awards) and Oldham Economic Development Board at Oldham Council. Substitute member of 
the GMCA Overview and Scrutiny Committees. Substitute member of planning committee, performance and value for 
money committee, and traffic regulation order panel at Oldham Council.  

• Board member of Oldham Coliseum and Oldham Credit Union. 

• 100% attendance at Oldham Council meetings 

• Participated in the cross-party boundary review group, and on the response to Planning for the Future 

• Moved successful Council Motions on Ancient Woodlands, making street harassment a crime, tackling litter, preventing 
modern slums in Oldham, and urban meadows and bee corrridors. Successfully revised the Council Motion on 
Planning for the Future. 

• Questions asked to Full Council on the national Home Office-sponsored Independent Inquiry into Child Sexual Abuse 
(IICSA), business support ahead of the customs changes after departure from the EU, emergency funding for walking 
and cycling support under coronavirus, antibody testing, equality objectives, reporting from the independent 
investigation into CSE, the impact of Covid on social housing, and the environmental impact of the development of 
Saddeworth School, among others. 

• Other work directly addressed to the council has covered Equalities Objectives (currently 15 months overdue), 
revisions of the Council’s employment practice and communications strategy in response to the independent 
investigation into CSE, identifying sites with potential environmental contamination for review, review of the PFI 
contract with EOn for street lighting, review of the Council’s approach to alley gating and environmental health, Assets 
of Community Value, tree planting programmes among others. 

 

Highways/works 

 

• Pothole repairs across the ward, including identifying extensive road issues in need of greater repair ahead of next 
year’s creation of the 2022–25 plan for resurfacing. 

• Agreement of the introduction of a new 20mph limit on Den Lane in Springhead, as part of the introduction of more 
20mph speed limits across the district where appropriate. 

• Part of the team discussions to address the traffic issues around the schools in Medlock Way, including getting a clear 
analysis of traffic levels inside and outside school times, introducing additional signage for the schools, and bidding in 
for funding to introduce traffic reduction schemes across the area. 

• Reserved funding from 2019–20 and 2020–21 councillor budgets to reintroduce a VAS on Rhodes Hill. 

• Pursuing appropriate weight restrictions for specific streets in the neighbourhood. 

• Work underway to introduce double yellow lines in limited locations to address road safety issues. 

• Addressing incomplete repairs and works in response to residents’ issues 

• Roads surveys undertaken in multiple locations across the ward (Under Lane, Cooper Street and Medlock Way) to 
identify specific traffic patterns and issues 

 

Parks and public environment 

 

• Organised clearance of fallen trees on Medlock Way and Old Street 

• Advice and support for residents on overhanging trees, including working with neighbours where trees are on private 
residences 

• Delivered overdue work on Philimore Street in Lees, to repair and reinstate the wall adjacent to the graveyard 

• Identifying Japanese Knotweed for treatment on private and public locations 

• Tracking works done by infrastructure contractors and ensuring reinstatement of public space to original levels 

• Ensured graffiti is cleared from various public domain sites, including substations, fences, and public buildings 

• Organised repairs to bridges on Thornley Brook, Medlock Way, and on steps from new Academy to Old Street. 

• Replacement of unsafe fencing between Oldham Road and linear path Page 347



• Organised reinforcement work to retaining wall on Cooper Street (outstanding since 1990s) 

• New handrail and cleared path for residents in supported housing and Old Mill House and Hood Square 

• Installation of new warning signs on dog fouling in multiple locations across the ward. 

• Reporting and follow-up on fly-tipping at sites across the ward 

 

Housing, planning and enforcement 

 

• Supporting residents with applications to social housing (including organising specific support for residents without 
internet access during lockdown). 

• Support for residents with issues around homelessness, and those in long term temporary accommodation. 

• Supporting residents to ensure their views are heard as part of the planning process. Particularly during the first 
lockdown, resolving a number of issues when public notifications on applications were not providing residents with 
sufficient time to respond. Similar problems have also been identified during the introduction of the new IT systems in 
the planning department. Have ensured that the planning department have extended deadlines to ensure residents 
have had sufficient time to respond.  

• Specific support for the campaigns on Knowls Lane and Stonebreaks, where there are significant implications for local 
infrastructure, including transport, healthcare and education. 

• Multiple support for residents on enforcement issues, including around conservations areas, health and safety during 
construction, breaches of planning conditions or restrictions.  

• Support for residents with complex applications, including listed buildings, work in conservation areas, and with solar 
power installation.  

 

Business grants and coronavirus support 

 

• Support for businesses including: resolving issues around business rates that were preventing grants being issued, 
following up to ensure payments come on time, resolving issues around eligibility and payment. 

• Providing information on grants and support for community groups, including specific funding for making Springhead 
Community Centre coronavirus safe.  

• Working with GMCA to get guidance issued around care homes visits, and support for residents to enable them to meet 
with relatives under lockdown.  

• Providing support and information around use of sporting facilities and parks. 

• Ensuring supported collections for waste in place for residents where needed 

 

Drainage and flooding issues 

 

• Specific support for residents with issues around drainage, particularly where there has been water ingress into 
individual houses 

• Identification of responsibility for flooding issues between owners, United Utilities, the Council, and the Environmental 
Agency to ensure the appropriate response can be taken 

 

Crime and antisocial behaviour 

 

• Liaison with the community safety officer and local police to identify specific locations for anti-social behaviour and get 
appropriate police involvement 

• Promoting Neighbourhood Watch activities, including identifying any crime hotspots and distributing targeted 
information on safety and recommendations from Neighbourhood Watch. 

 

Funded work 

• Grit bins (fill on request) 

• Support for Christmas Lights 

• Support the provision of district trees 

• Summer/winter planting 

• Lees Park Growing Hub 

• Springhead Community Centre 

• Bench and junction of Under Lane and Thornley Lane 

 

It is not possible to record all casework here, in particular where there are issues around confidentiality. Some 
casework has been specifically excluded, and others included deliberately in summary to ensure privacy confidentiality 
is respected. Others have been included in summary to minimise the length of the report. 

 

CONTACT ME      SURGERIES  

E: sam@samalhamdani.org.uk     Face to face Ward Surgeries are 
T: 07378 637637      cancelled due to COVID-19 restrictions. 
Twitter @samlibdem      Please contact me by phone or email 
Facebook www.facebook.com/samlibdem   for any issues or problems.  Page 348

mailto:sam@samalhamdani.org.uk
http://www.facebook.com/johnsmith


 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Page 349



Cllr Cath Ball – St James Ward  

MY WARD PRIORITIES 
 

• Road safety 

• Dog fouling and litter 

• Supporting and working alongside residents 

• Try and reduce Anti-Social behavior. 
 
 

 
 

 

Work in the Council and Community 

• Member of LGA Councillors Forum, Health & Wellbeing Board 

• 100% attendance at Oldham Council meetings 

• Attended training on “Safeguarding”, “Casework & Advocacy Skills” amongst other things 

• Trustee of the Sholver and Moorside Community Team. 

• Member of Friends of Stoneleigh Park. 

• Vice chair of Governors of St Theresas Primary School Derker.  

• Communicated with residents by telephone, email and Microsoft Teams during COVID-19 pandemic 
to tackle a range of problems (not very good at setting up a Teams meeting) 

• Deputy Cabinet member covering Covid recovery and Poverty. 

• Member of the Poverty Steering Group, and the Oldham Advisory and Equality Group 

• Lead on the Armed Forces. 

• Working with residents on the Oldham Remembers group. Here I have put together a list of soldiers’ 
names from World War One who are missing from our municipal war memorials, (2,500). I am now 
working on a similar list for those of the second world war. The WW1 names are now found in the 
Garden of the Forgotten in the Parish Church grounds.  

• Council representative on ACE Charity. This is a charity specializing in AAC and Assistive 
Technology   acecentre.org.uk 

• With my poverty work I have had frequent contact with many Oldham groups who have been busy 
supporting our residents over the last 12 months, other regional and national groups. 

• Member of Oldham Poverty Agenda group 

• Oldham Foodbank – I do one half day session a week as a driver. 

• Working alongside the Children’s society on our Crisis support work, liaising with colleagues in 
Tower Hamlets, Swansea and Norfolk.  

• Working alongside PAG regarding the Poverty Truth Commission. Attending PTC conferences. 

• Setting up an access to advice group, which is now  a subgroup of the Poverty Agenda group 

• Working alongside the Greater Manchester Poverty Group, attending their conferences and training 
sessions.  

• Working on an Action Plan to help support and improve residents in Poverty.  

• Supporting other groups like Reel, the Ancora Project, boxes of Hope, Family Action, some Page 350



churches and Mosques, First Choice homes and their Bread and Butter Project.  

• Working with the Food Solutions Group, the Food Partnership Group and the Food Security Group 
 

 

 

CONTACT ME 

E: cath.ball@oldham.gov.uk 

 T: 0161 652 9464  

M: 07595 201268 

Twitter @cathball 

Facebook www.facebook.com/Cath Ball Cllr 
for St James and St James Community 
News and Events 

 

SURGERIES 

Face to face Ward Surgeries are cancelled 

due to COVID-19 restrictions.  Please contact 

me by phone or email for any issues or 

problems. 

 

 

 

Page 351

mailto:cath.ball@oldham.gov.uk


Cllr Marie Bashforth – Royton South Ward  

MY WARD PRIORITIES 
 
• We continue to work towards the 

renovation of Royton Town Hall and the 
Library. The project is ongoing, and is 
progressing, to inspire the next phase of 
the regeneration of Royton Town Centre 
through the renovation of the Town Hall 
and creating a brand-new fit for purpose 
library.  

• Work with private and public sector 
partners to support the growth and 
development of District Centre and be part 
of the Mayor’s Town Centre Challenge. 
Growth and development of Royton centre 
is as always, a priority.  

• Building on our unique heritage and working with partners to make Royton a thriving place to live, 
work and socialise and promoting volunteering opportunities and community organisations so 
residents can get involved in the community and do their bit. 

• Provide opportunities in Royton for residents to take control and improve their own health for 
example through support to local sports and park clubs. Also, to increase the use of our outdoor 
spaces.  

 
 

 

Work in the community 

• Personal Casework directed to me from residents  

• Meeting with residents one to one or in larger groups and meetings has not been possible over the past 
year. So, communication has been mainly by telephone and email.   

    Along with this work I am also involved in; 

• Attending ‘Teams’ meetings between the staff and owners of a local children’s care home and the 
residents who live close to the home.  We arranged these meeting because at one time neighbours of 
the children’s home did have some major issues around anti-social behavior. However, through 
sustained conversation and listening during these regular meetings and also an understanding with 
the company involved, and how they intend to use the home going forward, we are now experiencing 
a much calmer time. Anti-social behavior has lessened greatly and the company are communicating 
on a weekly basis directly with their close neighbours and local councilors. Some further anti-social 
behaviour issues occurred during the past year and so a number of ‘Teams’ meetings were held, to 
support the residents.  The owners of the home are now considering the use of the property going 
forward.  

• Support residents whilst work is taking place in their immediate area due to private land development 
to ensure all planning criteria is being followed and when this is not happening to ensure we act on 
their behalf to correct any breaches of the planning conditions put in place.  

 

Work Undertaken in my role of Deputy Cabinet Member for Health and Social Care 

 
The Health and Wellbeing Board 
This board comprises of health and social care commissioners and other local leaders such as care providers, 
housing providers, the police and the community and voluntary sectors who all have a vital role in tackling health 
inequalities in the borough.  
 
 
 

Page 352



Chairing the Learning Disability Partnership Board – my work as Chair of this Broad continues on the and 
the meetings have been held regularly via ‘Teams’ meetings. A lot of positive and valuable work has taken place 
by council members, council officers, members of the public who use this service and all related partners.  
This board brings together a valuable group of people, working to make Oldham a better place to live for people 
with learning disabilities. Holding to account professional bodies, to account for improving the design and 
delivery of services for people with learning disabilities. To ensure money is spent on good quality services and 
to be consulted and involved with regard to plans or changes that will affect everyone with a learning disability 
or their carers. 
 
Some of the projects and work pathways I have been involved in include; 
 

• Implementation of The Greater Manchester Learning Disability Strategy - To progress 
implementation of the key commitments of this strategy and to ensure it starts to make a difference to 
people’s lives, all GM localities were asked to work with their local Learning Disability Partnerships 
Boards to seek active participation and a commitment to action. In addition, a 100-day Challenge was 
launched to encourage local and GM level organisations to make positive changes to improve the lives 
of people with learning disabilities, particularly around the area of employment and health.  
 
I have been leading on ‘Early Support for Children and Young People’ as part of this Strategy – 
our Actions have been; 

• Action 1: Engaging with the published written statement of action in relation to SEND for children 
and young people following the recent Ofsted/CQC inspection, and subsequent action and 
implementation plans. 

• Action 2: Support the implementation of the Oldham Joint Autism Strategy 2016 - 2019. 

• Action 3: Development of a Joint Commissioning Strategy children and adults through CAMHS 

• Action 4: Increase take up of health checks - now offered age 14+ joint approach with adults 
 

• Transforming Care Agenda - Transforming Care Approach 

• Transforming care is all about improving health and care services so that more people with 
learning disabilities and/or autism can live in the community, with the right support, close to home 
and have the same opportunities as anyone else. 
 

• The programme of work will ensure that families are: 

− Getting the support they need to live long and healthy lives 

− Being treated with the same dignity and respect  

− Having a home within their community 

− Being able to develop and maintain relationships and getting the support they need to 
have a healthy, safe and fulfilling life 

 
The Domestic Violence Partnership – These meetings have continued and are carried out via ‘Teams’ 
meetings.  
Tackling domestic violence and abuse is a priority and the purpose of this partnership is to ensure and work 
towards a coordinated response from all partners including the Police, the MASH Team, Social Services and 
all voluntary organisations.  
 
These are a selection of the projects I have been involved in over the last two years through meetings and 
discussions.  
 

• Greater Manchester Domestic Abuse Partnership – Discuss and action any outcomes or feedback 
from this Partnership. 

• Discuss up to date Data and Feedback from MARAC - This a (Multi Agency Risk Assessment 
Conference) Safeguarding Victims of Domestic Abuse. 

• Project Choice This is a project to work with referral of honour-based violence (HBV) victims and to 
offer support.  

• Strive Project -The STRIVE initiative is a partnership with Greater Manchester Police. STRIVE is an 
intensive project which recruits local volunteers to attend homes where the police have attended but no 
crime has been logged.  The volunteers then support individuals, couples and families, signposting them 
to further support. This intervention supports local community relationships and ensures people who 
would potentially not receive any support, have access to the help they need. 

 
 

 Page 353

https://www.gmp.police.uk/


CONTACT ME 

E:marie.bashforth@oldham.gov.uk  

T: 01706 290 313  

SURGERIES 

Face to face Ward Surgeries are cancelled 

due to COVID-19 restrictions.  Please contact 

me by phone or email for any issues or 

problems. 

 

 

 

Page 354

mailto:marie.bashforth@oldham.gov.uk


Cllr Steven Bashforth – Royton South Ward  

MY WARD PRIORITIES 
 

• Protecting our green spaces  

• A safe and clean community  

• Excellent and accessible leisure services 

• Thriving businesses  

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Work in the community 
 
I have pledged my full and active opposition to any detrimental development in Royton and will continue to 
use my experience to oppose anything which is against the interests of Royton’s people. At the same time, I 
will never hesitate to use my considerable experience to the benefit of Royton and its people.  
 
I am a grass roots councillor who has a long record of helping many individual Royton people; and have 
always been involved Royton’s excellent community groups. I am very proud to be a founder member and the 
first Chair of the Royton Royal British Legion branch and to be the President of the Royton Veterans Bowling 
Club. I have been involved with bringing a number of interesting and well attended car shows to Heyside and 
with the help of a local Roytoner, instigated the former Royton Real Food Market.  
 
Amongst the many groups I have supported are local sporting clubs, Scouts, Brownies, Royton Local History 
Society the Heyside Neighbourhood Council and I am fully involved in the Royton Christmas and summer 
events.  
 
Amongst the many ward issues dealt with on a regular basis are: -  
● Anti-social behaviour.  

● Dog fouling.  

● Alleyway clean ups.  

● Dealing with utility Companies.  

● Council tax problems and queries.  

● Issues relating to ground rent.  

● Allotments.  

● Noise from clubs and pubs.  

● Abandoned vehicles.  

● Speeding problems.  

● Homelessness.  

● Fly tipping.  

● Vandalism in our parks.  

● Underage drinking.  

● Planning and licensing issues.  

● Parking problems.  

● Street lighting.  

● Home adaptations for disabilities.  

● School placements.  

● Bus routes and fares.  
 
I am a member of Royton Executive Committee and Community Forum, and currently serve as Chair of the 
MioCare Group.  
 
Over the years I have served Royton and the Council on:-  
 Page 355



• Oldham Planning Committee, both as a member and many years as Chair.  

• Traffic Regulations Order Panel, again both as a member and as Chair.  

• Oldham Licencing Committee.  

• Commons Registration Committee.  

• Oldham Distress Fund Trustee.  

• Royton Sick and Needy Trustee.  

• Appeals Committee.  

• Greater Manchester Geological Unit.  

• Oldham Children’s Holiday Home Management Committee.  

• Parking Regulations Outside London (PATROL) Adjudication Joint Committee.  

• Oldham Credit Union.  

• Greater Manchester Geological Unit.  

• Greater Manchester Police Authority  

• Deputy Cabinet Member with responsibility for Oldham’s link to the Crime and Police Commissioner.  
 
I have always had an excellent attendance record at official council meetings, ward surgeries and meeting 
with local people.  
 
The emergence of the Covid 19 pandemic was like nothing we have had to deal with before which has and 
still is dominating everything we do. Oldham Council and all councilors including myself have been at the 
frontline in responding to the pandemic; including distributing emergency food and medicine, providing vital 
social care, running testing centers and now rolling out the virus.  
 
Instead of attending meetings on your behalf at Oldham Civic Centre, all meetings have been held virtually, 
accessed via phone or laptop. I have undertaken training on using this technology so that I could continue to 
represent you throughout this difficult time.  
 
In Royton I have had to scale back and completely stop face to face interaction, but the amount of casework 
has remained constant and I, like everyone else, have had to adapt and make sure I am available more than 
ever by e-mail or telephone.  

I have kept in touch with local community groups as much as possible and am looking forward to 
being able to personally meet with the people of Royton again soon. 
 

 

 

CONTACT ME 

E:steven.bashforth@oldham.gov.ukT: 

01706 290 313 

Twitter @roytoncllr 

SURGERIES 

Face to face Ward Surgeries are cancelled 

due to COVID-19 restrictions.  Please contact 

me by phone or email for any issues or 

problems. 

 

 

 

Page 356

mailto:steven.bashforth@oldham.gov.uk


 

Cllr Norman Briggs – Failsworth East Ward  

MY WARD PRIORITIES 
 

• I am the Chair of Trustees and a keen 
supporter of Oldham Cancer Support Centre 
which is based in Failsworth. 

• As I have always said that “As long as I am a 
Councillor, my number one and overriding 
priority is - and always will be – representing 
the people of Failsworth, through my ward 
work, I will always work hard and to the best of 
my endeavors for them. 

• I am very concerned about our environment, 
especially our Air Quality and the effects of 
Pollution on our residents, and I am currently 
a member of the Greater Manchester Clean 
Air Project. 

 
 

 

Work in the community 
I believe my priority is to the people of Failsworth who have a problem that I can help them with. I have dealt 
with many and varying issues including housing repairs & allocations, housing development, education & 
school placement, highway & pavement problems, care & health issues and Policing issues. 
• I have provided funding for the Citizens Advice Bureau, for Failsworth. 

• I have met with Failsworth Group Practice Doctors with regards to residents’ concerns over appointments. 

• As Chair of the Licensing Committee, I have introduced a pioneering ongoing NVQ Qualification for all taxi 
drivers, to raise quality and standards for taxi users. We are also currently working on the introduction of 
CCTV in taxis and restricting taxis from other authorities operating within Oldham. 

• I am a member of the Labour Party, Labour Animal Welfare Society, The Co-op Party, Unite the   Union, 
Oldham Cancer Support (Chair of Trustees), The Humane Society, The League Against Cruel Sports, 
Royal Society for the Protection of Birds (RSPB), International Federation for Animal Welfare (IFAW) and 
Millstream Animal Shelter. 

• I am the Chair of the Licensing Committee and Licensing Panel; I also sit on the Standards Committee 
and Clayton Playing Fields Committee. I am also a substitute on the Petitioners Panel, and Traffic 
Regulation Order Panel. 

• The outside bodies that I sit on are Pennine Acute NHS Trust Joint Overview & Scrutiny Committee, 
Pennine NHS Trust (Mental Health), Pennine Acute Trust Governor, Greater Manchester Combined 
Authorities, Statutory Functions Committee and GM Culture and Social Impact Fund Committee. I also 
attend Failsworth Pub Watch meetings. 

• I have received Training on Child & Adult Safeguarding, Corporate Parenting, Licensing & Enforcement, 
& Codes of Conduct.  
 

CONTACT ME      SURGERIES 

E: Norman.briggs@oldham.gov.uk     Ward Surgeries are cancelled because  

T:   0161 684 1020      of COVID-19. I can be contacted, by  

        phone or email for any issues or 

        problems you may have. 

 

 

Page 357

mailto:Norman.briggs@oldham.gov.uk


Cllr Barbara Brownridge – Chadderton North Ward  

MY WARD PRIORITIES  
 
• Community safety 

• Post Covid-19 recovery 

• Highway safety  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Work in the community 
 

The Council has been at the frontline in responding to the Covid19 pandemic; including distributing 
emergency food and medicine, providing vital social care, running testing centres and now rolling 
out the vaccine. 

 
Throughout 2020 it also had a huge impact on the way that the Council and Councillors worked. 
 
Instead of attending meetings on your behalf at Oldham Civic Centre, all meetings have been held 
virtually, accessed via phone or laptop. I have undertaken training on using this technology so that I 
could continue to represent you throughout this difficult time. 
 
In my ward I have had to scale back the amount of work I can do in the community due to not being 
able to get out and about, but I have been able to deal with case work via email and phone calls. 

 
 

 

 

CONTACT ME 

E:barbara.brownridge@oldham.gov.uk 

T: 0161 678 0752 

 

SURGERIES 

Face to face Ward Surgeries are 

cancelled due to COVID-19 restrictions.  

Please contact me by phone or email for 

any issues or problems. 

 

 

 

Page 358

mailto:barbara.brownridge@oldham.gov.uk


Cllr Pam Byrne – Saddleworth North Ward  

MY WARD PRIORITIES 
 
• Securing Road Safety Schemes 

• Helping Business in COVID19 

• Protecting the Green Belt 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Work in the community 

• Liaising with residents about the New Saddleworth School  

• 100% attendance at Oldham Council meetings 

• Attended training on “Safeguarding”, “Casework & Advocacy Skills” amongst other things 

• Supporting Local Businesses with COVID 19 Grant Applications 

• Supporting residents with Planning Application Concerns 

• Communicated with residents by telephone, email and Mircosoft Teams during COVID-19 
pandemic to tackle a range of problems 

• Attending all COVID 19 Briefing to keep abreast with information 

• Attended Governors meetings and Supporting Saddleworth School Staff. Especially with 
cakes. 

 
 

 

 

CONTACT ME 

E: pam.byrne@oldham.gov.uk 

T: 01457 820 149 

M: 07703 348 755 

 

 

SURGERIES 

Face to face Ward Surgeries are 

cancelled due to COVID-19 restrictions.  

Please contact me by phone or email for 

any issues or problems. 

 

 

 

Page 359

mailto:pam.byrne@oldham.gov.uk


Cllr Amanda Chadderton – Royton South Ward  

MY WARD PRIORITIES 
 
• Highways improvements 

• Investing in green spaces 

• Supporting local businesses 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Work in the community 
 
The past year has been a year like nothing we have ever experienced before. My Councillor role and the work 
that entails has radically altered from how I have worked in previous years. I also took two months off at the 
end of 2020 for maternity leave. 
 
The Council has been at the frontline in responding to the Covid19 pandemic; including distributing 
emergency food and medicine, providing vital social care, running testing centres and now rolling out the 
vaccine. 
 
Throughout 2020 it also had a huge impact on the way that the Council and Councillors worked. 
 
Instead of attending meetings on your behalf at Oldham Civic Centre, all meetings have been held virtually, 
accessed via phone or laptop. I have continued to attend, albeit virtually, a range of meetings such as Full 
Council, Cabinet, Domestic Abuse Partnership Board and Oldham Advisory Group on Covid 19.  
 
In my ward I have had to scale back the amount of work I can do in the community due to not being able to 
get out and about, but I have still been available by e-mail or telephone for people to contact me if they have 
problems they would like my assistance with. Whilst ward work has been scaled back, some of the things I 
have prioritised have been: 

• Supported local residents in dealing with ongoing anti-social behaviour issues 

• Campaigned to replace the zebra crossing in the centre of Royton with a pelican crossing 

• Bid for Greater Manchester funding to transform the centre of Royton 

• Supported and invested in the proposed Royton Growing Hub in Royton Park 

• Launched Royton Connect campaign to improve links to and from Royton and make Royton centre 
more accessible for walking and cycling 

 
I have kept in touch with local community groups as much as possible, via telephone, email and social media, 
and I look forward to becoming more active in the area again when restrictions are finally lifted. 
 

 

 

CONTACT ME 

E:amanda.chadderton@oldham.gov.uk  

M: 07595 201 269 

Twitter @CllrAmandaOL2 

Facebook 
www.facebook.com/CllrAmandaChadderton 

SURGERIES 

Face to face Ward Surgeries are cancelled 

due to COVID-19 restrictions.  Please contact 

me by phone or email for any issues or 

problems. 

Page 360

mailto:amanda.chadderton@oldham.gov.uk
http://www.facebook.com/CllrAmanda


 

 

 
 
  

 

Page 361



Cllr Zahid Chauhan – Alexandra Ward  

MY WARD PRIORITIES 
 
• Tackling health inequalities 

• Campaigning for vulnerable groups 

• Rogue landlords 

• Anti-social behavior 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Work in the community 

I have worked hard to represent the residents of Alexandra Ward since election in 2013. I regularly speak and 
campaign on local and national media on behalf of the residents of Alexandra Ward. 
 
My ward colleagues and I are working towards a cooperative borough, implementing the key labour 
administration visions in Oldham and our ward.  

Working cooperatively with residents I have helped with a variety of issues – fly tipping, anti-social behavior, 
alley gating, bad landlords, traffic measures on high risk roads and missed bin collections.  

I have communicated with residents by telephone, twitter and email during the COVID-19 pandemic to tackle 
a range of problems. I have kept in touch with the local community as much as possible and I look forward to 
becoming more active in the area again when restrictions are finally lifted. Please do contact me with any 
problems or council related issues. You can also read more about my work and campaigning on my website. 

Some of the recent projects which my ward colleagues and I approved for our ward are Greenhill – Christmas 
Activities, Glodwick Cricket Club – work with young people, Grace Fitness Activities and Xanadu Dance Troup 
– Support of Activities.  

I regularly campaign for vulnerable groups in our society and we were able to hold the first COVID vaccination 
clinic for people who are homeless here in Oldham. Something which I am incredibly proud of our borough 
for.  

The Council has been at the frontline in responding to the COVID-19 pandemic; including distributing 
emergency food and medicine, providing vital social care, running testing centres and now rolling out the 
vaccination. 

 

 

CONTACT ME 

E:zahid.chauhan@oldham.gov.uk  

M: 07729 186 598 
Website www.zahidchauhan.co.uk 

Twitter @chauhanzahid 

Facebook facebook.com/zahid.chauhan 

SURGERIES 

Face to face Ward Surgeries are cancelled 

due to COVID-19 restrictions.  Please contact 

me by phone or email for any issues or 

problems. 

 

 

Page 362

mailto:zahid.chauhan@oldham.gov.uk


Cllr Angela Cosgrove – St James Ward  

 
MY WARD PRIORITIES 

 
• Community engagement 

• Parks and open spaces 

• ASB & Crime reduction 

• Youth and family services 

• Highways and Traffic concerns 
 

 
 

 

Work in the community 

• Member of Licensing, substitute for Planning, member of the Health Scrutiny 

• Secretary of The Friends of Stoneleigh Park, Member of Oldhams Poverty Action Group and Stoneleigh 
Park bowling teams 

• Attended training on “Safeguarding”, “Casework & Advocacy Skills”, Licensing safeguarding, 
Planning training 

• Campaigned and supported residents with planning concerns throughout the ward. 

• Working with the Police, FCHO and community Safety on residents’ concerns around ASB and 
crime 

• During Lockdown and Covid restrictions I have volunteered at Stoneleigh Park community growing 
hub providing food and support to residents, helped isolated families and older member of the 
community access shopping, at Christmas we supported families with presents and hampers for 
older members of the community. 

• My daily exercise has been casework walkabouts around where I live, so that issues could be still 
raised to the council. I have also worked with the door to door Covid engagement teams out in the 
communities of my ward, supporting residents on the doorstep in these difficult months, but also 
giving some hope that residents were not alone. 

• My mobile phone has been busy with residents calling for support/help and I have tried to get any 
and all information around Covid out into the community on social media, as I manage several 
community FB pages. 

• This next few month I will be supporting a funded digital project with Ambition for Age for the older 
members of the community, so that they can keep in touch with family and friends until it is safe to 
meet together again. 

 
 

 

CONTACT ME 

E:angela.cosgrove@oldham.gov.uk  

T: 0161 770 0000 

M: 07515190476 

SURGERIES 

Face to face Ward Surgeries are cancelled 

due to COVID-19 restrictions.  Please contact 

me by phone or email for any issues or 

problems. 

Page 363

mailto:angela.cosgrove@oldham.gov.uk


 

 

 
 
  

 

Page 364



 

Cllr Jamie Curley – Saddleworth South Ward  

MY WARD PRIORITIES 
 

• Road Safety 

• Protecting Greenspaces 

• Creating new jobs 

• Protecting the environment 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Work in the community 

• Member of Overview and Scrutiny Board 

• Member of Saddleworth Traffic and Transport Committee and Environment Committee 

• Member of Saddleworth District Partnership and Saddleworth Parish Council 

• Co-ordinated and co-wrote Saddleworth response to TfGM consultation on Bus provision 

• Worked with residents and Green Belt groups on responses to GMSF proposals 

• Wrote response to Boundary Commission ward restructuring proposals 

• 100% attendance at Oldham Council meetings 

• Worked with range of agencies and stakeholders to mange problems arising from visitor numbers at 
Dovestone Reservoir. This resulted in providing funding for Marshalls, redesigning parking restrictions 
with Highways team to manage excessive parking issues around Greenfield and ensuring enforcement of 
restrictions. 

• Coordinating youth element of Wellifest for hopeful 2021 event  

• Provided targeted funding for local groups and projects including Bright Futures School, Saddleworth 
Mental Health Group, Saddleworth Gardening Projects and SSYCA.  

• Worked on a umber of environmental issues from tree planting and protection to flood defences and wild 
planting areas 

• Worked with highways to implement road safety measures around the ward  

• Served on board of satellite Centre 

• Attended training on “Safeguarding”, “Casework & Advocacy Skills” and  

• Raised concerns about speeding trunk roads through the ward and worked with Highways team on 
monitoring and safety provision 

• Worked with the local community to provide clothing deliveries for homeless during Covid 19 lockdown 

• Worked on a wide range of casework with residents ranging from planning issues, land/access 
disputes, dog fouling, council tax, parking and environmental concerns 

• Continued to work with residents’ groups to liaise on community issues and raise concerns with 
relevant OMBC Officers and local Policing Team 

• Continued to work with SPC Chairman’s Charity committee to raise and distribute funds to local 
groups 

Page 365



 
 

 

 

CONTACT ME 

E:jamie.curley@oldham.gov.uk  

T: 0161 770 0000 

Facebook 
www.facebook.com/councillorjamiecurley 

SURGERIES 

Face to face Ward Surgeries are cancelled 

due to COVID-19 restrictions.  Please contact 

me by phone or email for any issues or 

problems. 

 

 

 

Page 366

mailto:jamie.curley@oldham.gov.uk


 

Cllr Peter Davis – Failsworth West Ward  

MY WARD PRIORITIES 
 

• To complete the boardwalk on Somerset  
Fields to enable pupils walking to school  
to experience a better environment to get  
their day off to a good start. 

• Traffic scheme approved by residents  
on Alder Road 

• Traffic Scheme agreed and approved on  
Propps Hall Drive 

• Restart Litter picks after lockdown 

• Renew my commitment to support  
residents of Failsworth West with any  
casework that is brought to my attention 

• Commit to restart Local Councilor’s  

• Surgeries in the community  
 

 

 

Work in the community 

• Contributed to and supported the funding of the renovation to Failsworth Cenotaph. 

• Supported the Failsworth Christmas Lights 

• Supported the construction of a road barrier at the end of Ogden Road working with local Police 
who asked for support after describing the area as a cut through for drivers of stolen cars. 

• Funded local bins for grit in numerous locations across Failsworth West to allow residents to keep 
pathways safe from snow and ice.  

• Supported the Citizens Advise Bureau with my allowance. 

• Took part in tree planting schemes around Failsworth 

• Supported the planting of trees on Somerset Fields 

• Volunteer with Street Angels including supporting the rough sleepers community throughout the 
Covid Pandemic. 

• Supporting food hunger throughout the borough 

• Supported Oldham residents with the Music award Scheme. 

  
 

CONTACT ME 

E: peter.davis@oldham.gov.uk  

M: 07966 297 203 

SURGERIES 

Face to face Ward Surgeries are cancelled 

due to COVID-19 restrictions.  Please contact 

me by phone or email for any issues or 

problems. 

 

 

Page 367

mailto:peter.davis@oldham.gov.uk


Cllr Peter Dean – Waterhead Ward  

MY WARD PRIORITIES 
 

These are based on the Covid  
situation at the present time. 

 
• To provide all residents with  

appropriate health provision 

• To make sure nobody goes without food  

• Make sure children have the  
best provision possible 

• Make sure Council service are able to  
respond to the changing situations 

 
 

 

Work in the community 
 
Over the last year I been able to respond and take action on over 500 resident’s issues. It’s been a wonderful 
experience to support and work with many voluntary and community organisations, who have been 
outstanding in the support they have given to many residents. 
 

• I have used my personal budget to support the following - 
                          - Advices provided by CAB 
                          - Funded three residents environment schemes  
                          - Provided extra grit bins  
                          - Extra work on footpaths and bridleways  
                          - Food parcels for people in need  
                          - Christmas gifts for children in need  
                          - Funded and supported local clean ups 

• Work to bring in extra resources for major landscape schemes and play areas in the Ward 

• I have worked with Council District team on many issues that have improved the area  
 

Council Work  
                  

• I have 100% record of attending Council meetings  

• I Chair the Oldhams Planning Committee  

• I am a member of the Finance Committee 

• I have attended a number of training events including one on Safeguarding. 
          
Major Aims this Year.  
  

• To support residents in recovering from the effects of the Covid outbreak 

• To provide street fitness equipment 

• To improve the educational offer for children and young people  

• To create a cleaner greener place to live 

• To get all local public services working together for the benefit of residents including Police, Health, 
Housing Providers and all Council services 

 
 

 

CONTACT ME 

E: Peter.dean@oldham.gov.uk  

M: 07718785134 
H: 01616525866 

SURGERIES 

Face to face Ward Surgeries are cancelled 

due to COVID-19 restrictions.  Please contact 

me by phone or email for any issues or 

problems. 

Page 368

mailto:Peter.dean@oldham.gov.uk


 

 

 

Page 369



Cllr Sean Fielding – Failsworth West Ward  
 

MY WARD PRIORITIES  

• Reduce crime and anti-social  
behaviour 

• Support local community groups 

• Improve road safety 

• Tackle fly tipping and littering 
 

 
 
 

 

 

Work in the community 

• Sponsored a “Local Improvement Fund” bid for the refurbishment of Failsworth Cenotaph. 

• Secured funding from the “Local Improvement Fund” for traffic calming on Alder Road. 

• Met with Failsworth Group Practice Doctors surgery to improve appointment booking. 

• Secured funding for the resurfacing of Samuel Street, Springfield Close and Princess Street. 

• Part funded the provision of Citizens Advice Bureau services for Failsworth. 

• Negotiated the protection of green belt sites in Failsworth and Woodhouses with Andy Burnham. 

• Saved the Failsworth-Ashton bus which was threatened with withdrawal. 

• Agreed the closure of Crime Lane to tackle fly tipping. 

• Organised a drop in event with Virgin Media who were undertaking utility works in the area. 

• Campaigned for gating schemes to prevent access to property commonly fly tipped. 

• Volunteered at Oldham food bank during the pandemic and delivered food parcels. 

• Volunteered as a marshal at the Failsworth vaccination centre. 

• Arranged for the service and repair of the Failsworth Pole clocktower. 

• Represented Oldham on TV and radio during negotiations over funding for covid restrictions. 

• Governor at a local primary school. 

• Active Member of the Transport for Greater Manchester Committee. 

• Member of the Local Government Association City Regions board. 

• Spoken at a range of conferences representing Oldham and Greater Manchester. 
 

 

CONTACT ME 

E: sean.fielding@oldham.gov.uk 

T: 0161 312 2507 

M: 07912 774 980 

Twitter @cllrsfielding 

Facebook www.facebook.com/cllrsfielding 

SURGERIES 

Face to face Ward Surgeries are cancelled 

due to COVID-19 restrictions.  Please contact 

me by phone or email for any issues or 

problems. 

Page 370

mailto:sean.fielding@oldham.gov.uk
http://www.facebook.com/cllrsfielding


 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Page 371



Cllr Elaine Garry – Failsworth West Ward  

MY WARD PRIORITIES 
 

• Reduce crime and anti-social 
behaviour  

• Support local community groups 

• Improve road safety 

• Tackle fly tipping and littering 

 

 
 

 

Work in the community 

• Supported funding for traffic calming on Alder Road 

• Campaigned to save the Failsworth to Ashton bus 

• Supported funding for the resurfacing of Samuel Street, Springfield Close and Princess Street 

• Volunteered to help at the Oldham foodbank 

• Donated food for Oldham foodbank 

• Communicated with residents by telephone, email and during COVID-19 pandemic to tackle a range 
of problems 

• Part funded the provision of the Citizens Advice Bureau for Failsworth 

• Supported the covid doorstep track and trace team across Failsworth 

• Supported the covid doorstep engagement team across Failsworth 

• Supported the improvements at Failsworth Cenotaph 

• Member of Business Watch 

• Member of Pub Watch 

• Attended community clean ups across Failsworth 

• Support the Mayor’s charity events 

• Work with GMP to make Failsworth a safer place to live 
 

 

 

CONTACT ME 

E.elaine.garry@oldham.gov.uk  

T: 0161 682 8755 

M: 07866 575375 

 

 

SURGERIES 

Face to face Ward Surgeries are cancelled 

due to COVID-19 restrictions.  Please contact 

me by phone or email for any issues or 

problems. 

 

 

Page 372

mailto:elaine.garry@oldham.gov.uk


 

Cllr Chris Goodwin – Chadderton South Ward  

MY WARD PRIORITIES 
 
• Road safety 

• Environmental Improvements  

• Social Isolation 

• Tackling Deprivation  
 
 
 

 
 

 

Work in the community 
 
The Council has been at the frontline in responding to the Covid19 pandemic; including distributing 
emergency food and medicine, providing vital social care, running testing centres and now rolling out the 
virus. Myself and colleagues have been telephoning the most vulnerable in our wards to ensure they are well 
and they are aware of the assistance that is available to them. 
 
Throughout 2020 the pandemic also had a huge impact on the way that the Council and Councillors worked. 
 
Instead of attending meetings on your behalf at Oldham Civic Centre, all meetings have been held virtually, 
accessed via phone or laptop. I have undertaken training on using this technology so that I could continue to 
represent you throughout this difficult time. 
 
In my ward I have had to scale back the amount of work I can do in the community due to not being able to 
get out and about, but I have still been available by e-mail or telephone for people to contact me if they have 
problems they would like my assistance with. During 2020 I have assisted over 200 of our residents with 
personal issues who have contacted me via phone, email or social media. 
 
I have kept in touch with local community groups as much as possible, particularly on social media, and I look 
forward to becoming more active in the area again when restrictions are finally lifted. 

For the past year I have been acting as the Deputy Cabinet Member for Education. In this role I have 
been working with officers to ensure the children within Oldham are provided with a good education 
despite the difficulties with children not being able to attend school normally. I have also been tasked to 
ensure that in Oldham we have a sufficient number of school places for our children in future years which 
will see the expansion of some schools and also the opening of new schools. 
 

 

 

CONTACT ME 

E:chris.goodwin@oldham.gov.uk 
M: 07515 188783 

Twitter:@chrisgoodwin73 

SURGERIES 

Face to face Ward Surgeries are cancelled 

due to COVID-19 restrictions.  Please contact 

me by phone or email for any issues or 

problems. 

 

 

Page 373

mailto:chris.goodwin@oldham.gov.uk


 

Cllr Chris Gloster – Shaw Ward   

MY WARD PRIORITIES 
 
• Supporting residents and businesses  

throughout Covid-19  
• New Health Centre for Shaw  
• Protecting Green Belt/Spaces  
• Listening and engaging with residents  
• Environmental Improvements  
• Local Policing ASB/crime  
• Bus and tram services  
• Highways, footways and speeding traffic  

 

 
 

 

Work in the community 
My annual report needs to firstly reflect my sincere thanks to our NHS, Key Workers and the whole of the 
community for stepping up in our hour of need, I know this view is shared by my ward colleagues. Covid 19 
continues to impact on our daily lives in 2021 and although there appears to be some light at the end of the 
tunnel, we are not there yet, and we will continue to support our brilliant community who on the whole have 
stepped up to the challenge to beat this terrible pandemic and build Shaw back better.  
  
The dynamics of being a ward councillor have changed significantly for me, and my colleagues this year. We 
have been presented with problems no-one has ever experienced before and have had to rise to the 
challenge.   During the first lockdown a lot of my time was spent delivering prescriptions and food parcels to 
those people in need, their gratefulness in a stepped back conversation at the doorstep was heartwarming.  
  
As lockdown continued, I became involved with residents who became desperate due to health, financial and 
other worries due to being unable to work, or where their business have been closed and they could not afford 
to continue. Overall, I have been able to make life a little easier for them by guiding them to appropriate help, 
and I have worked with numerous businesses assisting them with the business grant scheme. I have gained a 
lot of satisfaction helping residents and business owners who have simply been entitled to nothing by working 
closely with them to obtain discretionary grants and other funding where possible.  
  
Despite lockdown, day to day council work remains unabated along with new problems that on occasions 
have not been heard of before. I have kept in contact with residents by email, phone, social media and Twitter 
as well as a greatly increased use of Microsoft Teams and Twitter as well as delivering questionnaires to 
residents who have then been able to respond with their concerns, that are always addressed and resolved if 
possible.  
  
I am a member of the committees below where business as usual still needs to take place and I retain my 
!00% record for attendance at full council meetings. Additionally, as Deputy Leader of the Opposition at one 
stage I was attending Daily Gold meetings every day for several weeks as the impact of Covid 19 was taking 
effect and as a Council we needed to work together to safeguard our citizens.  
  

• Audit Committee  
• Charitable Trust Committee (Substitute)  
• Clayton Playing Fields  
• Council  
• Licensing Committee  
• Licensing Driver Panel  
• Petitioners' Panel  
• Traffic Regulation Order Panel  

  
  
  

Page 374

https://committees.oldham.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=134
https://committees.oldham.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=516
https://committees.oldham.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=482
https://committees.oldham.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=132
https://committees.oldham.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=125
https://committees.oldham.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=152
https://committees.oldham.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=341
https://committees.oldham.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=143


Last year I again attended both Adult and Children’s Safeguarding Training required as part of my role 
as councillor and corporate parent. I am a school governor at Crompton House School and have been fully 
involved with the effects of Covid 19 on school life and have championed ensuring that pupils have had 
access to learning tools whilst needing to work from home.  
  

• I support residents with housing repairs, rehousing, neighbour disputes, healthcare complaints, council 
bins and rubbish removal, dog waste and new street litter or grit bins.  

    
• As the former Shaw and Crompton Police Inspector, I continue to work closely with our local Police, 
the District Partnership, Parish Council, residents and businesses of Shaw to resolve the problem of anti-
social behaviour.  This work remains an on-going battle to ensure that residents have a safe place to live.  

   
• Along with my colleagues, I continue to challenge the Greater Manchester Spatial Framework, and its 
successor, working to achieve the best outcome possible for residents’ homes, jobs, and the environment 
by opposing the appalling loss of our green spaces. Brownfield First!  

  
•  I have worked with residents to ensure that we maintain adequate bus services in Shaw and 
      Crompton to meet the needs of residents particularly in the current Covid 19 climate with many 
forms of transport restricted   

·                  
• I continue to be the lead Councillor in Shaw dealing with the aftermath of the St Paul’s Church roof 
collapse. This is an uphill battle complicated by a restrictive attitude of Historic England who are happy to 
obstruct demolition of this site but incapable of providing anything other than words to remediate the 
problem that has so far cost hundreds of thousands of pounds to reduce to a pile of rubble. Covid 19 has 
not helped in letting this eyesore stagnate.  

   
• Along with my colleagues I formally object to planning applications if I believe they are inappropriate or 
not a benefit to residents, new council rules and proposed Tory Planning Law changes do not help.  

  
• I continue to drive the campaigns forward for a new Health Centre for Shaw and Crompton and from 
these campaigns I am hopeful of a positive update soon.  

   
• I constantly deal with issues surrounding speeding vehicles, Buckstones Road and Crompton Way are 
two examples, and I have had some success in getting the relevant authorities to look at education, 
engineering and enforcement solutions to deal with this problem.  

   
• I work with the Highways Department to have the potholes, blocked grids and poor footpaths 
resurfaced or repaired.  

   
• I regularly pursue complaints of fly tipping around Shaw, even more so during Lockdown and the 
temporary closure of the municipal tip and I work very closely with the Environmental Health Department 
on this matter.  

   
• Along with my ward colleagues and in my role as Ward Councillor, I meet regularly with local groups, 
ensuring that our most asset, our countryside, remains well looked after and ecologically sustainable.  I 
continue to ensure that this area is maintained and safe to use by all.  Most recently we have been 
instrumental in agreeing a new dog sign that will hopefully be introduced by the start of the nesting 
season.  

   
• I continue to work with residents and a variety of agencies for a resolution to on-going flooding 
problems, primarily in the areas of Dunwood Park, Grains Road, Beal Lane. 

 
 

CONTACT ME 
E: chris.gloster@oldham.gov.uk 
T: 01706 847709  
Twitter: @cllrchrisg  

SURGERIES 

Face to face Ward Surgeries are 

cancelled due to COVID-19 restrictions.  

Please contact me by phone or email 

for any issues or problems. 

Page 375

mailto:chris.gloster@oldham.gov.uk


 

 

 

  

 

Page 376



Cllr Hazel Gloster – Shaw Ward     

 
MY WARD PRIORITIES 

 
• Supporting residents and businesses  

                  throughout Covid-19  

• New Health Centre for Shaw  
• Protecting Green Belt/Spaces  

• Litter, Fly Tipping and Dog Fouling 

• Listening and engaging with residents  

• Environmental Improvements  

• Local Policing ASB/crime  

• Bus and tram services  

• Highways, footways and speeding traffic  
  

 

 

Work in the community 

Throughout 2020 the Covid-19 Pandemic has made us all view life very differently. We have all had to make 
changes, sacrifice our family and friendship connections and work very differently.  The Community of Shaw 
has once again stepped up to the challenge by supporting our neighbours, shopping local to sustain our 
small businesses and in most cases, following the lockdown guidance to protect our NHS and save lives.  
Unfortunately, many have lost loved ones to Coronavirus and my deepest condolences are with all that have 
suffered a bereavement this year. I have truly been inspired by the way our residents have stepped up to the 
challenges we faced and my sincere Thanks goes out to our Key Workers, NHS and Emergency Services for 
the dedication they have shown to us all throughout this dreadful time. 

 

Although the ways we have been working have changed dramatically, with far more emphasis being placed 
on telephone and electronic communications, the issues faced have remained very similar to previous years 
but with far more emphasis on our Community. Throughout the year I have continued to work hard for my 
residents offering support, advice and guidance to help meet their needs and resolve their issues where 
possible. 

 

I have continued to demand Better for Shaw by: -  

• Continuing to campaign for a new Health Centre for Shaw and Crompton. 

• Supporting Businesses through their applications for the available Business Grants. 

• I have worked with residents to overcome issues around school attendance and home schooling, 
together with issues around free school meals and access to appropriate information technology. 

• I have liaised with Council departments such as Environmental Health, Waste and Highways to 
resolve incidences of Fly Tipping, Dog Fouling and missed rubbish collections to keep our 
communities clean. 

• I have worked closely with our Education colleagues to ensure our teachers; support staff and 
parents are supported appropriately. I meet with them regularly to keep abreast of any issues our 
education providers are facing together with discussing potential resolutions. 

• I have maintained a close link with our Children’s Services colleagues, who have faced a significant 
increase in cases of domestic abuse, significant injuries to children and safeguarding cases across 
the Borough and within my ward. 

• I am a member of  the Cross Party Climate Change group which is working to achieve a more 
sustainable future for our next generations. 

• I have continued to raise concerns about our highways and footways, fixing potholes, surface erosion 
and making sure poor roads are programmed for replacement where required. 

• I have continued to work with key partners such as First Choice Homes and Guinness to resolve 
housing issues and ensure people feel safe and warm in their homes. 

• I have worked with the police to install automatic number plate recognition cameras to tackle crime in 
Shaw together with our Youth services team to tackle Anti-social Behaviour. 

Page 377



• I have attended Full Oldham Council meetings, asking ward and cabinet questions together with 
submissions of motions to influence future policy decisions. 

• I have campaigned to increase access to changing places across our Borough, a campaign which 
Tesco have now signed up to and use within their television adverts. 

• I have attended training on Safeguarding Children’s & Adults and Social Media amongst others 

• I have attended Shaw & Crompton Parish Council meetings and served on the Environment 
Committee working with The Friends of Crompton Moor to improve and enhance the beautiful nature 
we are so lucky to have on our doorstep. 

• I have also kept in touch with some of our more elderly residents by telephone to ensure they are 
warm, comfortable and have enough food to keep them as healthy as possible. 

 

CONTACT ME     SURGERIES 
 
E: Hazel.gloster@oldham.gov.uk   Face to face Ward Surgeries are cancelled 
T: 01706 847709     due to COVID-19 restrictions. Please  
M: 07966 297202     contact me by phone or email for any  
Twitter: @GlosterHazel    issues or problems. 

 

 

 

  

 

Page 378

mailto:Hazel.gloster@oldham.gov.uk


Cllr Louie Hamblett – Crompton Ward   

MY WARD PRIORITIES 
 

• Supporting residents and local  
businesses though COVID-19 

• Listening to residents 
• Environmental issues 
• Championing highway and  

footpath issues 
• Protecting Greenbelt and OPOL 
• New Health Centre for Shaw  

and Crompton 
• Demanding better for Crompton 
• Working all year round not just  

at election time. 
• Highway improvements which  

includes footpaths and safety 
• Tackling Dog Fouling 
• Mental Health and Keeping Fit  

 

 

Work in the community 

• Demanding better for Crompton. 

• Working with and supporting our amazing GM Health and Social care colleagues.  

• Working with our fantastic Royton, Shaw and Crompton District Team to deliver services and aspirations 
to Shaw and Crompton wards. 

• Working with Oldham Council’s amazing staff, from the Chief Executive to Directors and Officers to 
deliver services for Crompton. Thank you for all your hard work I really appreciate everything each and 

every one does to make sure Crompton and Oldham is a great place to live, work and enjoy 😊 

• Knocking on doors all year round not just at election time and ensuring regular newsletters are delivered 
to every household in the ward. 

• Provide regular updates on Twitter and Facebook 

• Working with partners such as MIO (Made In Oldham) care, Oldham Cares, First Choice Homes Oldham, 
Greater Manchester Police and Shaw and Crompton Parish Council. 

• Worked alongside ward colleagues to bring together the “I Love Crompton” campaign – banners are on 
lampposts around the ward, together with stickers on bins to remind residents to pick up after their dog 
and remember to put their own rubbish in it. 

• Attended all Full Oldham Council meetings; have asked questions, made observations and asked 
questions on minutes as well as submitted motions to influence policy and procedures. 

• I am the Shadow Cabinet Member for Health and Social Care, which I really enjoy as it gives me the 
opportunity to hold the administration to account while also offering other alternatives. 

• Attended the mandatory training on “Safeguarding – Children and Adults” – “Appeals Home to 

school Transport Committee”  

• Continue to campaign to get a Health Centre for the residents of Shaw and Crompton. Continuing to 

sort local environmental issues such as dog fouling, litter and fly tipping 

• I continue to raise concerns about the state of the roads and working to fix potholes, surface erosion 

and making sure poor roads are part of a programmed works plan for replacement or treatment. 

• Supporting community groups such as High Crompton Park Friends Group and Home watch 

Page 379



Groups. 

• Member of MIO (Made In Oldham) Care appointed by the Council – thoroughly enjoyed participating 

in the meetings as board member, Attend Health Scrutiny Board where I can observe Oldham and 

GM wide health plans plus adding in my own suggestions, I also sit on many other outside GM 

Health related bodies.  

• In addition I offer general support for Crompton Cricket, Crompton Bowling Clubs, and Crompton 

Football Club – where we have used our ward budget to purchased football kits with the message 

‘Love Crompton’ to inspire the next generation of young people to ‘Love Where They Live’. 

 

• Continue to Support the High Crompton Park Friends, together we have achieved a trim trail. 

• My colleagues are committed to providing more AEDs in the ward of Crompton, the latest device 

has been installed at Fir Lane Methodist Church. 

• Continue to support local residents by providing a refill for the grit bins that we have bought them, 

when the area does not meet the Council’s criteria 

• Continue to report faulty Street Lighting columns. 

• Safeguarding land as well as saving Council money by introducing Wildflower Meadow Schemes at 

sites in Crompton ward. 

• My colleagues are committed to providing AEDs in the ward of Crompton. 

• Worked with Parish Colleagues to install VE and VJ memorial benches. 

• Working to achieve poppies to project on Crompton War Memorial. 

• Working with tenders for the High Crompton Park to provide a Community Café. 

• Working with Council Officers to safeguard a car park in High Crompton to ensure residents 

continue to have free parking. 

• Established and continue to support the Homewatch schemes in Crompton, I continue to work with 

my colleague Cllrs Williamson and Murphy. We have already established and support two and will 

work with other areas to set up more. 

• Support the Autism Strategy and now chairing the Autism Way Forward Board in the future. 

• Attending the newly formed Oldham Pride Committee 

• Supporting community groups. 

• Delivered the project of Love Where You Live banners showing the message of no dog fouling and 

no litter fitted to columns at gateways such as Shaw Road – (location - Shaw Road nr Albion 

Gardens Close) with more banners in other areas. 

• Just under 5000 dog fouling leaflets enough for each household delivered by Crompton Councillors 

and Liberal Democrat volunteers to each house in the ward. 

• Deliver homewatch literature safety and security advice delivered to every house in Crompton personally 
funded by Diane, Dave and myself also delivered by volunteers with our regular Focus Newsletter. 

• Councillors wrote to TfGM to ask for a meeting to save the 403 bus service, and request a review of the 
decision as a compromise, we managed to get TfGM to take away the element of the proposal that had 
the least impact, rather than the Crompton side as was planned, as such the 403 service has been 
saved. 

• Lancashire Day was on 27 November 2020 and this year the Lancashire flag was flown in High 
Crompton Park.  

Your Crompton Liberal Democrat Councillors would like to say a massive thanks to our NHS, Care and 
Support staff, Key workers and the whole Community for stepping up in our time of need. We are far from out 
of the woods yet and it’s definitely not business as usual, but we have been inspired by the resilience of the 
community. 

Page 380



 
Despite the lockdown, work still carries on for your local Liberal Democrat Councillors Diane Williamson, Dave 
Murphy and Louie Hamblett.  
 
Issues for the community have taken on a whole new dynamic. 
As local Councillors, residents have contacted us with issues that are slightly more complex than normal. 
 
We are telephoning residents to make sure they are safe and well and have supported local businesses who 
have contacted us about the business grant schemes.  
 
For support, please contact 0161 770 7007 
 

 

 

CONTACT ME 

E:louie.hamblett@oldham.gov.uk  

T: 01706 660 806 

M: 07971 363 794 

Twitterhttps://twitter.com/LouieHa
mblett?s=09   

Facebookhttps://www.facebook.com/pages/
Councillor-Louie- 

SURGERIES 

Face to face Ward Surgeries are cancelled 

due to COVID-19 restrictions.  Please contact 

me by phone or email for any issues or 

problems. 

 

 

 

Page 381

mailto:louie.hamblett@oldham.gov.uk
https://twitter.com/LouieHamblett?s=09
https://twitter.com/LouieHamblett?s=09
https://www.facebook.com/pages/Councillor-Louie-
https://www.facebook.com/pages/Councillor-Louie-


 

Cllr Fazlul Haque– Chadderton North Ward  

MY WARD PRIORITIES 
 
• Road safety 

• Litter     

• Community cohesion 

• ASB 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Work in the community 

The Council has been at the frontline in responding to the Covid19 pandemic; including distributing 
emergency food and medicine, providing vital social care, running testing centres and now rolling out the 
vaccine. 

Throughout 2020 it also had a huge impact on the way that the Council and Councillors worked. 

Instead of attending meetings on your behalf at Oldham Civic Centre, all meetings have been held virtually, 
accessed via phone or laptop. I have undertaken training on using this technology so that I could continue to 
represent you throughout this difficult time. 

In my ward I have had to scale back the amount of work I can do in the community due to not being able to 
get out and about, but I have still been available by e-mail or telephone for people to contact me if they have 
problems they would like my assistance with. 

I have kept in touch with local community groups as much as possible, particularly on social media, and I look 
forward to becoming more active in the area again when restrictions are finally lifted. 

 
 

 

CONTACT ME 

E: fazlul.haque@oldham.gov.uk  

M: 0759565742 

 

  SURGERIES 

Face to face Ward Surgeries are cancelled 

due to COVID-19 restrictions.  Please contact 

me by phone or email for any issues or 

problems. 

 

 

 

 

Page 382

mailto:fazlul.haque@oldham.gov.uk


 

Cllr Garth Harkness – Saddleworth North Ward  

MY WARD PRIORITIES 
 

• Supporting residents through the COVID  
pandemic  

• A new health centre for Saddleworth  

• Tackling speeding and road safety  

• Protecting green spaces and protecting  
the environment  

• Making things better- will continue to bring  
forward proposals to every council meeting  
like tackling speeding, dog fouling, creating  
a green infrastructure and improving footpaths 

 
 

Work in the community 

 
The last year has been incredibly challenging for all/ Your Liberal Democrat councillors have been busier than 
ever during the coronavirus crisis.  On top of their normal work, now mainly online, our local team has been 
busy pitching in to support the community, answering a host of queries from residents and businesses, and 
Lib Dem volunteers have collected prescriptions and shopping, as have so many wonderful local people. Our 
priority was to telephone residents who may be vulnerable or isolated, to ensure that they have the support 
they need.  
 
In response to what people told me, I produced a contact list of sources of information, advice and help.  It 
went to every home in the ward and is on my website.  It has been well received and I hope people continue 
to find it useful.  And, of course, please contact me if you need more help  
 
I wrote to a number of businesses in Saddleworth who had gone above and beyond to keep people going 
throughout these challenging times. I have attended many briefings on COVID and scrutinized the response 
locally.  
 
Local residents and community associations have made me proud to represent Saddleworth. The community 
really has come together and helped each other out  
 
In addition to the work around the COVID pandemic work as a ward councilor has continued on key priorities 
that residents have said are important to them. We have reflected these issues in motions we have put to 
council.  
 
I have worked on road safety, protecting the green belt and green spaces, fly tipping, protecting the 
environment, campaigning for a new health centre  
 
Other examples are:  
 

• 20 MPH speed limit campaign  

• Campaigning for improvements to bus and rail services 

• Declaring a climate change emergency and pushing for a greener borough  

• Fighting for appropriate development that protects the green spaces and greenbelt and pushing for 
brownfield first 

• Positive Steps Board Member  

• Planning Committee  

• Attended Overview and Scrutiny Performance and Value for Money  

• Full Council meetings  

• Shadow Cabinet Member for Employment where I meet with officers and scrutinizes the portfolio 

• School Governor at Diggle School  
 
 
 

 

Page 383



 

CONTACT ME 

E: garth.harkness@oldham.gov.uk 

M: 07894 839205 

Twitter @garthharkness  

or Facebook @cllrgarthharkness 

To find out more information about 
my work you can visit my website: 

https://garthharkness.mycouncillor.or
g.uk 

SURGERIES 

Face to face Ward Surgeries are cancelled 

due to COVID-19 restrictions.  Please contact 

me by phone or email for any issues or 

problems. 

 

 

 

Page 384

mailto:garth.harkness@oldham.gov.uk
https://garthharkness.mycouncillor.org.uk/
https://garthharkness.mycouncillor.org.uk/


 

Cllr Jenny Harrison – Alexandra Ward  

MY WARD PRIORITIES 
• Improve educational outcomes and  

employment 

• Work for a clean, green and safe environment 

• Reduce social isolation 

• Improve health and wellbeing of Alexandra  
residents 

• Work with voluntary and faith groups to  
support and involve their communities  
in making a positive difference.   

 
 

 
 

 

Work in the community 
 
The Council has been at the frontline in responding to the Covid19 pandemic; including distributing 
emergency food and medicine, providing vital social care, running testing centres and now rolling out the 
vaccine. I have volunteered with the Doorstep Teams, checking on the welfare of residents, ensuring that 
everyone understands the Covid guidance. I’ve also helped with the provision and distribution of food for 
families in need of extra support, especially during the school holidays. 
 
Throughout 2020 it also had a huge impact on the way that the Council and Councillors worked. 
 
Instead of attending meetings on your behalf at Oldham Civic Centre, all meetings have been held virtually, 
accessed via phone or laptop. I have undertaken training on using this technology so that I could continue to 
represent you throughout this difficult time. As well as council meetings, I’ve been able to remain in close 
touch with the Alexandra Parks Junior School, where I’m Vice Chair of Governors, through virtual meetings of 
the full governing body and sub committees and informal meetings with the Senior Management Team. I’ve 
also supported, through virtual meetings, various charity groups such as Reel CIC and projects such as the 
Age UK/Public Health Nutrition and Hydration initiative.  
 
In my ward I have had to scale back the amount of work I can do in the community due to not being able to 
get out and about, but I have still been available by e-mail or telephone for people to contact me if they have 
problems they would like my assistance with. Alexandra residents contact me regularly and I’ve been able to 
deal with a wide range of issues for them including fly tipping, getting appropriate benefits, housing problems, 
neighbour problems and much more. 
 
I have kept in touch with local community groups as much as possible, particularly on social media, and I look 
forward to becoming more active in the area again when restrictions are finally lifted. 
 

 

 

CONTACT ME 

E:jenny.harrison@oldham.gov.uk  

M: 07875676731 

SURGERIES 

Face to face Ward Surgeries are cancelled 

due to COVID-19 restrictions.  Please contact 

me by phone or email for any issues or 

problems. 

 

 

Page 385

mailto:jenny.harrison@oldham.gov.uk


Cllr Stephen Hewitt – Saddleworth West and Lees Ward  

MY WARD PRIORITIES 
 
• Road safety 

• Conservation 

• Saving the Countryside 

• Dog fouling 

• Creating new jobs 

• Community 

• Fly tipping 

• Youth Provision 

• Rising Crime 

 
 

 

Work in the community 

• Member of LGA Councillors Forum, Health & Wellbeing Board 

• 100% attendance at Oldham Council meetings 

• Attended training on “Safeguarding”, “Casework & Advocacy Skills” amongst other things 

• Raised concerns about speeding/parking at St Edwards and Lees and Hey Primary 
Schools leading to working with Sir Chris Boardman and the cycling and walking team at 
GM Level 

• Worked with the local community centre with food packages for vulnerable and elderly during 
national COVID-19 lockdown 

• NHS Covid 19 Volunteer 

• Communicated with residents by telephone, email and Mircosoft Teams during COVID-19 
pandemic to tackle a range of problems 

• Father Christmas at St Edwards RC in Lees 

• Fought a major housing development and took the council to Judicial Review as the main 
claimant  

• Worked with SOV Community members providing and delivering a Christmas present to 
every elderly resident in social housing in the local area plus others 

• Attended all mandatory training 
 

 

 

CONTACT ME 

E:stephen.hewitt@oldham.gov.uk  

T: 0161 628 5994 

M: 07703161481 

SURGERIES 

Face to face Ward Surgeries are 

cancelled due to COVID-19 restrictions.  

Please contact me by phone or email for 

any issues or problems.

 

Page 386

mailto:stephen.hewitt@oldham.gov.uk


Cllr Brian Hobin – Failsworth East Ward  

 
MY WARD PRIORITIES 

• Cleaner streets 

• Community cohesion 

• To be visible and available  

     for all constituents in the  

     Failsworth area.  
 
 
 

 
 

 

Work in the community 
• At the onset of the National Lockdown I helped to establish a local Food Hub. For 22 weeks I then 

managed a distribution network by volunteers that provided over 2000 doorstep deliveries of groceries 

to the most vulnerable and isolated in the community.  

• Worked with local businesses to ensure vital supplies reached the people that needed them. Worked 

with a local ‘Chippy’ to provide over 120 Fish & Chip suppers. 

• Supported the Failsworth Walking Group enabling First Aid Training. 

• Proudly accepted the position of Chairman of the local Sea Cadets where I will work to engage the 

youth in our area in this fantastic facility. 

• Continued to push for Failsworth War Memorial repairs, which have now begun to fully refurbish the 

site.  

• Worked with local businesses to secure sponsorship of defibrillators so that all schools within the 

Failsworth area now have a unit.  

• Continue to Work to facilitate the restoration of Willow Park pond. Pushing for the work stalled due to 

lockdown.  

• Support M35 Save Our Greenbelt group to fight building houses on the precious greenbelt land in the 

area.  

• Contributed to refurbishment of St Johns Mission Hall. 

• Maintained membership of The Failsworth Carnival committee, working with them to organise future 

annual events 

• Supported numerous local community events, including Litter picks in Failsworth and Daisy Nook.   

• Involved in working with local businesses in supporting the local Pubwatch scheme, supporting the 

establishment of the local Shopwatch scheme and attending and contributing towards their monthly 

meetings. 

• I hold two regular surgeries per month. 

• I am a member of the Audit committee and have sat on a council appeals panel.  
 

 

CONTACT ME      SURGERIES 
E: brian.hobin@oldham.gov.uk     Face to face Ward Surgeries are  
M: 07971363791      cancelled due to COVID-19 
Twitter @brianhobin1     restrictions. Please contact me by 
Facebook www.facebook.com/Brian Hobin   phone or email for any issues or 
Failsworth East      problems. 
 
 

 

Page 387

mailto:brian.hobin@oldham.gov.uk
http://www.facebook.com/Brian%20Hobinphone%20or%20email%20for%20any%20issues%20or%0bFailsworth%20East
http://www.facebook.com/Brian%20Hobinphone%20or%20email%20for%20any%20issues%20or%0bFailsworth%20East


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Page 388



Cllr George Hulme – Saddleworth North Ward  

MY WARD PRIORITIES 
 

• Green Saddleworth 

• Public Transport 

• Road Safety  

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Work in the community 

• Deputy Cabinet Member for Low Carbon and member of the Planning & Greater Manchester 
Economy, Business Growth and Skills Overview and Scrutiny Committees.  

• Attended 100% of Oldham Council meetings and attended all required training. 

• Worked with residents and the Council on meeting our targets for carbon neutrality, 2025 for the 
Council and 2030 for Oldham, through Oldham’s Green New Deal.  

• On the planning committee, continued my record of not voting for any development in the greenbelt. 

• During the pandemic, I volunteered at the Food Bank to help deliver food to residents across the 
borough and helped organise donations from the local Labour party to the food bank. 

• Supported the campaign to re-regulate of the bus network in Greater and worked on solutions to 
increase capacity on buses for school students from Saddleworth affected by the Government rules 
around social distancing. 

• Supported schemes to improve road safety and the introduction of 20Mph zones in Saddleworth 
North 

• Campaigned for rural broadband improvements, an ongoing issue that has been exacerbated by so 
many working from home. 

• Supported residents by phone and email to deal with problems raised by the Covid-19 pandemic as 
well as other issues. This including assisting residents on a wide range of queries ranging from 
universal credit to pot holes to planning to flooding. 

 
 

 

CONTACT ME 

E: George.hulme@oldham.gov.uk   

M: 07534 073971 

Twitter @george_hulme 

 

SURGERIES 

Face to face Ward Surgeries are cancelled 

due to COVID-19 restrictions.  Please contact 

me by phone or email for help with any issues 

or problems. 

 

 

 

Page 389

mailto:George.hulme@oldham.gov.uk


Cllr Nyla Ibrahim – St Marys Ward  

MY WARD PRIORITIES 
 

• Highways 

• Health & Wellbeing 

• Environment  
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Work in the community 
 

I am aware that the last 12 months has created many challenges for us all and Covid 
regulations has forced us to find new ways of working.  
 
Therefore, this year’s report is an acknowledgement that while we have not been 
able to fulfil some of our normal roles; like monthly ward surgeries etc. combined with 
our inability to progress community initiatives, such as litter picks or other events, this 
does not mean that we haven’t been busy supporting our residents and communities 
through these difficult times. 

 
 

 

 

CONTACT ME 

E:nyla.ibrahim@oldham.gov.uk  

M: 07971 363 806 

SURGERIES 

Face to face Ward Surgeries are 

cancelled due to COVID-19 

restrictions.  Please contact me by 

phone or email for any issues or 

problems. 

 

 
 

 

 

Page 390

mailto:nyla.ibrahim@oldham.gov.uk


Cllr Abdul Jabbar – Coldhurst Ward  

MY WARD PRIORITIES 
 

• Campaigning against littering 

• Tackling anti-social behaviour 

• Raising awareness of green  
issues and tackle climate change 

• Supporting residents with  
Covid-19 Grants  

• Supporting independent local  
Businesses 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

Work in the community 

• Secured funding for resurfacing of Highfield Street, Neville Street, Ellen Street, Garforth Street and 
Martha Street 

• Sponsored a local improvement fund bid for creating a pocket park at Martha Street and Ripon Street 

• Campaigning to raise awareness of how to stop the spread of Covid-19 including social media and TV 
broadcasts in different languages 

• Campaigning to increase take up of Covid-19 vaccine and a pop-up centre in Coldhurst 

• Campaigned strongly against litter dropping in various parts of Coldhurst 

• Worked with the Police and other partner agencies to tackle anti-social behaviour in various locations.  

• Campaigning to raise awareness on all green issues including using renewable technology to produce 
clean electricity 

• 100% attendance at Oldham Council meetings. 

• Communicated with residents by telephone, email and Microsoft Teams / Zoom during COVID-19 
pandemic to tackle a range of problems. 

• Supporting residents in Oldham on grants available during Covid pandemic.  

• Secured funding for additional swings at Widdop Street pocket park 

• Installed CCTV camera at the corner of Davies Street to prevent flytipping. 
 

 

 

CONTACT ME  

E:abdul.jabbar@oldham.gov.uk  

T: 0161 770 4031 

Social Media 
www.facebook.com/cllrabduljabbar 

  www.twitter.com/cllrabduljabbar 

SURGERIES 

Face to face Ward Surgeries are cancelled 

due to COVID-19 restrictions.  Please contact 

me by phone or email for any issues or 

problems 

 

Page 391

mailto:abdul.jabbar@oldham.gov.uk
http://www.facebook.com/cllrabduljabbar
http://www.twitter.com/cllrabduljabbar


Cllr Elizabeth Jacques – Failsworth East Ward  

MY WARD PRIORITIES 
 
• Road safety 

• Dog fouling 

• Decent homes and  
places to live, work and play 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Work in the community 

• Failsworth and Hollinwood District Lead. 

• On the committee’s for Planning and Overview and Scrutiny and participate in the Poverty task and finish 
group.  Provide challenge and scrutiny where necessary. 

• Worked at Oldham Foodbank during the first lock down and supporting residents in all wards by picking 
food parcels or delivering to recipients.  Shopped and provided meals for some elderly residents. 

• Listened to and acted on resident concerns on road safety, local health services and housing issues. 

• Consulted residents on local issues to ensure decision making had a positive effect on the community. 

• Participated in the ‘Save the Ashton Bus’ campaign with the outcome that the bus service was saved! 

• Lobbied to save the Greenbelt in and around Woodhouses. 

• 100% attendance at meetings. 

• Attended training on “Safeguarding”, “Casework & Advocacy Skills” amongst other things. 
 

 
 

 

 

CONTACT ME 

E: Elizabeth.jacques@oldham.gov.uk   

M: 07595087425 

Twitter @LizEllenJacques 

SURGERIES 

Face to face Ward Surgeries are cancelled 

due to COVID-19 restrictions.  Please contact 

me by phone or email for any issues or 

problems. 

 

 

 

Page 392

mailto:Elizabeth.jacques@oldham.gov.uk


 

Cllr Valerie Leach – Saddleworth West and Lees Ward  

MY WARD PRIORITIES 

• A strong voice for Saddleworth  
West and Lees 

• Revitalisation of Lees village 

• Improved sports and other  

amenities for young people  
in the ward 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 Have 

 

Work in the community 
 
Throughout 2020 the Covid-19 pandemic has had a huge impact on the way that the Council and Councillors 
have worked. The Council has proactively responded, distributing emergency food and medicine, providing 
vital social care, running testing centres and now rolling out the vaccination programme. 
 
All Council meetings – of the full Council, interactions with council staff, training sessions - have been held 
virtually, accessed via phone or laptop. I have actively participated in them all so that I could continue to 
represent you throughout this difficult time. 
 
I have responded by telephone and by email to requests from members of the community for information or 
for help and I have kept in touch with local community groups as much as possible. I look forward to 
becoming more active personally again when restrictions are finally lifted. 

• The Lees, Springhead and Grotton Business Hub has continued actively to support local small 
businesses. I continue to support the Hub. 

• The scheme to improve the central Lees village area with funding from the Local Investment Fund started 
work early in 2021. Fellow Councillor Hewitt and I allocated extra funding for the scheme to provide 
additional green amenity for the area.   

• To reduce the unhealthy impact on children of air pollution, I met again with council officers and heads of 
Hey with Zion and St Edwards primary schools to plan for the introduction of a scheme to cut down the 
amount of traffic close to the schools. The scheme will be funded by OMBC and Greater Manchester 
Combined Authority. 

• I provided additional support for the Lees Park Eco Centre and Growing Hub which provides training and 
facilities for residents, with a special focus on working with children and young people. 

• I continued to work with the Springhead Football Club in its efforts to improve the pitch and the club’s 
facilities. 

• Early in 2020, I was appointed Deputy Cabinet Member for children and young people, with special 

responsibility for early childhood development. The focus will be to support families in improving 

outcomes for infants and young children in their early years.   

 

CONTACT ME      SURGERIES 
E: valerie.leach@oldham.gov.uk  Face to face Ward Surgeries are cancelled 
M: 07966 297 171 due to COVID-19 restrictions. Please contact me by 

phone or email for any issues or problems.  
       
  

 Page 393

mailto:valerie.leach@oldham.gov.uk


 

 

 

Page 394



Cllr Abdul Malik – Coldhurst Ward  

 
MY WARD PRIORITIES 

• Campaigning against littering 

• Tackling anti-social behavior 

• Advocating for play areas for children 

• Supporting better quality housing and  
employment 

• Supporting residents with Covid-19  
Grants 

 

 
 

 

Work in the community 

• Member of Oldham West District Executive  

• Member of the Licensing Committee  

• Member of Planning Committee 

• Member of Positive Steps board 

• Campaigned strongly against litter dropping in various parts of Coldhurst 

• Worked with the Police and other partner agencies to tackle anti-social behaviour in various 
locations.  

• Regular attendance at Oldham Council meetings. 

• Communicated with residents by telephone, email and Microsoft Teams during COVID-19 
pandemic to tackle a range of problems. 

• Supporting and signposting businesses in Oldham on grants available during Covid pandemic.  

 
 

 

 

CONTACT ME 

E: abdul.malik@oldham.gov.uk 

M: 07932967479 / 
07866185454 

Twitter @cllrabdulmalik 

Facebook: Abdul Malik 

SURGERIES 

Face to face Ward Surgeries are 

cancelled due to COVID-19 restrictions.  

Please contact me by phone or email for 

any issues or problems. 

 

 

 

Page 395

mailto:abdul.malik@oldham.gov.uk
https://www.facebook.com/profile.php?id=100000591257670


Cllr Colin McLaren – Chadderton Central Ward  

MY WARD PRIORITIES  
 

• Promoting Health and Wellbeing 

• Community Safety 

• Preserving our Heritage 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Work in the community 
• Member of Chadderton District Executive 

• Chair or Overview and Scrutiny Management Board, Vice Chair of Health Scrutiny Committee, 
Member of Licensing Committee, Member of GMCA Audit Committee, Member of GMCA Corporate 
Issues and Reform Scrutiny Committee, Member of Peak District National Park Authority, Trustee of 
Chadderton Together, Director of Chadderton Together (2019) Ltd, Director of Chadderton Building 
Preservation Trust Ltd, Member of Chadderton Community Benefit Society, Trustee of Crossley 
Community Association, Trustee of Peak District National Park Foundation, Vice President of 
Chadderton Historical and Heritage Society, Governor of The Radclyffe School, Trustee of Moston and 
District Sports and Youth Club. 

• Continued to support various voluntary groups and organisations working to access the grant system 
to fund activities within the local community. 

• Regular attendance at Oldham Council and Committee meetings. 

• Continued to work with Oldham Council Officers and Greater Manchester Police to tackle anti social 
behaviour at Foxdenton Park and other locations leading to a reported reduction of incidents. 

• Continued to work with individual residents and community groups on issues relating to Foxdenton 
Hall and Park, Agnes Robinson Pocket Park and the Crossley Estate. 

• Supported individual residents on various issues including environmental matters, housing, road 
safety, council tax and parking issues. 

• Held surgeries each month at the Crossley Community centre, Mills Hill Primary School or Kingfisher 
Community Special School until March 2020. 

• Since March 2020, the Council has been at the forefront in responding to the Covid 19 pandemic 
including distributing emergency food, providing vital social care, running test centres and now rolling 
out the vaccine. All meetings have been held virtually and accessed by telephone or laptop. I have 
undertaken training on using this technology so that I could continue to represent the ward during this 
difficult time. Although it has been difficult to get out and about on occasions, I have still been available 
by email or telephone for anyone to contact if they had any problems with which they required 
assistance. I have kept in touch with community groups as much as possible but look forward to 
becoming more visibly active in the area again when the restrictions are finally lifted. 

 
 

 

CONTACT ME  

E: colin.mclaren@oldham.gov.uk  

T: 0161 627 4197 

M: 27581 464 535

SURGERIES 

Face to face Ward Surgeries are cancelled 

due to COVID-19 restrictions.  Please contact 

me by phone or email for any issues or 

problems. 

 

 

Page 396

mailto:colin.mclaren@oldham.gov.uk


 Cllr Eddie Moores – Chadderton Central Ward  

 
MY WARD PRIORITIES 

• Road safety 

• Education/Training 

• The environment 

• Public Safety 

 
 

 

Work in the community 

• Cabinet Member - Children and Young People. 

• Member - Health & Wellbeing Board, Commissioning Partnership Board & Regional Adoption 
Panel. 

• Chair - Corporate Parenting Panel. 

• Chair – Early Years Partnership. 

• Governor - Mill Hill CPS (Chair), Blue Coat School (Chair), Radclyffe School & Christie Hospital 
Foundation Trust. 

• Trustee – Oldham Enterprise Trust, Cranmer Education Trust, Henshaw Education Trust & 
Chadderton Together. 

• 100% attendance at Oldham Council meetings 

• Attended training on “Safeguarding”, “Casework & Advocacy Skills” amongst other things 

• Worked with Oldham Foodbank delivering food packages during the COVID-19 pandemic. 

• Communicated with residents and officers by telephone, email and Mircosoft Teams during 
COVID-19 pandemic to tackle a range of problems 

 

 
 

 

CONTACT ME 

E:eddie.moores@oldham.gov.uk  

M: 07764621491 

SURGERIES 

Face to face Ward Surgeries are 

cancelled due to COVID-19 restrictions.  

Please contact me by phone or email for 

any issues or problems. 

 

 

Page 397

mailto:eddie.moores@oldham.gov.uk


 

Cllr Dave Murphy – Crompton Ward   

MY WARD PRIORITIES 

• Supporting residents though COVID-19 

• Listening to residents 

• Environmental Issues 

• Championing highway and footpath issues 

• Protecting Greenbelt and OPOL 

• New Health Centre for Shaw and Crompton 

• Demanding better for Crompton 

• Working all year round not just at  
Election time. 

• Highway improvements which includes  
footpaths and safety  

• Tackling Dog Fouling 
 

Work in the community 

• Demanding better for Crompton. 

• Working with our fantastic Royton, Shaw and Crompton District Team to deliver services and aspirations 
to Shaw and Crompton wards. 

• Working with Oldham Council’s amazing staff from, Chief Executive, Directors and Officers to deliver 
services for Crompton. Thank you for all your hard work I really appreciate everything each and every 

one does to make sure Crompton and Oldham is a great place to live, work and enjoy 😊 

• Knocking on doors all year round not just at election time (subject to restrictions). 

• Updates on Twitter 

• Working with partners such as First Choice Homes Oldham and Greater Manchester Police. 

• Member of the Shaw and Crompton Community Forum where we have an informal approach to the 
meetings: members of the public can interject during the meeting. 

• Worked alongside ward colleagues to bring together the “I Love Crompton” campaign – banners are on 
lampposts around the ward, together with stickers on bins to remind residents to pick up after their dog 
and remember to put their own rubbish in it. 

• Attended all Full Oldham Council meetings and online meetings have asked questions, made 
observations and asked questions on minutes as well as submitted motions to influence policy and 
procedures. 

• Attend ward surgeries, organised every week, on a rota basis with my five ward colleagues – this allows 
me to listen to residents concerns personally, rather than them trying to put it in an email unfortunately 
cancelled for now until further notice. Once restrictions allow we are experimenting with Street Surgeries.  

• I am the Shadow Cabinet Member for Neighbourhoods and Culture, which I really enjoy as it gives me 
the opportunity to hold to administration to account whilst also offering other alternatives. 

• Continue to campaign to get a Health Centre for the residents of Shaw and Crompton. 

• Continuing to sort local environmental issues such as dog fouling, litter and flytipping. 

• Continues to raise concerns about the state of the roads and working to fix potholes, surface 

erosion and making sure poor roads are part of a programmed works plan for replacement or 

treatment. 

• Supporting community groups. 

• Member of Hopwood Trust appointed by the Council – continue to support them with their Page 398



fundraising events and attend their meetings, plus general support for Crompton Cricket, Crompton 

Bowling Clubs, and Crompton Football Club – where we have used our ward budget to purchased 

football kits with the message ‘Love Crompton’ to enspire the next generation of young people to 

‘Love Where They Live’. 

• Attended the Holocaust Remembrance Service at Crompton War Memorial. 

• Support the High Crompton Park Friends together we have achieved a trim trail. 

• My colleagues are committed to providing more AEDs in the ward of Crompton latest device has 

been installed at Fir Lane Methodist Church. 

• Working to achieve poppies to project on Crompton War Memorial. 

• Continue to support local residents by providing a refill for the grit bins that we have bought them, 

when the area does not meet the Council’s criteria 

• Safeguarding land as well as saving Council money by introducing Wildflower Meadow Schemes at 

sites in Crompton ward. 

• Working with Council Officers to safeguard a car park in High Crompton to ensure resident continue 

to have free parking. 

• Established and continue to support the Homewatch schemes in Crompton, I continue to work with 

my colleague Cllr Williamson and Louie Hamblett we have already established and support two and 

will work with other areas to set up more.  

• Homewatch literature safety and security advice delivered to every house in Crompton personally 

funded by Diane, Louie and myself and delivered by volunteers with our regular Focus Newsletter. 

• Support the Children’s Champion Scheme and have a young person under my wing. 

• Continue with the project of Love Where You Live banners showing the message of no dog fouling 

and no litter fitted to columns at gateways such as Shaw Road – (location - Shaw Road nr Albion 

Gardens Close) with more banners in other areas. 

• Continue to Chair Flooding meetings with a project in Crompton working with partners such as 

United Utilities, Environment Agency and Oldham Council Officers – also cross party working with 

colleagues in Royton North and Royton South.  

• Supporting residents close to the new second entrance following planning approval at Crompton 

Gate. 

• Working with faith organisations such as Holy Trinity Church and St Paul’s Methodist Church. 

• Working with Holy Trinity Church with the outcome to get the clock operational. 

• Getting commitments by Oldham Council that The Link and other problematic roads are to be 

resurfaced. 

• Replacement of streets signs that do not meet the Councils criteria, but we believe leaving them as 

they are make the ward look uncared for. 

• Supporting residents on Denbigh Drive with guidance on consultation and a upcoming planning 

application. 

• Supporting residents at Cowlishaw with planning application. 

• Supported Officers from Mahdlo to find a location to do outreach to young people at Crompton 

Bowling Club. 

• Working for a long-term solution to a problematic footpath between Surrey Avenue and 

Netherhouse Road. 

• Continue to report faulty Street Lighting columns. 

Page 399



• Replacement of Shaw Road Alley Gates following Royton and Crompton School build. 

• Supported residents through an unwanted planning application for a change of use to hot food 

takeaway. 

• Double Yellow lines installed on Otmoor Way/Oldham Road following concerns about visibility. 

• Requested Double Yellow Lines at the junction of Wood Street/Salisbury Street and when residents 

complained guided them through the process so their voices could be heard at the panel where the 

ultimate decision will be made. 

• Safety Scheme introduced at Moor Street Play Park. 

• Working to get Council owned land turned in to a car park for local residents. Which will stop the 

same piece of land being used as a dumping ground for the storage of uninsured, untaxed and 

vehicles without MOT tests. 

• Councillors wrote to TfGM to ask for a meeting to save the 403 bus service, and request a review of 

the decision as a compromise, we managed to get TfGM to take away the element of the proposal 

that had the least impact, rather than the Crompton side as was planned as such the 403 service 

has been saved. 

• Lancashire Day was on 27 November 2020 and this year the Lancashire flag was flown in High 

Crompton Park. 

• Crompton War Memorial was quiet on Remembrance Sunday due to the pandemic, but the 

community remembered in other ways. 

• We have ensured our young people have something to do in the school holidays by funding 

activities throughout Shaw and Crompton. 

• Ensured our regular Focus Newsletter continues to be delivered to every house in Crompton 

informing residents of our work in the community.

 
Your Crompton Liberal Democrat Councillors would like to say a massive thanks to our NHS, Key 
workers and the whole Community for stepping up in our hour of need. We are far from out of the woods 
yet and its definitely not business as usual, but we have been inspired by the resilience of the community. 
 
Despite the Lockdown, work still carries on for your local Liberal Democrat Councillors Diane Williamson, 
Dave Murphy and Louie Hamblett.  
 
Issues for the community have taken on a whole new dynamic. 
As local Councillors, residents have contacted us with issues that are slightly more complex than normal. 
 
We are telephoning residents to make sure they are safe and well and have supported local businesses 
who have contacted us about the business grant schemes,”.  
 
For support please contact 0161 770 7007  

CONTACT ME      SURGERIES 

E: dave.murphy@oldham.gov.uk    Face to face Ward Surgeries are cancelled 

T: 01706 840056      due to COVID-19 restrictions.  Please  

M: 07894 598250      contact me by phone or email for any 

Twitter @CllrDaveMurphy    issues or problems. 

 

Page 400

mailto:dave.murphy@oldham.gov.uk


 

Cllr Shaid Mushtaq – Alexandra Ward  

MY WARD PRIORITIES 
 
• Environmental issues 

• Supporting community groups 
and residents. 

• Improving educational  
outcomes 

 
 
 
 

 
 

Work in the community 

 
The Council has been at the frontline in responding to the Covid19 pandemic; including distributing 
emergency food and medicine, providing vital social care, running testing centres and now rolling out 
the vaccine. 
 
Throughout 2020 it also had a huge impact on the way that the Council and Councillors worked. 
 
Instead of attending meetings on your behalf at Oldham Civic Centre, all meetings have been held 
virtually, accessed via phone or laptop. I have undertaken training on using this technology so that I 
could continue to represent you throughout this difficult time. 
 
In my ward I have not been able to get out and about because of Covid restrictions however I have 
continued to receive a lot of casework via email, telephone and WhatsApp, at times it has felt like a 
significant increase in casework which I very much welcome. 
 
I have kept in touch with local community groups as much as possible including volunteering with the 
Food Bank and other community groups. I have helped with food donations to community groups 
and assisted with distribution of food parcels to residents and Easter eggs to care homes at Easter.   
 
I look forward to becoming more physically active in the area again when restrictions are finally lifted. 
In the meantime please feel free to contact me and my ward colleagues should you need assistance 
in any matter Covid related or otherwise. 
 
Look after yourselves and each other, we will come through this together! 
 

 

 

CONTACT ME 

E:shaid.mushtaq@oldham.gov.uk  

M: 07988114409 

Twitter @shaidmushtaq 

SURGERIES 

Face to face Ward Surgeries are   

cancelled due to COVID-19 restrictions.  

Please contact me by phone or email for 

any issues or problems. 

Page 401

mailto:shaid.mushtaq@oldham.gov.uk


 

 
 
 

 

Page 402



 

Cllr Clint Phythian – Royton North Ward  

MY WARD PRIORITIES 
 
• Road safety 

• Dog fouling 

• Post Covid Recovery 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Work in the community 

• District Lead for Royton 

• 100% attendance at Oldham Council meetings 

• Attended training on “Safeguarding”, “Casework & Advocacy Skills” amongst other things 

• Raised concerns around speeding on Rochdale Road also worked with GMP on ASB issues and 
various crimes carried out in Royton 

• Worked with the local community centre with food packages for vulnerable and elderly during national 
COVID-19 lockdown, helped during Easter time by delivering chocolate to elderly and vulnerable 
residents 

• Communicated with residents by telephone, email and Mircosoft Teams during COVID-19 pandemic 
to tackle a range of problems 

• Worked with various residents on Cecil Street who had issues with ASB. Tidied up the area, cut 
trees back, new fences erected and wild flowers planted. Also lighting put in place to deter future 
ASB 

• Worked with United Utilities to secure compensation for Street Bridge being closed,this has helped 
to fund the Royton park growing hub 

• Member of the Planning Committee 

• Vice-Chair of PVFM 
 

 

CONTACT ME 

E: Clint.Phythian@oldham.gov.uk  

T:07973407499 

Twitter @clintphythian 

Facebook.com Royton North Labour Party 

SURGERIES 

Face to face Ward Surgeries are 

cancelled due to COVID-19 restrictions.  

Please contact me by phone or email for 

any issues or problems. 

 

 

Page 403

mailto:Clint.Phythian@oldham.gov.uk


 

Cllr Hannah Roberts – Royton North Ward  

MY WARD PRIORITIES 
 
• Supporting Royton jobs & businesses 

• Best start in life for Royton’s children  
& young people 

• Green Royton 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Work in the community 

• Cabinet Member for Housing; member of the Foster Panel and Corporate Parenting Panel 

• Governor at Blackshaw Lane School & Trustee of Positive Steps Oldham 

• 100% attendance at Oldham Council meetings 

• Volunteered at the Food Bank to help deliver food to residents in Royton and across the 
borough 

• Supported residents by phone and e mail to deal with problems raised by the Covid 19 
pandemic 

• Succeeded in protecting Thornham Old Road site as Greenbelt (taken out of the GMSF) – a 
major success and the result of work on the Town Centre plans and the Mills Strategy 

• Negotiated community compensation from United Utilities following Streetbridge closures 
which will pay for new polytunnel at the Growing Hub in Royton Park  

• Local spending: additional funding for shop front improvement grants secured; new lighting 
in Cecil Street & outside Band Club; planting in Cecil Street open space; extra CAB 
sessions; completing Growing Hub works; Christmas lights; filling locally supplied grit bins; 
new defibrillator case. 

• Responded to individual complaints from residents including: postbox reinstated at Turk’s 
Head; graffiti removal; missed bins; potholes; planning enforcement queries; public safety 
and enforcement of coronavirus restrictions; benches; dog fouling; litter and fly tipping; 
flooding; policing including burglaries and supporting Rochdale Road Slow Down campaign 

 
 

 

CONTACT ME 

E: hannah.roberts@oldham.gov.uk   

M: 07816 335548 

Twitter @hulmeroberts 

 

SURGERIES 

Face to face Ward Surgeries are 

cancelled due to COVID-19 restrictions.  

Please contact me by phone or email for 

help with any issues or problems. 

 

 

Page 404

mailto:hannah.roberts@oldham.gov.uk


 

Cllr Arooj Shah – Chadderton South Ward  

MY WARD PRIORITIES 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 

Work in the community 

• 2020 and the start of 2021 has been difficult for all of us. The impact of the Covid-19 Global Pandemic 
has been incredibly changeling on many fronts. We have all seen the devastating impact it has had on 
us but what I am proud of how our communities have come together to ensure we do all we can to 
fight this virus. 

• I continue to be incredibly grateful and proud to represent Chadderton South on Oldham Council. I 
have been accessible via my usual contact methods and via virtual ward surgeries. In addition, 
throughout the year, I have made a number of welfare calls to our most vulnerable residents within the 
ward. 

• I have heavily participated in door to door engagement both within the ward and across the borough 
providing welfare checks for all our residents as we have continued to tackle Covid-19 

• Agreed funding for a traffic survey for Owler Lane, Chadderton which will help to reduce issues for 
residents 

• Providing opportunities for children within Chadderton South by agreeing funding for Fullcirle who 
have put together an Easter Bonnet making pack (craft materials) which will be delivered to children in 
South Chadderton a week or so before Easter asking them to create fabulous bonnets and post 
pictures of their finished masterpieces on social media 

• Represented Oldham on TV and radio platforms throughout the Covid-19 pandemic to ensure that not 
only Oldham receives fair funding but to highlight the importance of inequalities in our Town which 
have exacerbated the impact of the pandemic on our communities  

• In response to the Covid-19 Pandemic I quickly established and continue to chair an Advisory Board in 
Oldham to ensure all communities are represented as we build back better 

• I have spoken at a range of conferences representing both Oldham and Greater Manchester 

• Member of the GM Growth Company 

• Member of the GMB Regional Equality Forum 

• Member of the Local Government Association 
 

 

 

CONTACT ME 

E: arooj.shah@oldham.gov.uk  

T: 0161 770 0000 

M: 07966297179 

Twitter @shah_arooj  

SURGERIES 

Face to face Ward Surgeries are cancelled 

due to COVID-19 restrictions.  Please contact 

me by phone or email for any issues or 

problems. 

• Recovery from the Covid-19 
Global Pandemic  

• Support local community 
groups  

• Providing good quality 
services to our residents 

 

Page 405

mailto:arooj.shah@oldham.gov.uk


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Page 406



 

 

Cllr Graham Sheldon – Saddleworth South Ward  

MY WARD PRIORITIES 
  

 
• Road safety 

• Preserving Green space 

• Creating new jobs 

• Maintaining footpaths 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Work in the community 

• Leader of the Conservative Group Oldham MBC 

• Member of the Audit Committee 

• Member of the Licensing committee 

• Member of Oldham planning Committee 

• Worked with Highways to combat problems associated with parking at Dovestone 
reservoir. 

• Highlighted flood problem areas in Greenfield and Grasscroft. 

• Working with highways to reduce speed limits in the villages, this includes engaging with 
GM Police to deploy the new mobile speed camera. 

• Taking forward residents’ problems to various OMBC departments. 

• Working with the Covid team to encourage a local vaccination hub for Saddleworth. 

• Provided funds to repair the footpath, Church road to station Road Uppermill. 

• Working with Gm Police to reduce anti-social behavior at Uppermill sports centre. 
 

 

 

CONTACT ME 

T: 01457 513236 

Email:Cllr.g.sheldon@oldham.gov.uk  

 

SURGERIES 

I do not hold ward surgeries 

 

 

Page 407

mailto:Cllr.g.sheldon@oldham.gov.uk


Cllr Graham Shuttleworth – Chadderton South Ward  

MY WARD PRIORITIES 
 
• To work with and for residents in  

order to achieve the best possible  
outcome for Chadderton South as  
a whole 

• Continue to tackle fly tipping which  
blights our area 

• To work with our partners who do  
so much to support others 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Work in the community 

• In what has been a year like no other I have worked as best as I can to maintain contact with 
residents 

• I spoke with as many over 70 year-old residents in the last 12 months as I had contact details 
for, initially (2020) to ensure that they were aware of the support available via the local authority 
and in 2021  repeated that contact to discuss the vaccination system 

• I have worked with our Third Sector partners, Full Circle, discussing and supporting their 
work with young people and this will continue throughout this year and during my 
remaining years in office 

• Despite the fact that face-to-face contact has not been possible, this has not prevented 
open and honest communication with residents and their issues have been heard and 
dealt with as appropriate 

• I have also continued to work with groups within the community as they have a vital role to 
play for so many of you 

• Finally, an unrelated comment: please stay safe and well, take no chances with your 
health or those of your family. As Del wold say: “You know it makes sense!” 

 
 

 

CONTACT ME 

E:graham.shuttleworth@oldham.gov.uk  

M: 07800 648 377

SURGERIES 

Face to face Ward Surgeries are 

cancelled due to COVID-19 restrictions.  

Please contact me by phone or email for 

any issues or problems. 

 

 

 

Page 408

mailto:graham.shuttleworth@oldham.gov.uk


 

Cllr Jean Stretton – Hollinwood Ward  
 
Married with two grown up step-children,  
five grandchildren and two great  
grandchildren.  
 
Brought up on Alt Estate, educated at 
Alt Infant and Primary, then Hathershaw 
Comprehensive.  MBA from Bolton  
Institute (before it became Bolton  
University.)  
 
I have lived in Hollinwood since 1989  
and was first elected as a Labour  
Councillor for the Hollinwood Ward in  
2003. 

 

 

Work in the community  
Over the last twelve months the Council has been at the frontline in responding to the Covid19 pandemic; 
including distributing emergency food and medicine, providing vital social care, running testing centres and 
now supporting the roll-out of vaccines. 
 
Throughout 2020 the pandemic has also had a huge impact on the way that the Council and Councillors 
worked.   
Instead of attending meetings on your behalf at Oldham Civic Centre, all meetings have been held virtually, 
accessed via phone or laptop.  I have undertaken training on using this technology so that I could continue 
to represent you throughout this difficult time.  In the 2020/21 council year I have a 100% attendance rate at 
the full council meetings and at all of the council committees that I have been appointed to. 
 
As well as learning about the new technology for virtual meetings I have also undertaken training on 
Safeguarding Children and Adults.  
 
I have not been able to hold advice surgeries or meet people face to face but I have still been available by e-
mail or telephone for people to contact me if they have problems that they would like my assistance with. 
 
In previous years I have used some  of my ward councillor budget to support community groups and to fund 
activities for young people during school holidays.  Community groups have not been meeting and the 
restrictions prevented school holiday activities.  Hopefully, sometime in the coming year, community groups 
will be able to meet again and activities for young people can go ahead.  I would welcome requests for 
funding as and when that happens. 
 
For the last twelve months I have been Chair of Oldham’s Health and Wellbeing Board.  I also have 
continued as Chair of Oldham Credit Union.  I am a governor at Limehurst Primary school and a member of 
the Oasis Hub, which supports Oasis Academy Oldham and Oasis Limeside primary school.  

 
 

 

CONTACT ME 

E:jean.stretton@oldham.gov.uk 

M: 07875676710 

SURGERIES 

Face to face Ward Surgeries are cancelled 

due to COVID-19 restrictions.  Please contact 

me by phone or email. 

 

Page 409

mailto:jean.stretton@oldham.gov.uk


Cllr Howard Sykes – Shaw Ward   

MY WARD PRIORITIES  
 

• Supporting residents and business 
through Covid-19  

• New Health Centre for Shaw  

• Protecting Green Belt/spaces  

• Litter, fly-tipping and dog fouling  

• Listening to residents  

• Environmental improvements  

• Local policing ASB/crime  

• Bus and tram services  

• Highways, footways and speeding  
traffic  

 
 

 

Work in the community 
 
Your Shaw Liberal Democrat Councillors would like to say a massive thanks to our NHS, Key Workers and 
the whole Community for stepping up in our hour of need. We are far from out of the woods yet and its 
definitely not business as usual, but we have been inspired by the resilience of the community.  
This year throughout the Coronavirus epidemic I have continued to champion all issues for Shaw residents. I 
have embraced new ways of working to enable me to meet new needs and to offer the appropriate support to 
affected residents and communities.  

• I work with the local community centre with food packages for the vulnerable and elderly during 
national lockdown.  

• I liaise with Council departments on resident’s behalf with regards to applications for the Small 
Business Grant Fund.  

• I keep up to date with residents’ concerns this may be by leaflet questionnaires or telephone 
campaigns.  

• I keep communication open with residents I am contactable by email, telephone, Twitter, Facebook, 
my web site and Microsoft Teams. This allows me to manage a range of issues on behalf of residents 
such as, housing repairs, rehousing requests, neighbour disputes, school applications, healthcare 
complaints, council bins and rubbish removal, dog waste and new street litter or grit bins.  

• I am a member of the LGA Councillors Forum, and the Council’s Health & Wellbeing Board.  

• I attended training on “Safeguarding”, “Casework & Advocacy Skills”.  

• I am a governor at St Joseph’s school and as a parent myself I strive for our children’s right to receive 
an education appropriate to their needs.  

• I continue to work closely with our local Police, the District Partnership, Parish Council, residents and 
businesses of Shaw to resolve the problem of anti-social behaviour. This work remains an on-going 
battle to ensure that residents have a safe place to live.  

• I continue to challenge the Greater Manchester Spatial Framework and its successor, and work to 
achieve the best outcome possible for residents’ homes, jobs, and the environment by opposing the 
appalling loss of our green spaces. For further information about the work I do for this please refer to 
my website.  

• I work with Transport for Greater Manchester resolving residents’ issues about bus services or 
Metrolink. Additionally, I am a member of Greater Manchester Transport Committee here we are 
working to achieve a fully integrated, high capacity transport system.  

• I formally object to planning applications if I believe they are inappropriate or not a benefit to 
residents. Most recently I have objected to Shaw Asda’s recent request for 24-hour deliveries and the 
conversion of the Weaver’s Answer PH. We work constructively with developers who wish to build 
new homes on the Very/Yodel site and elsewhere in Shaw.  

• I continue to drive the campaign forward for a new Health Centre for Shaw and Crompton.  

• I continue to request regular vehicle speed monitoring on roads such as Buckstones Road – with a 
view to the instalment of speed enforcement measures that can be taken to address and resolve 
these issues.  

• I work with the Highways Department to have the potholes, blocked grids and poor footpaths 
resurfaced or repaired. Most recently following a great deal of negotiation the pavements along Page 410



Underwood Way were resurfaced – this was a five year plus battle.  

• I regularly pursue complaints of fly tipping around Shaw and I work very closely with the 
Environmental Health Department on this matter. Most recently I organised the clearing of rubbish left 
outside the Former Weavers Answer Public House, Crompton Moor, Grains Road, Shaw Town Centre 
and Jubilee.  

• As Chair of the Crompton Moor Users Group and in my role as Ward Councillor, I meet regularly with 
the group, working closely for this area of countryside that within our community remains very 
important. I continue to ensure that this area is maintained and safe to use by all. Most recently I have 
been instrumental in agreeing a new dog sign that will hopefully be introduced by the start of the 
nesting season. The Public Space Protection Order has recently been updated to provide more 
protection.  

• I continue to work with residents and a variety of agencies for a resolution to on-going flooding 
problems, primarily in the areas of Dunwood Park, Woodend, Grains Road, Grains Bar, Jubilee.  

 
 

 

CONTACT ME 

E:howard.sykes@oldham.gov.uk  

T: 0161 770 4016 

Emergency: 0161 770 7007 
Twitter @ Howard_Sykes  
Facebook www.facebook.com/Councillor 
Howard Sykes  
Web:http://howardsykes.mycouncillor.org.uk   
  

 

SURGERIES 

Face to face Ward Surgeries are cancelled 

due to COVID-19 restrictions.  Please contact 

me by phone or email for any issues or 

problems. 

 

 

 

 

Page 411

mailto:howard.sykes@oldham.gov.uk
http://howardsykes.mycouncillor.org.uk/


 

Cllr Elaine Taylor – Chadderton Central Ward  

MY WARD PRIORITIES 
 

• Post Covid-19 recovery 

• Support local community groups 

• Tackle fly tipping and littering 

• Reduce anti-social behaviour 

• Community safety 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Work in the community 
The Council has been at the frontline in responding to the Covid19 pandemic; including distributing 
emergency food and medicine, providing vital social care, running testing centres and now rolling out the 
vaccine.  
 
Throughout 2020 it has had a huge impact on the way that the Council and Councillors work. Instead of 
attending meetings on your behalf at Oldham Civic Centre, all meetings have been held virtually. I have 
attended all full council meetings and have continued to undertake training on casework and advocacy skills 
using this technology so that I can continue to represent you throughout this difficult time. 
 
In my ward I have had to scale back the amount of work I can do in the community due to not being able to 
get out and about, but I have still been available by e-mail or telephone for people to contact me if they have 
problems they would like my assistance with. I have supported individual residents on a range of welfare 
issues, including housing, access to benefits, school placements and I have continued to find new ways of 
working to keep the ward clean and tidy.  
 
I am a Governor at the Radclyffe School and have worked closely with residents and my Ward colleagues to 
establish the Community Benefit Society. 
  
I have kept in touch with local community groups and have continued to work with them to help them access 
the grants system to fund activities and I look forward to becoming more active in the area again when 
restrictions are finally lifted. 
 
Committee Appointments 

• Council 

• Chadderton District Executive 

• Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

• Audit Committee 

• Local Negotiating Joint Committee 

• Charitable Trust Committee (substitute) 
 
Appointments to outside Bodies 

• Community First (Chadderton) Ltd  

• Transport for the North Scrutiny Committee 
 

 

 

CONTACT ME 

E:elaine.taylor@oldham.gov.uk  

T: 0161 665 2699 

SURGERIES 

Face to face Ward Surgeries are cancelled 

due to COVID-19 restrictions.  Please contact 

me by phone or email for any issues or 

problems. 

Page 412

mailto:elaine.taylor@oldham.gov.uk


 

 

  

 

Page 413



 

Cllr Yasmin Toor – Medlock Vale Ward  

MY WARD PRIORITIES 
 
• Road safety 

• Fly Tipping 

• National Covid-19 Lockdown 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Work in the community 

 
The Council has been at the frontline in responding to the Covid19 pandemic; including distributing 
emergency food and medicine, providing vital social care, running testing centers and now rolling out the 
vaccine. 
 
Throughout 2020 it also had a huge impact on the way that the Council and councillors worked. 
 
Instead of attending meetings on your behalf at Oldham Civic Centre, all meetings have been held virtually, 
accessed via phone or laptop. I have undertaken training on using this technology so that I could continue to 
represent you throughout this difficult time. 
 
In my ward I have had to scale back the amount of work I can do in the community due to not being able to 
get out and about, but I have still been available by e-mail or telephone for people to contact me if they have 
problems they would like my assistance with. 
 
I have kept in touch with local community groups as much as possible, particularly on social media, and I look 
forward to becoming more active in the area again when restrictions are finally lifted. 
 

• Attendance at Oldham Council meetings 

• Member Overview & Scrutiny Board 

• District Lead for West Oldham 

• Lay Member for DL Committee 

• Vice Chair – Royal Oldham Hospital League of Friends 

• Chair- Heathcot Pre-School 

• Attended training on “Safeguarding”, amongst other things 

• Raised concerns about speeding on Ashton Rd, Hollins Road near Hathershaw Technology College. 

• Supported the local community center with food packages for vulnerable and elderly during national 
COVID-19 lockdown 

• Communicated with residents by telephone, email and Microsoft Teams during COVID-19 pandemic 
to tackle a range of problems as well as out with Covid Team/Health Professionals to raise safety 
awareness & doorstep covid tests. 

 

Page 414



 
Supported Following Organisations/Services/Projects: 

1. Fittonhill Bulldogs 
2. Grit Bins – Keb Lane Bardsley 
3. Grit Bins - Gainsborough Mosque Coppice 
4. Kashmir Cricket Club 
5. REEL - Fitton Hill Food Club 
6. Glodwick Dynamoes FC 
7. Indian Association 
8. CAB Neighborhood advice 
9. Saheli Women’s Group - International Women’s Day 2021 
10. Saheli Women’s Group - Stay Connected 
11. Fitton Hill Half Term Street Play – REEL 

 
 

 

CONTACT ME 

E: yasmin.toor@oldham.gov.uk  

M: 07973392078 

Facebook 
www.facebook.com/yasmintoor4medlock 

SURGERIES 

Face to face Ward Surgeries are cancelled 

due to COVID-19 restrictions.  Please contact 

me by phone or email for any issues or 

problems. 

 

 

 

Page 415

mailto:yasmin.toor@oldham.gov.uk
http://www.facebook.com/yasmintoor


 

Cllr Ateeque Ur-Rehman – Medlock Vale Ward  

MY WARD PRIORITIES 
 

• Road safety 

• Covid-19 National Lockdown 

• Fly Tipping/Anti-Social Behavior 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Work in the community 
 
The Council has been at the frontline in responding to the Covid19 pandemic; including distributing 
emergency food and medicine, providing vital social care, running testing centers and now rolling out the 
vaccine. 
 
Throughout 2020 it also had a huge impact on the way that the Council and councilors worked. 
 
Instead of attending meetings on your behalf at Oldham Civic Centre, all meetings have been held virtually, 
accessed via phone or laptop. I have undertaken training on using this technology so that I could continue to 
represent you throughout this difficult time. 
 
In my ward I have had to scale back the amount of work I can do in the community due to not being able to 
get out and about, but I have still been available by e-mail or telephone for people to contact me if they have 
problems they would like my assistance with. 
 
I have kept in touch with local community groups as much as possible, particularly on social media, and I look 
forward to becoming more active in the area again when restrictions are finally lifted. 

• Attendance at Oldham Council meetings 

• Attended training on “Safeguarding”, amongst other things 

• Raised concerns about speeding on Ashton Rd, Hollins Road near Hathershaw Technology College. 

• Supported the local community center with food packages for vulnerable and elderly during national 
COVID-19 lockdown 

• Communicated with residents by telephone, email and Microsoft Teams during COVID-19 pandemic 
to tackle a range of problems as well as out with Covid Team/Health Professionals to raise safety 
awareness & doorstep covid tests. 

 
Supported Following Organisations/Services/Projects: 

12. Fittonhill Bulldogs 
13. Grit Bins – Keb Lane Bardsley 
14. Grit Bins - Gainsborough Mosque Coppice 
15. Kashmir Cricket Club 
16. REEL - Fitton Hill Food Club 
17. Glodwick Dynamoes FC 
18. Indian Association 
19. CAB Neighbourhood advice 
20. Saheli Womens Group - International Women’s Day 2021 
21. Saheli Women’s Group - Stay Connected 
22. Fitton Hill Half Term Street Play – REEL Page 416



 
 

 

CONTACT ME 

E:Ateeque.Urrehman@oldham.gov.uk  

M: 07973392078 

Twitter @ateeque69 

Facebook www.facebook.com/CllrAteeque 

SURGERIES 

Face to face Ward Surgeries are 

cancelled due to COVID-19 restrictions.  

Please contact me by phone or email 

for any issues or problem 

 

 

Page 417

mailto:Ateeque.Urrehman@oldham.gov.uk
http://www.facebook.com/


 

Cllr Diane Williamson – Crompton Ward   

MY WARD PRIORITIES 
 

• Protecting the environment and  
the greenbelt 

• Improving our highways and footpaths  

• Improving health facilities 

• Tackling the menace of dog fouling  
and litter 

 
 
 

 
 

 

Work in the community 

 
Shaw and Crompton is a special place and you’ve welcomed me as a fellow resident and as a Borough and 
Parish Councillor. 
 
I have been listening to residents – despite COVID-19 – and previously my team and I have knocked on 
thousands of doors, speaking to you about your issues and concerns.   The key priorities that come up are:  
 

• protecting the environment and the greenbelt 

• improving our highways and footpaths  

• improving health facilities 

• tackling the menace of dog fouling and litter 
 
During this global pandemic, and the three national lockdowns, it has been a pleasure and a delight to speak 
to many of you, when I rang you just to check in and see whether you needed any assistance.   
 
I’m realistic in what I can deliver.  There is still so much more to be done and if re-elected, I will continue to 
demand better for High Crompton, Shaw and Royton.  I pledge to listen and, with your support, will 
continue to be your true voice on Oldham council.  Together we can achieve more. 
 
PS. Don’t let COVID-19 steal your vote – you can apply for a postal vote and still hand it in at the polling 
station on 6 May 
 
Agent:Dave Murphy, Unit 18 Booth House, Featherstall Road, Oldham OL9 7TU 
Area:High Crompton, Shaw and Royton 

 
 

 

CONTACT ME 
E: diane.williamson@oldham.gov.uk  
T: 01706 558036 
Twitter @ CllrDWilliamson  
Facebook Councillor Diane Williamson 

 

SURGERIES 

Face to face Ward Surgeries are cancelled 

due to COVID-19 restrictions.  Please contact 

me by phone or email for any issues or 

problems. 

 

Page 418

mailto:diane.williamson@oldham.gov.uk


 

 

 

Page 419



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 
 

 

 

Report to COUNCIL 

Adoption of Revised Licensing Act 2003 Policy 

Portfolio Holder: Cllr Brownridge - Cabinet Member for 
Neighbourhoods & Culture 

Officer Contact: Helen Lockwood – Deputy Chief Executive 

Report Author:  John Garforth – Trading Standards & Licensing Manager 

 

24th March 2021    

 
 
Executive Summary 
This report requests that Members adopt the proposed Licensing Act 2003 policy 
which is required to be approved by a meeting of Council.  
 
 
Recommendations 
That Members: 

1) Note the report; and 

2) Adopt the new statement of Licensing Policy effective forthwith.  

Page 421

Agenda Item 18



Page 2 of 4 Council [24th March 2021] 

 

COUNCIL  24th March 2021 
 
Adoption of Revised Licensing Act 2003 Policy 

 

 
1. Purpose of the report 

1.1 This report requests that Members approve the attached proposed Statement 
of Licensing Policy. 

 

2. Introduction 

2.1 The Licensing Act 2003 requires that licensing authorities prepare and publish 
a statement of its licensing policy every five years. The policy must be kept 
under review and the licensing authority may make such revisions to it, as it 
considers appropriate. 

2.2 The Act is the primary piece of legislation that regulates the alcohol, 
entertainment and late-night refreshment industry. It is underpinned by four 
licensing objectives for which consideration must be given by operators and 
regulators alike. They are: 

 The prevention of crime and disorder 

 The prevention of public nuisance 

 Public safety; and 

 The Protection of children from harm 

 

2.3 Failure to achieve this balance could lead the policy to being, both overly 
prescriptive and open to challenge, or alternatively though a failure to effectively 
promote the licensing objectives, ineffective to the needs of those adversely 
affected by licensable activities.  

 

3. Proposed changes to the Policy 

3.1 There are several updates being proposed which are highlighted in red in the 
proposed policy attached at Appendix 1. The changes cover: 

 Protect Duty 

 Protection of children from harm 

 Child Sexual Exploitation and Child Criminal Exploitation 

Page 422



Page 3 of 4 Council [24th March 2021] 

 

 Alcohol delivery services 

 Boxing 

 Public Health 

 Pavement licences 

 

4 Legal Services Comments 

4.1 Every five years the Council must determine its policy with respect to the 
 exercise of its licensing functions and publish a Statement of Licensing 
 Policy.  The draft policy complies with the guidance issued under Section 182 of 
 the Licensing Act 2003. (A. Evans) 

5  Financial Implications 

5.1 No implications 

6  Procurement Implications 

6.1 No implications 

7  Property Implications 

7.1 None 

8  Co-operative Agenda 

8.1 The licensing process is in place not only to protect the public but also to support 
 and where necessary regulate businesses within the Borough. 

9  Environmental and Health & Safety Implications 

9.1 None 

10 Equality, community cohesion and crime implications 

 10.1 None 

11 Equality Impact Assessment Completed? 

11.1 Yes 

12 Key Decision 

12.1 No  

13 Key Decision Reference 

13.1 N/A 

Page 423



Page 4 of 4 Council [24th March 2021] 

 

14 Background Papers 

14.1    None 

15.0  Appendices  

15.1 Appendix 1 – Proposed Policy  

Page 424



 

  

 

 

Page 425



 

  

 

 

 

Proposed 

Licensing Act Policy 

2021 - 2026 
 

 

 

 

 Alterations and additions to the current policy are highlighted in red 

 

Page 426



 

Page | 3  

 

Contents 

Introduction to Oldham                                                   4 

Background & Policy Statement                                            5 

Licensing Objectives  & Licensable Activities                                 7 

Prevention of Crime & Disorder                                            7 

Public Safety                                                          12 

Prevention of Public Nuisance                                            13 

Protection of Children from Harm                                         15 

Child Sexual Exploitation                                                18 

Child Criminal Exploitation                                              19 

Selling Alcohol Responsibly                                             20 

Alcohol Delivery                                                       21 

Opening Hours                                                        21 

Cumulative Impact and Late Night Levy                                    22 

Early Morning Restriction Orders                                         24 

Music & Entertainment                                                  25 

Boxing  & Events                                                       25 

Public Health                                                          26 

Adult Entertainment                                                    27 

Operating Schedule & Conditions                                         27 

Integration of Polices                                                    28 

Compliance & Enforcement                                              28 

Pavement Licences                                                     29 

Processing Applications                                                 29 

Immigration                                                          31 

Contacts                                                             32 

Appendix 1 – Model  & Mandatory Conditions                               34 

                                                 

Page 427



 

4  

 

Introduction to Oldham 

Oldham covers some 55 miles2 and is situated to the North East of Manchester, in a pivotal position 

between the cities of Manchester and Leeds.  

Although Oldham is named after its largest town (Oldham), the borough includes the townships of 

Chadderton, Failsworth, and Royton, the village of Lees, and the parishes of Shaw and Crompton, 

and Saddleworth; making Oldham a mixture of high-density urban areas, suburbs, semi-rural, and 

rural locations, with a quarter of the borough lying within the Peak District National Park. 

Whilst the Town Centre is seen as the heart of Oldham; offering many retail and commercial 

opportunities, there are a wide range of retail facilities available to residents and visitors within Shaw 

Town Centre, Royton Town Centre and the Saddleworth Villages. Oldham also offers a wide range of 

sports and leisure facilities, including leisure centres, art centres, theatres and museums. 

Oldham’s population is diverse, young, growing and benefits from excellent education and skills 

development opportunities at the University Campus Oldham, The Oldham College, Oldham Sixth Form 

College and the Regional Science Centre amongst others. 

The Oldham Partnership is made up of public, private, community, voluntary and faith organisations in 

Oldham. They have created the Oldham Plan, a collective statement explaining how we can work 

together to help our people, businesses and communities. There are three strands to the current 

Oldham Plan, which are:  

1. Inclusive Economy - We want to Oldham to be a place where everyone has a fair and real 

chance to improve their own lives. 

2. Co-operative Services - We want to have the best public services in Greater Manchester that 

work together to improve ways of living for our residents. 

3. Thriving Communities - We want local people and communities to be healthy, happy and able 

to make positive choices as well as offering and accessing support when needed. 

Since the arrival of the Metrolink, accessibility to the borough, in particular the Town Centre, has been 

radically improved, making Oldham a more accessible destination for visitors to the region.  

Oldham has also seen, and continues to see, significant financial investment, including: - 

 £430 million in housing;  

 £137 million in education; 

 £80 million in healthcare facilities; 

 Oldham College’s campus transformation programme; 

 Oldham Council’s - £100 million capital programme; 

 The Council’s purchase of the Town Square and Spindles Shopping Centre; 

 The re-location of the indoor market to create a new linear park. 

 

Page 428



 

5  

 

1. Background   

1.1 Premises and events licensed under the 

Licensing Act 2003 provide an invaluable 

contribution towards Oldham’s economy, 

and the Council recognises that a diverse 

licensed leisure and entertainment industry 

has a major role to play in helping the 

Council achieve its ambitions. 

1.2 Businesses licensed by the Authority 

provide social and community spaces, 

facilities for residents and corporate 

groups and are a vital support 

infrastructure for related sectors such as 

retail and tourism.  

1.3 As well as promoting a family led leisure 

and entertainment culture, the Council is 

keen to encourage a diverse range of 

premises catering for a wide range of age 

groups and uses. However, the Authority 

also recognises the problems that can be 

caused if licensed activities are not 

properly managed or well run.  

1.4 As such, this Licensing Policy Statement 

sets out the manner in which Oldham 

Council (the ‘Licensing Authority’) will 

consider applications for licences as 

required by the Licensing Act 2003 (‘The 

Act’); and sets out what the Authority 

expects of operators and how they can 

promote a wider cultural benefit to the 

residents of, and visitors to, Oldham.  

1.5 This policy takes into account guidelines 

issued by the Secretary of State for the 

Home Office under section 182 of the 

Licensing Act 2003. 

1.6 The policy supports Oldham Council’s 

corporate objectives:-    

 a productive place to invest where 

business and enterprise thrive; 

 confident communities where everyone 

does their bit; 

 a co-operative council creating 

responsive and high quality services; 

1.7 This policy came into effect on   xxxx                     

and will remain in force for a period of five 

years. It can be reviewed both during that 

period and at the end of the period, with 

any changes being subject to statutory 

consultation. 

1.8 The interpretation of words and phrases in 

this Policy has the same meaning as those 

in the Act or in Guidance issued under 

section 182 of the Act. 

1.9 The Council has a number of different 

functions under the Act, including acting as 

both the Licensing Authority and as a 

number of different responsible bodies. 

For this reason, the Licensing Policy refers 

to the Council as the Licensing Authority 

and individual responsible bodies by their 

directorate name, notwithstanding they are 

also part of the same Council. 

 Policy Statement 

2.1 The Authority maintains that licensing is 

about regulating the carrying on of 

licensable activities on licensed premises, 

by qualifying clubs and at temporary 

events within the terms of the Act; and that 

conditions attached to various 

authorisations will be focused on matters 

which are within the control of licence 

holders and others in possession of 

relevant authorisations. Accordingly, each 

application under the Act will be 

considered on its own merits; and no 

restrictive controls will be introduced or 

imposed unless they are felt to be 

necessary and appropriate.  

2.2 Nothing in this Statement of Policy 

prevents any one person or body applying 

for a variety of current permissions under 

the Act. Nor does it override the right of an 

Responsible Authority, other persons or 

businesses to make representations or 

seek a review of a licence or certificate 

where provision has been made for them 

to do so in the Act. 

Page 429



 

6  

 

2.3 In preparing and publishing this Policy 

Statement due regard has been given to 

the guidance issued by the Secretary of 

State under section 182 of the Act, and to 

good practice advice issued by approved 

government advisory bodies.  

2.4 The Authority recognises that any 

breaches of conditions attached to 

operating schedules automatically become 

criminal offences under section 136 of the 

Act and could lead to imprisonment for up 

to six months and/or a £20,000 fine for 

non-compliance. The penalties are high 

because such action could involve putting 

public safety at serious risk and particular 

care needs to be taken in both the 

decision to impose conditions and how 

they may be framed. 

2.5 The Authority will operate from a pool of 

conditions, most of which will not be 

relevant to most premises, but it will 

enable some clarity and consistency to be 

developed on conditions. This is not and 

must not be taken as a “checklist” of 

appropriate conditions and if an applicant 

determines that any of the pool of 

conditions are not relevant and there are 

no relevant representations received, the 

licence will be granted without those 

conditions being attached. There nothing 

to prevent an applicant framing their own 

conditions for consideration by the 

Authority and not using those from the 

pool of conditions. The Authority will be fair 

and vigilant in considering all applications.  

2.6 The Authority is committed to ensuring the 

highest levels of customer service for 

applicants, responsible bodies and 

interested parties. Our officers will always 

seek to assist applicants in completing 

applications and considering relevant 

conditions – particularly with a view to 

accommodating likely representations from 

residents and responsible bodies. This is 

an important part of building and 

enhancing the partnership between the 

Licensing Authority and the licensed trade 

and providing useful advice and 

assistance. Notwithstanding this advice, it 

will be a matter for the applicant to decide 

what conditions to volunteer and for 

responsible bodies and interested parties 

to seek additional conditions where 

appropriate to promote the licensing 

objectives. 

2.7 In general, the licensing process will take 

the following form: 

 the applicant addresses the licensing 

objectives through completion of the 

Operating Schedule; 

 if appropriate, the applicant ‘volunteers’ 

conditions through the Operating 

Schedule; 

 if a responsible body or an interested 

party feels that a particular licensing 

objective is not adequately addressed 

through the ‘Operating Schedule’, then it 

may make relevant representations to 

that effect; 

 if no relevant representations are made, 

then the application must be granted and 

the only conditions which can appear on 

the premises licence are those which 

have been volunteered by the applicant 

through the Operating Schedule; and any 

mandatory conditions specified within the 

Act; 

 if relevant representations are made the 

Licensing Authority’s discretion is 

engaged, enabling them to impose 

additional conditions which must be, 

appropriate to promoting the licensing 

objectives, proportionate; and address 

the other general principles set out in the 

Act, the Secretary of State’s Guidance 

and this Policy. 

2.8 This policy has regard to the Authority’s 

duties under section 17 of the Crime and 

Disorder Act 1998. (Duty to do all it 

reasonably can to exercise its functions 

with due regard to the likely effect on crime 

and disorder and the need to prevent it.) 

2.9 In undertaking its licensing functions, the 

Authority will ensure that at all times it 

pays due regard to its obligations under 

Page 430



 

7  

 

the Equalities Act 2010 and will ensure 

that the policy does not disproportionately 

impact of any particular equality group. As 

part of this a Stage 1 Equality Impact 

Assessment has been conducted.  

 Consultation 

3.1 Consultation on this Policy took place 

between October and December 2020; 

and was carried out in accordance with 

Section 5(3) of the Act.  

 Licensing Objectives  

4.1 In exercising its functions under the 

Licensing Act 2003, the Authority will have 

regard to the Licensing Objectives as set 

out in section 4 of the Act.  

4.2 The licensing objectives are:- 

a) the prevention of crime and disorder; 

b) public safety; 

c) the prevention of public nuisance; and  

d) the protection of children from harm;  

4.3 The Act places a duty on the Licensing 

Authority to carry out its functions under 

the Act with a view to promoting these 

objectives. 

4.4 Each of these objectives is considered to 

be of equal importance for the purposes of 

this policy. 

 Licensable Activities  

5.1 The Authority’s statement of licensing policy 

relates to all licensing activities falling within 

the provisions of the Act, namely 

a) the sale by retail of alcohol; 

b) the supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a 

club to a member; 

c) the provision of ‘regulated entertainment’; 

and 

d) the provision of late night refreshment; 

5.2 The definition of what constitutes 

‘regulated entertainment’ is complex and 

has been (and remains) the subject of 

Government deregulation. Whilst 

‘regulated entertainment’ potentially covers 

live or recorded music, dancing, plays, 

films and certain types of sporting 

activities, the Act itself provides various 

exemptions and restrictions on the types of 

activities subject to licensing. 

5.3 Other legislation such as the Live Music 

Act 2012 has removed the ability of the 

Authority to regulate live music at certain 

times and in certain circumstances.  

5.4 At the time of writing this policy, further 

deregulation of certain other forms of 

regulated entertainment is planned 

primarily between the hours of 8.00am and 

11.00pm where that entertainment takes 

place before an audience of a prescribed 

size. 

5.5 It cannot be assumed therefore that a licence 

is required for all forms of entertainment or, 

even if a licence is required, that the 

Authority will necessarily have the power to 

impose restrictions or conditions on such 

entertainment. 

 Prevention of Crime & 

Disorder 

6.1 Conditions attached to premises licences 

and club premises certificates will, so far 

as possible, reflect local crime prevention 

strategies. 

6.2 When addressing crime and disorder the 

applicant should initially identify any 

particular issues (having regard to their 

particular type of premises and/or 

activities), which are likely to adversely 

affect the promotion of the crime and 

disorder objective. Such steps, as are 

required to deal with these identified 

issues, should be included within the 

applicant’s Operating Schedule. 

Page 431



 

8  

 

6.3 When applicants for premises licences or 

club premises certificates are preparing 

their Operating Schedules or club 

Operating Schedules, or responsible 

authorities are considering such 

applications, or when licensing authorities 

are considering applications following the 

receipt of any relevant representations 

from a responsible authority or interested 

party, the following options will be 

considered as measures which, if 

appropriate, would promote the prevention 

of crime and disorder. 

6.4 Whether or not any risk assessment 

shows these options to be appropriate in 

the individual circumstances of any 

premises will depend on a range of factors 

including the nature and style of the 

venue, the activities being conducted 

there, the location of the premises and the 

anticipated clientele of the business 

involved. It is noted that many club 

premises operate under codes of discipline 

to ensure the good order and behaviour of 

members. 

6.5 Under no circumstances should the 

following measures be regarded as 

standard conditions to be automatically 

imposed in all cases. They are designed to 

provide a range of possible conditions 

drawn from experience relating to differing 

situations and to offer guidance. 

6.6 Any individual preparing an Operating 

Schedule is at liberty to volunteer any 

measure, such as those described below, 

as a step he or she intends to take to 

promote the licensing objectives. When 

incorporated into the licence or certificate 

as a condition, they become enforceable 

under the law and a breach of such a 

condition could give rise to prosecution. 

6.7 In certain premises where existing 

legislation does not provide adequately for 

the reduction of crime and disorder or the 

safety of the public or club members and 

guests, consideration may also be given to 

conditions that deal with: 

 crime prevention design, including 

adequate lighting and supervision of car 

parks; 

 door supervision, including arrangements 

for screening for weapons and drugs; 

 other measures to control violent, 

drunken or abusive behaviour (including 

exclusion of troublemakers; refusal to sell 

to those who are or appear to be drunk or 

under age; use of toughened or plastic 

glasses); 

 the removal from the premises of drinking 

vessels and bottles; 

 drug dealing or abuse; 

 prostitution or indecency; 

 discouraging drinking in public places in 

the vicinity of the premises; and 

 discouraging the handling and distribution 

of stolen, counterfeit non-duty paid or 

other illegal goods. 

6.8 The Authority accepts that only a small 

minority of customers are likely to behave 

badly and this policy should be viewed as 

part of a framework of measures that will 

be used to tackle anti-social behavioural 

problems in any area where licensed 

premises are situated. 

6.9 The ‘Town Centre Business Link’, a radio 

link connecting premises licence holders, 

designated premises supervisors, 

managers of premises and clubs to the 

local police, can provide for rapid response 

by the police to situations of disorder 

which may be endangering customers and 

staff on the premises. Such radios provide 

two-way communication, enabling licence 

holders, managers, designated premises 

supervisors and clubs to report incidents to 

the police, and enabling the police to warn 

those operating a large number of other 

premises of potential trouble-makers or 

individuals suspected of criminal behaviour 

who are about in a particular area. The 

Licensing Authority encourages licence 

holders to participate in the radio link 

scheme, but this will not be added as a 

condition of licences. 

Page 432



 

9  

 

6.10 The presence of CCTV cameras can be an 

important means of deterring and 

detecting crime at, and immediately 

outside licensed premises. Conditions will 

not just consider a requirement to have 

CCTV on the premises, but also the 

precise siting of each camera, the 

requirement to maintain cameras in 

working order, and to retain recordings for 

an appropriate period of time. The police 

can provide individuals conducting risk 

assessments when preparing Operating 

Schedules with advice on the use of CCTV 

to prevent crime. 

6.11 Drinks purchased in licensed premises or 

clubs may be taken from those premises 

for consumption elsewhere. Where 

premises are licensed for the sale of 

alcohol for consumption off the premises 

that would be entirely lawful. However, 

consideration should be given to a 

condition preventing the taking of alcoholic 

and other drinks from the premises in open 

containers (e.g. glasses and opened 

bottles). This may again be appropriate to 

prevent the use of these containers as 

offensive weapons in surrounding streets 

after individuals have left the premises. 

6.12 It may be appropriate to restrict the areas 

where alcoholic drinks may be consumed 

in premises after they have been 

purchased from the bar. An example 

would be at a sports ground where the 

police consider it necessary to prevent the 

consumption of alcohol on the terracing of 

sports grounds during particular sports 

events. Such conditions will not only 

specify these areas, but indicate the 

circumstances in which the ban would 

apply and times at which it should be 

enforced. 

6.13 Although most commonly made a 

condition of a licence on public safety 

grounds, consideration will also be given 

to conditions, which set capacity limits for 

licensed premises or clubs (or parts of 

those premises) where it may be 

appropriate to prevent overcrowding which 

can lead to disorder and violence. Where 

such a condition is considered appropriate, 

consideration should also be given to 

whether door supervisors would be 

needed to ensure that the numbers are 

appropriately controlled. 

6.14 It may be appropriate at some premises 

for notices to be displayed which warn 

customers of the prevalence of crime 

which may target them. Some premises 

may be reluctant to volunteer the display 

of such notices for commercial reasons. 

For example, in certain areas, a condition 

attached to a premises licence or club 

premises certificate might require the 

displaying of notices at the premises which 

warn customers about the need to be 

aware of pickpockets or bag snatchers, 

and to guard their property. Similarly, it 

may be appropriate for notices to be 

displayed which advise customers not to 

leave bags unattended because of 

concerns about terrorism. Consideration 

could be given to a condition requiring a 

notice to display the name of a contact for 

customers if they wish to report concerns. 

6.15 It may be appropriate for the normal hours 

under the terms of the premises licence or 

club premises certificate at which 

licensable activities are permitted to take 

place to be displayed on or immediately 

outside the premises so that it is clear if 

breaches of the terms of the licence or 

certificate are taking place. 

6.16 Similarly, it may be appropriate for any 

restrictions on the admission of children to 

be displayed on or immediately outside the 

premises so that the consequences of 

breaches of these conditions would also 

be clear and to deter those who might 

seek admission in breach of those 

conditions. 

Page 433



 

10  

 

6.17 Large capacity “vertical drinking” premises, 

sometimes called High Volume Vertical 

Drinking establishments (HVVDs), are 

premises with exceptionally high 

capacities, used primarily or exclusively for 

the sale and consumption of alcohol, and 

have little or no seating for patrons. Where 

appropriate, conditions can be attached to 

premises licences for the promotion of the 

prevention of crime and disorder at such 

premises (if not volunteered by the venue 

operator and following representations on 

such grounds) which require adherence to: 

 a prescribed capacity; 

 an appropriate ratio of tables and chairs 

to customers based on the capacity; and 

 the presence of SIA registered security 

teams to control entry for the purpose of 

compliance with the capacity limit; 

Glass Control 

6.18 Glass can be a major factor in 

disturbances around licensed premises 

and the Authority may impose special 

conditions on certain types of venue in 

relation to glass control both within the 

premises, at disposal points and through 

unauthorised removal of glass from the 

premises. 

6.19 In particular, the Authority may consider it 

appropriate to ensure licensed premises 

have regular glass collection services in 

certain types of venue and keep control of 

waste bottle/glass receptacles. 

6.20 Glass bottles may be used as weapons 

inflicting more serious harm during 

incidents of disorder. A condition can 

prevent sales of drinks in glass bottles for 

consumption on the premises. Any 

condition requiring that no sales of 

beverages in glass bottles for consumption 

on the premises should be expressed in 

clear terms and include the following 

elements: 

 no bottles containing beverages of any 

kind, whether open or sealed, shall be 

given to customers on the premises 

whether at the bar or by staff service 

away from the bar; 

 no customers carrying open or sealed 

bottles shall be admitted to the premises 

at any time that the premises are open to 

the public (note: this needs to be carefully 

worded where off-sales also take place); 

6.21 In appropriate circumstances, the 

condition could include exceptions, for 

example:  

 bottles containing wine, being sold for 

consumption with a table meal by 

customers who are seated in an area set 

aside from the main bar area for the 

consumption of food; 

6.22 Glasses containing drinks may be used as 

weapons during incidents of disorder and 

in un-toughened form can cause very 

serious injuries. Therefore, consideration 

could be given to conditions requiring 

either the use of plastic containers or 

toughened glass which inflicts less severe 

injuries. Location and style of the venue 

and the activities carried on there would be 

particularly important in assessing whether 

a condition is necessary. For example,  

 the use of glass containers on the 

terraces of some outdoor sports grounds  

 indoor sports events such as boxing 

matches.  

 the use plastic containers or toughened 

glass during televised sporting events, 

such as international football matches,  

6.23 It should be noted that the use of plastic or 

paper drinks containers and toughened glass 

may also be relevant as measures 

appropriate to promote public safety. 

Page 434



 

11  

 

Door Supervision  

6.24 Conditions relating to the provision of door 

supervisors and security teams are 

valuable in town centre locations and 

premises operating after 11.00pm in: 

 preventing the admission and ensuring 

the departure from the premises of the 

drunk and disorderly, without causing 

further disorder; 

 keeping out excluded individuals (subject 

to court bans or imposed by the licence 

holder); 

 searching and excluding those suspected 

of carrying illegal drugs, or carrying 

offensive weapons; and 

 maintaining orderly queuing outside of 

venues prone to such queuing. 

6.25 Where door supervisors conducting 

security activities are to be a condition of a 

licence, conditions may also need to deal 

with the number of such supervisors, the 

displaying of name badges, the carrying of 

proof of registration, where and at what 

times they should be stationed on the 

premises, and whether at least one female 

supervisor should be available (for 

example, if female customers are to be the 

subject of body searches). Door 

supervisors also have a role to play in 

ensuring public safety.  

6.26 All door supervisors employed at licensed 

premises will need to be registered with the 

Security Industry Authority or, if 

superseded, its successor; and will be 

expected to display their identification as 

issued by the Security Industry Authority. 

Drugs 

6.27 In light of relevant representations 

received, special conditions may be 

imposed for certain types of venues to 

prevent the sale and consumption of drugs 

and to create a safer environment for those 

who may have taken them. In all cases 

where these conditions are to be imposed, 

advice will be taken from the Oldham Drug 

and Alcohol Action Team and the Police. 

6.28 The Authority may also impose special 

conditions for certain types of venue 

relating to access for customers to drug 

testing kits, particularly for the prevention of 

drug assisted sexual assault. In all cases 

where these conditions are to be imposed, 

advice will be taken from the Oldham Drug 

and Alcohol Action Team and the Police. 

6.29 The role of club owners, managers and 

event promoters is to ensure that all 

aspects of their venue are designed and 

run in ways, which maximize the safety of 

customers, performers and staff. Any 

conditions relating to these types of venues 

will take into account the "Safer Clubbing" 

guidelines issued by the Home Office and 

annexes J and K of the guidance issued 

under section 182 of the Licensing Act 

2003. 

6.30 Key activities of club owners, managers 

and event promoters include: - 

 communicating all safety requirements 

clearly to performers ensuring that they 

are familiar with and understand the 

safety requirements for the venue; 

 developing a constructive working 

relationship with licensing authority 

officers and police officers with licensing 

responsibilities; 

 developing a venue drug policy in 

consultation with licensing and police 

officers; 

 ensuring that all staff are aware of their 

responsibilities within the drug policy and 

that they receive training and support to 

discharge these fully; 

 employing door supervisors from a 

reputable company and with Security 

Industry Authority accreditation; 

 employing experienced and fully trained 

first aiders; 

 providing free and easily accessible 

supplies of cold water and ensuring the 

provision of water is supervised to prevent 

contamination of water by others; 

 liaising with appropriate drug service 

Page 435



 

12  

 

personnel to provide training to staff, and 

information, advice and support to 

clubbers; 

 considering inviting and supporting drug 

outreach work, including integrating 

outreach workers into the staff team; 

 sharing intelligence on drug use and drug 

dealing with police officers and other local 

venues;  

 informing clubbers of their rights and 

responsibilities, and encouraging 

feedback on safety issues; 

  considering the provision of safe transport 

home; 

 ensuring that all staff are aware of the law 

and the responsibilities of the club to work 

within it. 

Protect Duty 

6.31 At the time of issuing this policy statement the 

Council is aware that a consultation has 

recently been launched by HM Government in 

relation to a proposed protect duty. 

6.32 This duty, through legislation, would compel 

operators and owners of premises such as 

entertainment and sports venues, tourist 

attractions, large retail stores, operators of 

parks, pedestrianised areas, town squares to 

give considerations to security implications 

and assess threats and implement 

appropriate mitigating measures.   

6.33 Whilst it is acknowledged that decisions have 

yet to be taken on this issue security is a high 

priority for the Government and that 

legislation of some kind is highly likely to 

follow.  

6.34 It is for that reason that we would ask 

operators of licensed premises/venues and 

open spaces to consider the threats they 

could face and consider some examples of 

good practice as outlined in possible. 

conditions to licences in Appendix 1 to this 

licensing policy statement. 

 

 Public Safety 

7.1 Fire precautions and means of escape from 

licensed premises are particularly 

important. Large numbers of people, some 

of whom may be under the influence of 

alcohol, must be safely contained, 

managed and, if necessary, evacuated 

from premises. Due regard must be had to 

these issues. The attachment of conditions 

to a premises licence or club premises 

certificate will not in any way relieve 

employers of the statutory duty to comply 

with the requirements of other legislation 

including the Health and Safety at Work 

etc. Act 1974, associated regulations and 

especially the requirements under the 

Management of Health and Safety at Work 

Regulations 1999 and the Regulatory 

Reform Fire Safety Order 2005 to 

undertake risk assessments. Employers 

should assess the risks, including risks 

from fire, and take measures necessary to 

avoid and control these risks.  

7.2 When addressing public safety the 

applicant should initially identify any 

particular issues (having regard to their 

particular type of premises and/or 

activities), which are likely to adversely 

affect the promotion of the public safety 

objective. Such steps as are required to 

deal with these identified issues should be 

included within the applicant’s Operating 

Schedule. 

7.3 It is also recognised that special issues 

may arise in connection with outdoor and 

large scale events. Whether or not any risk 

assessment shows any of the measures to 

be necessary in the individual 

circumstances of any premises will depend 

on a range of factors including the nature 

and style of the venue, the activities being 

conducted there, the location of the 

premises and the anticipated clientele of 

Page 436



 

13  

 

the business involved. 

7.4 However, in consulting these texts, some of 

which were prepared prior to the coming 

into force of the Licensing Act 2003, those 

creating Operating Schedules or club 

Operating Schedules, licensing authorities 

and responsible authorities should again 

note that under no circumstances should 

any conditions be regarded as standard for 

all premises. 

7.5 Fire safety guides can be purchased from 

any good book shop or downloaded free 

from http://www.manchesterfire.gov.uk/  

7.6 For Health and Safety advice please refer 

to the Health and Safety Executives 

website at http://www.hse.gov.uk/  

7.7 Any individual preparing an Operating 

Schedule or club Operating Schedule is at 

liberty to volunteer any measure, such as 

those described below, as a step he or she 

intends to take to promote the licensing 

objectives.  

7.8 In certain premises where existing 

legislation does not provide adequately for 

the safety of the staff or others lawfully on 

the premises, consideration should also be 

given to conditions that deal with Living 

accommodation attached to or accessed 

via Licensed Premises, such as: 

 ensuring that sufficient fire safety 

arrangements are in place to detect and 

warn occupants and all other relevant 

persons 

 ensuring adequate fire separation and 

means of escape is provided between the 

mixes use premises. 

In certain premises where existing 

legislation does not provide adequately for 

the safety of the public, consideration might 

also be given to conditions that ensure that: 

 when disabled people are present, 

adequate arrangements exist to enable 

their safe evacuation in the event of an 

emergency; and 

 disabled people on the premises are 

made aware of those arrangements. 

7.9 Premises should not be altered in such a 

way as to make it impossible to comply with 

an existing licence condition without first 

seeking a variation of the premises licence 

proposing the deletion of the condition 

relating to public safety in question. The 

applicant will need to propose in a new 

Operating Schedule reflecting the proposed 

alteration to the premises how he or she 

intends to take alternative steps to promote 

the public safety objective. The application 

for variation will enable the responsible 

authorities with expertise in safety matters 

to consider whether the proposal is 

acceptable. 

7.10 The use of special effects in venues of all 

kinds being used for regulated 

entertainment is increasingly common and 

can present significant risks. Any special 

effects or mechanical installation should be 

arranged and stored so as to minimise any 

risk to the safety of the audience, the 

performers and staff. Specials effects which 

should be considered include: 

 dry ice machines and cryogenic fog; 

 smoke machines and fog generators; 

 pyrotechnics, including fireworks; 

 real flame; 

 firearms; 

 motor vehicles; 

 strobe lighting; 

 lasers (see HSE Guide The Radiation 

Safety of lasers used for display purposes 

[HS(G)95] and BS EN 60825: Safety of 

laser products); 

 explosives and highly flammable 

substances; 

7.11 In certain circumstances, it may be 

appropriate to require that certain special 

effects are only used with the prior 

notification of the licensing authority or the 

fire authority. 

7.12 In certain premises where existing 

legislation does not provide adequately for 

Page 437

http://www.hse.gov.uk/


 

14  

 

the safety of the public or club members 

and guests, consideration might also be 

given to conditions that deal with: 

 the adequacy of transportation 

arrangements to ensure customers are 

able to travel safely to and from the 

premises (including procedures for 

preventing people from consuming excess 

alcohol and driving); 

 ensuring that any arrangements or 

advertising of taxis and private hire 

vehicles only relate to such vehicles 

licensed by the Authority. 

 Public Nuisance  

8.1 The Act covers a wide variety of premises 

that require licences, including cinemas, 

concert halls, theatres, nightclubs, public 

houses, cafes, restaurants, fast food outlets 

and takeaways. Each of these premises will 

present a mixture of risks, with many 

common to most premises and others 

unique to specific operations. It is essential 

that premises are constructed or adapted 

and maintained so as to acknowledge and 

safeguard occupants against these risks as 

far as is practicable. 

8.2 When addressing public nuisance, the 

applicant should initially identify any 

particular issues (having regard to their 

particular type of premises and/or 

activities), which are likely to adversely 

affect the promotion of the public nuisance 

objective. Such steps as are required to 

deal with these identified issues should be 

included within the applicant’s Operating 

Schedule. 

8.3 If relevant representations are received, the 

Authority may impose conditions to prevent 

nuisance, noise, disturbance, light pollution, 

noxious smells, vermin and pest 

infestations and accumulations of rubbish 

and litter. 

8.4 When applicants for premises licences or 

club premises certificates are preparing 

their Operating Schedules or club 

Operating Schedules, or responsible 

authorities are considering such 

applications or licensing authorities are 

considering applications following the 

receipt of relevant representations from a 

responsible authority or interested party, 

the following options should be considered 

as measures that, if necessary, would 

promote the prevention of public nuisance. 

Whether or not any risk assessment shows 

them to be necessary in the individual 

circumstances of any premises will depend 

on a range of factors including the nature 

and style of the venue, the activities being 

conducted there, the location of the 

premises and the anticipated clientele of 

the business involved. 

8.5 In certain premises where existing 

legislation does not provide adequately for 

the prevention of public nuisance, 

consideration might be given to conditions 

that ensure that: 

 noise or vibration does not emanate from 

the premises so as to cause a nuisance to 

nearby properties. This might be achieved 

by a simple requirement to keep doors 

and windows at the premises closed, or to 

use noise limiters on amplification 

equipment used at the premises; 

 prominent, clear and legible notices are 

displayed at all exits requesting the public 

to respect the needs of local residents and 

to leave the premises and the area 

quietly; 

 the use of explosives, pyrotechnics and 

fireworks of a similar nature which could 

cause disturbance in surrounding areas 

are restricted (particularly ensuring that 

firework parties are not managed by 

persons consuming alcohol, that adequate 

safety precautions are in place, that 

fireworks are not set off between 2300hrs 

and 0700hrs (except on 31st December/1st 

January); and 

 the placing of refuse – such as bottles – 

into receptacles outside the premises 

takes place at times that will minimise the 

disturbance to nearby properties. 

Page 438



 

15  

 

8.6 In certain premises where existing 

legislation does not provide adequately for 

the prevention of public nuisance, 

consideration might be given to conditions 

that ensure that noxious smells from 

licensed premises are not permitted so as 

to cause a nuisance to nearby properties 

and the premises are properly vented. 

8.7 In certain premises where existing 

legislation does not provide adequately for 

the prevention of public nuisance, 

consideration might be given to conditions 

that ensure that flashing or particularly 

bright lights on or outside licensed 

premises do not cause a nuisance to 

nearby properties. Any such condition will 

be balanced against the benefits to the 

prevention of crime and disorder of bright 

lighting in certain places. 

8.8 Conditions may include restrictions on the 

times when music or other licensable 

activities may take place and may include 

technical restrictions on sound levels at the 

premises. Conditions may be imposed 

requiring licensees to display signs at all 

exits of premises reminding customers to 

leave premises quietly and to respect the 

rights of nearby residents.

Page 439



 

16  

 

 Protection of Children 

from Harm 

9.1 The protection of children from harm is a 

national licensing objective. The term 

“Children” refers to all babies, children and 

any young people i.e. from birth till their 18th 

birthday. Although the licensing act uses the 

words “child protection” or “protecting children 

from harm” it relates to safeguarding children 

and young people in its widest sense. 

Likewise, it is not only associated with the 

sale of alcohol to children but can include 

Sexual Exploitation and Criminal Exploitation 

9.2 The Government state that everyone working 

in an environment where there may be 

children present should safeguard and 

promote the well-being of children. To do this 

all adults must follow the Government 

Guidance published by the DfES (Department 

for Education and Skills) “What To Do If 

You’re Worried A Child Is Being Abused” The 

publication can be attained from the DfE 

website: 

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/syste

m/uploads/attachment_data/file/419604/What

_to_do_if_you_re_worried_a_child_is_being_

abused.pdf 

9.3 The Authority recognises the wide variety 

of premises for which licences may be 

granted. It also recognises that there are 

many circumstances where it is appropriate 

for children to be present on licensed 

premises and seeks to encourage their 

access to constructive leisure pursuits, 

which support the social fabric of the 

Borough. It also recognises that there are 

circumstances where it is appropriate to 

limit or prevent access by children for the 

prevention of harm. 

9.4 When addressing the protection of children, 

the applicant should initially identify any 

particular issues (having regard to their 

particular type of premises and/or 

activities), which are likely to cause 

concern in relation to children. Such steps 

as are required to deal with these identified 

concerns should be included within the 

applicant’s Operating Schedule. 

9.5 The Authority will not impose conditions, 

which restrict or prevent access by children 

unless this is appropriate to promote the 

‘licensing objectives’.  

 in determining a ‘specified cut-off time’, 

the Authority will take into account: 

 the concerns of responsible authorities 

and interested persons who have made 

representations; 

 the steps set out in an operating schedule 

which the licensee will take to protect 

children from harm on such premises; and 

 the type of event for which no age 

restriction may be needed e.g. family 

entertainment; non alcohol events. 

9.6 In respect of all licensed premises where 

alcohol is usually supplied for consumption 

on the premises and in the light of any 

relevant representations being received, 

very careful consideration will be given by 

the Authority before permitting children 

under 16 years, who are unaccompanied 

by an adult, to be or remain on the 

premises after 9:00pm; even when there 

are no supplies of alcohol taking place 

(such as ‘teen discos’ etc). This is intended 

as an upper limit and does not imply that 

this limit will be permitted for all relevant 

applications. In any event each case will be 

dealt with on its own merits. 

9.7 There will be a strong presumption against 

access by persons under 18 to premises 

where any of the following apply: 

 convictions for serving alcohol to minors 

or premises with a reputation for, or 

inadequate arrangements to deter, under-

age drinking; 

Page 440

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/419604/What_to_do_if_you_re_worried_a_child_is_being_abused.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/419604/What_to_do_if_you_re_worried_a_child_is_being_abused.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/419604/What_to_do_if_you_re_worried_a_child_is_being_abused.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/419604/What_to_do_if_you_re_worried_a_child_is_being_abused.pdf


 

17  

 

 a known association with, or inadequate 

arrangements to deter, drug taking or 

dealing; 

 a strong element of gambling on the 

premises; 

 entertainment of an adult or sexual nature 

is provided; 

 inadequate arrangements to protect 

children from supply and use of other 

products which it is illegal to supply to 

children or the harmful effects of passive 

smoking; or 

 in the opinion of the Authority, there are 

inadequate controls on the times during 

which children may be present on the 

premises; 

9.8 The Authority’s options would include, 

amongst other things: 

 limitations on the hours when children 

may be present; 

 age limitations below 18; 

 limitations or exclusions when certain 

activities are taking place; 

 access limited to parts of the premises; 

 Requirements for accompanying adults; 

and 

 full exclusion of people under 18 from the 

premises when any licensable activities 

are taking place. 

 

9.9 No conditions will be imposed to the effect 

that children must be admitted to licensed 

premises. 

9.10 In certain premises where existing 

legislation does not provide adequately for 

the protection of children from harm, 

consideration might also be given to 

conditions that deal with: 

 the prevention of unlawful supply, 

consumption and use of alcohol and drugs 

and any other products that it is illegal to 

supply to children; and 

 premises restrictions on the access by 

children to the whole or any part of the 

premises, including times when children 

may not be present; 

9.11 Under the Act a wide variety of licensable 

activities could take place at various types 

of premises and at different times of the 

day and night. Whilst it may be appropriate 

to allow children unrestricted access at 

particular times and when certain activities 

are not taking place, the Authority following 

relevant representations made by 

responsible authorities and interested 

parties, will consider a range of conditions 

that are tailored to the particular premises 

and their activities where these are 

necessary. These could include: 

 the hours of day during which age 

restrictions should and should not apply. 

For example, the fact that adult 

entertainment may be presented at 

premises after 8.00pm does not mean that 

it would be necessary to impose age 

restrictions for earlier parts of the day; 

 types of event or activity in respect of 

which no age restrictions may be needed, 

for example family entertainment or non-

alcohol events for young age groups, such 

as under 18s dances; and/or 

 Similarly, types of event or activity, which 

give rise to a more acute need for age 

restrictions than normal, for example; 

during “Happy Hours” or on drinks 

promotion nights. 

9.12 Proof of age cards are relevant to both the 

prevention of crime and disorder and the 

protection of children from harm. However, 

where necessary and appropriate, a 

requirement for the production of proof of 

age cards before any sale of alcohol is 

made could be attached to any premises 

licence or club premises certificate for the 

protection of children from harm. Any such 

requirement will not be limited to 

recognised “proof of age” cards, but allow 

for the production of other proof, such as 

photo-driving licences and passports.  

Page 441



 

18  

 

9.13 The Authority strongly supports the PASS 

accreditation system which aims to approve 

and accredit various ‘proof of age’ schemes 

that are in existence. This ensures that 

such schemes maintain high standards, 

particularly in the area of integrity and 

security, and where appropriate and 

necessary, conditions may refer directly to 

PASS accredited proof of age cards, photo-

driving licences, student cards and 

passports.  

9.14 Proof of age cards can also ensure that 

appropriate checks are made where the 

presence of children is restricted by age at 

certain times. 

9.15 Challenge 25 builds on the highly 

successful Challenge 21 campaign 

developed by  the ‘Retail of Alcohol 

Standards Group’ in 2005. The Authority 

strongly supports the use of a ‘Challenge 

25’ policy for all premises that supply 

alcohol.  

9.16 Premises should check with the Licensing 

Authority for the availability of free 

resources relating to ‘Challenge 25’. 

Do-You-Pass training  

9.17 Please see sections 11.8 of this policy for 

information relating to the do-you-pass 

training module.  

Children and Entertainment 

9.18 The Authority will impose conditions in 

accordance with section 20 of the Act to 

prevent the viewing of films by children 

below the age of any restriction for that film 

as classified according to the 

recommendations of the British Board of 

Film Classification (BBFC) or the Authority, 

as the case may be. 

9.19 The Authority considers that, in addition to 

the mandatory condition imposed by virtue 

of section 20, requiring the admission of 

children to films to be restricted in 

accordance with recommendations given 

either by BBFC or by the licensing authority 

itself, conditions restricting the admission of 

children to film exhibitions should include a 

condition: 

 that where the licensing authority itself is 

to make recommendations on the 

admission of children to films, the cinema 

or venue operator must submit any film to 

the authority that it intends to exhibit 28 

days before it is proposed to show it. This 

is to allow the authority time to classify it 

so that the premises licence holder is able 

to adhere to any age restrictions then 

imposed; 

 that when a licensing authority has made 

a recommendation on the restriction of 

admission of children to a film, notices are 

required to be displayed both inside and 

outside the premises so that persons 

entering can readily be made aware of the 

classification attached to any film or 

trailer. 

9.20 Where entertainment aimed specifically at 

children takes place, the licensee must take 

all reasonable steps to maintain the safety 

of the children on the premises. The 

licensee must ensure that there are 

sufficient adult supervisors, with sufficient 

experience, in place to provide an 

adequate level of safety bearing in mind the 

number and ages of the children involved 

and any other issues such as disabilities 

that the children may have. 

9.21 The admission of children to theatres, as 

with other licensed premises, will not 

normally be restricted unless it is necessary 

to promote the licensing objective of the 

protection of children from harm. However, 

theatres may be the venue for a wide range 

of activities. The admission of children to 

the performance of a play will be left to the 

discretion of the licence holder and no 

condition restricting the access of children 

to plays will be attached. However, theatres 

may also present entertainment including, 

for example, variety shows, incorporating 

adult entertainment. A condition restricting 

the admission of children in such 

circumstances may be necessary. 

Page 442



 

19  

 

Entertainment may also be presented at 

theatres specifically for children. 

9.22 The Authority will also consider whether a 

condition should be attached to a premises 

licence which requires the presence of a 

sufficient number of adult staff on the 

premises to ensure the well being of 

children present on the premises during 

any  emergency  

9.23 Where performances are presented 

especially for unaccompanied children in 

theatres and cinemas conditions are 

anticipated to be needed which require an 

attendant to be stationed in the area(s) 

occupied by the children, in the vicinity of 

each exit, provided that on each level 

occupied by children the minimum number 

of attendants on duty should be one 

attendant per 50 children or part thereof. 

The Authority will have regard to any 

representations made by responsible 

authorities on the issue, to also consider 

whether or not standing should be allowed. 

For example, there may be reduced risk for 

children in the stalls than at other levels or 

areas in the building. 

There are many productions each year that 

are one-off shows where the cast is made 

up almost entirely of children. They may be 

taking part as individuals or as part of a 

drama club, stage school or school group. 

The age of those involved may range from 

5 to 18. The Children (Performances) 

Regulations 1968 as amended set out 

requirements for children performing in a 

show. The Licensing Authority will not 

duplicate any of these requirements. 

However, the Licensing Authority may, if it 

is appropriate, consider imposing 

conditions in addition to these 

requirements, for the promotion of the 

protection of children from harm. 

 Child Sexual 

Exploitation (CSE) 

10.1 Alcohol is often a factor in Child Sexual 

Exploitation (CSE), where young people may 

be encouraged or coerced to drink, or alcohol 

may be a factor in risk-taking behaviour by 

young people who drink irresponsibly and 

then get involved in activities that otherwise 

they would not. The use of harmful or illicit 

substances (drugs) can also be a factor in 

CSE, as young people may be encouraged, 

coerced or feel they have no choice but to 

engage in drug use to then become involved 

in activities that they would not ordinarily do 

so. Whilst indicators for child sexual 

exploitation can sometimes be mistaken for 

‘normal adolescent behaviours’; if a child feels 

they have no other meaningful choice, are 

under the influence of alcohol or drugs or 

fearful of what may happen if they do not 

comply, then they cannot legally consent to 

the activity being asked of them.  

10.2 Nationally, evidence has been found of the 

sexual exploitation of children taking place on 

licensed premises and licensed premises 

being used for the purposes of grooming and 

enticement. 

10.3 The licensing authority encourages licence 

holders and operators of licensed premises: 

 To ensure that they are fully aware of the 

signs of child sexual exploitation and to 

understand that the sexual exploitation of 

a child is sexual abuse and a crime 

 To raise the awareness of their staff about 

child sexual exploitation and provide 

intelligence for the appropriate authorities 

about concerns, including perpetrators 

who may be operating in their areas. The 

risks vary depending on the style and 

character of the business but premises 

can be involved in the following ways: 

 If an adult venue (night clubs or sex 

entertainment venue) is frequented by 

underage customers this can attract 

Page 443



 

20  

 

perpetrators; or if a premises (or event) 

hosts under 18 events or mixed age 

activities; 

 Where underage drinking takes place, 

children and young people are vulnerable 

as their judgement is impaired; 

 There is a risk of CSE at premises where 

goods or services can be offered in 

exchange for sexual favours (such as free 

food, transport, drinks, cigarettes, or free 

access to a venue). This can happen if a 

perpetrator is employed there (or works 

voluntarily) and has regular or private 

contact with children; 

 Children and young people are vulnerable 

in areas of premises that are not 

monitored (such as toilets, beer gardens); 

 Risk may present if information 

technology is in use at a premises 

(internet, mobile phones/cameras/video 

recorders); 

 Premises providing facilities for private 

parties, private dancing/entertainment 

booths or overnight accommodation may 

be vulnerable to child sexual exploitation. 

 Ensure efficient entry and dispersal 

procedures are in place so that young 

people are not left in a vulnerable position 

outside of the premises. 

 Ensure any transport/taxi provisions that 

are outside of a venue are a locally 

sourced transport link, easily identifiable 

and, preferably, a booked provision.  

 Ensure a policy is in place for dealing with 

under 18’s who appear to be under the 

influence of drugs or alcohol which 

incorporates the level of duty of care 

expected to be provided. 

 

 

 Child Criminal 

Exploitation (CCE) 

11.1 Alcohol and drugs can also feature strongly in 

Child Criminal Exploitation (CCE); criminal 

exploitation includes County Lines but also includes 

children being coerced and manipulated into 

criminal activity, such as to courier drugs and 

money. Children and young people can be recruited 

through deception, intimidation, violence, debt 

and/or grooming. It is understood that children and 

young people are utilised in the dealing of drugs as 

the children/young people are a relatively 

inexpensive resource and can be easily controlled. 

Evidence can be found that criminal exploitation of 

children and young people can be found in licensed 

premises as the children and young people are 

encouraged to sell drugs in these settings, at 

entertainment functions, in toilet areas or darkened 

areas that facilitate music and dancing.  

11.2 The licensing authority encourages licence    

 holders and operators of licensed premises:  

• To ensure that they are fully aware of the signs of 

child criminal exploitation and to understand that the 

exploitation of a child is a crime and that the child 

may well be fearful of repercussions and is not in a 

position to say no.  

• To raise the awareness of their staff about child 

criminal exploitation and provide intelligence for the 

appropriate authorities about concerns, including 

perpetrators (gangs, drug dealers) who may be 

operating in their areas. 

 

 Selling Alcohol 

Responsibly 

Drinks Promotions  

12.1 Schedule 4 to the Policing and Crime Act 

2009, and the Licensing Act 2003 

(Mandatory Licensing Conditions) 

(Amendment) Order 2014, mandatory 

conditions relating to drinks promotions. 

The Home  Office has issued guidance on 

Page 444



 

21  

 

these conditions which can be found on the 

Home Office website -

www.homeoffice.gov.uk 

12.2  When considering any relevant 

representations which demonstrate a clear 

causal link between sales promotions or 

discounting and levels of crime and disorder 

on or in the vicinity of the premises, it would 

be appropriate for the Licensing Authority to 

consider whether the imposition of a new 

condition prohibiting irresponsible sales 

promotions or discounting of prices of 

alcoholic beverages is necessary at those 

premises.  

12.3 The Portman Group operates, on behalf of 

the alcohol industry, a Code of Practice on 

the Naming, Packaging and Promotion of 

Alcoholic Drinks. The Code seeks to 

ensure that drinks are packaged and 

promoted in a socially responsible manner 

and only to those who are 18 years old or 

older.  

12.4 Complaints about products under the Code 

are considered by an Independent 

Complaints Panel. If a product’s packaging 

or point-of-sale advertising is found to be in 

breach of the Code, the Portman Group 

may issue a ‘Retailer Alert Bulletin’ to notify 

retailers of the decision and ask them not to 

replenish stocks of any such product or to 

display such point-of-sale material, until the 

decision has been complied with.  

12.5 By addresses the naming, marketing and 

promotion of alcohol products, the Code is 

seen as an important mechanism in 

protecting children from harm.  

12.6 Where appropriate and necessary, 

consideration may be given to attaching 

conditions to premises licences and club 

premises certificates that require 

compliance with the Portman Group’s 

‘Retailer Alert Bulletins’. 

12.7 The Authority will not use the Licensing 

Policy to control prices or hinder free and 

fair competition in licensed trade. 

Do-You-Pass Training 

12.8 The ‘Do-You-Pass’ training module is part of 

the ‘Trading Standards Institutes’ (‘TSI’) fair 

trading award.  

12.9 The training is delivered by TSI accredited 

trainers in a two-and-a-half hour session, 

which includes a short examination, assessed 

and certificated by the TSI.  

12.10 The interactive training focuses on the main 

issues affecting every retailer of age-restricted 

products, such as: 

 what the law requires of business and 

staff; 

 proxy sales; 

 steps can take to avoid making illegal 

sales: 

i) challenge 25; 

ii) checking and accepting proof of 

age cards; 

iii) use of refusal logs; 

iv) staff training; 

12.11 Applicants, existing licence holders and 

staff working in, premises licensed under 

the Licensing Act 2003, are recommended 

to undertake such training in order to show 

due diligence.  

12.12 In light of relevant representations received 

where the sale of alcohol directly to a person 

underage, or via a proxy sale, is a factor, 

consideration may be given to making it a 

condition on a licence that the licence holder, 

and any staff employed by the licence holder, 

attend and complete the ‘do-you-pass’ 

training module. 

Written and Spoken English  

12.13 The Licensing Authority considers it 

reasonable that those who hold licences and 

persons involved in the sale of alcohol are 

able to understand the terms of the licence 

and their legal obligations. It is also expected 

that those making sales of alcohol can 

understand and converse in the English 

language and be able to read and write in 

Page 445

http://www.homeoffice.gov.uk/


 

22  

 

English so as to be able to complete 

documents such as refusals books and read 

training guides. 

12.14 Where relevant representations are made, 

and a lack of understanding of basic written 

and  / or spoken English is a factor in those 

representations, consideration may, if 

appropriate, be given to attaching 

conditions to premises licences and club 

premises certificates that require the 

licence holder and staff connected with the 

business, attend a ‘Basic Skills’ course. 

This would be at cost to the applicant.  

Reduce the Strength Campaign 

12.15 The Licensing Authority, together with Local 

Authority Partners, are working together to 

look at the impact of ‘high strength / low cost’ 

alcohol.  

12.16 The sale of beer, wine or cider with an ABV of 

6% or above is discouraged. Where there are 

concerns about the sale of high strength 

alcohol in certain areas of the Borough the 

Licensing Authority may seek to impose a 

condition on a premises licence to restrict the 

sale of such alcohol.  

12.17 In addition, the introduction of The Licensing 

Act 2003 (Mandatory Conditions) Order 2014, 

introduces a mandatory condition banning the 

sale of alcohol below the cost of duty plus 

VAT. Guidance on this new mandatory 

condition can be found on the www.gov.uk 

website.  

 

Alcohol Delivery Services 

12.18 The Licensing Authority is aware of the 

increase in alcohol delivery services, not just 

from supermarkets but from specialist alcohol 

retailers or food delivery outlets. 

12.19 Such business, whilst many are operated very 

well, can cause concern due to their method 

of operation and applicants should consider 

very carefully how they promote the licensing 

objectives, particularly the protection of 

children from harm. The sale or delivery of 

alcohol to children should be avoided at all 

cost and practices put into place to ensure 

alcohol does not get into the hands of 

children. A strict Challenge 25 scheme should 

be put into place and a strong training 

programme on under age sales deliveries. 

 Opening Hours 

13.1 The Authority will deal with licensing hours 

on the merits of each individual application. 

No application to transfer an existing 

licence will result in a reduction of licensed 

hours. 

13.2 The Authority recognises that variable 

licensing hours for the sale of alcohol may 

be desirable to ensure that concentrations 

of customers leaving premises 

simultaneously are avoided. This is 

necessary to reduce friction at late night 

fast food outlets, taxi ranks and other 

sources of transport, which leads to 

disorder and disturbance. 

13.3 The Authority is keen to promote a safe, 

thriving and diverse night-time economy, 

both within Oldham Town Centre and 

elsewhere in the Borough. Should opening 

hours compromise any of the licensing 

objectives then responsible bodies or 

interested parties are entitled to lodge a 

review application. 

13.4 Appropriately licensed shops, stores and 

supermarkets will normally be permitted to 

sell alcohol during their normal trading 

hours, for consumption off premises, where 

consistent with the Authority’s ‘licensing 

objectives’. 

 

13.5 Where relevant representations are 

received, limitations may be imposed, for 

Page 446

http://www.gov.uk/


 

23  

 

example in the case of specific premises 

known to be a focus of disorder and 

disturbance late at night. 

13.6 Stricter conditions with regard to licensing 

hours may be required for licensed 

premises situated in or immediately 

adjacent to residential areas to ensure that 

disturbance to local residents is avoided. 

This will particularly apply in circumstances 

where, having regard to the location, size 

and nature of the licensed premises, it is 

likely that disturbance will be caused to 

residents in the vicinity of the premises by 

concentrations of people leaving during 

normal night time sleeping periods 

(11:30pm-7:00am). 

13.7 The Authority requests that any applicants 

in respect of premises supplying take-away 

food, who also wish to supply alcohol for 

consumption off the premises between the 

hours of 11.00pm and 5.00am, pay 

particular attention in their Operating 

Schedules to crime and disorder and public 

nuisance caused by patrons leaving the 

premises.  

13.8 This policy acknowledges that Central 

Government have introduced a 

discretionary power that enables Local 

Authorities to introduce ‘Early Morning 

Alcohol Restriction Orders’ (‘EMARO’). If 

introduced, an EMARO restricts the time 

after which alcohol may be sold or 

supplied. The time is set by the Licensing 

Authority but has to be between midnight 

and 06:00; and would apply to Premises 

Licences, Club Premises Certificates or 

Temporary Event Notices. 

 

 

 Cumulative Impact  

14.1 The Authority may refuse applications for 

premises licences where representations 

are received from a Responsible Authority 

or interested party that the issue of a 

licence may, due to a concentration of 

premises in an area, result in exceptional 

problems for that area to the detriment of 

the Authority’s licensing objectives. In such 

cases, the Authority may adopt a Special 

Saturation Policy in accordance with the 

provisions of the Act. 

14.2 The Authority recognises that saturation 

policies can curtail expansion of supply in 

certain areas, but can also have the effect 

of removing improvement pressures from 

increased competition on poorly performing 

businesses. The Authority also recognises 

that a saturation policy could apply to a 

particular type of premises (such as off 

licences) and that any interested party or 

responsible body is entitled to make 

representations on the cumulative impact of 

a new application notwithstanding that a 

saturation policy is not in place. It is for any 

person making such representations to 

provide evidence to the Authority that the 

addition of the premises concerned would 

cause the cumulative impact claimed. 

When considering such representations, 

the Authority will:- 

 identify any serious and chronic concern; 

 identify the area from which problems are 

arising and the boundaries of that area; 

 make an assessment of the causes; 

 consider adopting a policy about future 

licence applications from that area; 

14.3 In the event of determining a Cumulative 

Impact Policy, the Authority will continue to 

consider each application for a licence on 

its merits and may decide that a particular 

application would not add significantly to 

the cumulative impact and grant an 

application notwithstanding a Special 

Saturation Policy being in place. 

 

14.4 The Authority recognises that the 

assessment of commercial need is a matter 

for market forces and not a matter for 

licensing controls. However, the cumulative 

impact of licensed premises on the 

Page 447



 

24  

 

promotion of the licensing objectives is a 

proper matter for the Authority to consider. 

14.5 At this time Oldham Council has no 

Cumulative Impact policy in place.  

14.6 Should the Council look to introduce such a 

policy, consultation will take place in 

accordance with any relevant legislation 

and / or statutory guidance.  

 

 Late Night Levy  

15.1 The Police reform and Social Responsibility 

Act 2011introduced the power for the 

Licensing Authority to charge a late night levy 

(“the levy”) to all premises within the Borough 

of Oldham. 

15.2 The late night levy is a discretionary power 

allowing the Council to collect an annual fee 

from all licensed premises in the Borough that 

are authorised to sell alcohol between the 

hours of midnight and 6am as a means of 

raising a contribution towards the costs of 

policing the night time economy.  

15.3 The provisions relating to the Late Night Levy 

come into force on the 31st October 2012. As 

the powers are discretionary the Council, in its 

capacity as Licensing Authority, must decide 

whether to introduce them; and in accordance 

with the 2011 Act, in making that decision the 

Council must consider:- 

a) the cost of policing and other 

arrangements for reduction or prevention 

of crime and disorder in connection with 

the supply of alcohol between midnight 

and 06:00am; and 

b) having regard to those costs, is there a 

desire to raise revenue to cover those 

costs; 

 

15.4 In considering whether there is a ‘desire’ to 

introduce the late night levy, the Licensing 

Authority must take into account the views of 

Greater Manchester Police, the licence 

holders that will be affected by the levy and 

residents of the Borough. 

15.5 The decision to introduce, vary or cease the 

levy will be made by full Council in 

conjunction with the Greater Manchester 

Police.   

15.6 The Licensing Authority recognises that this 

levy would cover the whole of the Borough 

and not just those premises that are causing 

problems or those premises within any 

cumulative impact area. Therefore, serious 

consideration will be given to the introduction 

of the levy in light of this. Furthermore, the 

Licensing Authority will give serious 

consideration as to whether or not the levy is 

a viable proposal. 

15.7 At the time of writing this policy, the Licensing 

Authority has not had a request to consider 

introducing a late night levy, should this 

change during the life of this policy then a 

designated procedure would be applied to 

determine if late night levy is appropriate.   

 

1.  

 Early Morning Alcohol 

Restriction Orders 

16.1 The power to make, vary or revoke an Early 

Morning Alcohol Restriction Order (‘EMRO’) is 

set out in section 172A to 172E of the 

Licensing Act 2003. This power was brought 

into force on the 31st October 2012 and the 

government has provided guidance as part of 

the section 182 ‘Guidance to Licensing 

Authorities’. 

16.2 An EMRO enable a licensing authority to 

prohibit the sale of alcohol for a specified time 

period between the hours of 12am and 6am in 

the whole or part of its area, if it is satisfied 

that this would be appropriate for the 

promotion of the licensing objectives.  

Page 448



 

25  

 

16.3 EMROs are designed to address recurring 

problems such as high levels of alcohol 

related crime and disorder in specific areas at 

specific times; serious public nuisance and 

other instances of alcohol related anti-social 

behaviour which is not directly attributable to 

specific premises.  

16.4 It is the Council’s intention to support 

businesses rather than hinder them whilst 

ensuring promotion of the licensing 

objectives. However, where this has deemed 

to fail then an EMRO may be considered as a 

possible solution.  

16.5 It is likely that any request for an EMRO, will 

come from Greater Manchester Police; 

however, the request may also be made by a 

number of different organisations, for example 

the request for an EMRO may originate from 

the Council its-self, a District Partnership, 

Public Health or Residents Associations.  

16.6 At the time of writing this policy, the Licensing 

Authority has not had a request to consider 

introducing an EMRO. Should this change 

during the life of this policy then a designated 

procedure would be applied to determine if an 

EMARO is appropriate.   

 

 Alcohol in Public 

Places 

17.1 The Authority has adopted powers to 

designate parts of its area as places where 

alcohol may not be consumed publicly. The 

Authority will keep designated areas under 

review. Currently, the Authority has 

designated most of the Oldham Town 

Centre area and the Failsworth and 

Hollinwood areas as places where alcohol 

may not be consumed publicly. 

17.2 In considering licence applications and 

reviews, the Authority will have regard to 

the impact of licensed premises on the 

observance of the designated area 

controls. This is likely to be particularly 

relevant to sales of alcohol in open 

containers for consumption off the 

premises and unauthorised removal of 

alcohol in open containers, which have 

been supplied for consumption on 

premises.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Live Music and 

Entertainment 

18.1 The Authority recognises that as part of 

implementing any cultural strategy as may 

from time to time apply, proper account will 

need to be taken to encourage and 

promote live music, dancing and theatre for 

the wider cultural benefit of the community. 

Conditions to be imposed on relevant 

licences will not discourage the promotion 

of such entertainment but will relate solely 

to the promotion of the licensing objectives. 

18.2 The Authority will keep the impact its policy 

is having on the promotion of live music, 

dancing, theatre, carnival events, children’s 

entertainment and performance artists 

under constant review.  

18.3 A number of public spaces with in the 

Borough have been granted a licence for, 

Page 449



 

26  

 

amongst other things, the provisions of 

regulated entertainment. For a list of these 

spaces please see the Councils website 

www.oldham.gov.uk  

18.4 The provision of music and dancing in a 

venue is a specialist function placing 

additional demands on staff and 

management. Dance floors may be a 

potential flashpoint for violence and 

disorder and should, therefore, be properly 

risk assessed to ensure a safe 

environment. The Authority will expect that 

these concerns are addressed in Operating 

Schedules so that the responsible bodies 

can make informed judgements on the 

adequacy of proposed arrangements for 

dance floors. 

18.5 The Live Music Act 2012 amends the 

Licensing Act 2003 so as to remove live 

music from the definition of ‘regulated 

entertainment’, where the following criteria 

are satisfied:- 

 there is a premises licence or club 

premises certificate in place permitting on 

sales; 

 the premises are open for the sale or 

supply of alcohol for consumption on the 

premises; 

 live music is taking place between 8am 

and 11pm; 

 if the live music is amplified, the audience 

consists of no more than 200 people 

18.6 The Live Music Act 2012 also amends the 

Licensing Act 2003 so as to create a 

general exemption that, live unamplified 

music, provided anywhere shall not be 

regarded as the provision of regulated 

entertainment if it takes place between 8am 

and 11pm, regardless of the number of 

people in the audience. 

 

 

 Boxing  

19.1  The rise in popularity of White Collar 
 Boxing has encouraged the Council to 
 provide guidance  on the Licensing 
 Authority’s expectations for any boxing 
 promoters to  consider as measures for 
 their operating schedule. 

18.2  The following is guidance for organisers of    
  boxing events in the Oldham Council area    
  regarding the issues that should be included  
  in a risk assessment: 

•  Full contact details of the organisers and 
other parties involved in the event; 

•  The medical cover that will be provided at this 
event. Will there be a Registered Doctor and 
a Paramedic provided as a minimum? Has 
the facility of providing an ambulance been 
considered for the event? The Council would 
prefer that an ambulance is provided; 

•  The medical checks that will be carried out on 
the boxers before and after the fight. The 
Council would expect all boxers taking part to 
have a medical card and competition record 
book. This should detail previous bouts, 
medical history etc.; 

•  How boxers will be matched up for the event. 
All boxers will be expected to be evenly 
matched and be in the same weight category; 

•  Details of the ring set up and who will be 
carrying this out; 

•  The numbers of referees and judges taking 
part in the event; 

•  The type and weight of boxing gloves that will 
be used by the boxers and how these will be 
inspected; 

•  What will be the safety rules for the fight and 
how these rules will be communicated to the 
boxers, coaches, trainers and other relevant 
parties; 

•  Details of the Personal Protective Equipment 
that will be worn by boxers; 

•  Actions that will be taken in an emergency 
and how parties will communicate; 

Page 450

http://www.oldham.gov.uk/


 

27  

 

•  Site checks that will be completed prior to the 

event taking place. 

 

 Event Notification 

20.1 Where events are held on Council land, the 

Council requires an event notification form 

be completed. This notification will enable 

the Authority and Partnering agencies to 

offer their expertise and support to the event 

organiser.  

20.2 You should notify the Council if your event will: 

 impact on traffic or parking; 

 take place on Council land;  

 require road closures or 'no waiting' 

restrictions; 

 have loud music;  

 provide entertainment;  

 sell food, drink or alcohol;  

 require licences e.g. street trading or sale 

of alcohol;  

 attract over 200 people;  

20.3 If your event is on private land and doesn't fall 

into one of the above categories you do not 

need to notify the Council. However, the 

Council can help advertise your event - email 

events@oldham.gov.uk  

20.4 Event notification forms can be obtained from 

the Council website at 

http://www.oldham.gov.uk/info/200204/licensi

ng/361/events and should be submitted at 

least 3 months prior to the event taking place. 

 

 

 Public Health  

21.1 Section 104 of the Police Reform and Social 

Responsibility Act 2011 and the Health and 

Social Care Act 2012, amends the 2003 Act 

so as to include a Local Authority’s ‘Public 

Health’ department as a responsible 

Authority.  

21.2 The licensing authority recognises there is no 

public health licensing objective and therefore 

cannot conduct its licensing function in order to 

promote public health. The licensing function 

can only be carried out to promote the four 

licensing objectives as set out by the Licensing 

Act 2003. 

21.3 As a responsible authority, Oldham 

Council’s public health department can 

make representations in relation to 

applications for the grant, variation, minor 

variation or review of premises licences and 

club premises certificates; in addition, public 

health may themselves seek a review of a 

premises licence. Any representation must 

be specific to the premises and cannot be a 

general objection. 

21.4 Through ensuring the responsible selling of 
alcohol, this may impact on reducing a 
person’s drinking at harmful or hazardous 
levels. However, it is recognised that any 
such positive impact will be as a coincidence 
of the licensing authority conducting its 
licensing function under the Act to promote 
the licensing objectives. Local Health 
Bodies potentially have access to much data 
that can inform licensing decisions and 
policy. When such data is presented it will 
be considered and where links are made to 
any of the four licensing objectives it will be 
taken into account by the Licensing Sub-
Committee in reaching its decision.  

21.5 The licensing authority recognises the 
impact of alcohol misuse in Oldham and it is 
hoped that through the implementation of 
this licensing policy the promotion of the four 
licensing objectives will in turn have a 
positive effect on preventing alcohol misuse. 
For example, by ensuring licensed premises 
refuse sales of alcohol to children, or those 
attempting to purchase it on behalf of 
children; this will impact positively on a 
reduction in child alcohol related health 
problems. 

21.6 The health of our population and the 
customers of licensed premises is very 
important. Premises are expected to follow 

Page 451

mailto:events@oldham.gov.uk
http://www.oldham.gov.uk/info/200204/licensing/361/events
http://www.oldham.gov.uk/info/200204/licensing/361/events


 

28  

 

guidance and comply with legislation in 
relation to any public health issues that may 
arise at local or national level.  

 

 

 Operating Schedule 

22.1 An Operating Schedule must be submitted 

as part of the application for a licence 

application and must contain the 

information required by Section 17 of the 

Licensing Act. Among other things it must 

include the steps which the applicant 

proposes to take to promote the licensing 

objectives. The Authority requires 

applicants to address all of the areas in this 

policy where they are relevant to the 

proposed licensed activity. 

22.2 If a responsible body or interested party 

submits a relevant representation, then the 

Authority’s discretion is engaged to attach 

additional conditions to a licence to meet 

those representations if the Authority 

considers this to be appropriate in the 

individual circumstances of each 

application. 

 

 

 

 Adult Entertainment  

23.1 Section 27 of the Policing and Crime Act 

2009 introduced new powers for Local 

Authorities to control ‘Sexual 

Entertainment’ venues. Applicants wishing 

to provide adult entertainment should 

consult the Authority’s policy on providing 

such entertainment. This policy can be 

found at www.oldham.gov.uk/licensing 

23.2 Where an operating schedule does not 

refer to ‘adult entertainment’ taking  place 

on the premises the Authority may place 

restrictions on the licence that  would 

prevent ‘adult entertainment’ taking place. 

 

 Conditions  

24.1 Conditions to be imposed on licences will 

be specific to the individual premises and 

events. They will normally be drawn from 

the model pool of conditions based upon 

this Policy and the Secretary of State’s 

Guidance or from a localised Greater 

Manchester pool of conditions which can 

be used for reference and can be found at 

Appendix 1 of this policy.  

24.2 This list is not exhaustive and may be 

varied from time to time as considered 

necessary when licensable activities are 

being carried out. The Authority may also 

impose such other conditions as described 

in this policy and consistent with meeting 

the Authority’s licensing objectives. 

24.3 Within the conditions attached at Appendix 

1 of this policy is a section referring to 

counter terrorism conditions on licences. 

Applicants are suggested to consider 

whether their venue would benefit from the 

additional protection and awareness of 

counter terrorism measures which include 

staff training and vulnerability assessments. 

 Integration of Policies 

and Avoidance of 

Duplication  

25.1 Licensing is but one part of an overall 

strategy to deal with poor behaviour. Other 

mechanisms include: 

 planning controls; 

 positive measures to create a safe and 

clean town centre environment; 

 powers of the Authority to designate 

public areas where the consumption of 

alcohol is not permitted; 

 police enforcement of disorder and anti-

social behaviour; 

Page 452

http://www.oldham.gov.uk/licensing


 

29  

 

 the prosecution of personal licence 

holders and staff for selling alcohol to 

persons who are under age or drunk; 

 police powers to close down instantly any 

licensed premises on grounds of disorder 

or likelihood of disorder or excessive 

noise emanating from the premises; 

 powers of the Local Authority under the 

Environmental Protection Act and Health 

and Safety at Work Act; 

 power of police or a local resident or 

business to seek a review of a licence. 

25.2 The Licensing Authority will consider the 

impact of licensing on regulated 

entertainment particularly live music and 

dancing. Where there is any indication that 

licensing requirements are deterring such 

events, the Authority’s policy will be 

examined with a view to investigating how 

this situation may be addressed. 

25.3 The Licensing Committee will receive 

annual reports on the situation regarding 

licensed premises in the Borough, including 

the general impact of alcohol related crime 

and disorder. 

25.4 So far as possible, duplication with other 

regulatory agencies will be avoided and 

conditions will only be attached to licences 

which are necessary for the promotion of 

the licensing objectives. 

 Planning 

26.1 There are several key differences between 

licensing and planning control. Licensing is 

concerned with the operation and 

management of the premises.  Planning 

control relates to the use of the premises. 

26.2 The Authority recognises that licensing 

applications should not be seen as a re-run 

of any planning application and that there 

should be clear separation of the planning 

and licensing regimes to avoid duplication 

and inefficiency. 

26.3 Applicants for a premises licence need to 

be aware that the granting of a licence 

under the Licensing Act does not negate 

the need to obtain planning permission.  

26.4 To assist in this process the Authority may 

provide reports to the Council on the 

situation regarding licensed premises in the 

district, including the impact of alcohol 

related crime and disorder. 

 Compliance and 

Enforcement  

27.1 The Authority will undertake inspections, 

including joint inspections of premises and 

enter into other working arrangements with 

the Greater Manchester Police, Fire 

Authority and other agencies to support the 

‘licensing objectives’. 

27.2 Protocols will provide for targeting of 

agreed problem and high risk premises, but 

with a ‘lighter touch’ to those premises 

which are shown to be well managed and 

maintained.  

27.3 The Authority has adopted a business 

enforcement policy in accordance with the 

Government’s ‘enforcement concordat’. 

The key principles of consistency, 

transparency and proportionality will be 

maintained. 

 

27.4 The Authority continually reviews its 

regulation practice and will ensure 

implementation of best practice as 

delivered from time to time by guidance or 

legislation. 

27.5 Failure to pay an annual fee following a 

reminder will result in the suspension of the 

premises licence until such time that the 

annual fee is paid in full.  

 

 Pavement Licences 

28.1 The Council will accept and consider any 

application submitted for a pavement 

Page 453



 

30  

 

licence accompanied by the relevant fee 

and supporting documents required by 

them. 

28.2 Consultation will take place with the Highways 

Department and other agencies such as the 

Police and Environmental Health that may be 

necessary to consider the effects of granting a 

licence. 

28.3 The application fee for a pavement licence is 

non-refundable. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Processing of 

Applications and 

Representations  

29.1 The Authority will process all applications 

taking into account any relevant timescales 

in the Act and, where there are no 

timescales, within a reasonable time.  

29.2 The Authority will also publish guidance for 

applicants to assist them in identifying the 

kind of actions that may need to be taken to 

meet the licensing objectives. The 

guidance will supplement anything issued 

by central Government. It will not provide 

an exhaustive list of options, but it will give 

applicants advice on many of the 

approaches that can be taken to ensure 

successful applications for licences. 

29.3 Licences can be issued either: 

 by Officers acting under delegated 

powers; 

 following review by the full Licensing 

Committee; or 

 following review by a sub-committee of 

the full Committee (called a Licensing 

Panel). 

29.4 Potential objectors to licence applications 

can be “responsible authorities”, who are:-  

 Oldham Council, in its capacity as 

Licensing Authority; and any other 

licensing authority in whose area part of 

the premises is situated; 

 the chief officer of police; 

 the local fire and rescue authority; 

 the local enforcement agency for the 

Health and Safety at Work Act 1974 etc; 

 environmental Health; 

 planning; 

 local Safeguarding Board 

 Public Health Teams; and 

 the weights and measures authority. 

 

29.5 As well as responsible authorities, any 

other person, which includes any individual, 

body or business, can make 

representations in relation to applications 

for the grant, variation, minor variation or 

review of premises licences and club 

premises certificates, regardless of their 

geographic proximity to the premises. In 

addition, these persons may themselves 

seek a review of a premises licence.  

Page 454



 

31  

 

29.6 Whilst any of these ‘other persons’ may 

act in their own right; they may also 

request an individual or group to represent 

them. This could be someone legally 

qualified or an MP, MEP or Ward 

Councillor. Where a Councillor agrees to 

make representations on behalf of an 

interested party and that Councillor is a 

member of the Licensing Committee, they 

will disqualify themselves from all 

involvement in the decision making process 

in relation to that application. 

29.7 Representations can only be considered if 

they relate to a problem that could 

compromise one or more of the licensing 

objectives. Officers will decide if this is the 

case and they are charged with deciding 

whether or not objections are irrelevant, 

frivolous or vexatious. Any representation 

deemed so will not be considered. 

29.8 Representations need not just relate to the 

negative effect of a licence but may relate 

to the positive effect the granting of a 

licence may have. This also true in the 

case of a review where positive 

representations can be taken into account 

by the Authority.  

29.9 The Licensing Authority welcomes an early 

opportunity to discuss applications before 

their submission. At that stage the business 

model and operation of the business can 

be discussed, and advice given on other 

wider support the Council can give can be 

provided.  

 

 

29.10 In addition, Responsible Authorities can be 

brought into the discussions so applicants 

can understand any early concerns and 

table any questions. 

29.11 The licensing Authority also provides a paid 

for pre application advice service where the 

Authority, following discussion, will put 

together an application and operating 

schedule with applicants who may have 

otherwise struggled to follow the process. 

This can include drafting public and 

newspaper notices and serving copies of 

the application on responsible authorities 

electronically as provided for under 

Regulations.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Immigration Act 2016 

 30.1  Section 36 of and Schedule 4 to the         

     Immigration Act 2016 made a number of     

     amendments to the Licensing Act 2003 to    

     introduce immigration safeguards in respect  

     of licensing applications made in England and 

     Wales on or after 6 April 2017. The intention  

     of these changes is to prevent illegal working 

     in premises licensed for the sale of alcohol or 

     late-night refreshment.  

Page 455



 

32  

 

 30.2  The statutory prevention of crime and disorder 

     licensing objective in the Licensing Act 2003  

     includes the prevention of immigration crime  

     and the prevention of illegal working in       

     licensed premises. The Council will work with  

    the Home Office (Immigration Enforcement)    

    as well as the police, in respect of these       

    matters.  

 30.3  Section 36 of and Schedule 4 to the         

     Immigration Act 2016 (the 2016 Act) amended 

     the 2003 Act to provide that in England and   

     Wales: 

 •  Premises licences to sell alcohol or provide 

late night refreshment and personal 

licences cannot be issued to an individual 

who does not have permission to be in the 

UK, or is not entitled to undertake work 

relating to the carrying on of a licensable 

activity; 

 • Licences issued to those with limited 

permission to be in the UK will lapse when 

their permission to be in the UK and work 

in a licensable activity comes to an end; 

• Immigration offences, including civil 

penalties, are ‘relevant offences’ as 

defined by the 2003 Act;  

• The Home Secretary (in practice Home Office 

(Immigration Enforcement)) was added to 

the list of responsible authorities in the 

licensing regime, which requires Home 

Office (Immigration Enforcement) to 

receive premises licence applications 

(except regulated entertainment only 

licences) and applications to transfer 

premises licences, and in some limited 

circumstances personal licence 

applications, and permits Home Office 

(Immigration Enforcement) to make 

appropriate representations and objections 

to the grant of a licence; and  

•  Immigration officers are permitted to enter 

premises which they have reason to 

believe are being used to sell alcohol or 

provide late night refreshment, to 

investigate whether immigration offences 

are being committed in connection with the 

licensable activity.  

 30.4 The Licensing Authority will have regard to    

    any guidance issued by the Home Office in    

    relation to the immigration related provisions   

    now contained in the Licensing Act 2003. The  

    Licensing Authority will also work in partnership 

    with the Home Office (Immigration           

    Enforcement) and Greater Manchester Police  

    with a view to preventing illegal working in     

    premises licensed for the sale of alcohol and/or 

    late night refreshment. 

 

Page 456



 

33  

 

 Contact Details  

Authority / Organisation Address  

Licensing Authority  Sir Robert Peacock House 

Vulcan Street 

Oldham 

OL1 4LA 

Phone: 0161 770 4730 

licensing@oldham.gov.uk 

Trading Standards Sir Robert Peacock House 

Vulcan Street 

Oldham 

OL1 4LA 

tradingstandards@oldham.gov.uk 

Planning  Civic Centre 

PO Box 30 

West Street 

Oldham, OL1 1UQ 

Phone: 0161 770 4105 

planning@oldham.gov.uk 

 

Environmental Health  Chadderton Town Hall 

Middleton Road 

Oldham 

OL9 6PP 

Phone: 0161 770 2244 

environmentalhealth@oldham.gov.uk 

Greater Manchester Police  

 

Oldham Police 

Divisional Licensing Officer 

Sir Robert Peacock House 

Vulcan Street 

Oldham 

OL1 4LA 

Phone: 0161 856 9069 

  

Greater Manchester Fire 

and Rescue 

Greater Manchester Fire and Rescue Service 

Oldham Borough  

Phone: 0161 909 8626/27 

obr@manchesterfire.gov.uk 

 

 

Page 457

mailto:licensing@oldham.gov.uk
mailto:tradingstandards@oldham.gov.uk
mailto:planning@oldham.gov.uk
mailto:environmentalhealth@oldham.gov.uk
mailto:obr@manchesterfire.gov.uk


 

34  

 

Authority / Organisation                        Address  

Public Health Team 

Oldham Council 

                       Level 4 
                       Civic Centre 
                       PO Box 30 
                       West Street 
                       Oldham                            
                       OL1 1UQ 
                       Phone: 0161 770 1641 

                       publichealthteam@oldham.gov.uk 
 

  

  

Oldham Safeguarding Children  

Partnership                                Rock Street Centre 

     Rock Street   

 Oldham 

 OL1 3UJ 

 Phone: 0161 770 8096 

  

                   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 458

mailto:publichealthteam@oldham.gov.uk


 

35  

 

Appendix 1 

Licensing Act 2003 Model Conditions 

 

 

Counter Terrorism 

1. At all times that the premises are open to the public for licensable activities, all staff on-duty at the 

premises and all on-duty managers must have completed ACT:Awareness training. In addition, a 

minimum of 1 on-duty manager must also have completed the ACT:Operational or ACT:Strategic 

training. 

2. The Designated Premises Supervisor must complete the ACT:Awareness training and 

ACT:Operational or ACT:Strategic training course within 28 days of the grant or variation of the 

licence. Should the Designated Premises Supervisor named on the licence change, the new 

Designated Premises Supervisor must complete those courses within 28 days of being named on 

the licence. 

3. Within 28 days of the grant or variation of the licence, a documented security vulnerability 

assessment, which must incorporate counter terrorism measures, must be undertaken for the 

premises to include all areas in which licensable activities takes place and which the public will have 

access and/or transit through. The assessment shall be routinely reviewed and must be reviewed 

following the elevation of the change of the national threat level. All reviews shall be documented. 

4. Within 28 days of the grant or variation of the licence, the premises licence holder shall evaluate any 

risks identified through the security vulnerability assessment and take promptly such steps to 

eliminate them or to reduce the risk as far as is reasonably practicable. A documented record must 

be maintained of any remedial action implemented and made available upon request to any police 

officer or an authorised officer of Manchester City Council. 

5. Within 28 days of the grant or variation of the licence, the premises must have a documented 

counter-terrorism plan, which sets out counter measures to be implemented in response to a terrorist 

attack, through the principles of ‘Guide’, Shelter’ and ‘Communicate’- 

• Guide – Direct people towards the most appropriate location (invacuation, evacuation, hide) 

• Shelter – Understand how your place or space might be able to lock-down and shelter people within 

it for several hours 

• Communicate – Have a means of communicating effectively and promptly with users of your place 

and have staff capable of giving clear instructions. Also have the capability of integrating with any 

response or rescue operation by providing things like building plans. 

Admission and control of entry 

6. The designated queuing area shall be enclosed within appropriate barriers and ensure that a 

minimum width of 1.8m [or specify if greater]  is maintained on the footway to allow safe passage by 

pedestrians. 

Page 459



 

36  

 

7. An ID scanning system approved in writing by the licensing authority must be operated at the 

premises at all times it is open to the public. All persons entering the premises must provide 

verifiable ID and record their details on the system.  

8. All persons entering or re-entering the premises must be searched by an SIA registered door 

supervisor [and all searches must be monitored by the premises CCTV system].  

9. No patron shall be admitted or readmitted to the premises [after XX:XX hours] unless they have  

[passed through a metal detecting search arch] [been searched using hand-held electronic search 

wands] and, if the search equipment is activated, have been physically searched in accordance with 

a procedure agreed with Greater Manchester Police, which must include a ‘pat down search’ and a 

full bag search. Search equipment must be kept in working order.  

10. No customer will be permitted to enter or re-enter the premises between the hours of [specify] save 

for persons who have temporarily left the premises (e.g. to smoke).  

11. Between [specified times] no customer will be permitted to enter or leave the premises by means of 

[specified entrances]. 

12. No more than [insert number] customers will be permitted on the premises at any one time. 

13. The premises licence holder shall ensure a suitable method of calculating the number of people 

present during licensable activities is in place. 

Door supervisors 

14. Door supervision must be provided on (specify days / circumstance). Door supervisors must be on 

duty from [specify hours] and must remain on duty until the premises are closed and all the 

customers have left. 

15. On [specify days/hours], at least [insert number] of SIA registered door supervisors must be on duty 

at the premises [specify location at the premises] [or as shown on the plan]. 

16. Door supervisors shall be employed at the ratio of [XX] door supervisor for every 100 customers (or 

part thereof). 

17. Door supervisors shall be employed by the premises based upon a risk assessment carried out in 

relation to the following factors:  

(i) Size of the venue  

(ii) Expected attendance  

(iii) Type of event taking place  

(iv) Location of the premises  

(v) Time of year  

(vi) Special occasion (New Year, Halloween, Local events etc.)  

(vii) Premises Licence Conditions  

Page 460



 

37  

 

18. At least [XX] female door supervisor(s) shall be on duty at the premises at such times as door 

supervisors are required to be provided. 

19. All door supervisors, and other persons engaged at the premises for the purpose of supervising or 

controlling queues or customers, must wear [high visibility jackets or vests or armbands]. 

20. Any door supervisors on duty at the premises must be supplied by an SIA-Approved Contractor 

Scheme company. 

21. The Designated Premises Supervisor or on-duty manager must ensure that all door supervisors on 

duty at the premises are correctly displaying their current SIA accreditation and are briefed on their 

responsibilities and relevant company operating procedures before they commence duty. 

22. Door supervisors must be provided with radios to enable them to contact each other and the duty 

manager at the premises. 

23. Where SIA registered door supervisors are used at the premises, a record must be kept of their SIA 

registration number and the dates and times when they are on duty. 

Bodycams 

24. On [specify days/hours], at least [insert number] of SIA registered door supervisors on duty at 

[specify location at the premises] [or as shown on the plan] must wear working body cams.  

25. All body cams must: 

(i) be activated by the wearer to record any incident of crime and disorder they witness; 

(ii) provide a continuous recording loop designed to ensure that relevant information is still captured if 

the User is unable to immediately activate the recording; 

(iii) produce an acceptable video recording under street lighting and inside buildings, including low-light 

conditions 

(iv) be overt, be pointed correctly to ensure best evidence is captured, and worn so that it will not be 

obscured by clothing; 

(v) be capable of clearly recording a conversation between the User and people in close proximity; and 

be optimised to record speech rather than background noise; 

(vi) record synchronised video and audio; 

(vii) employ a wide-angle lens that records a broad scene in full focus; 

(viii) be securely attached to avoid accidental loss and malicious removal 

(ix) be equipped with sufficient storage and battery capacity to cover the requirements of a working shift. 

(x) record in a format viewable in its original format using free software including VLC media player 

(xi) when transferred off the device, recordings should be preserved in their original format and any 

metadata retained 

(xii) must always show the correct time and date in video footage, for evidential continuity 

Page 461



 

38  

 

(xiii) be capable of still capturing video if the microphone malfunctions, and audio is still captured if the 

camera malfunctions. 

(xiv) not overwrite data once recording capacity is reached. 

26. A record must be kept of the SIA registration number of the door supervisor and the ID of bodycam 

worn by them.   

27. Bodycam images must be stored so that they are retrievable and accessible for replay and viewing, 

and kept in an environment that will not be detrimental to the quality or capacity for future viewing. 

They should be appropriately labelled to enable identification and retrieval and kept for a minimum of 

28 days. 

28. The premises licence holder must ensure there are members of trained staff at the premises during 

operating hours able to provide viewable copies on request to police or authorised local authority 

officers as soon as is reasonably practicable in accordance with the Data Protection Act 1998 (or 

any replacement legislation). 

CCTV 

29. The premises licence holder must ensure that: 

(i) CCTV cameras are located within the premises to cover all public areas including all entrances and 

exits [The location of cameras could also be specified on the plan attached to the premises licence]. 

(ii) The system records clear images permitting the identification of individuals. 

(iii) The CCTV system is able to capture a minimum of 24 frames per second and all recorded footage 

must be securely retained for a minimum of 28 days.  

(iv) The CCTV system operates at all times while the premises are open for licensable activities [or 

specify timings].  

(v) All equipment must have a constant and accurate time and date generation. 

(vi) The CCTV system is fitted with security functions to prevent recordings being tampered with, i.e. 

password protected. 

(vii) There are members of trained staff at the premises during operating hours able to provide viewable 

copies on request to police or authorised local authority officers as soon as is reasonably practicable 

in accordance with the Data Protection Act 1998 (or any replacement legislation). 

Preventing illegal drug use 

30. There shall be a lockable ‘drugs box’ at the premises to which no member of staff, except the DPS 

and/or [designated role-holder at business], shall have access. All controlled drugs (or items 

suspected to be, or containing controlled drugs) found at the premises must be placed in this box as 

soon as practicable. Whenever this box is emptied, all its contents must be given to Greater 

Manchester Police for appropriate disposal. 

Promotional activity 

31. The premises licence holder must submit to [insert contact details for Responsible Authority] a 

completed risk assessment form as prescribed at least 28 days before any event that is 

Page 462



 

39  

 

(i) carried on by any person not affiliated with the venue; and 

(ii) promoted / advertised to the public. 

32. No promotional social media communication may be carried on for the purpose of encouraging the 

sale or supply of alcohol at the premises, which can reasonably be considered to condone, 

encourage or glamorise antisocial behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any 

favourable manner. 

Incident reporting 

33. An incident log (which may be electronically recorded) shall be kept at the premises for at least six 

months, and made available on request to the police or an authorised officer of the licensing 

authority, which will record the following incidents including pertinent details (delete as appropriate): 

(i) All alleged crimes reported to the venue or by the venue to the police 

(ii) All ejections of patrons 

(iii) Any complaints received 

(iv) Any incidents of disorder 

(v) Seizures of drugs, offensive weapons, fraudulent ID or other items 

(vi) Any faults in the CCTV system, searching equipment or scanning equipment 

(vii) Any refusal of the sale of alcohol 

(viii) Any faults in the CCTV system, searching equipment or scanning equipment 

(ix) Any visit by a responsible authority or emergency service 

(x) The times on duty, names and the licence numbers of all licensed door supervisors employed by the 

premises. 

Staff training (alcohol & vulnerability welfare) 

34a) All staff authorised to sell alcohol shall be trained in (delete as appropriate): 

(i) Relevant age restrictions in respect of products 

(ii) Prevent underage sales 

(iii) Prevent proxy sales 

(iv) Maintain the refusals log  

(v) Enter sales correctly on the tills so the prompts show as appropriate 

(vi) Recognising signs of drunkenness and vulnerability 

(vii) How over service of alcohol impacts on the four objectives of the Licensing Act 2003 

(viii) How to refuse service 

Page 463



 

40  

 

(ix) The premises’ duty of care policy, understanding and dealing with situations involving vulnerable 

people, and incidents of harassment 

(x) Action to be taken in the event of an emergency, including the preservation of a crime scene and 

reporting an incident to the emergency services  

(xi) The conditions in force under this licence. 

34b) Training must include evidence that the trainee has gained knowledge and understanding of the 

training, which may consist of a test or quiz, completed and signed by the trainee. 

34c) Documented records of training completed shall be kept for each member of staff. Training shall be 

regularly refreshed and at no greater than 6 [or specify] monthly intervals. Training records shall be 

made available for inspection upon request by a police officer or an authorised officer of Manchester 

City Council. 

Preventing and dealing with drunkenness and vulnerability 

35. The premises shall have a documented Duty of Care policy for managing intoxicated and vulnerable 

customers and dealing with incidents of harassment at the premises. The policy shall also include 

provision for persons refused entry to the premises who are also considered vulnerable by staff.  

36. The premises shall display prominent signage indicating [at any point of sale] [at the entrance to the 

premises] [in all areas where alcohol is located] that it is an offence to sell alcohol to anyone who is 

drunk. 

37. A Personal licence Holder must be present at the premises to supervise all sales of alcohol. 

38. A minimum of [specify] persons must be employed and on duty at the premises between [specify 

days/hours] who are specifically tasked to maintain the safety of customers who may be vulnerable, 

ill or in distress as a result of alcohol and/or drug-related intoxication. Such persons must be trained 

on drunkenness, vulnerability, and drugs awareness in the night-time economy; and responding to 

these matters. 

39. The premises shall provide facilities for customers to securely recharge their mobile phones. 

Glassware and use of ice fountains / bottle sparklers 

40. Drinks must only be served in polycarbonate/plastic containers [on specified days or events] [upon 

reasonable notice by Greater Manchester Police]. 

41. Customers will not be permitted to remove from the premises any drinks supplied by the premises 

(alcoholic or otherwise) in open containers [except for consumption in any delineated external area 

as shown on the plan attached to the licence]. 

42. Spirit, Champagne and all other glass bottles greater than [70cl] are restricted to customers seated 

at a [table] [booth] in the delineated area[s] as shown on the plan attached to the licence. These 

bottles must be secured to the table or ice bucket and must only be dispensed by a member of staff 

who is trained in the responsible service of alcohol. Customers must not be permitted to leave their 

table carrying any such bottle, or be permitted to drink directly from the bottle.  

43. Ice fountains or similar products (which are classed as HT4 explosives): 

Page 464



 

41  

 

a) Must be kept in their original packaging and only stored in a secure store room or fire-resistant 

cabinet that the public have no access to. The room/cabinet must be kept locked, except for the 

depositing or removal of products but must be locked immediately thereafter. 

b) Their use must be risk assessed in advance and appropriate control measure put in place to reduce 

the risk to staff and customers, which must include (but is not limited to): 

(i) staff training in their safe use and dispersal 

(ii) the provision of appropriate first aid training and equipment 

(iii) suitability of areas of the premises where the products will be used 

c) The risk assessment and control measures identified must be documented, kept on the premises 

and made available for inspection to a police, fire or authorised  officer upon request. 

Preventing underage sales 

44. The Challenge 25 scheme must be operated to ensure that any person who appears to be under the 

age of 25 shall provide documented proof that he/she is over 18 years of age. Proof of age shall only 

comprise a passport, photo card driving licence, an EU/EEA national ID card or similar document, an 

HM Forces warrant card, a card bearing the PASS hologram, or any electronic or biometric age 

verification technology approved by the licensing authority.  

45. The premises shall display prominent signage indicating [at any point of sale] [at the entrance to the 

premises] [in all areas where alcohol is located] that the Challenge 25 scheme is in operation.  

46. The premises shall display prominent signage indicating [at any point of sale] [at the entrance to the 

premises] [in all areas where alcohol is located] that it is an offence to buy or attempt to buy alcohol 

for a person who is under 18 and for a person under the age of 18 to buy or attempt to buy alcohol. 

47. A refusals record must be kept at the premises which details all refusals to sell alcohol. This record 

must include the date and time of the incident, a description of the customer, the name of the staff 

member who refused the sale, and the reason the sale was refused. All entries must be made within 

24 hours of the refusal. The record must be made available for inspection and copying within [specify 

days / hours or a reasonable time] of a request by an officer of a Responsible Authority.  

Alcohol deliveries 

48. The premises licence holder shall provide the following information in writing to the licensing 

authority before any sale of alcohol is carried out (and notify change to this information to the 

licensing authority within 7 days): 

(i) The trading name of any company that will operate under the licence 

(ii) All telephone numbers that will be used to accept orders 

(iii) The URL/website address that will be used to accept orders. 

49. Any promotional material and/or any website home page used as part of the business operating 

under this licence will clearly state the premises licence number. For the avoidance of doubt, this 

includes flyers, leaflets and business cards promoting the business. 

Page 465



 

42  

 

50. All deliveries of alcohol shall only be delivered to a premises address with a valid postcode and will 

only be delivered directly to that property. 

 

 

Restaurants and takeaways (alcohol) 

51. The premises must only operate as a restaurant: 

(i) in which customers are seated at a table,  

(ii) which provides food in the form of substantial table meals that are prepared on the premises and are 

served and consumed at the table using non-disposable crockery,  

(iii) which do not provide any take away service of food or drink for immediate consumption, and 

(iv) where alcohol must not be sold, supplied, or consumed on the premises otherwise than to persons 

who are taking substantial table meals and provided always that the consumption of alcohol by such 

persons is ancillary to taking such meals. 

52. Sales of alcohol for consumption off the premises shall only be supplied with, and ancillary to, a 

takeaway meal. 

Restricting alcohol sales in relation to designated special events, eg. football matches 

53. Prior to any [designated special event by Greater Manchester Police] [‘designated sporting event’ (as 

defined in the Sporting Events Control of Alcohol Act 1985)] the premises licence holder shall ensure 

that: 

(i) Alcohol sales in respect of cans of beer or cider are limited to no more than four cans per person for 

a minimum of four hours before the commencement of the relevant designated [special] [sporting] 

event 

(ii) No sales of alcohol in bottles or glass containers are made in the period four hours before the 

commencement of the designated [special] [sporting] event 

(iii) Alcohol sales cease for a period of one hour immediately before the commencement of the relevant 

designated [special] [sporting] event 

(iv) On any day where there is a relevant designated [special] [sporting] event taking place, the premises 

will not externally advertise as a result of a local store promotion the availability of beer or cider in 

such a way as to be likely to be the sole inducement to attract persons to the premises who are 

either attending the designated [special] [sporting] event or in the vicinity of the premises as a result 

of the designated [special] [sporting] event 

(v) All members of staff working at the premises are informed of this condition prior to taking up 

employment 

(vi) On the day of the relevant designated [special] [sporting] event, upon the direction of a police officer, 

using the grounds of the prevention of crime and disorder or public safety, the premises will 

immediately cease to sell alcohol until further directed. 

Page 466



 

43  

 

Use of special effects 

54. Any special effects or mechanical installations shall be arranged and stored so as to minimise any 

risk to the safety of those using the premises. The following special effects will only be used if 10 

days’ prior notice is given to the licensing authority where consent has not previously been given: 

(i) Dry ice and cryogenic fog 

(ii) Smoke machines and fog generators 

(iii) Pyrotechnics, including fireworks 

(iv) Firearms (eg. Blank firing pistols) 

(v) Lasers 

(vi) Explosives and highly flammable substances 

(vii) Real flame 

(viii) Strobe lighting. 

Emergencies 

55. The premises licence holder shall ensure that at all times when the public is present there is at least 

one competent person able to administer first aid, that an adequate and appropriate supply of first 

aid equipment and materials is available on the premises, and that adequate records are maintained 

in relation to the supply of any first aid treatment. 

56. All external emergency exit doors shall be fitted with sensor alarms and visible indicators to alert 

staff when the doors have been opened. 

57. All staff on duty at the premises shall be trained in the Emergency and Evacuation procedures for 

the premises and aware of their individual responsibilities. This includes any door supervisors. 

Documented records of training completed shall be kept for each member of staff. Training shall be 

regularly refreshed and at no greater than [specify] monthly intervals. Training records shall be made 

available for inspection upon request by a police officer or an authorised officer of Manchester City 

Council. 

58. The premises shall have a minimum 20m rescue throwline available on the premises for emergency 

use. All on-duty staff  (including security)shall be knowledgeable of its location and the 

manufacturer’s instructions for use. 

Preventing noise and other public nuisances 

59. All external windows and doors must be kept shut at all times when regulated entertainment is being 

provided. Doors may be opened for normal entrance and egress of people but must be shut 

immediately thereafter. 

60. No noise shall emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through the structure of the 

premises that gives rise to a nuisance. 

Page 467



 

44  

 

61. A noise limiting device must be installed and must operate at all times regulated entertainment takes 

place at the premises. The device must be of a type, in a location and set at a level [specify if known] 

[approved in writing by the appropriate officer of the Council]. 

62. The location and orientation of loudspeakers must be as specified on the attached premises plan. 

63. An [acoustic lobby / acoustic door / acoustic curtains/ acoustic door seals / automatic door closer] 

must be installed [specify the location / define on plan]. 

64. There shall be no noise or odours caused by the kitchen extraction equipment that gives rise to a 

nuisance. 

Deliveries (nuisance) 

65. A direct telephone number for the duty manager must be prominently displayed where it can 

conveniently be read from the exterior of the premises by the public. The telephone must be manned 

at all times the premises is open for licensable activities. 

66. No deliveries or collections relating to licensable activities at the premises will take place between 

the hours of [insert hours].  

67. Delivery drivers shall conduct the delivery in a manner that will not cause a noise disturbance to the 

occupiers of any residential properties surrounding the delivery address. This includes the avoidance 

of slamming doors, playing loud music, shouting, over-revving engines and sounding horns to signal 

their arrival. The driver shall turn the engine off immediately upon arrival at the delivery address and 

will park considerately without causing any obstruction to the highway. 

68. Customers must be instructed when placing the order that they will not be able to collect the order 

from the vehicle. All deliveries will only be made directly to the property address and customers will 

not be permitted to take orders from the vehicle. 

Smoking and other external areas 

69. Customers permitted to temporarily leave and then re-enter the premises to smoke must be 

restricted to a designated smoking area defined as [specify location / mark on plan]. No more than 

[insert number] of customers will be permitted to remain in the designated smoking area at any one 

time.  

70. Clear and legible notices must be prominently displayed at any area used for smoking requesting 

customers to respect the needs of local residents and use the area quietly. 

71. No more than [insert number] customers will be permitted to enter or remain in [define outdoor 

area(s)] of the premises at any one time, between the hours of [specify]. 

Litter and cleansing 

72. At [specify times] [specify areas] outside the premises, including [specify areas] must be swept 

and/or washed, and litter and sweepings collected and stored [specify storage and collection].  

73. All takeaway packaging and wrappers shall clearly identify the premises, i.e.. by way of company 

logo or name. 

Page 468



 

45  

 

74. Where the premises provide late night refreshments for consumption off the premises sufficient 

waste bins must be provided at or near the exits, to enable the disposal of waste.  

75. Empty bottles which have been collected must be placed into locked bins when deposited outside. 

76. All waste shall be properly presented and placed out for collection no earlier than 30 minutes before 

the scheduled collection times. 

77. Between the hours of [insert hours] no waste/glass bottles will be moved or deposited outside. 

Children on the premises 

78. No person under the age of [insert age] years of age is permitted to enter or remain on the licensed 

premises when alcohol is being sold or supplied.  

79. The PLH/DPS will provide [specify ratio] adult supervisors at a ratio of [specify ratio] who can provide 

care for the children as they move from stage to dressing room etc., and to ensure that all children 

can be accounted for in case of an evacuation or an emergency. 

80. The licence holder and/or DPS shall ensure that any child performer is licensed with Manchester City 

Council’s Licensing Unit and accompanied by a registered chaperone. Documented records should 

be kept for six months, including the child’s name, their licence number and chaperone details. 

81. Where children are allowed on the premises, information shall be displayed [location] on what to do if 

there is a cause for concern regarding a child’s welfare. This shall include reporting to Oldham 

Council via its Contact Centre on 0161 770 7777, or the NSPCC on 0808 800 5000 (free 24-hour 

service) or dialling 999 in the event of an immediate threat. 

Late night refreshment 

82. Any hot food or hot drink provided after 11pm (late night refreshment) under this licence must only 

be consumed on the premises.  

83. Between [specify hours from 11pm/days] customers must not be permitted to remove from the 

premises any hot food or hot drink (late night refreshment) provided at the premises. 

Large events 

84. The Premises licence Holder must comply with the Event Management Plan submitted to and 

approved by the Licensing Authority and no changes will be made to the Event Management Plan 

without the prior written consent of the Licensing Authority.  

Boxing and wrestling (including MMA and other combat sports) 

85. The Premises licence Holder must comply with the Event Management Plan submitted to and 

approved by the Licensing Authority and no changes will be made to the Event Management Plan 

without the prior written consent of the Licensing Authority. The Plan must set out (but is not limited 

to): 

(i) how fighters will be matched 

(ii) the measures that will be in place to ensure the safety and welfare of competitors; including medical 

facilities and qualified staff provision 

Page 469



 

46  

 

(iii) fighter details 

(iv) layout of the venue 

(v) competition rules 

(vi) referee details including qualifications. 

Adult entertainment 

86. The premises may not show R18 films without the benefit of a sex cinema licence. 

87. No person under the age of 18 will be permitted to enter or remain on the premises when any 

“relevant entertainment” (as defined in Schedule 3 to the Local Government (Miscellaneous 

Provisions) Act 1982 is taking place. 

 For reference:  

 Relevant entertainment is ‘Any live performance or any live display of nudity, which is of such a 

nature that, ignoring financial gain, it must reasonably be assumed to be provided solely or 

principally for the purpose of sexually stimulating any member of the audience (whether by verbal or 

other means).  

 Display of nudity means in the case of a women - exposure of her nipples, pubic area, genitals or 

anus; and in the case of a man - exposure of his public area, genitals or anus. 

 The audience can consist of one person. 

Dispersal 

88. The dispersal of customers from the premises must be managed in accordance with the following: 

(i) Clear and legible notices must be prominently displayed at all exits requesting customers to respect 

local residents and leave the area quietly. 

(ii) Public announcements requesting customers to leave quietly to minimise disturbance to nearby 

residents 

(iii) A [specify minutes] period where [music volume is reduced / lighting increased / alcohol sales 

cease]. 

(iv) A suitable member of staff or a Door Supervisor[s] will be visible at each public entrance / exit to 

control the dispersal, to remind people to leave quietly, and to prevent patrons from re-entering the 

premises, and shall deter customers from using private hire vehicles without a prior booking 

(v) All drinks and glass vessels must be removed from patrons as they leave to ensure no glass leaves 

the premises.  

89. From no later than 1 hour before the premises closes to the public, a member of staff shall be 

dedicated to monitor the dispersal of customers and ensure patrons do not contribute to anti-social 

behaviour in the vicinity. They will be easily identifiable by way of their uniform or high visibility jacket 

/ vest; will have a detailed knowledge of all transport options in the area and provide directions for 

patrons who may be loitering in the vicinity of the premises. 

Page 470



 

47  

 

 Mandatory Conditions 

 

Mandatory Condition Applicable to  

No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence – 
(a) at a time where there is no designated premises supervisor in 
respect of the premises licence, or 
(b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold 
a personal licence or his personal licence is suspended. Every 
supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or 
authorised by a person who holds a personal licence. 
 
 

Any premises licence or 
which authorises the sale 
of alcohol. 

(1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant 
premises do not carry out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible 
promotions in relation to the premises. 
(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or 
more of the following activities, or substantially similar activities, 
carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of 
alcohol for consumption on the premises— 
(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are 
designed to require or encourage, individuals to— 
(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink 
alcohol sold or supplied on the premises before the cessation of the 
period in which the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply 
alcohol), or (ii) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a 
time limit or otherwise); 
 
(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or 
for a fixed or discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a 
particular characteristic in a manner which carries a significant risk 
of undermining a licensing objective; 
www.trafford.gov.uk 
(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a 
prize to encourage or reward the purchase and consumption of 
alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a manner which carries a 
significant risk of undermining a licensing objective; 
 
(d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional 
posters or flyers on, or in the vicinity of, the premises which can 
reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti-
social behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any 
favourable manner; 
 
(e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of 
another (other than where that other person is unable to drink 
without assistance by reason of disability). 
 
 

Any premises licence or 
club premises certificate 
which authorises the sale 
of alcohol for consumption 
on the 
premises. 
 

The responsible person shall ensure that free potable water is 
provided on request to customers where it is reasonably available. 

Any premises licence or 
club premises certificate 
which authorises the sale 
of alcohol for consumption 
on the premises. 

Page 471



 

48  

 

(i) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder 
must ensure that an age verification policy is adopted in respect of 
the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol. 
(ii) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises 
licence must ensure that the supply of alcohol at the premises is 
carried on in accordance with the age verification policy. 
(iii) The policy must require individuals who appear to the 
responsible person to be under 18 years of age (or such older age 
as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before 
being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of 
birth and either— (a) a holographic mark, or (b) an ultraviolet 
feature. 
 
The responsible person must ensure that— 
(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for 
consumption on the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or 
supplied having been made up in advance ready for sale or supply 
in a securely closed container) it is available to customers in the 
following measures— 
(i) beer or cider: 1⁄2 pint; 
(ii) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and (iii) still wine in a 
glass: 125 ml; 
(b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other 
printed material which is available to customers on the premises; 
and 
(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify 
the quantity of alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware that 
these measures are available. 
 

Any premises licence or 
club premises certificate 
which authorises the sale 
of alcohol for consumption 
on the premises 
 

(1) A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied 
for consumption on or off the premises for a price which is less than 
the permitted price. 
(2). For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1— 
(a) “duty” is to be construed in accordance with the 
Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979; 
(b) “permitted price” is the price found by applying the formula— 
P = D + (D x V) 
where— 
(i) P is the permitted price, 
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol 
as if the duty were charged on the date of the sale or supply of 
the alcohol, and 
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the 
alcohol as if the value added tax were charged on the date of 
the sale or supply of the alcohol; 
(c) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of 
which there is in force a premises licence.. 

Any premises licence or 
club premises certificate 
which authorises the sale 
of alcohol. 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 472



 

49  

 

 

Page 473



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

  
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Reason for Decision 
 
To approve the arrangements necessary to formulate and prepare the joint development 
plan document (DPD) ‘Places for Everyone’, including the establishment of a joint 
committee to represent Oldham Council and the eight other GM districts (Bolton, Bury, 
Manchester, Rochdale, Salford, Tameside, Trafford, Wigan).  
 
Executive Summary 
 
On 11 December 2020, following the withdrawal of Stockport Council from the production 
of the Greater Manchester Plan for Jobs, Homes & the Environment (the Greater 
Manchester Spatial Framework), the Association of Greater Manchester Authorities 
(AGMA) Executive Board agreed in principle to the a joint Development Plan Document 
(DPD) of the nine remaining Greater Manchester (GM) districts, to cover strategic policies 
including housing and employment land requirements and, as appropriate, strategic site 
allocations and Green Belt boundary amendments and associated infrastructure. 

Report to CABINET / COUNCIL  

 
Arrangements for the preparation of ‘Places 
for Everyone’: A proposed Joint 
Development Plan Document on behalf of 
nine Greater Manchester districts 
 

Portfolio Holder:  
Councillor Hannah Roberts, Cabinet member for Housing  
 
Officer Contact: Emma Barton, Director of Economy  
 
Report Author: Elizabeth Dryden-Stuart, Team Leader (Strategic 
Planning)  
Ext. 1672 
 
Cabinet:  22 March 2021 
Council:  24 March 2021 

Page 475

Agenda Item 19



 

  2 

 
A report was taken to AGMA Executive Board on 12th February 2021 setting out the next 
steps in relation to the Joint DPD of the nine GM districts, to be known as ‘Places for 
Everyone’, including the required decisions by individual Districts to initiate this process as 
set out below in the recommendations and discussed further in this report. 
 
Approval to establish the new Joint Committee is a decision for each district according to 
their own Constitutional arrangements and approval to delegate the formulation and 
preparation of the Joint DPD to that committee is a Cabinet function. 
 
Recommendations 
 
It is recommended, subject to Council approving the recommendations below, that 
Cabinet: 
 
 

1. Note that full Council has approved the making of an agreement with the other 8 
Greater Manchester councils (Bolton, Bury, Manchester, Rochdale, Salford, 
Tameside, Trafford, Wigan) to prepare a joint development plan document to cover 
strategic policies including housing and employment land requirements and, as 
appropriate, strategic site allocations and Green Belt boundary amendments and 
associated infrastructure across the nine districts.  
 

2. Delegate to a Joint Committee of the nine Greater Manchester councils the 
formulation and preparation of the joint development plan document to cover 
housing and employment land requirements including, as appropriate, strategic site 
allocations and Green Belt boundary amendments and associated infrastructure 
across the nine Greater Manchester districts insofar as such matters are executive 
functions. 

 
3. Note that the following are the sole responsibility of full Council: 

a. Responsibility for giving of instructions to the Cabinet to reconsider the draft 
plan submitted by the Cabinet for the Council’s consideration. 

b. The amendment of the draft joint development plan document submitted by 
the Cabinet for the full Council’s consideration. 

c. The approval of the joint development plan document for the purposes of 
submission to the Secretary of State for independent examination. 

d. The adoption of the joint development plan document.  
 
 

It is recommended that Council: 
 

1. Approve the making of an agreement with the other 8 Greater Manchester councils 
(Bolton, Bury, Manchester, Rochdale, Salford, Tameside, Trafford, Wigan) to 
prepare a joint development plan document to cover strategic policies including 
housing and employment land requirements and, as appropriate, strategic site 
allocations and Green Belt boundary amendments and associated infrastructure 
across the nine districts. 
 

Page 476



 

  3 

2. Agree Oldham Council’s lead Member for the joint committee as Leader of the 
Council and nominate the Cabinet Member for Housing as deputy, to attend and 
vote as necessary. 

 
3. Note that the Cabinet will be asked to delegate the formulation and preparation of 

the draft joint development plan document to a joint committee of the nine GM 
authorities. 
 

4. Note that a further report will be brought to full Council seeking approval to submit 
the joint development plan document to the Secretary of State for independent 
examination. 

  
 

Page 477



 

  4 

Cabinet 22 March 2021 
Council  24 March 2021  
 
Arrangements for the preparation of ‘Places for Everyone’: A proposed Joint 
Development Plan Document on behalf of nine Greater Manchester districts 
 
1 Background 
 
1.1 On 11 December 2020, following the withdrawal of Stockport Council from the 

production of the Greater Manchester Plan for Jobs, Homes & the Environment (the 
Greater Manchester Spatial Framework), the AGMA Executive Board agreed to 
consider producing a joint Development Plan Document (DPD) of the nine 
remaining Greater Manchester (GM) districts, and asked officers to report back on 
the implications of this. 

 
1.2 Subsequently a report was taken to AGMA Executive Board on 12th February 2021 

(see appendix 1 for the full details) setting out the next steps in relation to preparing 
a joint DPD of the nine GM districts. The report included the decisions required by 
individual Districts to initiate this process, which are set out in the recommendations 
and discussed further below.  

 
2 Current Position 
 
2.1 Despite the withdrawal of Stockport Council, the rationale for the preparation of a 

joint DPD of the nine remaining districts remains and includes being able to: 
 

 underpin Greater Manchester’s plan for recovery from Covid; 

 support delivery of the Greater Manchester Strategy; 

 provide a framework to manage growth in a sustainable and inclusive way, 
avoid un-planned development and development by appeal; 

 align the delivery of development with infrastructure proposals; 

 provide the speediest resolution to produce an up-to-date plan and meet the 
requirement for local authorities to have a local plan in place by December 
2023; and 

 meet the Duty to Co-operate in s33A Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004.  

 
2.2 Discussions with the nine GM districts indicate that there is continued opportunity to 

work collaboratively to produce a joint DPD of the nine, to be known as ‘Places for 
Everyone’.  

 
2.3 It is felt that producing the joint DPD ‘Places for Everyone’ enables the nine GM 

districts to continue to:  
 

 progress the strategic policies in GMSF 2020 which commanded widespread 
support, for example net zero carbon development, affordable housing and 
space and accessibility standards for new housing; 

 maximise the use of sustainable urban/brownfield land and limit the need for 
Green Belt to accommodate the development needs of the nine; 

Page 478



 

  5 

 align with wider Greater Manchester strategies for transport and other 
infrastructure investment; 

 utilise the evidence base already commissioned and completed, minimising the 
cost of producing further evidence; and 

 spread the cost jointly of the independent examination. 
 

Process for establishing the Joint Committee and preparing the Joint DPD Places for 
Everyone 
 
2.4 The GMSF was being prepared by the AGMA Executive Board on behalf of the ten 

GM districts. However, it would not be appropriate for the preparation of a joint plan 
of only nine of the ten GM districts to be delegated to this Board. As such, to 
establish a new joint committee of the nine relevant GM districts – Bury, Bolton, 
Manchester, Oldham, Rochdale, Salford, Tameside, Trafford and Wigan, each 
district is being requested to authorise the establishment of the new joint committee 
and delegate the preparation of the joint DPD to the new joint committee as outlined 
in the recommendations. 

 
2.5 In addition to establishing the joint committee:  
 

 Districts are being asked to agree the district lead Member for the joint 
committee and a nominated deputy to attend and vote as necessary. This is a 
matter for the individual districts to determine, however it is suggested, for 
continuity purposes, that district Leaders form the membership of the joint 
committee, with the ability for a nominated deputy to attend as necessary. The 
recommendations to this report therefore propose that Oldham Council’s lead 
Member for the joint committee is the Leader of the Council and that the Cabinet 
Member for Housing acts as the deputy, to attend and vote as necessary. 
 

 It will be the responsibility of the joint committee to agree its terms of reference 
and the operational arrangements, including the appointing of the chair and the 
voting arrangements. 

 
2.6 The purpose of the Joint Committee will be to formulate and prepare the Joint DPD.  

Should the draft joint DPD be considered to have substantially the same effect on 
the nine districts as the GMSF 2020, the next stage would be publication 
(Regulation 19 stage). 

 
2.7 As with the GMSF: 

 

 each Council’s Cabinet/Executive will be responsible for approving the 
Regulation 19 version of the joint DPD ahead of a period for representations to 
be made; and 

 the nine full Councils will be responsible for approving the joint DPD for 
submission to the Secretary of State for independent examination.  

 
2.8 The function of scrutiny in the production of the joint DPD will remain with the 

individual districts as the relevant decisions will rest with the districts, not AGMA or 
the GMCA. 

 

Page 479



 

  6 

Amendments to Oldham’s Local Development Scheme and Statement of Community 
Involvement  
 
2.9 Oldham’s Local Development Scheme (most recently updated September 2020) 

will need to be revised to reflect preparation of the Joint DPD and its revised 
timetable. The Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) will also need to be 
amended to reference the Joint DPD appropriately. Consultation that takes place in 
relation to the Joint DPD of the nine will need to be in accordance with each 
district’s SCI, as was the case with the GMSF.  

 
2.10 Districts have been asked to consider what changes are needed to the LDS and 

SCI as a result of the actions proposed at the front of this report and ensure that the 
necessary steps are taken. Further reports on the necessary changes to the LDS 
and SCI will be taken through for approval as appropriate.   

 
The Oldham Local Plan 
 
2.11 The Joint DPD ‘Places for Everyone’ remains essential to create the foundations for 

the scale of growth and ambition for Greater Manchester. Upon adoption it will be 
part of the Development Plan for each Greater Manchester local authority, including 
Oldham. As stated above progressing the Joint DPD provides the speediest 
resolution to provide an up-to-date Local Plan within MHCLG’s deadline of 
December 2023. Whilst offering the strongest protection against inappropriate 
development whilst the Local Plan is being developed.  

 
2.12 The Joint DPD, however, is a high level, strategic plan and does not cover 

everything that a district local plan would. District Local Plans therefore continue to 
play a vital role to take forward the strategic policies set out in the joint DPD and 
interpret these at a more detailed local level to support the creation of locally 
distinctive high-quality places and neighbourhoods. 

 
2.12 The Council intend to press ahead with consultation on issues and options for the 

Local Plan and it is anticipated that consultation will be during summer 2021. 
Revisions to the LDS will need to reflect these changes to the timetable. The Local 
Plan will deal with matters at the local level setting out the spatial vision, strategic 
objectives and strategy for Oldham and cover planning policies and site allocations, 
where they provide additional policy direction for Oldham, beyond that contained in 
the Joint DPD ‘Places for Everyone’.  

 
3 Options/Alternatives 
 
3.1 Option 1: To approve the arrangements necessary to formulate and prepare the 

joint development plan document (DPD) “Places for Everyone” as set out in the 
recommendations to this report, including the establishment of a joint committee to 
represent Oldham Council and the eight other GM districts (Bolton, Bury, 
Manchester, Rochdale, Salford, Tameside, Trafford, Wigan). 

 
3.2 Option 2: To not approve the arrangements necessary to formulate and prepare the 

joint development plan document (DPD) “Places for Everyone” as set out in the 
recommendations to this report, including the establishment of a joint committee to 

Page 480



 

  7 

represent Oldham Council and the eight other GM districts (Bolton, Bury, 
Manchester, Rochdale, Salford, Tameside, Trafford, Wigan). 

 
 
4 Preferred Option 
 
4.1 To approve the arrangements necessary to formulate and prepare the joint 

development plan document (DPD) “Places for Everyone” as set out in the 
recommendations to this report, including the establishment of a joint committee to 
represent Oldham Council and the eight other GM districts (Bolton, Bury, 
Manchester, Rochdale, Salford, Tameside, Trafford, Wigan). 

 
5 Consultation 
 
5.1 Consultation will be carried out on the joint development plan document ‘Places for 

Everyone’ as appropriate.  
 
6 Financial Implications  
 
6.1 Whilst a substantial evidence base has been assembled to support the 

Development Plan Document, as part of the work on the GMSF, it is expected that 
further work will be required which will require the commissioning of specialist and 
independent consultants. There will be a cost to the revenue budget as a result.  

 
6.2 The exact amount of additional revenue costs cannot be accurately determined at 

this time and will be dependent on the amount of work that needs to be 
commissioned.  However, any additional costs will need to be met from any 
amounts remaining in specific reserves to support the Local Plan and wider spatial 
planning, within the existing Planning Service revenue budget or within the wider 
existing Economy Directorate revenue budget. 

 
(James Postle) 
 

7 Legal Services Comments 
 
7.1 Under section 28 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, 2 or more 

local authorities may agree to prepare one or more joint local development 
documents.  Pursuant to Regulation 4(4A) and (4C) of the Local Authorities 
(Functions and Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000, the making of an 
agreement to prepare one or more joint development plan documents shall not be 
the responsibility of an executive of the authority.  The decision to agree to 
prepare a joint development plan document must therefore be made by full 
Council.  

 
7.2 Section 101(5) of the Local Government Act 1972 enables two or more local 

authorities to discharge any of their functions by a joint committee.  Section 9EA of 
the Local Government Act 2000 enables the Secretary of State to make 
regulations for enabling an executive of a local authority to arrange for the 
discharge of any functions which under executive arrangements are the 
responsibility of the executive by another local authority or by the executive of 
another local authority or a committee or specified member of such an executive.  

Page 481



 

  8 

The Local Authorities (Arrangements for the Discharge of Functions) (England) 
Regulations 2012 (SI 2012 no. 1019) were made pursuant to Section 9EA.  The 
Regulations provide at Regulation 4 that in an authority with a Leader and Cabinet 
(as in Oldham), the persons with the power to make arrangements under section 
101(5) of the Local Government Act 1972 are the Cabinet, a member of the 
Cabinet or a committee of the Cabinet, as respects those functions which are 
allocated by executive arrangements to the Cabinet, that member or that 
committee. (A Evans) 

 
8. Co-operative Agenda 
 
8.1 Formulation and preparation of the joint development plan document (DPD) 

‘Places for Everyone’, including the establishment of a joint committee to represent 
Oldham Council and the eight other GM districts (Bolton, Bury, Manchester, 
Rochdale, Salford, Tameside, Trafford, Wigan) links to Oldham’s co-operative 
agenda. Working with our neighbouring districts, other GM authorities and the 
GMCA in a collaborative way that will help to support our Corporate Plan and 
priorities such as delivering ‘An Inclusive Economy’ and Creating a Better Place. 

 
9 Human Resources Comments 
 
9.1 Not applicable.  
 
10 Risk Assessments 
 
10.1 None received  
 
11 IT Implications 
 
11.1 Not applicable. 
 
12 Property Implications 
 
12.1 The preparation of the joint development plan document is welcomed, as it will 

provide a framework to manage growth and promote property development in a 
sustainable and inclusive way, helping to avoid largescale un-planned 
development and development by appeal. (Bryn Cooke) 

 
13 Procurement Implications 
 
13.1 Not applicable. 
 
14 Environmental and Health & Safety Implications 
 
14.1 An Integrated Appraisal has been prepared to support the GMSF.   
 
15 Equality, community cohesion and crime implications 
 
15.1 A Joint Development Plan Document is a statutory plan which seeks to contribute 

to the achievement of sustainable development, delivering economic, social and 

Page 482



 

  9 

environmental benefits together in a mutually reinforcing way. It will be informed by 
an Integrated Appraisal which includes an Equalities assessment. 

 
16  Implications for Children and Young People 
 
16.1 An Equality Impact Assessment has been carried out as part of the Integrated 

Appraisal. 
 
17 Equality Impact Assessment Completed? 
 
17.1  A Joint Development Plan Document is a statutory plan which seeks to contribute 

to the achievement of sustainable development, delivering economic, social and 
environmental benefits together in a mutually reinforcing way. It will be informed by 
an Integrated Appraisal which includes an Equalities assessment. 

 
18 Key Decision 
 
18.1 Yes  
 
19 Key Decision Reference 
 
19.1 NC-02-21. 
 
20 Background Papers 
 
20.1 The following is a list of background papers on which this report is based in 

accordance with the requirements of Section 100(1) of the Local Government Act 
1972.  It does not include documents which would disclose exempt or confidential 
information as defined by the Act: 
 
See Appendix 1 below.  
 
 

21 Appendices  
 
21.1 Appendix 1 - Places for Everyone: A Proposed Joint Development Plan Document 

of Nine GM Districts; AGMA Executive Board; 12th February 2021 

Page 483



This page is intentionally left blank



 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGMA Executive Board 

 

Date:  12th February 2021 

 

Subject: Places for Everyone: A Proposed Joint Development Plan Document of Nine GM 

Districts 

 

Report of: Paul Dennett, Portfolio Lead for Housing, Homelessness and Infrastructure 

Steve Rumbelow Portfolio Lead Chief Executive for Housing, Homelessness and 

Infrastructure 

 

 

 

 

 

1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT 

1.1 On 11 December 2020, following the withdrawal of Stockport Council from the production 

of the Greater Manchester Plan for Jobs, Homes & the Environment, the Greater 

Manchester Spatial Framework, the AGMA Executive Board agreed to consider producing a 

joint Development Plan Document (DPD) of the nine remaining Greater Manchester (GM) 

districts, and asked officers to report back on the implications of this.  

 

1.2 This report provides further details on the next steps in relation to that joint plan of the 

nine GM districts, to be known as “Places for Everyone”, including the required decisions 

by individual Districts to initiate this process.   

Page 485



 

2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS: 

The AGMA Executive Board is asked to note that: 

2.1 Each full Council will be asked to: 

1. Approve the making of an agreement with the other 8 Greater Manchester councils 

(Bolton, Bury, Manchester, Oldham, Rochdale, Salford, Tameside, Trafford, Wigan * 

delete as appropriate) to prepare a joint development plan document to cover strategic 

policies including housing and employment land requirements and, as appropriate, 

strategic site allocations and Green Belt boundary amendments and associated 

infrastructure across the nine districts. 

2. Agree the district lead Member for the joint committee and a nominated deputy to 

attend and vote as necessary 

3. Note that the [Council’s Executive / Cabinet] will be asked to delegate the formulation 

and preparation of the draft joint development plan document to a joint committee of 

the nine GM authorities  

4. Note that a further report will be brought to full Council seeking approval to submit the 

joint development plan document to the Secretary of State for independent 

examination 

2.2 Each Executive / cabinet/ leader/ the City Mayor (depending on each Council’s own 

arrangements and in the event that the Councils have approved the above 

recommendations):  

1. Note that full Council has approved the making of an agreement with the other 8 

Greater Manchester councils [state] to prepare a joint development plan document to 

cover strategic policies including housing and employment land requirements and, as 

appropriate, strategic site allocations and Green Belt boundary amendments and 

associated infrastructure across the nine districts.  

2. Delegate to the joint committee of the nine Greater Manchester councils the 

formulation and preparation of the joint development plan document to cover housing 

and employment land requirements including, as appropriate, strategic site allocations 

and Green Belt boundary amendments and associated infrastructure across the nine 

Greater Manchester districts insofar as such matters are executive functions. 

Page 486



3. Note that the following are the sole responsibility of full Council: 

• Responsibility for giving of instructions to the executive to reconsider the draft plan 

submitted by the executive for the authority’s consideration. 

• The amendment of the draft joint development plan document submitted by the 

executive for the full Council’s consideration 

• The approval of the joint development plan document for the purposes of 

submission to the Secretary of State for independent examination. 

• The adoption of the joint development plan document.  

 

3.0 CONTACT OFFICERS: 

3.1 Steve Rumbelow, Chief Executive Portfolio Lead for Housing, Homelessness and 

Infrastructure (steve.rumbelow@rochdale.gov.uk)  

 

Anne Morgan, Head of Planning Strategy, GMCA (anne.morgan@greatermanchester-

ca.gov.uk) 

 

 

 

Equalities Implications: 

A Joint Development Plan Document is a statutory plan which seeks to contribute to the 

achievement of sustainable development, delivering economic, social and environmental benefits 

together in a mutually reinforcing way. It will be informed by an Integrated Appraisal which 

includes an Equalities assessment.  

 

Climate Change Impact Assessment and Mitigation Measures –  

A Joint Development Plan of the 9 will provide a planning policy framework to support Greater 

Manchester’s ambition to be carbon neutral by 2038 

 

Legal Considerations: As set out in the Report 

  

Financial Consequences – Revenue:  

Page 487

mailto:steve.rumbelow@rochdale.gov.uk
mailto:anne.morgan@greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk
mailto:anne.morgan@greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk


The preparation of the joint Development Plan Document will generate a revenue cost for the 9 

local authorities. A substantial evidence base was assembled to support the GMSF plan of the 10 

local authorities which involved the commissioning of specialist and independent experts. Much of 

this evidence will remain relevant to this plan, and Stockport’s Local Plan, however there will be 

further revenue costs associated producing the plan of the nine local authorities and with the 

examination process, including appointment of a Programme Officer and Assistant. A budget has 

been identified to meet this cost from within the Retained Business Rates budget, spread over the 

two financial years 2020/21 and 2021/22. 

 

Financial Consequences – Capital: n/a 

There are no capital consequences identified 

  

Number of attachments included in the report: None 

Comments and/or recommendation from the relevant Overview & Scrutiny Committee: N/A 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS:  

Report to AGMA Executive Board 30 October 2020 

 

Report to AGMA Executive Board 11 December 2020 

 

TRACKING/PROCESS [All sections to be completed] 

Does this report relate to a major strategic decision, as set out in the 

GMCA Constitution  

 

 

Yes / No 

 

EXEMPTION FROM CALL IN 

Are there any aspects in this report which 

means it should be considered to be exempt 

from call in by the relevant Scrutiny Committee 

on the grounds of urgency? 

No 

Page 488

file:///M:/AGMA/Planning%20and%20Housing%20team/Groups%20and%20Boards/Exec%20Board/2020/October%202020/AGMA_GMSF_October2020_ISSUED.docx
https://democracy.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=383&MId=4221


TfGMC Overview & Scrutiny 

Committee 

 

N/A N/A 

 

 

4.0 BACKGROUND 

4.1 Up until December 2020 a joint development plan document of the ten Greater 

Manchester local authorities was being prepared, Greater Manchester’s Plan for Jobs, 

Homes & the Environment (known as the “GMSF”). However, the decision at Stockport 

Council’s meeting on 3 December to not submit the GMSF 2020 following the consultation 

period and the subsequent resolution at its Cabinet meeting on 4 December not to publish 

the GMSF 2020 for consultation in effect signalled the end of the GMSF as a joint plan of 

the 10.  

4.2 Consequently, at its meeting on the 11th December 2020, Members of the AGMA 

Executive Committee asked officers to report back on the implications and process of 

producing a joint DPD of the nine remaining Greater Manchester (GM) districts. 

 

5.0 RATIONALE AND SCOPE OF THE PLAN PLACES FOR EVERYONE 

5.1 Notwithstanding the decision of Stockport Council, the rationale for the preparation of a 

Joint DPD of the nine remaining districts remains. This includes being able to: 

• Underpin Greater Manchester’s plan for recovery from Covid 

• Support delivery of the Greater Manchester Strategy 

• Provide a framework to manage growth in a sustainable and inclusive way, avoid 

un-planned development and development by appeal 

• Align the delivery of development with infrastructure proposals 

• Meet the requirement for local authorities to have a local plan in place by 

December 2023. 

• Meet the Duty to Co-operate in s33A Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004  

 

Page 489



5.2 Discussions with the nine authorities indicate that there is continued opportunity to work 

collaboratively to produce a joint plan of the nine, to be known as “Places for Everyone”. 

Producing such a plan would enable those nine districts to continue to:  

• progress the strategic policies in GMSF 2020 which commanded widespread 

support, for example net zero carbon development, affordable housing and space 

and accessibility standards for new housing 

• maximise the use of sustainable urban/brownfield land and limit the need for 

Green Belt to accommodate the development needs of the nine 

• align with wider Greater Manchester strategies for transport and other 

infrastructure investment 

• utilise the evidence base already commissioned and completed, minimising the cost 

of producing further evidence 

• spread the cost jointly of the independent examination  

 

6.0 PROCESS FOR PRODUCING THE JOINT PLAN PLACES FOR EVERYONE 

6.1 The GMSF was being prepared by the AGMA Executive Board on behalf of the ten GM 

districts. However, it would not be appropriate for the preparation of a joint plan of only 

nine of the ten GM districts to be delegated to this Board. Instead it will be necessary to 

establish a new joint committee of the nine relevant districts – Bury, Bolton, Manchester, 

Oldham, Rochdale, Salford, Tameside, Trafford and Wigan.  Each district will be requested 

to authorise the establishment of the new joint committee and delegate the preparation of 

the joint DPD to the new joint committee as outlined at the front of this report. 

6.2 Membership of the joint committee is a matter for the individual districts to determine. 

However, it is suggested, for continuity purposes, that district Leaders form the 

membership of the committee, with the ability for a nominated deputy to attend as 

necessary. It will be the responsibility of the joint committee to agree its terms of reference 

and the operational arrangements, including the appointing of the chair and the voting 

arrangements. 

6.3 The purpose of the Joint Committee will be to formulate and prepare the joint DPD.  In the 

event that the draft joint DPD is considered to have substantially the same effect on the 

nine districts as the GMSF 2020, the next stage would be publication (Regulation 19 stage). 

Page 490



As with the GMSF, each Cabinet/Executive will be responsible for approving the Regulation 

19 version of the plan ahead of a period for representations to be made. Again as with the 

GMSF, the nine full Councils will be responsible for approving the joint plan for submission 

to the Secretary of State for independent Examination. 

6.4 The preparation of the joint DPD will need to be reflected in each District’s Local 

Development Scheme (LDS), which identifies the timetable for the production of local 

development documents such as this one. Similarly, district Statements of Community 

Involvement (SCI) will need to make reference to the joint DPD appropriately and 

consultation that takes place in relation to the joint DPD of the nine will need to be in 

accordance with each district’s SCI, as was the case with the GMSF. Districts will therefore 

need to consider what changes are needed to these documents as a result of the actions 

proposed at the front of this report and ensure that the necessary steps are taken. 

6.5 The function of scrutiny in the production of the joint DPD will remain with the individual 

districts as the relevant decisions will rest with the districts, not AGMA or the GMCA. 

 

7.0 INTERRELATIONSHIP WITH STOCKPORT AND THE JOINT DPD PLACES FOR EVERYONE 

7.1 Whilst Stockport Council has withdrawn from the joint planning process of preparing the 

GMSF, to prepare its own local plan, the Council remains one of the 10 partners which 

make up GMCA and all are committed to continuing to work together to deliver a wide 

range of important strategies for example, the Local Industrial Strategy, the 5 Year 

Environment Plan and the 2040 Transport Strategy. 

7.2 Under s33A Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, there is a formal Duty to Co-

operate with neighbouring authorities. As part of the process of preparing the joint DPD, 

the nine districts will be required to enter into dialogue with Stockport on matters of 

strategic, cross boundary significance. The outcome of which will need to be set out in a 

“Statement of Common Ground”. For example, this could include strategic matters such as 

the scale and distribution of housing and employment land and transport infrastructure. 

Where the scope of such matters dictate, such as conurbation wide issues, it may be 

appropriate for reports to be brought to this body for information and/or consideration.  

 

8.0 NEXT STEPS 

Page 491



8.1 The process of establishing the joint committee will follow due process in the districts to 

enable a draft of the joint DPD Places for Everyone to be produced in a timely fashion, as 

set out in this report.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 492


	Agenda
	3 To order that the Minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 16th December 2020 and 4th March 2021 be signed as a correct record
	$$Minutes DRAFT (1)

	7 To receive and note petitions received relating to the business of the Council
	9c Questions on Cabinet Minutes
	Minutes
	25.01.2021
	Minutes

	22.02.2021
	Minutes


	9d Questions on Joint Arrangements
	DRAFT minutes GMCA 18 December 2020
	DRAFT minutes GMCA 29 January 2021
	11 December 2020 GMTC minutes
	2020.10.22 CPB minutes
	CPB 20210128 final minutes
	GM Police, Fire and Crime Panel 16.11.20
	HWBB November 2020 - final minutes
	Minutes AGMA 11 December 2020
	Minutes of the Greater Manchester Waste and Recycling Committee - 14 October 2020
	MioCare Group Board Public Minutes 22.10.20
	National Park Authority 13 November 2020

	12 Oldham's COVID-19 Response - Update
	13 Update on Actions from Council
	Actions from Council 16 December 2020
	Responses from D Abrahams MP dated and received 2nd March 2021
	Response fron B Hughes Deputy Mayor to Tracking Stalkers Motion dated and received 4th March
	Response from A Burnham re Street Harassment Motion dated and received 21st December 2020
	Response from D Abrahams MP re Street Harassment and Child Poverty Motions dated and received 10 Dec 2020
	Response from Jim McMahon OBE MP re Street Harassment Motion dated 22nd Feb and received 3rd March 2021
	Response received from J McMahon OBE MP re Council Motions dated 27 Nov 2020 received 9 Dec 2020
	Response from B. Hughes Deputy Mayor re CSE Letter dated 14 December 2020
	Response from A Burnham re Tax Relief for Public Transport

	14 Warding Arrangements
	consensus wards- doc for submission to LGBCE v1.1
	alexandra[1]
	chadd_c[1]
	chadd_n[1]
	chadd_s[1]
	coldhurst[1]
	crompton[1]
	Failsworth_E[1]
	Failsworth_W[1]
	hollinwood[1]
	medlock[1]
	royton_n[1]
	royton_s[1]
	sadd_n[1]
	sadd_s[1]
	Sadd_WL[1]
	shaw[1]
	st_james[1]
	st_marys[1]
	waterhead[1]
	werneth[1]

	15 Constitutional Amendments
	Constitutional Amends Appendix - Part 3 part draft March 2021 v2i

	16 Consequential Amendments
	17 Member Annual Reports 2020
	18 Adoption of Revised Licensing Act 2003 Policy
	Licensing Act Policy 2021

	19 Arrangements for the preparation of 'Places for Everyone': A proposed Joint Development Plan Document on behalf of nine Greater Manchester districts
	Appendix 1 to Final Cabinet_Council Report for Joint Committee March 2021_AGMA Executive Report 12 February


